
HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF RENO 

NOTICE OF REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF RENO 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

The Housing Authority of the City of Reno (Agency) will conduct a public meeting: 

MEETING DATE: Tuesday, January 23, 2024 
TIME:  12:00 p.m. (Approximately) 
PLACE: Reno Housing Authority Boardroom 

1525 East Ninth Street, Reno, Nevada 

Persons wishing to provide public comment may participate during the scheduled meeting by commenting in person 
during the course of the meeting, or address their comments, data, views, arguments in written form to Hilary Lopez, 
Ph.D., Executive Director, Housing Authority of the City of Reno, 1525 East 9th Street, Reno, NV 89512-3012, Fax: 
775.786.1712; e-mail address: HLopez@renoha.org.  Written submission should be received by the Board on or before, 
January 22, 2024, by 5:00 p.m., in order to make copies available to members of the Board and the public. 

Below is an agenda of all items scheduled to be considered.  At the discretion of the chairperson or the Board, items 
on the agenda may be taken out of order; the Board may combine two or more agenda items for consideration, and 
the Board may remove an item from the agenda or delay discussion relating to an item on the agenda at any time.  The 
public is advised that one or more members of the Board may participate in the meeting via electronic means. 

A G E N D A 

• Call to order and roll call.

• Introduction of guests.

• First Period of Public Comment. The opportunity for public comment is
reserved for any matter within the jurisdiction of the Board. No action on
such an item may be taken by the Board unless and until the matter has
been noticed as an action item. Comments from the public are limited to
three minutes per person.

• Approval of agenda.  (For Possible Action)

1. Approval of the minutes of the regular Board meeting held November 28, 2023, and
the closed session meeting held December 8, 2023. (For Possible Action)

2. Presentation by Cori Fisher, Director of Resident Services, to Tahleena Hardin,
Workforce Development graduate. (Discussion)

3. Consent Agenda.  (All consent items may be approved together with a single
motion, be taken out of order, and/or be heard and discussed individually.  Items
will be removed and considered separately at the request of the public or Board
member.) (For Possible Action)

a) Consider adoption of Resolution 24-01-01 RH authorizing the write-off of
tenant accounts receivable for the Section 8 Rental Assistance Programs.

Page 1 of 301

mailto:HLopez@renoha.org.


 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF RENO 
 

b) Consider adoption of Resolution 24-01-02 RH authorizing the write-off of 
landlord accounts receivable for the Section 8 Rental Assistance Programs.   

 
c) Consider adoption of Resolution 24-01-03 RH authorizing the write-off of 

vacated tenant account receivables for the Low-Rent Public Housing 
Program.   

 
d) Consider adoption of Resolution 24-01-04 RH authorizing the write-off of 

vacated tenant account receivables for the unaided properties.   
 
e) Consider adoption of Resolution 24-01-05 RH approving the annual update 

of the Equal Opportunity Housing Plan for Section 8 Rental Assistance 
Programs.  

 
f) Consider adoption of Resolution 24-01-06 RH ratifying $150,000.00 in 

additional MTW funding previously approved on January 4, 2024, for APN 
031-012-40, otherwise known as Parcel 4-B as shown on Parcel Map No. 
5306 in the Paradise Plaza Shopping Center.  
 

g) Consider adoption of Resolution 24-01-07 RH approving an amendment to 
the FY2024 MTW Annual Plan to establish specific Housing Construction 
Cost (HCC) and Total Development Cost (TDC) limits for Washoe County 
and authorizing submission to the US Department of Housing and Urban 
Development. 

 
h) Consider adoption of Resolution 24-01-08 RH authorizing the Executive 

Director to project-base up to 125 Veterans Affairs Supportive Housing 
(VASH) Vouchers and up to 50 Housing Choice Vouchers (HCV) at 
proposed and/or existing rental properties through a Request for Proposals 
(RFP). 

 
4. Commissioner Reports. (Discussion) 
 
5. Executive Director/Secretary's Report. (Discussion) 

 
A. Update on Agency activities  
B. Update on Rental Assistance Voucher Programs / Asset Management 
C. Update on Workforce Development, Elderly Services, and Youth activities 
D. Update on Public Affairs activities 
E. Update on Development activities 
F. Update on Information Technology activities 
G. Update on MTW activities 
H. Update on Legal Inquiries 
I.     Financials 

 
6. Discussion and possible approval of RHA Rebranding including: 

• Presentation on “Opportunity Knocks Here” by April Conway, PAO 
• Follow up on possible changes to RHA’s Mission Statement 
• Follow up on potential change, or doing business as (dba), to the 

Authority’s name.  
(For Possible Action) 

Page 2 of 301



 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF RENO 
 

 
7. Discussion of Board Retreat goals and update on leadership retreat and next 

steps. (Discussion) 
 
8. Discussion and possible approval of the Material Change Policy that outlines 

construction and/or overall project changes that require Board of Commissioners 
review after initial approval. (For Possible Action) 

 
9. Discussion and possible action to approve formation of Pathways to Prosperity 

and Truckee Meadows Affordable Housing, both of which will be non-profit 
entities of RHA which will apply for 501(c)3 status, through filing articles of 
incorporation therefor with the Nevada Secretary of State and to approve the 
Bylaws for both entities of RHA. (For Possible Action) 

 
10. Update on the use of State of Nevada Home Means Nevada Initiative (HMNI) 

funds, legislative deadlines, and potential availability of additional HMNI funding 
for Silver Sage Apartments and John McGraw public housing. (Discussion) 
 

11. Discussion and potential approval of changes to RHA’s Personnel Policies to 
provide the Executive Director with further discretion when hiring and negotiating 
starting salary. (Discussion) 

 
12. Closed Session: The Board may give direction to staff in closed session 

regarding the position or positions to be taken or the strategy to be employed, 
and staff may provide the Board with an update, regarding: 
 
a) A potential letter of intent to Catholic Charities related to the acquisition of the 

Reno Ave Parcels.  
 

b) Possible future property swap of the Sarrazin Apartments for a newly 
constructed 60-unit apartment development by Jacobs Entertainment on a 
parcel immediately adjacent to the Gibson Building, on the east side of the 
building on W. 2nd Street, and related matters thereto.  

 
c) Possible acquisition of 205 S. Sierra Street, an existing 60-unit apartment 

complex in Reno, and related matters thereto. 
 
d) Update on Post Closing Agreement with Paradise Retail I, LLC, for APN 031-

012-40, otherwise known as Parcel 4-B as shown on Parcel Map No. 5306 in 
the Paradise Plaza Shopping Center.  

 
d.) Per NRS 288.220(4), to discuss labor relations with RHA’s management 

representatives, including without limitation, the position or positions to be 
taken or the strategy to be employed leading to the execution of a new 
Collective Bargaining Agreement (CBA), the upcoming expiration of the 
current CBA expiring June 30, 2024, potential items for negotiation in a new 
CBA and associated fiscal impacts. There will be no approval of the collective 
bargaining agreement during the course of the closed session.   

 
 
 

Page 3 of 301



 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF RENO 
 

Reconvene Open Session: 
 
13. Discussion and possible approval of a letter of intent to Catholic Charities for the 

acquisition of property known as the Reno Ave Parcels. (For Possible Action) 
 
14. Discussion and possible approval of a letter of intent for a future property swap of 

the Sarrazin Apartments for a newly constructed 60-unit apartment development 
by Jacobs Entertainment on a parcel immediately adjacent to the Gibson 
Building, on the east side of the building on W. 2nd Street, and related matters 
thereto. (For Possible Action) 
 

15. Discussion and possible directions to staff regarding 205 S. Sierra Street, Reno, 
and related matters thereto. (For Possible Action) 

 
16. Additional Items:  

 
i) General matters of concern to Board Members regarding 

matters not appearing on the agenda. (Discussion) 
ii) Reports on conferences and trainings. (Discussion) 
iii) Old and New Business. (Discussion) 
iv) Request for Future Agenda Topics (Discussion) 
v) Schedule of next meeting. The following dates have been 

scheduled in advance but are subject to change at any time: 
Tuesday, February 27, 2024; Tuesday, March 26, 2024; and 
Tuesday, April 23, 2024. (For Possible Action) 

 
17. Public Comment.  The opportunity for public comment is reserved for any matter 

within the jurisdiction of the Board.  No action on such an item may be taken by 
the Board unless and until the matter has been noticed as an action item.  
Comments from the public are limited to three minutes per person. 
 

18. Adjournment.  
 
 
This meeting is accessible to the hearing impaired through the RHA TTY/TDD/voice phone line (385) 770-7166. 
Anyone with a disability, as defined by the Americans with Disabilities Act, requiring special assistance to participate in 
the meeting, may contact the Board of Commissioners at the following address, at least five days in advance of the 
meeting in order to make arrangements, if possible, for reasonable accommodations that would enable participation in 
the meeting by contacting Lindsay Dobson, Executive Administrative Assistant, Housing Authority of the City of Reno, 
1525 East Ninth Street, Reno, Nevada, 89512, or by calling (775) 329-3630.  
 
This agenda has been posted at the Housing Authority of the City of Reno Administrative Office, 1525 East Ninth 
Street; and further in compliance with NRS 241.020, this agenda has been posted on the official website for the 
Housing Authority of the City of Reno www.renoha.org and the State of Nevada Public Notification website 
http://notice.nv.gov/.  
 
According to the provisions of NRS 241.020(5), a copy of supporting (not privileged and confidential) material 
provided to Board members may be obtained upon request made to: Lindsay Dobson, Executive Administrative 
Assistant, Housing Authority of the City of Reno, 1525 East Ninth Street, Reno, Nevada, 89512, or by calling (775) 
329-3630.  Copies of supporting (not privileged and confidential) material provided to Board members by staff may be 
obtained at the aforementioned address. 
  
Dated January 17, 2024 
  
 
 
 

Page 4 of 301



 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF RENO 
 

 
 
 
    :   
     By: Lindsay Dobson 
             Executive Administrative Assistant 
 
 
 

Page 5 of 301



SUBJECT: Approval of the minutes of the regular Board meeting held November 28, 
2023, and the closed session meeting held December 8, 2023. (For Possible 
Action) 

FROM:          Executive Director    RECOMMENDATION: For Possible Action 

RENO HOUSING AUTHORITY 

 AGENDA ITEM NUMBER: 1   January 23, 2024 

Page 6 of 301



Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting 
November 28, 2023 

 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING 
HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF RENO 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
November 28, 2023 

 
The regular meeting of the Board of Commissioners of the Housing Authority of the City of Reno 
(Agency) was called to order by Chairman Aiazzi at 12:17 pm on Tuesday, November 28, 2023, in 
the Agency’s Boardroom. 

 
Commissioners Present Commissioners Absent 
Dave Aiazzi, Chairperson 
Mayor Hillary Schieve-via phone 12:32 
Mark Sullivan 
Kathleen Taylor 

 
Staff Present 
Hilary Lopez, Ph.D., Executive Director 
Heidi McKendree, Deputy Executive Director 
Ryan Russell, Legal Counsel 
JD Klippenstein, Director of Development 
Darren Squillante, Director of HR 
Cori Fisher, Director of Resident Services 
Kristin Scott, Director of Public Housing 
Josh Stice, Director of IT 
April Conway, Public Affairs Officer 
Lindsay Dobson, Executive Administrative Assistant 

 
 

Others Present 
None 

 
There being a quorum present, the order of business was as follows: 

 
• Call to order and roll call. 

 
• Receive introduction of guests. 

 
• First Period of Public Comment. The opportunity for public comment is 

reserved for any matter within the jurisdiction of the Board. No action on such 
an item may be taken by the Board unless and until the matter has been 
noticed as an action item. Comments from the public is limited to three 
minutes per person, under these items. 

 
There was no public comment. 

 
➢ Approval of agenda (For Possible Action) 

 
Commissioner Sullivan motioned to approve the agenda. Commissioner Taylor seconded the 
motion. Hearing no further discussion, Chairman Aiazzi called for the question. The vote was 
all ayes, no nays. Chairman Aiazzi declared the motion carried and the agenda approved. 

Page 7 of 301



Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting 
November 28, 2023 

 

1. Approval of the minutes of the regular Board meeting held October 24, 2023. (For Possible 
Action) 

 
Commissioner Taylor motioned to approve the minutes of the regular meeting held October 
2023. Commissioner Sullivan seconded the motion. Hearing no further discussion, Chairman 
Aiazzi called for the question. The vote was all ayes, no nays. Chairman Aiazzi declared the 
motion carried. 

 
2. Consent Agenda. (All consent items may be approved together with a single motion, be 

taken out of order, and/or be heard and discussed individually. Items will be removed and 
considered separately at the request of the public or Board member.) (For Possible Action) 

 
Commissioner Taylor motioned to approve the consent agenda. Commissioner Sullivan 
seconded the motion. Hearing no further discussion, Chairman Aiazzi called for the question. 
The vote was all ayes, no nays. Chairman Aiazzi declared the motion carried. 

 
a) Possible adoption of Resolution 23-11-01 RH approving non-substantive revisions to 

the Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s Administrative (ADMIN) Plan for Section 8 
Housing Choice Voucher and Project Based Voucher Programs to update policies as 
they relate to Yardi software implementation as well as clarification of admissions 
preferences. (For Possible Action) 

 
b) Possible adoption of Resolution 23-11-02 RH approving non-substantive revisions to 

the Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s Admission and Continued Occupancy Plan 
(ACOP) to update policies as they relate to Yardi software implementation as well as 
clarification of admissions preferences. (For Possible Action) 

 
c) Possible adoption of Resolution 23-11-03 RH approving a budget revision for the FY 

2020 Capital Fund Program (CFP) NV01P001501-20. (For Possible Action) 
 

d) Possible adoption of Resolution 23-11-04 RH approving a budget revision for the FY 
2021 Capital Fund Program (CFP) NV01P001501-21. (For Possible Action) 

 
3. Commissioner Reports. (Discussion) 

 
There were no reports. 

 
4. Executive Director/Secretary's Report. (Discussion) 

 
• The $250,000 budgeted for main office renovation and space planning has been obligated and 

construction has started. Currently, it is anticipated that the main office will be closed to the 
public and the main office staff will be working remotely from December 20th to January 7th. 
Client meetings will take place at Silverada Manor during this time. Closings will be posted at 
the main office and online ahead of time. 

 
• RHA’s Director of Rental Assistance was asked to participate as a panelist at the upcoming 

HUD VASH Bootcamp in Phoenix, Arizona, on November 28th and 29th. She was asked to 
share her expertise and experience with other PHA staff on topics ranging from partnering with 
the Veterans Affairs department to project-basing VASH vouchers. 

Page 8 of 301



Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting 
November 28, 2023 

 

• The annual Board meeting/retreat is set for Friday, December 15th, from 9 am to 4 pm at 
The Elm Estate. Staff are working to schedule a virtual Board meeting for Friday, 
December 8th, at 3 pm to provide an overview of homeownership and public finance 
considerations ahead of the retreat. 

 
• The city of Sparks Eviction Prevention Program is underway with approximately 26% of this 

year’s money providing assistance to over 70 households and providing over $342,000 in 
assistance to date. 

 
• Resident Services staff are working with Security National Mortgage and Opportunity Alliance 

Nevada to host a home ownership seminar in February and will provide further details as they 
become available. 

 
• Sky Tavern has confirmed 150 scholarships for RHA youth to participate in the 2024 Junior Sky 

Program. Bobo’s Ski and Board will once again be providing gear to participants at no cost. 
 

• Brinshore Development and Housing to Home were onsite to meet with Silverada on Hawk 
View residents on November 7th and 8th to provide updates to residents regarding timelines as 
well as some basic information about construction and receive feedback from the residents. 

 
• Staff are working to towards closing on the Paradise Plaza property. CIRE pushed the timeline 

out to mid-December. 

B. Update on Rental Assistance Voucher Programs / Asset Management 

Rental Assistance Voucher Programs 
 

Voucher Type Total 
Voucher 

Allocation 

Vouchers 
Leased as 
of 4/1/23 

Percent 
Leased 

Vouchers 
Issued Not 
Yet Leased 

Housing Choice Voucher 2,484 2,182 88% 154 
VASH 541 285 53% 64 
EHV 137 101 74% 24 
FYI 15 6 40% 3 

 
Number HQS 
Inspections 

Conducted by Month 
October 2023 155 

 
City of Sparks Eviction Prevention Program 

 
Total Funding 
Awarded 

Total Assistance 
Approved as of 11/15/23 

Number of Households 
Approved as of 11/15/23 

Percent 
Funding Spent 

$1,309,500 $342,094 71 26% 
 
 

Housing Choice Vouchers (HCV) 
Description: Vouchers used by clients to lease a unit in Washoe County of their choosing. Applicants are pulled from the RHA HCV Waitlist. These 

Page 9 of 301



Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting 
November 28, 2023 

 

vouchers also include Project Based Vouchers. The RHA has chosen to Project Base 107 of our HCV’s to assist special populations obtain housing. 
Of the total 107 PBV units, 95 are assigned to RHA owned properties. 

 
Lease-Up Expectations: Although total voucher allocation is 2524, HUD has set the agency’s leasing expectation at 2382 (AKA RHA’s MTW 
Baseline), which is the maximum leasing expectation set by HUD when RHA signed its MTW Contract. Funds provided by HUD to support the HCV 
program are also used to support the agency’s MTW activities and therefore full lease up of all 2524 vouchers is not expected or suggested by HUD. 

 
Veteran’s Affairs Supporting Housing Vouchers (VASH) 
Description: Vouchers allocated by HUD with an ongoing partnership with the VA to serve homeless veterans. The VA provides case management 
services to participants. The VA makes direct referrals to RHA of eligible clients and the RHA provides a VASH voucher. Currently, RHA has project- 
based 9 of these vouchers. 

 
Emergency Housing Vouchers (EHV) 
Description: Vouchers allocated by HUD for the specific purpose of assisting homeless individuals or families or those at risk of homelessness in 
obtaining housing. RHA is partnering with four local agencies (Catholic Charities, Health Plan of Nevada, Washoe County Human Services-Our Place 
and Volunteers of America) that have experience providing services to this population. Referrals for the program must come from the regional 
Continuum of Care (CoC) coordinated entry system. Direct referrals are received by the RHA from the partnering agency and the RHA provides the 
EHV voucher. 

 
Foster Youth to Independence Vouchers (FYI) 

 
Description: Voucher allocated by HUD for the specific purpose of assisting foster youth aging out of the foster care system. RHA is partnering with 
Washoe County Human Services and Eddy House to provide referrals and case management to clients. Direct referrals are received by the RHA 
from the partnering agency and the RHA provides the FYI voucher. 

Page 10 of 301



 

Asset Management 
 

• Asset Management has an open General Office Clerk and Compliance Specialist Position. 
Interviews will be conducted in November for both positions. 

 
• Maintenance staff completed the shutdown of all irrigation systems and swamp coolers across all 

Public Housing and Scattered Site properties. Staff are now focused on cleaning out gutters to 
ensure they are flowing freely before winter and leaf removal at all sites. 

 
• The Asset Management team continues to work in Yardi and become more comfortable using 

the software. Staff escalates discrepancies as they arise. 
 

• All managers and Maintenance II staff members passed the NSPIRE inspection test and are now 
certified in the new HUD-mandated inspection protocol. 

 
• Public Housing ended the month of October with 54 vacancies for an overall occupancy rate of 

93.2% across all sites. In October, six residents vacated their unit, and two units were leased. 
 

• The work on the Stead video surveillance system upgrade project continued through the month 
of October. 

 
C. Update on Workforce Development, Elderly Services, and youth activities 

 
Department Updates 

 
• The Director of Resident Services and Deputy Executive Director McKendree attended 

November’s Northern Nevada Workforce Alliance meeting to participate in a panel discussion 
regarding the interrelation between affordable housing and our community’s workforce. 

 
Elderly Services 

 
• Reno Sparks Gospel Mission provided an in-person, home-cooked Thanksgiving meal to 

residents of Willie J. Wynn and Holy Cross Catholic Church provided an in-person, home- 
cooked Thanksgiving meal to residents of Silverada, Tom Sawyer, and McGraw. Volunteers 
from the Hug High School cheerleading team and RHA staff attended the luncheons to 
socialize with senior residents and wish all a happy Thanksgiving. 

 
• The Salvation Army will be on site in December, to distribute Silver Angel Tree gifts to our 

enrolled residents. Any remaining senior residents in need of a holiday gift have been 
“adopted” by an RHA staff person. 

 
• Residents of Willie J. Wynn, with the assistance of RHA staff, started a weekly Crochet Club, in 

which all produced items (scarves, hats, etc.) will be donated to those experiencing 
homelessness during the winter months. 

 
Workforce Development (WFD) 

 
• SCORE Northern Nevada held a small business workshop for RHA clients who own a small 

business or are looking to start their own business. 
 

• In January of 2023, staff created a goal to have 100 clients enrolled in RHA’s workforce 

Page 11 of 301



 

development program by the end of the year. 92 clients are currently enrolled, with six 
applications pending. Staff look forward to reaching this goal and setting new 2024 goals soon. 

 
• Staff is working with Security National Mortgage and Opportunity Alliance Nevada to host a 

Homeownership Seminar in February of 2024. More details to come! 
 

Youth/Family Activities 
 

• Sky Tavern has confirmed 150 scholarships for RHA youth to participate in the 2024 Junior Ski 
Program. Bobo’s Ski & Board has generously offered to provide gear to each participant at no 
cost. Staff looks forward to seeing our youth enjoy the mountains beginning in January. 

 
• Reno Bike Project committed to donating 40 bikes to RHA youth. All holiday card drawing 

participants will receive a donated bike as a thank you for their engagement. 
 

Resident Councils 
 

• Reno Sparks Gospel Mission provided warm, to-go Thanksgiving meals to residents of Myra 
Birch, and Stead Manor. Resident councils led the distribution process at each site. 

 
• Staff are hosting a training/planning session for all 2024 elected resident council members in 

December. 
 

* The Authority’s community partners are designated in bold within the Update on Elderly Services, Workforce 
Development, and youth activities headers. 

 
D. Update on Public Affairs Activities 

 
Media: traditional and social 

• Promoted RHA open positions for hire, landlord incentive programs, Affordable Connectivity 
Program, community partners’ low/no-cost medical and dental events and promoted the staff 
Halloween events at each of the five public housing complexes. 

• RHA mentioned in news items regarding the Sparks Rental Assistance Program, RHA 80th 
Anniversary, EDAWN Existing Industry Award, Bonanza Inn, Pinyon Apartments and Golden 
Groceries food pantry at Tom Sawyer. 

• Cori Fisher is set to speak with Senior Spectrum radio in December, again regarding the food 
pantry. 

• Since our last social report in February, our Facebook presence has grown from 1,427 
likes/followers to 1,651. Twitter and Instagram are continually adding followers, from 84 in February 
to 126, and 462 to 577 respectively. 

Opportunity Knocks Magazine 

• Going to print this month. 
 
 
 
 
 

Other 

Page 12 of 301



 

• Initial planning for RHA’s next elected officials tour/open house is underway. 

• Planning for Railyard Flats groundbreaking event in January. 

• 2024 RHA calendar has been mailed to residents. 

• RHA/Nevada Rural joint media training postponed until January by Nevada Rural. 

• Employee newsletter completed and sent out 

• Resident newsletter will be sent soon to accommodate public hearing notice for the MTW plan. 

• Donated a fully decorated Christmas tree to Safe Embrace for their annual Trees and Lights 
fundraiser. The tree itself and most items were donated by RHA employees. 

 

E. Update on Development Activities 
 

Silverada Manor & Hawk View Redevelopment 
 

• Held resident meetings on November 7 (Hawk View) & November 8 (Silverada). Two meetings 
were held at each property (10am and 6pm) to provide more opportunities for residents to 
attend. Both Brinshore Development and HousingToHome were on site to provide important 
updates related to the project timeline and temporary relocation. 

 
• We have added a page to RHA’s website related to our redevelopment/preservation efforts 

where residents can access resources and documents related to RAD, Section 18, and 
relocation: https://www.renoha.org/redevelopment-and-preservation/answer 

 

• HUD review of Hawk View Section 18 application expected to be complete by end of year. 
 

• RHA staff is working diligently to complete the required steps for the RAD Concept Call with 
HUD for Silverada Manor by early December. Staff are aiming for the Concept Call to happen 
mid-December. 

 
• Brinshore submitted Financing Plans for both Silverada and Hawk View on November 15 and 

staff are currently reviewing them. 
 

Dick Scott Manor 
 

• Construction is moving forward on schedule, within budget and within current project scope. 

Railyard Flats 

• Executed contract with Pavilion Construction at end of October and issued Notice to Proceed 
on November 11. 

 
• Working towards financially closing by end of November. 

 
• Projected project start is first week of December, with a groundbreaking ceremony tentatively 

planned for the middle of January 2024. 

Page 13 of 301

https://www.renoha.org/redevelopment-and-preservation/answer


 

Stead Manor 
 

• Schematic Design will be received by November 29th. 

McGraw Court/Silver Sage Court 

• Schematic Design review will end on November 29th followed by Schematic Design cost 
estimate shortly after. 

Carville Court 
 

• Submitted application for State of Nevada HOME-ARP funding round in November. Requested 
$700k to cover a funding gap that has arisen due to higher estimated construction costs than 
originally projected in initial proforma. 

 
• Additionally, RHA staff plans to pursue additional funding from the Washoe County Affordable 

Housing Trust Fund (AHTF) for this project. This is the first funding round for the Washoe 
County AHTF and it is specifically for supportive housing projects like Carville Court. The 
additional funds would be used to increase the density of the site from 11 units to up 15 units. 
The application is anticipated to be released by early 2024. 

Paradise Plaza 
 

• No project updates as of October 2023. 

Essex Manor 

• No project updates as of October 2023. 

Capital Fund 

• Video Surveillance System installation at Stead Manor is substantially complete. 
 

• Staff identified and proposed the following CF budget revisions at the November 2023 Board of 
Commissioners meeting: 

 
o $68,439.78 (CF2020) from McGraw Court to Management Improvement (1408). 

 
▪ These funds will cover the cost of LCPtracker software to support the Development 

Department with labor compliance and equipment needed for the IT Department. 
Moving these funds will cover the cost of the overall equipment and software 
implementation and complete the obligation and expenditure requirement for the 
CF2020 budget year. 

 
o $150,000 (CF 2021) in unobligated funds to Stead Manor and $50,000 (CF 2021) in 

unobligated funds to McGraw Court. These funds will be used to pay for predevelopment 
activities and associated rehabilitation project costs. Moving these funds will cover the cost 
of the overall predevelopment activities associated with relocation and complete the 
obligation requirement for the 2021 budget year. 

Page 14 of 301



 

F. Update on Information Technology activities 
 

Yardi Implementation 
 

• RentCafé, a platform within Yardi to manage clients and vendors through portals in which 
they can login, for applicants will be going live by mid-December. Training will be conducted 
for admissions staff and receptionists on specific troubleshooting techniques depending on 
the client’s issue while registering. Beginning balances have been imported into Yardi with 
minor elements being finalized. Staff continues to assist Admissions, Asset Management, 
and Rental Assistance with workflow creations and one-off issues through the assistance of 
Yardi staff and Wise Consulting. 

 
Laserfiche Implementation 

 

• Scanning continues in Rental Assistance. The scanning team will be finished with Rental 
Assistance files by mid-December and will then proceed to scan Public Housing and 
reasonable accommodations. All departments continue to adjust to the new processes as 
they become paperless. 

 
Other Projects 

 

• Staff is working closely with Development and Merit Electric to plan the location and 
quantity of data cabling for additional workstations created from the main office remodel. IT 
is also working with all departments to move equipment and relocate staff while 
construction takes place. 

 
G. Update on MTW Activities 

 
FY 2025 Annual MTW Plan 

• Staff held our first brainstorming session for possible MTW activities within RHA’s FY 2025 
MTW Plan. Activities under consideration include vacancy loss payments within the HCV 
program, extending housing quality standards inspections to 90 days, and increasing the 
self-certification of assets to $50k to align with HUD’s upcoming HOTMA regulation 
change. 

 
H. Financials 

 
As previously identified, due to the software conversion, financials are not available for this board 
meeting. However, staff anticipates providing financials at the next regular meeting. 

Page 15 of 301



Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting 
November 28, 2023 

 

5. Discussion and possible action regarding a proposed change in unit configuration at 
Silverada Manor as part of the RAD conversion process. (For Possible Action) 

 
Commissioner Taylor motioned to approve a change to the unit mix at Silverada Manor that 
consists of no more than 32 two-bedroom units, with the remaining units being either studio or 
one-bedroom units. Commissioner Schieve seconded the motion. Hearing no further 
discussion, Chairman Aiazzi called for the question. The vote was all ayes, no nays. 
Chairman Aiazzi declared the motion carried. 

 
6. Closed Session: The Board may give direction to staff in closed session regarding: 

 
a. The position or positions to be taken or the strategy to be employed regarding the 

possible leasing and rehabilitation of the Gibson Building located at 477 W. 2nd Street, 
Reno, Nevada, from Jacobs Entertainment. (For discussion only) 

 
b. The position or positions to be taken or the strategy to be employed leading to the 

acquisition of five parcels currently owned by Catholic Charities of Northern Nevada 
located on Reno Avenue in Reno, Nevada. (For discussion only) 

 
c. The position or positions to be taken or the strategy to be employed leading to the 

execution of a new Collective Bargaining Agreement (CBA). Discussion of the 
upcoming expiration of the current CBA expiring June 30, 2024, potential items for 
negotiation in a new CBA and associated fiscal impacts. There will be no approval of 
the collective bargaining agreement during the course of the closed session. (For 
discussion only) 

 
7. Additional items: 

 
i) General matters of concern to Board Members regarding matters 

not appearing on the agenda. (Discussion) 
 

ii) Reports on conferences and trainings. (Discussion) 
 

iii) Old and New Business. (Discussion) 
 

iv) Request for Future Agenda Topics (Discussion) 
 

v) Schedule of next meeting. The following dates have been scheduled in 
advance but are subject to change at any time: Friday, December 15, 
2023 (Annual Retreat); Tuesday, December 19, 2023, and Tuesday, 
January 23, 2023. (For Possible Action) 

 
vi) Discussion of possible virtual special session Friday, December 8, 2023. (For 

Possible Action) 
 

8. Public Comment. The opportunity for public comment is reserved for any matter within 
the jurisdiction of the Board. No action on such an item may be taken by the Board 
unless and until the matter has been noticed as an action item. Comment from the public 
is limited to three minutes per person. 

 
There was no public comment. 

Page 16 of 301



Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting 
November 28, 2023 

 

9. Adjournment. (For Possible Action) 
 

The meeting adjourned at 1:56 pm. 
Page 17 of 301



Subject:   Presentation by Cori Fisher, Director of Resident Services, to Tahleena 
Hardin, Workforce Development graduate. (Discussion) 

FROM:          Executive Director    RECOMMENDATION: Discussion 

RENO HOUSING AUTHORITY 

AGENDA ITEM NUMBER: 2   January 23, 2024 

Page 18 of 301



SUBJECT: Consent Agenda.  (All consent items may be approved together with a single 
motion, be taken out of order, and/or be heard and discussed individually.  
Items will be removed and considered separately at the request of the public 
or Board member.) (For Possible Action) 

FROM:          Executive Director    RECOMMENDATION: For Possible Action 

a) Consider adoption of Resolution 24-01-01 RH authorizing the write-off of tenant
accounts receivable for the Section 8 Rental Assistance Programs.

Background: 
Write-off of inactive client and landlord account receivables is an accounting procedure 
that is beneficial to the Authority. Continuing to carry uncollectible accounts presents a 
negative image for the Authority, and failure to write off such accounts is interpreted by 
HUD as poor management practice. 

Most of these amounts are for overpaid HAP owed to the Authority because of income not 
reported by clients at the time of the increase. The last Rental Assistance client write-offs 
were done in July 2023, and at that time $48,013.00 was written off. 

All accounts listed below have been turned over to collections. Please note that if these 
former clients want to participate in RHA programs within 10 years from the date they left 
the program, they must repay these amounts before they may become eligible. However, 
HUD no longer provides for the tracking or enforcement of client debts beyond 10 years 
from when the client left the program.

RENO HOUSING AUTHORITY 

 AGENDA ITEM NUMBER: 3   January 23, 2024 

Page 19 of 301



 
Staff Recommendation and Motion:   
Staff recommends the Board of Commissioners motion to approve writing off the above 
balances in accordance with accounting best practices. 

b) Consider adoption of Resolution 24-01-02 RH authorizing the write-off of landlord
accounts receivable for the Section 8 Rental Assistance Programs.

Background: 
Write-off of inactive client and landlord account receivables is an accounting procedure 
that is beneficial to the Authority. Continuing to carry uncollectible accounts presents a 
negative image for the Authority, and failure to write off such accounts is interpreted by 
HUD as poor management practice. 

Most of these amounts are for landlords who failed to notify the RHA of a tenant move-out 
prior to payment being issued. The last Rental Assistance landlord write-offs were done in 
July 2023, and at that time $17,918.00 was written off. 

Please note that if these former landlords attempt to participate in the program in the 
future, these amounts can be taken from future HAP payments due. 

Client Number Amount

105218 $180.00

85098 $1,839.00

45865 $304.00

58885 $4,138.00

31723 $1,713.00

53790 $6,870.00

10855 $5,985.00

81520 $2,673.00

82677 $459.00

70180 $3,749.00

71948 $2,427.00

25425 $5,461.00

33655 $1,219.00

74676 $5,229.00

TOTAL $42,246.00

Rental Assistance - Client

Page 20 of 301



 
Staff Recommendation and Motion:   
Staff recommends the Board of Commissioners motion to approve writing off the above 
balances in accordance with accounting best practices. 

c) Consider adoption of Resolution 24-01-03 RH authorizing the write-off of vacated
tenant account receivables for the Low-Rent Public Housing Program.

Background: 
The write-off of inactive client account receivables is an accounting procedure that is 
beneficial to the Authority. Continuing to carry uncollectible accounts presents a negative 
image for the Authority, and failure to write off such accounts is interpreted by HUD as 
poor management practice. 

Please note that if these former clients want to participate in RHA programs in the future, 
they must repay these amounts before they may become eligible. Most of these amounts 
are for unpaid rent and maintenance charges owed to the Authority. All accounts have 
been turned over to collections. 

Vendor Number Amount

70441 $44.88

74690 $144.57

71921 $2,458.12

84915 $700.50

72907 $302.00

V002637 $1.86

V002387 $2,592.68

V000423 $1,825.79

70188 $883.00

V003218 $131.00

V004091 $227.00

V000174 $384.52

70321 $2,341.20

V003450 $146.37

V003567 $1.45

TOTAL $12,184.94

Unit / Client Number    Amount 
101124/13611   $7,120.00 
101150/75338   $2,096.10 
101037/71172   $1,794.62 
101142/59724   $3,916.16 
101130/84514   $1,701.88 
101082/59648   $3,102.73 

102241/93705  $114.81 
102236/70944  $253.17 

Page 21 of 301



 

 

  
  109618/39634  $946.85 
  109536/58326  $3,702.24 
  109625/71304  $465.39 
  109543/49810  $249.90 
  
  110432/75064  $3,459.11 
  110416/57835  $1,751.84 
 
  118732/92416  $1,235.74___ 
  Total    $59,429.08 

 
 

 
Staff Recommendation and Motion:   
Staff recommends the Board of Commissioners motion to approve writing off the above 
balances in accordance with accounting best practices. 
 

 
 
d) Consider adoption of Resolution 24-01-04 RH authorizing the write-off of vacated 

tenant account receivables for the unaided properties.   
 
Background: 
 
The write-off of inactive client account receivables is an accounting procedure that is 
beneficial to the Authority. Continuing to carry uncollectible accounts presents a negative 
image for the Authority, and failure to write off such accounts is interpreted by HUD as 
poor management practice. 

 
103360/85253          $787.32 
103359/96889          $503.98 
103374/71149          $1,147.96 
103392/71096          $1,029.70 
103381/22575          $1,869.74   

 
106519/74085          $3,165.79 
106512/113262          $3,352.37 
106476/40637          $2,034.88 
106486/77790          $1,533.02 
106482/73679          $582.50 
106485/74510          $963.05 
106479/58526          $339.35 
 
107637/4474            $2,794.84 
107704/71832           $1,034.63 
107660/113126           $1,215.10 
107631/55498           $551.11 
107683/70542           $4,296.00 
107707/35501           $317.20 

Page 22 of 301



 

 

 
Please note that if these former clients want to participate in RHA programs in the future, 
they must repay these amounts before they may become eligible. Most of these amounts 
are for unpaid rent and maintenance charges owed to the Authority. All accounts have 
been turned over to collections. 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Staff Recommendation and Motion:   
Staff recommends the Board of Commissioners motion to approve writing off the above 
balances in accordance with accounting best practices. 
 

 
e) Consider adoption of Resolution 24-01-05 RH approving the annual update of the 

Equal Opportunity Housing Plan for Section 8 Rental Assistance Programs.  
 

Background: 
The Equal Opportunity Housing Plan is reviewed annually and revised where appropriate 
to reflect the current goals, objectives, and actions for all of the Rental Assistance 
Programs administered by the Housing Authority of the City of Reno. A redline copy is 
attached for your reference. 

 
Staff Recommendation and Motion:   
Staff recommends the Board of Commissioners motion to approve the updates to the 
Equal Opportunity Housing Plan as presented. 

 
f) Consider adoption of Resolution 24-01-06 RH ratifying $150,000.00 in additional 

MTW funding previously approved on January 4, 2024, for APN 031-012-40, 
otherwise known as Parcel 4-B as shown on Parcel Map No. 5306 in the Paradise 
Plaza Shopping Center.  

 
 

Unit / Client Number Amount 
530102/83154       $950.09 
  
514404/33861             $407.11 
 
515016/32280             $346.05 
 
508001/960482          $10,735.88 
 
350001/45865    $2,164.73 
 
507003/31027             $447.05 
 
750086/70969     $3,634.31 
 
750041/58279             $1,168.91 
 
750024/11344          $2,099.83__ 
 

Total             $21,953.96 

 

Page 23 of 301



 

 

Staff Recommendation and Motion:   
Staff recommends the Board of Commissioners approve Resolution 24-01-06 RH as 
presented. 

 
g) Consider adoption of Resolution 24-01-07 RH approving an amendment to the 

FY2024 MTW Annual Plan to establish specific Housing Construction Cost (HCC) 
and Total Development Cost (TDC) limits for Washoe County and authorizing 
submission to the US Department of Housing and Urban Development. 
 

Background:  
 
Federal regulations establish a Maximum Project Cost which represents the total amount 
of federal funds that may be used for a development project. The Total Development Cost 
(TDC) and Housing Construction Cost (HCC) limits, which make up the Maximum Project 
Cost, are updated and published by HUD periodically. As RHA developed budgets and 
scopes of work and moved to secure financing for development projects currently 
underway, it became clear that HUD’s standard TDC and HCC limits for the region do not 
accurately reflect local marketplace conditions. Over the past few years, the Reno/Sparks 
area has seen significant increases in the cost of developing and rehabilitating new and 
existing properties. As an MTW agency, RHA is able to propose alternative TDC and HCC 
limits to HUD that better reflect the cost of construction in our service area. With the 
addition of this MTW activity, RHA is proposing to develop alternative reasonable cost 
limits to the TDC and HCC for use in RHA’s local non-traditional developments as well as 
other development/rehabilitation activities identified by staff and approved by RHA’s Board 
of Commissioners.  
 
Allowing for alternative reasonable cost limits will ensure that RHA can continue to finance 
development projects that will not only increase the agency’s ability to ensure additional 
affordable housing units are developed/rehabilitated, but also increase housing choice for 
many low-income families throughout Washoe County. With this activity RHA aims to 
decrease gaps in funding for smaller infill developments aimed at providing supportive 
housing for households below 30% AMI and/or affordable housing options for low-income 
households in areas of economic opportunity. Additionally, RHA also aims to strengthen its 
PH repositioning efforts by establishing market area hard construction costs in line with 
those communities included on HUD’s List of High-Cost Cities. This would allow RHA 
conversions to be eligible for a 20/80 RAD/Section 18 blend if the hard construction costs 
for the project exceed 90% of the market area HCC.  
 
The following tables provide further details related to this activity: 

Table 1 – Detailed breakdown of actual or estimated HCC/TDC of recent RHA development projects. 

Property 
Name Building Type Year 

Completed 
# of 

Units HCC ($) TDC ($) Gross SF $/SF HCC $/SF TDC Average 
HCC/Unit 

Average 
TDC/Unit 

Willie J Wynn 
Apartments Walkup New 2019 44 $8,630,625 $12,333,911 39,732 $217.22 $310.43 $196,150.57 $280,316.16 

Railyard Flats Walkup New 2024 15 $4,965,918 $6,811,915 13,983 $355.14 $487.16 $331,061.20 $454,127.67 

Page 24 of 301



 

 

Table 2 – Comparison of RHA project’s actual or estimated HCC/TDC to HUD HCC/TDC limits 

Property Name Year  
completed 

# of 
units 

Market Area 
HCC ($) HUD HCC ($) Market Area 

TDC ($) HUD TDC ($) 

Willie J Wynn 
Apartments* 2019 44 $8,630,625 $4,923,611 $12,333,911 $8,616,289 

Railyard Flats 2024 15 $4,965,918 $1,835,033.61 $6,811,915 $3,211,309 

Dick Scott Manor 2024 12 $4,146,816 $1,208,841.12 $4,781,130 $2,115,471.88 

Hawk View 
Apartments 
(estimate) 

2025 200 $41,708,705 $27,346,948 $66,259,946 $47,857,190 

Silverada Manor 
(estimate) 2025 150 $30,865,404 $17,601,144 $59,708,548 $30,801,944 

*Willie J Wynn Apartments HUD HCC/TDC was calculated based on FY 2019 limits. All other projects were 
calculated based on FY 2022 limits. 

As the data above demonstrates, RHA’s market area costs have been well above HUD limits 
for several years. It is also important to note that the average HCC per unit of RHA’s recent 
projects exceed 120% of the national average HCC for 2-BR walkup and elevator buildings. 
Based on this, RHA is proposing the following increased HCC/TDC limits:  

Dick Scott 
Manor Walkup New 2024 12 $4,146,816 $4,781,130 11,195 $370.42 $427.08 $345,568.00 $398,427.50 

Hawk View 
Apartments 
(estimate) 

Walkup New 2025 200 $41,708,705 $66,259,946 177,888 $234.47 $372.48 $208,543.53 $331,299.73 

Silverada 
Manor 

(estimate) 

Rowhouse/ 
Townhome Rehab 2025 150 $30,865,404 $59,708,548 108,298 $285.00 $551.34 $205,769.36 $398,056.99 

Average $292.45 $429.70 $257,418.53 $372,445.61 

Building Type 
2022 HUD HCC 
(REGION IX – 
West:  Reno, 

Nevada) 

MTW Alternative 
Reasonable HCC 

2022 HUD TDC 
(REGION IX – 
West: Reno, 

Nevada) 

MTW Alternative 
Reasonable TDC 

ELEVATOR     

0 Bedroom $87,086.04 $121,920.46 $139,338.00 $195,073.20 

1 Bedroom $121,920.46 $170,688.64 $195,073.00 $273,102.20 

2 Bedroom $156,754.88 $219,456.83 $250,808.00 $351,131.20 

3 Bedroom $209,006.50 $292,609.10 $334,410.00 $468,174.00 

Page 25 of 301



 

 

 

The amendment to the FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan was posted for public review on 
November 17, 2023, and a Public Hearing for the proposed amendment was held on 
January 4, 2024. Six residents attended the public hearing with questions regarding 
repositioning. No comments were received on this proposed amendment. Your approval of 
the submission of this amendment is requested. 
 
Staff Recommendation and Motion:   
Staff recommends the Board motion to approve the submittal of the amendment to the 
Authority’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan and Certifications of Compliance to the U.S. 
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) as presented. 

 
h) Consider adoption of Resolution 24-01-08 RH authorizing the Executive Director to 

project-base up to 125 Veterans Affairs Supportive Housing (VASH) Vouchers and up 
to 50 Housing Choice Vouchers (HCV) at proposed and/or existing rental properties 
through a Request for Proposals (RFP). 

 
Background: 
 
RHA recently received 125 additional VASH vouchers and administers over 2500 HCV. 
Staff are seeking to project-base a portion of these vouchers at proposed and/or existing 
rental properties throughout Washoe County to provide further housing opportunities for 
extremely low to very low-income households and at-risk or homeless veterans. Project-
basing vouchers tie the rental subsidy to the unit and provide long-term access to 
affordable housing, through a 20-year Housing Assistance Payments contract, for those 
with the least ability to pay market and/or tax credit rents.  
 
RHA anticipates using vouchers to support upcoming relocation associated with 
repositioning and renovating several of its public housing properties. It may also project-
base vouchers for its proposed Carville Court development. Staff are also exploring the 

ROW HOUSE     

0 Bedroom $84,884.33 $118,838.06 $148,548.00 $207,967.20 

1 Bedroom $111,175.52 $155,645.73 $194,557.00 $272,379.80 

2 Bedroom $134,662.73 $188,527.82 $235,660.00 $329,924.00 

3 Bedroom $164,723.02 $230,612.23 $288,265.00 $403,571.00 

WALKUP     

0 Bedroom $81,085.78 $113,520.09 $141,900.00 $198,660.00 

1 Bedroom $110,562.25 $154,787.15 $193,484.00 $270,877.60 

2 Bedroom $139,995.56 $195,993.78 $244,992.00 $342,988.80 

3 Bedroom $184,518.25 $258,325.55 $322,907.00 $452,069.80 

Page 26 of 301



 

 

use of a small number of project-based vouchers at RHA’s expanded housing properties. 
However, after accounting for these projects, staff anticipates an adequate number of 
vouchers will still be available for potential project basing.  
 
Numerous developers have been awarded State of Nevada Home Means Nevada 
Initiative (HMNI) funds and may be able to accept an award of vouchers to target units for 
supportive housing, homeless or at-risk individuals, families, or veterans, and very low-
income seniors, disabled or other households. Existing housing complexes may be able to 
add units for these populations. In an effort to support the creation of housing for our most 
vulnerable populations, staff is seeking Board approval to release at least one, if not 
multiple, Request for Proposals to project-base the identified vouchers. 
 
Staff Recommendation and Motion: 
 
Staff recommends the Board of Commissioners motion to approve Resolution 24-01-08 
RH as presented. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 27 of 301



 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF RENO 
RESOLUTION 24-01-01 RH 

 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE WRITE-OFF OF VACATED TENANT ACCOUNT 
RECEIVABLES FOR THE SECTION 8 RENTAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS 

 
 
 WHEREAS, there are certain past due accounts of former tenants for the Section 8 
Rental Assistance Programs of the Housing Authority of the City of Reno, and 
 
 WHEREAS, these accounts may be written off as bad debts in the discretion of the 
Executive Director, and 
 
 WHEREAS, there is sufficient funding in the operating budget to write these 
accounts off; 
 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners 
of the Housing Authority of the City of Reno as follows: 
 
1. The Executive Director is hereby authorized, in her discretion to remove from the 

Authority’s account receivables, the past due accounts of former tenants as detailed 
in the Board packet for the Section 8 Rental Assistance Programs. 

 
2. This Resolution is to be effective upon the date of its adoption. 
 
 
ADOPTED THIS      23rd      DAY OF   January   , 2024. 
 
 
 
 
    ATTEST: 
 
 
 
      
CHAIRMAN   SECRETARY 
 

Page 28 of 301



 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF RENO 
RESOLUTION 24-01-02 RH 

 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE WRITE-OFF OF LANDLORD ACCOUNTS 
RECEIVABLES FOR THE SECTION 8 RENTAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS 

 
 WHEREAS, there are certain past due accounts of former landlords for the Section 
8 Rental Assistance Programs of the Housing Authority of the City of Reno, and 
 
 WHEREAS, these accounts may be written off as bad debts in the discretion of the 
Executive Director, and 
 
 WHEREAS, there is sufficient funding in the operating budget to write these 
accounts off; 
 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners 
of the Housing Authority of the City of Reno as follows: 
 
1. The Executive Director is hereby authorized, in her discretion to remove from the 

Authority’s accounts receivables, the past due accounts of former landlords as 
detailed in the Board Packet for the Section 8 Rental Assistance Programs. 

 
2. This Resolution is to be effective upon the date of its adoption. 
 
 
ADOPTED THIS     23rd        DAY OF    January   , 2024. 
 
 
 
 
 
    ATTEST: 
 
 
 
      
CHAIRMAN   SECRETARY 
 

Page 29 of 301



 

 
 
 
 
 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF RENO 
RESOLUTION 24-01-03 RH 

 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE WRITE-OFF OF VACATED TENANT ACCOUNT 
RECEIVABLES FOR THE LOW-RENT PUBLIC HOUSING PROGRAM 

 
 
 WHEREAS, there are certain past due accounts of former tenants of the  
Low-Rent Public Housing Program of the Housing Authority of the City of Reno, and 
 
 WHEREAS, these accounts may be written off as bad debts in the discretion of 
the Executive Director, and 
 
 WHEREAS, there is sufficient funding in the operating budget to write these 
accounts off; 
 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of 
Commissioners of the Housing Authority of the City of Reno as follows: 
 
1. The Executive Director is hereby authorized, in her discretion to remove from the 

Authority’s account receivables, the past due accounts of former tenants as 
detailed in the Board Packet for the Low-Rent Public Housing Program. 

 
2. This Resolution is to be effective upon the date of its adoption. 
 
 
 
 
ADOPTED THIS    23rd        DAY OF    January     , 2024. 
 
 
 
     
 
    ATTEST: 
 
 
 
      
CHAIRMAN   SECRETARY 
 
 

Page 30 of 301



 

 
HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF RENO 

RESOLUTION 24-01-04 RH 
 
 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE WRITE-OFF OF VACATED TENANT ACCOUNT 

RECEIVABLES FOR THE UNAIDED PROPERTIES 
 
  
  
WHEREAS, there are certain past due accounts of former tenants of the unaided 
properties owned and/or managed by the Housing Authority of the City of Reno, and 
 
 WHEREAS, these accounts may be written off as bad debts in the discretion of 
the Executive Director, and 
 
 WHEREAS, there is sufficient funding in the operating budget to write these 
accounts off; 
 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of 
Commissioners of the Housing Authority of the City of Reno as follows: 
 
1. The Executive Director is hereby authorized, in her discretion to remove from the 

Authority’s account receivables, the past due accounts of former tenants as 
detailed in the Board Packet for the unaided properties. 

 
2. This Resolution is to be effective upon the date of its adoption. 
 
 
 
 
ADOPTED THIS    23rd         DAY OF   January    , 2024. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
    ATTEST: 
 
 
 
      
CHAIRMAN   SECRETARY 
 

Page 31 of 301



 
 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF RENO 
RESOLUTION 24-01-05 RH 

 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE ANNUAL UPDATE OF THE EQUAL OPPORTUNITY 
HOUSING PLAN FOR SECTION 8 RENTAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS 

 
 WHEREAS, the Housing Authority of the City of Reno is currently administering 
Section 8 Rental Assistance Housing Programs, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Housing Authority of the City of Reno adopted an Equal 
Opportunity Housing Plan to be utilized in the administration of the Section 8 programs, 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners wishes to keep said plan up to date with 
appropriate revisions from time to time; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners 
of the Housing Authority of the City of Reno as follows: 
 
1. The Board of Commissioners of the Housing Authority of the City of Reno hereby 

adopts the updated Equal Opportunity Housing Plan for Section 8 Rental 
Assistance Programs in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit 240105-A. 

 
2. This Resolution is to be effective upon the date of its adoption. 
 
 
ADOPTED THIS    23rd      DAY OF    January   , 2024. 
 
 
 
    ATTEST: 
 
 
 
      
CHAIRMAN   SECRETARY 
  
 

Page 32 of 301



EQUAL OPPORTUNITY HOUSING PLAN                   
 Page 1 
 

1/1/2024 

Equal Opportunity Housing Plan for Rental Assistance Programs: 

 

Housing Choice Voucher 

 

Project-Based Voucher 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF RENO 

1525 East Ninth Street 

Reno, Nevada 89512-3012 

 

(775) 329-3630 

TTY/TDD (385) 770-7166 

Page 33 of 301



EQUAL OPPORTUNITY HOUSING PLAN                   
 Page 2 
 

1/1/2024 

INTRODUCTION:    The Reno Housing Authority (RHA) continues to participate in the Moving to Work 

(MTW) Demonstration Program and utilizes its 2519 2554 Housing Choice Vouchers (HCV) to assist low-

income families.   The HCV waitlist last closed on August 23, 2019February 11, 2022.   

  

The RHA currently owns 80 57 approved Project Based Voucher (PBV) units.  The RHA plans to assign 

additional PBVs to units owned by the RHA, as well as to homes purchased by the agency in low-poverty 

areas through the MTW Mobility Program.  The RHA has offered 45 58 Public Housing families the 

opportunity of mobility with a PBV.   In addition, The RHA has currently committed five and will commit up 

to 25 PBVs to local nonprofit agencies that target at risk or troubled populations in our community.  An 

additional five PBVs have been assigned to the Moran Street Apartments operated by Silver Sage Manor 

apartments, targeting homeless seniors in the community.  RHA has assigned 25 33 and will assign an 

additional 25 17 PBVs through a competitive process to private owners in the community targeting 

homeless individuals. In addition, RHA will assign 25 15 PBV’s through a competitive process to private 

owners in the community targeting workforce development housing.   

 

The RHA continues to work closely with the local Veterans Administration assisting homeless veterans in 

the community by utilizing the Veterans Affairs Supportive Housing (VASH) vouchers.  The RHA’s total 

allocation of VASH vouchers is currently 318541, with 31 of these currently committed as Project-Based 

Vouchers.  These vouchers are filled only by referrals from the local Veterans Administration office.   
 

 

 

OBJECTIVE ONE: OUTREACH TO LOW INCOME INDIVIDUALS AND FAMILIES 

 

The following items are applicable to RHA's Housing Choice Voucher Program and Project-Based Voucher 

Program. 

 

1. Media available to be used:  Newspapers:  Reno Gazette-Journal and Sparks Tribune, and/or radio 

and television; public service announcements, special interest programs and public access stations.  

Website: renoha.org 

 

2. Other suitable means available to be used to publicize program:  Posters or brochures to be posted 

where appropriate.  Calendar-handbooks and other information provided to staff of local welfare agency, 

apartment owner associations, Silver State Fair Housing Council, homeless shelters, transitional facilities 

and social service agencies. 

 

3. Groups less likely to apply, if any:  Large numbers of working poor, of all races, in the casino and 

service industries. 

   

4. Special outreach to groups identified in #3:  Publicize the income limits for the program to assist 

individuals in understanding that eligibility requirements are met even if the household is employed.   

 

5. Special outreach to persons expected to reside in the community:  Because of targeting 

requirements, at least 75 percent of the Housing Choice Voucher referrals must be to applicants with 

income at or below 50 percent of median income for residents of Washoe County as noted above.  This 

requires careful monitoring of waiting lists and referrals.   

 

 

OBJECTIVE TWO: PROMOTING GREATER HOUSING OPPORTUNITIES FOR INDIVIDUALS AND 

FAMILIES OUTSIDE AREAS OF LOW INCOME AND MINORITY CONCENTRATION 

 

Formatted: Not Highlight

Formatted: Not Highlight

Page 34 of 301



EQUAL OPPORTUNITY HOUSING PLAN                   
 Page 3 
 

1/1/2024 

The following items are applicable to RHA's Housing Choice Voucher Program and Project-Based Voucher 

Program. 

 

1. Media available to be used:  Newspapers:  Reno Gazette-Journal and Sparks Tribune; radio and 

television public service announcements; special interest programs and/or public access stations. 

Informational meetings may be held with staff of social service agencies, homeless shelters and 

transitional facilities.  The RHA provides applicants and participants, upon request, a list of possible 

available units in the area including whether the unit is located in an area of high poverty.   

 

2. Actions to encourage participation by owners of units outside areas of low income and minority 

concentration:  Television and radio public service announcements.  Speaking engagements with local 

realtors, property owner associations, word of mouth referrals, contact with property management 

companies.  Owner/manager brochures are given (or mailed) to people who inquire about RHA’s 

programs.   

 

3. Actions to explain program requirements, including equal opportunity requirements, to 

owners/managers:  Personal contact with potential Housing Choice Voucher owners/managers explaining 

contractual obligations, including equal opportunity requirements.  This information is included in the 

owner/manager brochures.  For the new PBV owners, a briefing will be held, including the need to adhere 

to equal opportunity requirements.   

 

4. Information in general locations and characteristics of neighborhoods and vacancy listings, to be 

provided as follows:  Referrals for vacant units are taken from current and potential owners/managers on a 

continuing basis and are kept in a binder by date unit is availablemaintained by the Landlord Liaison.  

Owners are also encouraged to utilize www.gosection8affordablehousing.com to list vacant units.  The 

availability of this information is made known to all Housing Choice Voucher holders at the time of 

briefing.  Information regarding neighborhoods; i.e., schools, shopping, churches, etc., is made available 

upon request.  All Housing Choice Voucher holders are encouraged to evaluate this information when 

selecting a unit. 

 

5. Information on local, state, and federal Fair Housing Laws, and use of Form HUD 903.1, to be 

provided as follows:  Informational brochures are provided to all Housing Choice Voucher holders at the 

time of their briefing session, including instructions on where to go and what to do if they encounter any 

difficulty obtaining housing based on violations of fair housing regulations.  Form HUD 903.1 is given to 

individuals upon indication of possible discrimination. 

   

6. Actions to be taken to assist families during housing search, when requested:  Listings of 

owners/managers known to accept Housing Choice Vouchers are provided to all applicants at briefing 

sessions. The Rental Assistance Department maintains a reference manualspreadsheet of current 

vacancies, and applicants/participants are encouraged to review this listing regularly during their search for 

housing to be informed of any new vacancies. Applicants/ participants are also encouraged to utilize 

www.gosection8affordablehousing.com and www.nvhousingsearch.org in their search for vacant units.  

Staff work closely with a large number of owners/managers and have had a good rate of success in 

helping applicants/participants locate housing.   

 

7. Actions taken to promote broadest geographical choice in selection of units, if any:  During briefing 

sessions emphasis is placed on the applicants' rights to choose where they wish to live, explanation of 

county-wide choices, and information that there are Housing Choice Voucher participants in most 

neighborhoods in the county. The option of portability is explained fully. 

 

8. Geographical areas in which RHA's Housing Choice Vouchers may be used:  Anywhere in Washoe 

County, including City of Reno, City of Sparks, and unincorporated areas of the County.  Housing Choice 

Page 35 of 301

http://www.nvhousingsearch.org/


EQUAL OPPORTUNITY HOUSING PLAN                   
 Page 4 
 

1/1/2024 

Voucher participants may also take their Vouchers anywhere in the country.  Some applicants of the 

Housing Choice Voucher Program are restricted on using portability under the RHA’s Administration Plan.  

RHA works with other Public Housing Authorities.  

 

 

OBJECTIVE THREE: ENSURING EQUAL OPPORTUNITY FOR APPLICANTS FOR PARTICIPATION IN 

RHA'S HOUSING PROGRAMS AND IN THE SELECTION OF HOUSING CHOICE 

VOUCHER HOLDERS 

 

1. System for taking, processing and filing applications; establishing waiting list:  See the Section 8 

Administrative Plan.  The most current version of the Administrative Plan is applicable. 

 

2. Preference or priority categories in order, if any, for issuance of Housing Choice Vouchers and 

method used for selection of Housing Choice Voucher holders:  See the Section 8 Administrative Plan.  The 

most current version of the Administrative Plan is applicable. 

 

 

OBJECTIVE FOUR: PROVISION OF SERVICES AND ASSISTANCE TO INDIVIDUALS AND FAMILIES 

WHO ALLEGE THEY HAVE ENCOUNTERED DISCRIMINATION DURING THEIR 

HOUSING SEARCH 

 

1. Services to be provided in finding a unit:  Personal contact with owner/manager in question to 

ascertain reason for denial of the Housing Choice Voucher holder.  Applicants/participants may be referred 

to Silver State Fair Housing Council, Nevada Legal Services, Senior Law Project or Nevada Equal Rights 

Commission.  Form HUD 903.1 is given to individuals upon indication of possible discrimination. 

 

2. Assistance to be given to Housing Choice Voucher holders in the exercise of their rights under 

federal, state and/or local law, and the names of persons responsible for giving assistance; training of 

these persons:  The right to file a complaint is explained during the briefing session; if a Housing Choice 

Voucher holder expresses a desire to do so, staff refers them to Silver State Fair Housing Council, Nevada 

Legal Services, Senior Law or Nevada Equal Rights Commission.  Rental Assistance Department staff 

participates in training on fair housing laws regularly.   All individuals with complaints are referred to the 

above agencies or the HUD Housing Discrimination Hotline. 

 

 

OBJECTIVE FIVE: UTILIZATION OF A LOCAL FAIR HOUSING ORGANIZATION 

 

1. RHA works with the Silver State Fair Housing Council organization:   X  Yes       No 

 

• Most RHA employees have participated in training on cultural sensitivity and fair housing issues.   

Training was provided in December 2019August 2023.   

 

• Online training by AGOSNET ADP is available to all employees, including a module about 

discrimination.   

 

• Fair housing information is provided to all Housing Choice Voucher participants’ regularly in 

Authority publications and in all briefing packets. Participants are also issued a yearly calendar, 

which contains all phone numbers for local programs and resources, including Fair housing.  

 

 

2. Existing staff (01/01/2024) by position, race/ethnicity, gender and salary: 

 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0", Hanging:  0.4"

Page 36 of 301



EQUAL OPPORTUNITY HOUSING PLAN                   
 Page 5 
 

1/1/2024 

Director of Rental Assistance White/Female $80,425.35 $113,172.80 
Rental Assistance Administrator White/Female $54,607.72 $76,856.00 
Admissions Manager Hispanic/Female $47,172.20 $66,372.80 
Housing Inspector White/Male $47,172.20 $66,372.80 
Housing Inspector White/Male $47,172.20 $66,372.80 
Fraud Investigator PT White/Male $42,786.57 $60,195.20 
Rental Assistance Specialist I Hispanic/Female $36,960.65 $52,009.78 
Client Relations Specialist White/Female $36,960.65 $52,009.78 
Housing Specialist Hispanic/Female $35.200.62 $49,533.12 
Housing Specialist  Hispanic/Female $35.200.62 $49,533.12 
Housing Specialist Hispanic/Female $35.200.62 $49,533.12 
Housing Specialist Pacific Islander/Female $35.200.62 $49,533.12 
Housing Specialist White/Female $35.200.62 $49,533.12 
Housing Specialist White/Female $35.200.62 $49,533.12 
Housing Specialist White/Female $35.200.62 $49,533.12 
Leasing Agent Pacific Islander/Female $35.200.62 $49,533.12 
General Office Clerk II White/Female $33,524.40 $47,174.40 
General Office Clerk I White/Female $31,928.00 $44,928.00 
General Office Clerk I White/Female $31,928.00 $44,928.00 
General Office Clerk I Black/Female $31,928.00 $44,928.00 
Receptionist/Work Order Clerk Hispanic/Female $31,928.00 $44,928.00 
Receptionist/Work Order Clerk White/Female $31,928.00 $44,928.00 

Director of Development Development White Male  $  97,198.40   $ 143,624.00  
Director of Information Technology Executive White Male  $  97,198.40   $ 143,624.00  
Director of Asset Management Asset Management White Female  $  97,198.40   $ 143,624.00  
Director of Rental Assistance Rental Assistance White Female  $  97,198.40   $ 143,624.00  
Director of Resident Services Resident Services White Female  $  97,198.40   $ 143,624.00  
Director of Human Resources Executive White Male  $  97,198.40   $ 143,624.00  
Senior Project Manager Development White Female  $  88,233.60   $ 130,395.20  
Senior Accountant Administration White Female  $  88,233.60   $ 130,395.20  
Senior Project Manager Development Hispanic Male  $  88,233.60   $ 130,395.20  
Accountant  Administration Polynesian Female  $  76,419.20   $ 112,944.00  
Rental Assistance Administrator Asset Management Hispanic Female  $  65,998.40   $   97,552.00  
Project Manager Development Hispanic Female  $  65,998.40   $   97,552.00  
Resident Services Administrator Resident Services Black Female  $  65,998.40   $   97,552.00  
Admissions Administrator Admissions Hispanic Female  $  65,998.40   $   97,552.00  
Asset Management Administrator Asset Management Hispanic Female  $  65,998.40   $   97,552.00  
Rental Assistance Administrator Rental Assistance Hispanic Female  $  65,998.40   $   97,552.00  
Human Resources Specialist Executive White Female  $  65,998.40   $   97,552.00  
MTW Coordinator Executive White Female  $  65,998.40   $   97,552.00  
Public Affairs Officer Executive White Female  $  62,857.60   $   92,913.60  
Elderly Services Administrator Resident Services White Female  $  62,857.60   $   92,913.60  

Page 37 of 301



EQUAL OPPORTUNITY HOUSING PLAN                   
 Page 6 
 

1/1/2024 

IT Professional - Systems Analyst Executive White Female  $  59,862.40   $   88,483.20  
IT Professional - Systems 
Administrator 

Executive White Male  $  59,862.40   $   88,483.20  

Accounting Specialist Administration Asian Female  $  57,012.80   $   84,260.80  
Project Coordinator Development White Female  $  57,012.80   $   84,260.80  
Compliance Specialist Executive White Female  $  57,012.80   $   84,260.80  
Executive Administrative Assistant Executive White Female  $  57,012.80   $   84,260.80  
Scattered Site Property Manager Asset Management White Female  $  57,012.80   $   84,260.80  
Housing Inspector Rental Assistance Hispanic Male  $  57,012.80   $   84,260.80  
Housing Inspector Rental Assistance White Male  $  57,012.80   $   84,260.80  
Maintenance II Asset Management Hispanic Male  $  54,288.00   $   80,246.40  
Maintenance II Asset Management White Male  $  54,288.00   $   80,246.40  
Maintenance II Asset Management White Male  $  54,288.00   $   80,246.40  
Maintenance II / Landscaper Asset Management Hispanic Male  $  54,288.00   $   80,246.40  
Senior Housing Specialist Rental Assistance Hispanic Female  $  54,288.00   $   80,246.40  
Maintenance II Asset Management White Male  $  54,288.00   $   80,246.40  
Senior Housing Specialist Admissions White Female  $  54,288.00   $   80,246.40  
Maintenance II / Landscaper Asset Management Hispanic Male  $  54,288.00   $   80,246.40  
Maintenance II Asset Management White Male  $  54,288.00   $   80,246.40  
Maintenance II Asset Management Hispanic Male  $  54,288.00   $   80,246.40  
Assistant Manager Asset Management White Male  $  46,904.00   $   69,305.60  
Elderly Services Coordinator Resident Services Asian Female  $  46,904.00   $   69,305.60  
Assistant Manager Asset Management White Female  $  46,904.00   $   69,305.60  
Workforce Development 
Coordinator 

Resident Services Hispanic Female  $  46,904.00   $   69,305.60  

Assistant Manager Asset Management Black Female  $  46,904.00   $   69,305.60  
Youth Workforce Development 
Coordinator 

Resident Services White Female  $  46,904.00   $   69,305.60  

Assistant Manager Asset Management Indian/Alaskan 
Native 

Female  $  46,904.00   $   69,305.60  

Assistant Manager Asset Management Asian Female  $  46,904.00   $   69,305.60  
Assistant Manager Asset Management Hispanic Female  $  46,904.00   $   69,305.60  
Workforce Development 
Coordinator 

Resident Services Asian Female  $  46,904.00   $   69,305.60  

Housing Specialist Rental Assistance White Female  $  44,678.40   $   65,998.40  
Housing Specialist Rental Assistance Hispanic Female  $  44,678.40   $   65,998.40  
Housing Specialist Rental Assistance Hispanic Female  $  44,678.40   $   65,998.40  
Leasing Agent Rental Assistance White Female  $  44,678.40   $   65,998.40  
Housing Specialist Admissions Black Female  $  44,678.40   $   65,998.40  
Housing Specialist Rental Assistance White Female  $  44,678.40   $   65,998.40  
Housing Specialist Rental Assistance Hispanic Female  $  44,678.40   $   65,998.40  
Housing Specialist Rental Assistance White Female  $  44,678.40   $   65,998.40  
Housing Specialist Admissions Hispanic Female  $  44,678.40   $   65,998.40  
Housing Specialist Admissions White Female  $  44,678.40   $   65,998.40  

Page 38 of 301



EQUAL OPPORTUNITY HOUSING PLAN                   
 Page 7 
 

1/1/2024 

Accounting Clerk Administration White Female  $  42,556.80   $   62,857.60  
Maintenance I Asset Management Hispanic Male  $  42,556.80   $   62,857.60  
Social Media Specialist Executive White Female  $  42,556.80   $   62,857.60  
Accounting Clerk Administration White Female  $  42,556.80   $   62,857.60  
Maintenance I Asset Management White Male  $  42,556.80   $   62,857.60  
Resident Engagement Specialist Resident Services White Male  $  42,556.80   $   62,857.60  
Maintenance I Asset Management Hispanic Male  $  42,556.80   $   62,857.60  
Development Clerk Development White Female  $  42,556.80   $   62,857.60  
General Office Clerk II Admissions Hispanic Female  $  40,539.20   $   59,862.40  
General Office Clerk II Rental Assistance Hispanic Female  $  40,539.20   $   59,862.40  
General Office Clerk II Rental Assistance Hispanic Female  $  40,539.20   $   59,862.40  
General Office Clerk I Admissions White Female  $  38,604.80   $   57,012.80  
General Office Clerk I Asset Management Hispanic Female  $  38,604.80   $   57,012.80  
Maintenance Groundskeeper Asset Management Black Female  $  38,604.80   $   57,012.80  
Intern Resident Services Hispanic Female  $  38,604.80   $   57,012.80  
General Office Clerk I Rental Assistance Black Female  $  38,604.80   $   57,012.80  
General Office Clerk I Asset Management White Female  $  38,604.80   $   57,012.80  
General Office Clerk I Rental Assistance White Female  $  38,604.80   $   57,012.80  
General Office Clerk I Rental Assistance Hispanic Female  $  38,604.80   $   57,012.80  
Intern Development White Female  $  38,604.80   $   57,012.80  

 
 
3. Actions to be taken to promote equal opportunity in employment practices:  See the RHA Equal 

Employment Opportunity/Affirmative Action Plan. 

Page 39 of 301



 

 

PHOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF RENO 
RESOLUTION   24-01-06 RH 

 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN ADDITIONAL COMMITMENT OF THE HOUSING 

AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF RENO’S (‘THE AUTHORITY’) HUD FUNDS FOR THE 
AUTHORITY’S MOVING TO WORK (“MTW”) ACTIVITY #2022-01 REGARDING THE 

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM RELATED TO THE REHABILITATION OF 
PARADISE PLAZA TO SERVE AS A WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT HUB 

 
WHEREAS, the Authority previously approved a commitment of its HUD funds 

for its MTW Activity #2022-01 regarding the Workforce Development Program and 
Resolution 23-03-04 RH committed $800,000 in RHA HUD funds for MTW Activity 
#2022-01 and $350,000 in Washoe County America Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) funds for 
the rehabilitation of Paradise Plaza to serve as a workforce development hub. 

 
WHEREAS, HUD has approved the Authority’s MTW Annual Plan which includes 

MTW Activity #2022-01 regarding the Workforce Development Program.  This approval 
consisted of committing $800,000 in RHA HUD funds for MTW Activity #2022-01 and 
$350,000 in Washoe County America Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) funds for the 
rehabilitation of Paradise Plaza to serve as a workforce development hub. 

 
WHEREAS, based upon an additional scope of work outlined in the Post-Closing 

Agreement with Paradise Plaza Retail I, LLC, the project budget must be revised for the 
$150,000.00 cost to complete the additional items.  

 
WHEREAS, in order to evidence a formal commitment of additional HUD funds 

by the Authority for approved MTW activities, the Authority resolves as set forth below. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners 
of the Housing Authority of the City of Reno as follows: 
 

1. That the Board of Commissioners hereby amends the prior Resolution 23-03-
04 RH to add an additional $150,000.00 in RHA HUD funds.  the Authority’s 
commitment of its HUD funds.  

 
2. This Resolution is to be effective upon the date of its adoption. 

 
ADOPTED THIS     23rd         DAY OF     January      , 2024. 
 
 
 ATTEST 
 
 
 
CHAIRMAN SECRETARY 

Page 40 of 301



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF RENO 
RESOLUTION   24-01-07 RH 

 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE CONTENT AND SUBMISSION OF AN AMENDMENT TO 
THE AUTHORITY’S FY 2024 MOVING TO WORK ANNUAL PLAN AND CERTIFICATIONS OF 

COMPLIANCE TO THE U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT 
 

WHEREAS, Moving to Work (MTW) is a demonstration program, established by 
Congress in 1996, that offers a limited number of “high performing” Public Housing Authorities 
the opportunity to propose and test innovative, locally-designed approaches to administering 
housing programs and self-sufficiency strategies; and  

 
WHEREAS, after a national competition was held in 2012, the Housing Authority of the 

City of Reno was selected and designated as one of four new MTW agencies in 2013; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Authority’s MTW agreement was signed by Sandra B. Henriquez, 

Assistant Secretary of the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) on  
June 27, 2013; and 

 
WHEREAS, on June 28, 2016, the Board of Commissioners approved an extension to 

the Authority’s agreement with HUD to participate in the MTW Demonstration Program through 
the end of the Authority’s Fiscal Year (FY) 2028; and 

 
WHEREAS, in compliance with the Authority’s MTW agreement, HUD requires an 

annual submission of a MTW Plan and Certifications of Compliance following a public  
process; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Authority developed an amendment to the FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan 

and invited public comment beginning on November 17, 2023 allowing for a 30-day comment 
period; and  

 
WHEREAS, comments were solicited through notices posted on the Authority’s website, 

and through legal notice publications in the Reno Gazette-Journal on November 20, 2023 and 
November 27, 2023; and 

 
WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on January 4, 2024 to receive comments on the 

Authority’s plan; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of the 
Housing Authority of the City of Reno as follows: 
 

1. That the Board of Commissioners hereby authorizes and directs the Executive Director 
to submit the amendment to the Authority’s FY 2024 Moving to Work Annual Plan and 
Certifications of Compliance to HUD. 
 

2. This Resolution is to be effective upon the date of its adoption. 

 
ADOPTED THIS     23      DAY OF     January       , 2024. 
 
 ATTEST 
 
 
 
CHAIRPERSON SECRETARY 

Page 41 of 301



Posted for public review & comment on January 27, 2023. 
Submitted to HUD on March 31, 2023. 
Resubmitted to HUD on July 13, 2023. 
Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023. 
Plan amendment posted for public review & comment on November 17, 2023. 

Page 42 of 301



 

 

 
 

 
 
Board of Commissioners 
 
Dave Aiazzi 
Chair 

Jazzmeen JohnsonMark Sullivan 
Vice Chair 

Hillary Schieve 

Mark SullivanKathleen Taylor 

Vacant 

   
 

 
Management Team 
 
Hilary Lopez, Ph.D. 
Executive Director 

Heidi McKendree 
Deputy Executive Director 

Jamie Newfelt 
Director of Rental Assistance 

Kristin Scott 
Director of Asset Management 

JD Klippenstein 
Director of Development 

Linda LongVacant 
Director of Administration 

Cori Fisher 
Director of Resident Services 

Darren Squillante 
Director of Human Resources 

Samantha ArellanoJosh Stice 
Director of Information Technology 

 
 
About 
 
Founded in October 1943, the Housing 
Authority of the City of Reno (RHA) owns  
and manages 751 units of Public Housing in 
eight different locations in the City of Reno  
and City of Sparks.  Using Neighborhood 
Stabilization Programs (NSP) and other funding, 
RHA acquired and manages over  
160 scattered site rental properties specifically 
targeted for low-income households.  RHA also 
provides housing subsidies to more than  
2,500 low-income families in Reno, Sparks,  
and Washoe County through various rental 
assistance programs. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Mission 
 
Provide fair, sustainable, quality housing in 
diverse neighborhoods throughout Reno,  
Sparks and Washoe County that offers a stable 
foundation for low-income families to pursue 
economic opportunities, become self-sufficient 
and improve their quality of life.   
 
 
 
 
 
 

Housing Authority of the City of Reno 
1525 East Ninth Street 
Reno, NV  89512-3012 

www.renoha.org 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 43 of 301

http://www.renoha.org/


  
 

 

Table of Contents 
I. Introduction ................................................................................................................................................. 8 

 What is MTW? ................................................................................................................................... 8 

 RHA’s designation as an MTW agency ............................................................................................. 8 

 FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan overview .............................................................................................. 8 

 Overview of RHA’s annual goals and objectives .............................................................................. 9 

II. General Operating Information ................................................................................................................. 14 

 Housing Stock Information .............................................................................................................. 15 

i. Planned New Public Housing Units .......................................................................................... 15 

ii. Planned Public Housing Units to be removed .......................................................................... 16 

iii. Planned New Project-Based Vouchers ..................................................................................... 17 

iv. Existing Project Based Vouchers .............................................................................................. 18 

v. Planned Other Changes to MTW Housing Stock Anticipated During the Plan Year .............. 19 

vi. General Description of All Planned Capital Expenditures during the Plan Year ..................... 19 

 Leasing Information ......................................................................................................................... 20 

i. Planned Number of Households Served ................................................................................... 20 

ii. Discussion of Any Anticipated Issues/Possible Solutions Related to Leasing ......................... 21 

 Wait List Information ....................................................................................................................... 21 

i. Waiting List Information Anticipated ....................................................................................... 21 

ii. Planned Changes to Waiting List in the Plan Year ................................................................... 22 

III. Proposed MTW Activities ........................................................................................................................ 24 

2024-01:  Time-Limited Workforce Development Vouchers .......................................................... 24 

2024-02:  Local Project Based Voucher Program ............................................................................ 30 

2024-03:  Alternative Reasonable Cost Limits ................................................................................ 35 

IV. Approved MTW Activities ....................................................................................................................... 41 

 Implemented Activities .................................................................................................................... 41 

2014-01:  Assign PBVs to RHA owned/controlled units without a competitive process ................ 44 

2014-02:  Mobility Demonstration ................................................................................................... 44 

2014-05:  Simplify rent calculations and increase the minimum rent .............................................. 45 

2014-08:  Partner with local nonprofit to provide special needs housing ........................................ 46 

2015-01:  Elimination of all negative rents and simplification of HCV utility allowances ............. 47 

2015-02:  Allow RHA to inspect its own HCV units ....................................................................... 48 

2015-03:  Eliminate caps on PBV allocations and allow for assignment of PBVs to 100% of  
RHA-owned, non-Public Housing properties .................................................................. 48 

2016-01:  Simplification of medical deductions .............................................................................. 49 

2016-02:  Redefine near-elderly person ........................................................................................... 50 

2016-04:  Allow HCV participants to lease units that exceed the 40% rent burden ........................ 50 

2016-05:  Eliminate Earned Income Disallowance (EID) ................................................................ 51 

Page 44 of 301



  
 

 

2016-06:  Disregard earned income of PH household members, ages 18-20, who are not the  
head of household or co-head .......................................................................................... 51 

2016-07:  Implement a $75 fee for each additional HQS inspection when more than two 
inspections are required ................................................................................................... 52 

2016-08:  Expand Project Based Voucher Program ......................................................................... 52 

2017-01:  Increase verified application data for HCV applicants .................................................... 53 

2017-02:  Asset threshold to determine eligibility for admission .................................................... 54 

2018-01:  Landlord Incentive Program ............................................................................................ 54 

2019-01:  Redetermination of rent reasonableness as a result of a change in contract rent ............. 55 

2019-02:  Provide incentives to $0 HAP households ....................................................................... 56 

2021-01:  Affordable Housing Acquisition, Rehabilitation and Preservation ................................. 57 

2021-03:  Partnership to Assist Homeless Youth ............................................................................. 58 

2022-01:  Workforce Development Program ................................................................................... 58 

 Not yet implemented activities ......................................................................................................... 60 

2021-02:  STAR Apprenticeship Program ....................................................................................... 60 

 Activities on hold ............................................................................................................................. 60 

 Closed Activities .............................................................................................................................. 61 

2014-03:  Rent Reform Controlled Study ........................................................................................ 61 

2014-04:  Expand self-sufficiency activities .................................................................................... 62 

2014-07:  Alternate HQS verification policy ................................................................................... 62 

2015-04:  Required Savings Plan for Earned Income Disallowance (EID) PH clients ................... 62 

2016-03:  Time limited vouchers and redesign of traditional FSS Program .................................... 62 

V. Planned Application of MTW Funds ........................................................................................................ 65 

 Planned Application of MTW Funds ............................................................................................... 65 

i. Estimated Sources of MTW Funds ........................................................................................... 65 

ii. Estimated Application of MTW Funds ..................................................................................... 65 

iii. Description of Planned Application of MTW Funding Flexibility ........................................... 66 

iv. Planned Application of PHA Unspent Operating Fund and HCV Funding ............................. 67 

v. Local Asset Management Plan.................................................................................................. 68 

vi. Rental Assistance Demonstration (RAD) Participation ............................................................ 68 

VI. Administrative........................................................................................................................................... 71 

Attachment I:  Board Resolution and Certifications of Compliance ....................................................... 74 

Attachment II:  Proof of Publication ........................................................................................................ 78 

Attachment III:  Evaluation of the Demonstration .................................................................................. 80 

Attachment IV:  Rental Assistance Demonstration (RAD) & Section 18 Repositioning ........................ 92 

Attachment V:  Lobbying Disclosures ................................................................................................... 189 

Attachment VI:  Plan Amendment ......................................................................................................... 192 

I. Introduction ................................................................................................................................................. 6 

Page 45 of 301



  
 

 

A. What is MTW? ............................................................................................................................................ 6 

B. RHA’s designation as an MTW agency...................................................................................................... 6 

C. FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan overview ....................................................................................................... 6 

D. Overview of RHA’s annual goals and objectives ....................................................................................... 7 

II. General Operating Information ................................................................................................................. 12 

A. Housing Stock Information ....................................................................................................................... 13 

i. Planned New Public Housing Units .......................................................................................................... 13 

ii. Planned Public Housing Units to be removed .......................................................................................... 14 

iii. Planned New Project-Based Vouchers ..................................................................................................... 15 

iv. Existing Project Based Vouchers .............................................................................................................. 16 

v. Planned Other Changes to MTW Housing Stock Anticipated During the Plan Year .............................. 17 

vi. General Description of All Planned Capital Expenditures during the Plan Year ..................................... 17 

B. Leasing Information .................................................................................................................................. 18 

i. Planned Number of Households Served ................................................................................................... 18 

ii. Discussion of Any Anticipated Issues/Possible Solutions Related to Leasing ......................................... 19 

C. Wait List Information ............................................................................................................................... 19 

i. Waiting List Information Anticipated ....................................................................................................... 19 

ii. Planned Changes to Waiting List in the Plan Year ................................................................................... 20 

III. Proposed MTW Activities ........................................................................................................................ 22 

2024-01:  Time-Limited Workforce Development Vouchers ......................................................................... 22 

2024-02:  Local Project Based Voucher Program ........................................................................................... 28 

IV. Approved MTW Activities ....................................................................................................................... 34 

A. Implemented Activities ............................................................................................................................. 34 

2014-01:  Assign PBVs to RHA owned/controlled units without a competitive process ............................... 37 

2014-02:  Mobility Demonstration .................................................................................................................. 37 

2014-05:  Simplify rent calculations and increase the minimum rent ............................................................. 38 

2014-08:  Partner with local nonprofit to provide special needs housing ....................................................... 39 

2015-01:  ........................................................ Elimination of all negative rents and simplification of HCV utility 
allowances ......................................................................................................................................................... 40 

2015-02:  Allow RHA to inspect its own HCV units ...................................................................................... 41 

2015-03:  Eliminate caps on PBV allocations and allow for assignment of PBVs to 100%  
of RHA-owned, non-Public Housing properties ............................................................................................... 41 

2016-01:  Simplification of medical deductions ............................................................................................. 42 

2016-02:  Redefine near-elderly person .......................................................................................................... 43 

2016-04:  Allow HCV participants to lease units that exceed the 40% rent burden ....................................... 43 

2016-05:  Eliminate Earned Income Disallowance (EID) ............................................................................... 44 

2016-06:  Disregard earned income of PH household members, ages 18-20, who are not the  
head of household or co-head ........................................................................................................................... 44 

Page 46 of 301



  
 

 

2016-07:  Implement a $75 fee for each additional HQS inspection when more than two inspections are 
required ............................................................................................................................................................. 45 

2016-08:  Expand Project Based Voucher Program ........................................................................................ 45 

2017-01:  Increase verified application data for HCV applicants ................................................................... 46 

2017-02:  Asset threshold to determine eligibility for admission ................................................................... 47 

2018-01:  Landlord Incentive Program ........................................................................................................... 47 

2019-01:  Redetermination of rent reasonableness as a result of a change in contract rent ............................ 48 

2019-02:  Provide incentives to $0 HAP households ...................................................................................... 49 

2021-01:  Affordable Housing Acquisition, Rehabilitation and Preservation ................................................ 50 

2021-03:  Partnership to Assist Homeless Youth ............................................................................................ 51 

2022-01:  Workforce Development Program .................................................................................................. 51 

B. Not yet implemented activities ................................................................................................................. 53 

2021-02:  STAR Apprenticeship Program ...................................................................................................... 53 

C. Activities on hold ...................................................................................................................................... 53 

D. Closed Activities ....................................................................................................................................... 54 

2014-03:  Rent Reform Controlled Study ....................................................................................................... 54 

2014-04:  Expand self-sufficiency activities ................................................................................................... 55 

2014-07:  Alternate HQS verification policy .................................................................................................. 55 

2015-04:  Required Savings Plan for Earned Income Disallowance (EID) PH clients .................................. 55 

2016-03:  Time limited vouchers and redesign of traditional FSS Program ................................................... 55 

V. Planned Application of MTW Funds ........................................................................................................ 58 

A. Planned Application of MTW Funds ........................................................................................................ 58 

i. Estimated Sources of MTW Funds ........................................................................................................... 58 

ii. Estimated Application of MTW Funds ..................................................................................................... 58 

iii. Description of Planned Application of MTW Funding Flexibility ........................................................... 59 

iv. Planned Application of PHA Unspent Operating Fund and HCV Funding ............................................. 60 

v. Local Asset Management Plan.................................................................................................................. 61 

vi. Rental Assistance Demonstration (RAD) Participation ............................................................................ 61 

VI. Administrative........................................................................................................................................... 64 

Attachment I:  Board Resolution and Certifications of Compliance ............................................................... 67 

Attachment II:  Proof of Publication ............................................................................................................... 71 

Attachment III:  Evaluation of the Demonstration .......................................................................................... 73 

Attachment IV:   Rental Assistance Demonstration (RAD) & Section 18 Repositioning .............................. 85 

Attachment V:  Lobbying Disclosures .......................................................................................................... 180 

 

Page 47 of 301



  
 

 

Page 48 of 301



Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 
Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023.. 
 Page | 8 of 195 

I. Introduction 

 What is MTW? 
MTW is a demonstration program, established by Congress in 1996, 
that offers a limited number of “high performing” Public Housing 
Authorities (PHAs) the opportunity to propose and test innovative, 
locally designed approaches to administering housing programs and 
self-sufficiency strategies.  The program permits PHAs to combine 
federal funds from the Public Housing (PH) operating fund, Capital 
Fund Program (CFP) and Housing Choice Voucher (HCV) program 
into a single, agency-wide funding source known as a “block grant.”  
This block grant approach allows MTW PHAs to allocate resources 
based on a local determination of how to effectively address the 
needs of the local community.  It is important to note that the MTW 
designation does not provide PHAs with additional funding from 
the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD), 
but rather allows each agency to use their funding in a more flexible 
manner. 

With HUD’s approval, PHAs participating in the MTW program 
can waive certain statutes and regulations in the United States 
Housing Act of 1937 to explore different and creative ways to 
improve their housing programs.  These policy changes allow PHAs 
to address challenges for low-income families that are unique to 
their local needs.  In doing so, each of the activities proposed and 
implemented must address at least one of three MTW statutory 
objectives. 

 RHA’s designation as an MTW agency 
After a national competition was held in 2012, RHA was selected and designated as one of four new 
MTW agencies in 2013.  The MTW agreement between RHA and HUD was executed on  
June 27, 2013.  The executed agreement established RHA as an MTW agency through RHA’s FY 
2018.  On April 14, 2016, RHA received notice that pursuant to Section 239 of Title II, Division L of 
the Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2016, RHA’s current MTW agreement with HUD was 
extended through the end of FY 2028.   

 FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan overview 
FY 2024 (i.e., the period from July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2024) will be RHA’s eleventh year as an 
MTW agency. Each year RHA is required to adopt an MTW Annual Plan for HUD’s approval in 
advance of the start of the fiscal year.  This plan, which is organized according to HUD’s 
requirements as outlined in Form 50900, explains the proposed/amended MTW activities for the 
coming year, and provides updates on current MTW activities that have already received approval 

 
MTW Statutory Objectives 

• Increase housing choices for 
low-income families. 

• Give incentives to families 
with children where the 
head of household is 
working, is seeking work, or 
is preparing for work by 
participating in job training, 
educational programs, or 
programs that assist people 
to obtain employment and 
become economically  
self-sufficient. 

• Reduce costs and achieve 
greater cost effectiveness in 
federal expenditures. 

 

Page 49 of 301

http://www.renoha.org/pdf/MTW/2028Extension_Reno.pdf


Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 
Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023.. 
 Page | 9 of 195 

from HUD.  For this plan, an “MTW activity” is defined as any activity that requires MTW flexibility 
to be utilized to waive statutory or regulatory requirements. 

The MTW Annual Plan is intended to provide PH residents, HCV participants, local officials, the 
public, and HUD with pertinent information on each of RHA’s proposed and implemented activities.  
It also serves to provide stakeholders with details on RHA’s operating budget and capital 
improvement plans.   

As part of RHA’s planning process, staff began discussing the FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan, including 
each of the proposed/amended activities and potential PH repositioning strategies, during Resident 
Advisory Board and Resident Council meetings in January 2023.  Public review and comments are 
then solicited prior to consideration and approval by RHA’s Board of Commissioners.  Following 
approval from the Board of Commissioners, RHA’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan is submitted to 
HUD for review.1 

 Overview of RHA’s annual goals and objectives 
During its ten years as an MTW agency, RHA implemented activities intended to simplify the 
administration of both the PH and HCV programs.  These activities include, but are not limited to, 
simplifying medical deductions in both PH and the HCV program, implementing true triennial 
recertifications for elderly/disabled participants on fixed incomes and waiving rent reasonableness 
determinations under certain conditions in the HCV program.  Furthermore, RHA created a Landlord 
Incentive Program within the HCV program, began providing an incentive to $0 Housing Assistance 
Payment (HAP) households and received approval to use its funding flexibility for Affordable 
Housing Acquisition, Rehabilitation and Preservation.   

Throughout RHA’s participation in the MTW Demonstration, staff have continued to seek innovative 
activities that are designed to streamline resident requirements and increase the overall efficiency of 
the agency.  To identify ways that approved MTW activities might be improved upon, staff continue 
to monitor activities following full implementation.  

RHA’s proposed/amended FY 2024 MTW activities 
RHA is proposing the following new MTW activities in FY 2024: 

• Time-Limited Workforce Development Vouchers 
RHA is proposing to establish a partnership referral program that would allow the agency to 
provide time-limited housing assistance to clients referred by one of RHA’s non-profit 
partners. 

• Local Project Based Voucher Program 
RHA is implementing several activities surrounding Project Based Vouchers (PBV).  Through 
this activity, RHA is proposing to consolidate each of its implemented PBV activities into one 
Local Project Based Voucher Program activity. 

 
 
1  Additional details on RHA’s public process can be found in Section VI of this plan and the accompanying 

attachments. 

Page 50 of 301



Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 
Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023.. 
 Page | 10 of 195 

• Alternative Reasonable Cost Limits 
RHA is proposing to develop alternative reasonable cost limits to include Total Development 
Cost (TDC) and Housing Construction Costs (HCC) that are separate from HUD’s standard 
limits to better reflect local costs to develop and rehabilitate new and existing properties. 

In addition, RHA is amending the following activities in FY 2024 which were previously approved 
by HUD: 

• Simplify rent calculations and increase the minimum rent 
In 2014, RHA raised the minimum rent from $50 to $75 to save HCV HAP expense and PH 
operating subsidy.  Based on current rental market conditions, RHA proposes to increase the 
minimum rent in FY 2024 to $100. 

• Landlord Incentive Program 
RHA will amend this activity to allow for an automatic payment of the second month to the 
landlord.  Furthermore, the payment amount will be modified to ensure the landlord receives 
the actual contract rent amount for the unit rather than the monthly HAP amount.  In addition, 
to provide more of an incentive to landlords who lease to RHA’s HCV participants, RHA is 
proposing to implement a re-lease bonus and a landlord referral bonus.  

• Redetermination of rent reasonableness as a result of a change in contract rent 
RHA will continue to waive the requirement for rent reasonableness determinations provided 
that the new requested rent amount is a change of 10% or less but proposes to automatically 
approve requests that are at or below the current HCV payment standard. 

MTW goals and objectives 
Utilizing the flexibilities available through MTW to expand housing choice, streamline agency 
operations and develop creative solutions that meet the needs of low-income families in our 
community remains an ongoing goal of RHA.  New initiatives that further both the MTW statutory 
objectives and RHA’s strategic plan will continue to be explored and proposed if feasible.   

In November 2022, RHA’s Board of Commissioners identified several short-term goals for the 
agency in the coming year.  In FY 2024, leadership will work to address the following specific goals: 

• Identify and order the development of future housing projects and provide a financial plan for 
each development identified 

• Increase staffing, reclassify internal positions, and grow employee retention programs as 
needed  

• Develop a portfolio plan for RHA’s scattered housing sites  

• Begin PH asset repositioning  

• Expand RHA’s resident services programs  

Recently RHA began reviewing its portfolio analysis which was updated based on information 
provided through a capital needs assessment.  The goal of this review is to identify ways RHA can 
sustain its housing portfolio over time.  At this time, several repositioning options are being 
considered for RHA’s PH sites including Section 18 Demolition/Disposition and conversion to 

Page 51 of 301



Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 
Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023.. 
 Page | 11 of 195 

HUD’s Rental Assistance Demonstration (RAD).  Under some conditions, HUD allows these tools to 
be used in tandem, offering even greater opportunities for long-term preservation.   

The RAD program allows housing authorities, with HUD approval, to convert properties from one 
federal funding platform, Section 9 PH operating subsidy, to another, project-based rental subsidy 
within the HCV program.  By doing this, PHAs can leverage public and private debt and equity to 
reinvest in the PH stock.  Moving to project-based rental subsidy ensures a more stable, long-term 
funding source for operating the property and provides opportunities for new investment to 
rehabilitate aging buildings.  Except for any temporary relocation to accommodate major repairs, a 
RAD conversion is essentially seamless for residents as the following protections are written directly 
into the RAD requirements: 

• Residents have the right to return to the property after work is complete should they need to 
move out for any renovations. 

• Residents are not rescreened and do not lose eligibility. 

• Rent calculations remain at 30% of adjusted income. 

• Resident processes and rights remain the same, including the grievance process and funding 
for resident organizations. 

Section 18 of the 1937 Housing Act allows for the demolition or disposition of public housing if the 
property meets certain conditions.  Demolition means the removal, in whole or in part, of one or more 
permanent buildings of a public housing development.  Disposition means the conveyance or other 
transfer by the PHA, by sale or other transaction, of any interest in the real estate of a public housing 
development.   

Disposition under Section 18 describes a process where an existing public housing project is removed 
from the federal public housing platform to a more sustainable financing program.  This repositioning 
also allows the PHA to apply for Tenant Protection Vouchers (TPVs), which can also allow the 
agency to leverage more debt for improvements.  Like RAD, resident consultation is also a 
requirement under Section 18, including consultation with: 

• Residents who may be affected by the demolition or disposition action. 

• Resident organizations for the affected project, if any. 

• PHA-wide resident organizations, if any. 

• The Resident Advisory Board or equivalent body. 

Under Section 18, the PHA must also ensure communications and materials are accessible to 
individuals with disabilities and take reasonable steps to provide meaningful access to persons with 
Limited English Proficiency (LEP). 

In the coming months, RHA will begin to apply to reposition its PH properties through Section 18 
Demolition/Disposition, RAD or a RAD/Section 18 Blend.  Each application will follow the 
prescribed disclosure and public/resident engagement process required by HUD.  As resident 
engagement is required before and during the process, RHA’s residents will be the first to know when 
the applications for any repositioning strategy have been submitted.   

Page 52 of 301



Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 
Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023.. 
 Page | 12 of 195 

As of January 1, 2023, the following repositioning strategies are being considered for each of RHA’s 
PH properties: 

Property Name AMP # of Units Repositioning Strategy 

Hawk View Apartments NV39-P001-007 99 Section 18  
Demolition/ Disposition 

Stead Manor NV39-P001-006 67 RAD 
Silverada Manor NV39-P001-003 149 RAD / Section 18 Blend 
Essex Manor NV39-P001-009 105 RAD 
John McGraw Court NV39-P001-018 34 RAD 

Mineral Manor NV39-P001-001 144 Section 18  
Demolition/ Disposition 

Tom Sawyer Village NV39-P001-002 100 Section 18  
Demolition/ Disposition 

Myra Birch Manor NV39-P001-010 56 RAD 
 

Non-MTW goals and objectives 
Non-MTW goals and objectives are those activities that do not require MTW authority or flexibility 
to implement.  In addition to its planned MTW goals and objectives, RHA will: 

• Review and update the HCV payment standards to ensure viability with the area’s rental 
market and maintain adequate lease up levels within the HCV program. 

• Continue to evaluate RHA’s scattered site portfolio including appraised value, capital needs, 
operating efficiency, energy efficiency, etc.  Once complete, a strategy will be developed to 
determine appropriate uses which may include homeownership, non-profit partnerships, and 
continued operation as affordable housing for those without rental assistance.    

• Continue to work toward increasing staff efficiencies by fully implementing an Electronic 
Document Management System (EDMS) that will manage the use and storage of documents 
created throughout the organization. 

• Fully implement a new software system to automate workflows and streamline agency 
operations.

Page 53 of 301



 

 

 

Page 54 of 301



Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  

 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023. 
 Page | 14 of 195 

II. General Operating Information 

RHA’s Housing Assistance Programs 

On January 1, 2023, RHA was providing housing assistance to 2,972 active households through its 
PH and HCV programs.  
 

71% 

~5,437 people 
served by RHA 

  
  
  

RHA currently owns and manages 751 units of 
PH in eight different locations in the City of  
Reno and the City of Sparks for eligible  
low-income families, the elderly, and persons 
with disabilities.   

727 
households 

~1,559 
people 

$18,802 
average income 

  
  
 

RHA administers several rental assistance 
programs created under Section 8 of the 1974  
Federal Housing and Community Development 
Act.  Through this program, RHA provides 
housing subsidies to low-income families and 
individuals living in privately owned housing in 
Reno, Sparks and Washoe County.   

~3,878 
people 

earning with 

of households earn 
less than 30% AMI 73% 

Composition of People 

607 

291 

82% 

1,005 

56 
89 

71% 

420 
588 
40 

2,245 
households 

with $17,156 
average income 

earning 

of households earn 
less than 30% AMI 75% 

Composition of People 

1,248 

580 

89% 

1,997 

147 
217 

85% 

1,634 
2,025 

116 

Page 55 of 301



Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  

 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023. 
 Page | 15 of 195 

In addition to households assisted through its PH and HCV programs, RHA works closely with the 
local Department of Veterans Affairs (VA) office to provide assistance to over 400 veterans through 
the HUD-VA Supportive Housing (VASH) Program.  Recently, RHA was also awarded 137 
Emergency Housing Vouchers to assist unsheltered community members with housing and 15 
vouchers through the Foster Youth to Independence Program. 

Utilizing NSP along with other funding sources, RHA acquired over 200 scattered site properties 
throughout the local area; 166 of these properties are still a part of the agency’s housing portfolio.  
Most of these scattered site rental properties are allocated specifically for very low-income 
households. In addition to these scattered site units, RHA owns nine unaided multi-family housing 
properties.  Working with a private property management company, these nine properties provide an 
additional 376 housing units.  Although not required to do so, RHA leases each of these properties at 
levels that are lower than HUD’s Fair Market Rents (FMRs) for Washoe County.   

This section includes RHA’s general housing stock, lease-up, and wait list information. 

 Housing Stock Information 

i. Planned New Public Housing Units 

RHA will not be adding any new PH units in FY 2024. 

 
 
 

 
*  The federal accessibility standard under HUD’s Section 504 regulation is the Unifor Federal Accessibility Standards (UFAS) for 

purposes of Section 504 compliance (24 CFR 8.32).  HUD recipients may alternatively use the 2010 ADA Standards for 
Accessible Design under Title II of the ADA, except for certain specific identified provisions, as detailed in HUD’s Notice on 
“Instructions for use of alternative accessibility standard,” published in the Federal Register on May 23, 2014 (“Deeming 
Notice”) for purposes of Section 504 compliance, https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2014-05-23/pdf/2014-11844.pdf 

**  Select “Population Type” from: General, Elderly, Disabled, Elderly/Disabled, Other 

 

If “Population Type” is “Other” please describe: 

ASSET 
MANAGEMENT 
PROJECT (AMP) 
FILL IN NAME 
AND NUMBER 

0/1 
Bdm 

2 
Bdm 

3 
Bdm 

4 
Bdm 

5 
Bdm 

6+ 
Bdm 

TOTAL 
UNITS 

POPULATION 
TYPE** 

Section 504 
Accessible 

Units* 
(Mobility) 

Section 
504 Units* 
(Hearing/ 

Vision) 

Name/Number 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 N/A 0 0 

Name/Number 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 N/A 0 0 

Name/Number 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 N/A 0 0 

N/A  

Total Public Housing Units to be Added in the Plan Year: 
 

0 

Page 56 of 301

https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2014-05-23/pdf/2014-11844.pdf


Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  

 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023. 
 Page | 16 of 195 

ii. Planned Public Housing Units to be removed  

Over the past year, RHA has been exploring all options to reposition its PH portfolio including RAD 
and Section 18 Demolition/Disposition.  RHA recently submitted an application under RAD/Section 
18 for Silverada Manor, and in FY 2024, will continue to apply to HUD to participate in one, both or 
a blend of repositioning strategies for its other PH properties.  As of January 1, 2023, Section 18 
Demolition/Disposition is being considered for Hawk View Apartments, Mineral Manor, and Tom 
Sawyer Village. 

A “substantial amendment” to the MTW Annual Plan is attached, which captures the proposed 
changes to the PH portfolio.  This includes identifying the planned PH units to be removed and the 
number of new PBVs to be assigned. 

In FY 2024, RHA plans to remove the following PH units: 

 
                  
 
 
 

AMP NAME AND 
NUMBER 

NUMBER 
OF UNITS 

TO BE 
REMOVED 

EXPLANATION FOR REMOVAL 

Hawk View Apartments 
NV39P001007 99 In FY 2024, RHA plans to submit an application for Section 18 

Demolition/Disposition on this property. 

Silverada Manor 
NV39P001003 149 

In FY 2024, RHA plans to submit an application to convert all 
units at this senior/disabled property to PBV utilizing RAD and a 

Section 18 Blend. 
Essex Manor 

NV39P001009 105 In FY 2024, RHA plans to submit an application to convert all 
units at this family property to PBV utilizing RAD. 

TOTAL: 
Public Housing Units to be 

removed in the Plan Year 
353 

Page 57 of 301



Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  

 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023. 
 Page | 17 of 195 

iii. Planned New Project-Based Vouchers  

In FY 2024, RHA anticipates project-basing the following properties pursuant to the agency’s 
repositioning strategies. These include only those in which at least an Agreement to enter into a 
Housing Assistance Payment (AHAP) will be in place by the end of the Plan Year. It also indicates 
whether the unit is included in the Rental Assistance Demonstration (RAD). 

 

 
  

PROPERTY NAME 
NUMBER OF 

VOUCHERS TO BE 
PROJECT-BASED 

RAD? DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT 

Hawk View Apartments 99 N 

PH family site that will likely be repositioned 
through Section 18 Demolition/Disposition, 
although a RAD PBV Section 18 Blend may 
also be considered. 

Silverada Manor 149 Y PH senior/disabled site that will be repositioned 
using RAD PBV/Section 18 Blend. 

Essex Manor 105 Y PH family site that will be converted to PBV 
assistance following RAD conversion. 

353 
TOTAL: 

Planned new Project  
Based Units in Plan Year 

Page 58 of 301



Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  

 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023. 
 Page | 18 of 195 

iv. Existing Project Based Vouchers  
RHA is currently project-basing the following tenant-based vouchers in the Plan Year. These include 
only those in which at least an AHAP is already in place at the beginning of the Plan Year. It also 
indicates whether the unit is included in RAD. 

 

 
 

 

*  Select “Planned Status at the End of Plan Year” from: Committed, Leased/Issued 

PROPERTY NAME 
NUMBER OF 

PROJECT-BASED 
VOUCHERS 

PLANNED 
STATUS AT END 
OF PLAN YEAR* 

RAD? DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT 

Mobility 
Demonstration 22 Leased/Issued No 

PH tenants in good standing are 
being allowed to move to RHA’s 
scattered site properties on a PBV.  

Single-Family Home 
Project-Based 

Vouchers 
10 Leased/Issued No 

RHA has several single-family 
homes which are shifted to a PBV 
if/when the unit becomes vacant. 

Yorkshire Terrace 12 Leased/Issued No 

RHA has assigned PBVs to units 
at Yorkshire Terrace, a 30-unit 
Low Income Housing Tax Credit 
(LIHTC) property.  

Partnerships 10 Leased/Issued No 

RHA has formalized agreements  
with nonprofit community 
partners and property owners to 
provide affordable housing. 

Willie J. Wynn 
Apartments 12 Leased/Issued No 

Affordable housing development 
designed specifically to support 
seniors aging in place. 

Privately Owned 
Partnerships 33 Leased/Issued No 

Privately owned properties being 
assigned PBVs through a 
competitive process. 

Pilgrims Rest 7 Leased/Issued No Privately owned senior complex 
managed by RHA. 

VASH PBV 75 Leased/Issued No Privately owned properties have 
been assigned VASH PBVs. 

181 
TOTAL: 

Planned existing  
Project-Based Vouchers 

Page 59 of 301



Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  

 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023. 
 Page | 19 of 195 

v. Planned Other Changes to MTW Housing Stock Anticipated During the Plan 
Year 

Examples of the types of other changes can include (but are not limited to): units held off-line due to 
relocation or substantial rehabilitation, local, non-traditional units to be acquired/developed, etc.  

vi. General Description of All Planned Capital Expenditures during the Plan Year 

Narrative general description of all planned capital expenditures of MTW funds during the Plan Year. 

 

PLANNED OTHER CHANGES TO MTW HOUSING STOCK ANTICIPATED IN THE PLAN YEAR 
RHA plans to continue to purchase or repurpose single family homes, duplexes, and condominiums for use with 
PBVs.  Scattered site properties in low poverty neighborhoods, either currently owned or yet to be acquired, may 
be identified for use in RHA’s Mobility Demonstration.  All other properties acquired or repurposed may be used 
to provide additional housing choice to low-income families through RHA’s PBV program. 
 
RHA is also considering the redevelopment of a six-unit existing RHA owned unaided property utilizing 12 of 
RHA’s 13 available Faircloth Public Housing units.  RHA’s decision is dependent on funding applications 
currently submitted, but not yet awarded.  If Faircloth units are utilized, RHA would conder a Faircloth to RAD 
conversion. 

GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF ALL PLANNED CAPITAL EXPENDITURES DURING PLAN YEAR 

RHA is planning work on the following capital fund project in FY 2024. 

• HVAC equipment replacement – expected FY 2021 expenditure:  $304,000  
HVAC equipment will be replaced at McGraw Court. 

• RHA will be utilizing remaining FY 2022 and possibly FY 2023 Capital Funds to support relocation 
and/or other conversion expenses. 

Page 60 of 301



Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  

 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023. 
 Page | 20 of 195 

 Leasing Information 
i. Planned Number of Households Served 

Snapshot and unit month information on the number of households the MTW PHA plans to serve at 
the end of the Plan Year. 

 

PLANNED NUMBER OF HOUSEHOLDS 
SERVED THROUGH: 

PLANNED NUMBER OF 
UNIT MONTHS 

OCCUPIED/LEASED* 

PLANNED NUMBER 
OF HOUSEHOLDS TO 

BE SERVED** 
MTW Public Housing Units Leased 8,676 7232 

MTW Housing Choice Vouchers (HCV) Utilized 27,936 2,3283 

Local, Non-Traditional: Tenant-Based^ 0 0 

Local, Non-Traditional: Property-Based^ 516 434 

Local, Non-Traditional: Homeownership^ 0 0 

Planned Total Households Served: 37,128 3,094 
   

*  “Planned Number of Unit Months Occupied/Leased” is the total number of months the MTW PHA plans to have leased/occupied 
in each category throughout the full Plan Year. 

** “Planned Number of Households to be Served” is calculated by dividing the “Planned Number of Unit Months Occupied/Leased” 
by the number of months in the Plan Year. 

^ In instances when a local, non-traditional program provides a certain subsidy level but does not specify a number of 
units/households to be served, the MTW PHA should estimate the number of households to be served. 

 
LOCAL,  

NON-TRADITIONAL 
CATEGORY 

MTW ACTIVITY 
NAME/NUMBER 

PLANNED NUMBER 
OF UNIT MONTHS 

OCCUPIED/LEASED* 

PLANNED NUMBER 
OF HOUSEHOLDS 
TO BE SERVED* 

Tenant-Based N/A 0 0 

Property-Based 2021-03:  Partnership to 
Assist Homeless Youth 516 43 

Homeownership N/A 0 0 

 
*  The sum of the figures provided should match the totals provided for each local, non-traditional categories in the previous table. 

Figures should be given by individual activity. Multiple entries may be made for each category if applicable. 
 
 

 
 
2  RHA has 751 ACC units.  Lease up is not anticipated to drop below 723 units, or 97% of the MTW baseline of 745.  

If/when RHA is approved for a RAD conversion, the actual number of households served may fall below the number 
planned as units are held to accommodate the conversion process. 

3  RHA has 2,547 ACC Housing Choice Vouchers.  Although our goal is 100% of the established baseline of 2,477, 
RHA anticipates leasing this program at 94% in the coming year. 

4  Eddy House has 43 shelter beds; a portion of which are allocated specifically to house youth on a semi-permanent 
basis up to six months. 

Page 61 of 301



Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  

 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023. 
 Page | 21 of 195 

ii. Discussion of Any Anticipated Issues/Possible Solutions Related to Leasing 
Discussions of any anticipated issues and solutions in the MTW housing programs listed. 

 Wait List Information 
The following table reflects RHA’s wait list information as of January 5, 2023.   

i. Waiting List Information Anticipated  
Snapshot information of waiting list data as anticipated at the beginning of the Plan Year. The 
“Description” column should detail the structure of the waiting list and the population(s) served. 

 

HOUSING PROGRAM DESCRIPTION OF ANTICIPATED LEASING ISSUES  
AND POSSIBLE SOLUTIONS 

MTW Public Housing 

RHA continues to select applicants off the waiting list based on preferences set 
forth in the Admissions and Continued Occupancy (ACOP) for Public Housing 
for referral to vacant PH units.  Throughout FY 2022, RHA leased this program 
at 98.13% of the MTW baseline and is currently on track to maintain this lease 
up figure.  Although there are currently no anticipated leasing issues in this 
program, this may change if/when RHA begins to reposition its PH portfolio 
which results in units being held offline. 

MTW Housing Choice Voucher 

RHA continues to monitor its payment standards in relation to rental market 
conditions and promote the Landlord Incentive Program.  In FY 2019, based on 
feedback provided from the local HUD Field Office, RHA implemented a “lease 
in place” preference for applicants on the waiting list.  This preference will 
continue in the coming year.   
 
In FY 2022, RHA leased this program at 93.13% of the MTW baseline, up from 
92.26% in FY 2020.  Although RHA in currently on track to maintain current 
lease up figures within this program in FY 2023, staff continues to explore 
additional solutions that could lead to increased HCV lease up numbers.   

Local, Non-Traditional 

Although RHA does not anticipate any leasing issues related to Activity  
2021-03, it is designed to assist homeless youth in both a community living 
space and 24-hour drop-in center.  The very transient nature of the at-risk 
population being served make it difficult to anticipate any leasing issues that 
may be encountered.   

WAITING 
LIST NAME DESCRIPTION 

NUMBER OF 
HOUSEHOLDS 
ON WAITING 

LIST 

WAITING 
LIST OPEN, 
PARTIALLY 

OPEN OR 
CLOSED 

PLANS TO 
OPEN THE 

WAITING LIST 
DURING THE 
PLAN YEAR 

CV Public 
Housing 

1-, 2-, 3- & -4-bedroom units 
servicing all populations 2,644 Closed If needed 

Stead 2- & 3-bedroom units located at 
Stead Manor serving all populations 1,120 Closed If needed 

Page 62 of 301



Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  

 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023. 
 Page | 22 of 195 

 

Please describe any duplication of applicants across waiting lists: 

 

ii. Planned Changes to Waiting List in the Plan Year 
Please describe any anticipated changes to the organizational structure or policies of the waiting 
list(s), including any opening or closing of a waiting list, during the Plan Year. 

 

Elderly & 
Disabled 

Public Housing 

Studio, 1- & 2-bedroom units 
serving disabled and/or  

applicants age 55+ 
2,097 Closed If needed 

HCV Housing Choice Voucher Program 
serving all populations 3,602 Closed If needed 

Project-Based 
Voucher 

Unit Based Voucher serving  
all populations 2,359 Closed If needed 

WAITING LIST NAME DESCRIPTION OF PLANNED CHANGES TO WAITING LIST 

All Waiting Lists All RHA waiting lists will be opened and closed as needed. 

Public Housing Waiting Lists 

With the conversion to a new database processing software system 
estimated to be completed in FY 2024, RHA will convert its Public 
Housing waitlist to site-based waitlists.  RHA will follow all HUD 
regulations regarding notification of applicants currently on impacted 
waitlists. 

At the time of application, clients may apply for all open waiting lists. Therefore, the number of households 
reported will reflect some households who have applied for more than one program and/or bedroom size. 

Page 63 of 301



 

 

Page 64 of 301



Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023. 
 Page | 24 of 195 

III. Proposed MTW Activities 

This section describes RHA’s proposed MTW activities for the coming year.  Information is 
included on which MTW statutory objective(s) will be achieved, the anticipated impact of the 
proposed activity on the stated objective(s) and the anticipated schedules for achieving the stated 
objective(s).  It also details specific waivers to be used along with data collection and evaluation 
criteria, if applicable. 

RHA is proposing the following MTW activities in FY 2024: 

2024-01:  Time-Limited Workforce Development Vouchers 

A. Activity Description 
Reno, Sparks and Washoe County, like many communities across the U.S., continue to see  
members of its population experience homelessness.  Increased demand for housing tightened the 
community’s rental market, which, in many ways, made it harder for low-income residents to find 
affordable units.  On a single night in Washoe County at the beginning of 2022, 1,605 people 
overall were counted as homeless including 417 who were unsheltered - sleeping outside, in a car, 
or someplace not meant for human habitation.  Furthermore, 1,188 people were counted in 
emergency or transitional housing.  Unfortunately, this also included youth5.   

On this same night, 207 youth were counted as homeless in Washoe County.  Of those, 29% were 
between the ages of 18 to 24 and 6% of this same age group were unsheltered.  Sadly, the number 
of overnight shelters specifically for young people in Washoe County is limited.  For those looking 
to stay out of homelessness, there are a few transitional housing providers who provide temporary 
housing with supportive services to individuals experiencing homelessness.  The goal of these 
programs are interim stability and support to successfully move to and maintain permanent 
housing.6  However, according to An In-Depth Guide of Homelessness in Washoe County, “the 
robust continuum of care (community plan to organize and deliver housing and services to meet 
the specific needs of homeless people as they move into stable housing and maximize their  
self-sufficiency) needed to provide everyone who needs it with housing simply does not exist.”7  

RHA believes that everyone, including youth and young adults, need stable housing, supportive 
services, and access to connections that will place them on the path to long-term success.  In FY 
2024, RHA proposes to assist Washoe County’s younger population who have successfully 
completed a community-based education or life-skills program and are at risk of long-term housing 
instability.  To do this, RHA will allow at least 15 tenant-based vouchers to be earmarked to house 
youth who want to achieve self-sufficiency.  Currently, this population is largely unassisted by the 
agency’s traditional housing programs and due to waitlist preferences in place, are very unlikely to 
receive a traditional voucher.  Through this activity, RHA proposes to expand the services already 

 
 
5  https://www.hudexchange.info/resource/6291/2020-ahar-part-1-pit-estimates-of-homelessness-in-the-us/ 
6  https://www.hudexchange.info/homelessness-assistance/coc-esg-virtual-binders/coc-program-

components/transitional-housing/ 
7  An In-Depth Guide of Homelessness in Washoe County was prepared by Baran, L., Colling, K., & DuPea, M. 

Page 65 of 301



Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023. 
 Page | 25 of 195 

provided to these youth with a structured, goal-oriented program that provides ongoing self-
sufficiency support.   

RHA’s Workforce Development program is the cornerstone of the success of this activity.  
Consequently, direct referrals for Workforce Development Vouchers will be accepted from 
established non-profit partnering agencies specifically for these Workforce Development 
Vouchers.  RHA’s Workforce Development staff will accept the initial referral from the partnering 
agency and assist during the entire process from referral, admission, tenancy, and finally, self-
sufficiency as they transition off housing assistance.  As such, each applicant housed under this 
activity will receive a time-limited voucher of eight years and be required to participate in RHA’s 
Workforce Development program.   

How does this achieve one or more of the statutory objectives(s)? 
Implementation of this activity will provide incentives to families with children where the head of 
household is working, is seeking work, or is preparing for work by participating in job training, 
educational programs, or programs that assist people to obtain employment and become 
economically self-sufficient.   

Anticipated impact of the proposed MTW activity on the stated objective 
RHA anticipates that implementation of this activity will provide at least 15 at-risk youth with 
permanent housing and access to supportive services through their participation in RHA’s 
Workforce Development Program.  Through ongoing participation, the activity is expected to 
increase employment opportunities, savings, and build wealth among these participants.  It is also 
anticipated that it will improve the number of households transitioning to the final phase of  
self-sufficiency. 

Anticipated schedule for implementing the proposed activity  
Following HUD’s approval of this activity, RHA will use a competitive process to solicit 
partnering agencies within the community.  As Workforce Development staff will be the single 
point of contact for referral, each partnering agency will work directly with this department to 
begin the Admissions process.  Due to the time-limited nature of these vouchers, Workforce 
Development staff will meet with potential participants prior to referral to explain the voucher and 
corresponding expectations for participation in the Workforce Development program.  Once a 
voucher has been issued, RHA anticipates its partnering agencies will assist their client with their 
housing search.  Finally, RHA’s partners must provide the support necessary to ensure their client 
can overcome any barriers encountered when securing the unit (i.e.., security deposits, rental 
history, etc.).   

Page 66 of 301



Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023. 
 Page | 26 of 195 

B. Activity Metrics 
The following Standard HUD Metrics were identified and will be tracked for this activity: 

2024-01 SS #1:  Increase in Household Income 

Unit of Measurement Baseline Benchmark 

Average earned income of 
households affected by this 
policy in dollars (increase). 

Average earned income of 
households affected by this 
policy prior to implementation 
of the activity (in dollars). 

Expected average earned income of 
households affected by this policy 
after implementation of the activity 
(in dollars). 

Average earned income of 
households referred for a 
Workforce Development 
voucher. 

$0 $30,000 by year 5 

 
2024-01 SS #2:  Increase in Household Savings 

Unit of Measurement Baseline Benchmark 

Average amount of 
savings/escrow of households 
affected by this policy in 
dollars (increase). 

Average savings/escrow of 
households affected by this 
policy prior to implementation 
of the activity (in dollars).  

Expected average savings/escrow of 
households affected by this policy 
after implementation of the activity 
(in dollars). 

Average amount of savings/ 
escrow of households referred 
for a Workforce Development 
voucher. 

$0 $6,000 by year 5 

 
2024-04 SS #3: Increase in Positive Outcomes in Employment Status 

Report the Baseline, Benchmark and Outcome data for each type of employment status for those 
head(s) of households affected by the self-sufficiency activity. 

Unit of Measurement Baseline Benchmark 

 
Head(s) of households prior to 
implementation of the activity 
(number).  

Expected head(s) of households in 
after implementation of the activity 
(number). 

Employed Full-Time 0 15 by year 5 

Employed Part-Time 0 0 

Enrolled in an Educational 
Program 0 0 

Enrolled in Job Training 
Program 0 0 

Unemployed 15 0 by year 5 

Other N/A N/A 

Page 67 of 301



Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023. 
 Page | 27 of 195 

2024-01 SS #5: Households Assisted by Services that Increase Self-Sufficiency 
 

Unit of Measurement Baseline Benchmark 

Households assisted by services 
that increase self-sufficiency 
(increase).  

Households receiving self-
sufficiency services prior to 
implementation of the activity 
(number). 

Expected number of households 
receiving self-sufficiency services 
after implementation of the activity 
(number) 

Number of Workforce 
Development voucher 
households assisted by services 
that increased  
self-sufficiency. 

0 15 

 
2022-01 SS #8: Households Transitioned to Self-Sufficiency 

RHA looks at self-sufficiency in two phases.  The first phase occurs as household members maintain 
consistent employment for 12 months or when a reduction in subsidy results in the household being 
responsible for more than 50% of the rent.  The final phase of self-sufficiency occurs automatically once 
the household is no longer receiving assistance or when the household voluntarily ends participation.   
 

For this plan and subsequent reporting, only those households are no longer receiving assistance or who 
voluntarily end participation are counted toward the established benchmark. 
 

Unit of Measurement Baseline Benchmark 

Number of households 
transitioned to  
self-sufficiency (increase).  

Households transitioned to  
self-sufficiency prior to 
implementation of the activity 
(number).  

Expected households transitioned to 
self-sufficiency after implementation 
of the activity (number). 

Number of Workforce 
Development voucher 
households who successfully 
transitioned to self-sufficiency. 

0 158 

 
Data source from which the metric data will be compiled 
RHA will utilize its software system to track participating households internally throughout the 
year to note any changes in family circumstances that prevent Workforce Development Voucher 
participants from securing employment, increasing earned income, and potentially becoming self-
sufficient. 

C. Cost Implications 
As each of these young adults will be issued a tenant-based voucher following referral, RHA does 
not anticipate any additional cost implications related to this activity. 
 

 
 
8  RHA does not anticipate households to transition to self-sufficiency until their graduation from the Workforce 

Development program or by the eighth year of participation, whichever is sooner. 

Page 68 of 301



Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023. 
 Page | 28 of 195 

D. Need/Justification for MTW Flexibility 
Note:  All references to authorizations are to the section and paragraph citation of Attachment C 
of the Standard MTW Agreement. 
 
This activity requires the following authorizations to allow RHA to issue term-limited vouchers, 
accept direct referrals from RHA’s non-profit partnership, and establish and operate its  
self-sufficiency and training programs exempt from certain HUD requirements.  It also allows for 
the required participation in RHA’s Workforce Development Program. 
 
Authorizations Related to Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers Only 
D.1. Operational Policies and Procedures 

The Agency is authorized to determine basic operational policies and procedures for all 
Section 8 assistance the Agency is provided under section 8(o) of the 1937 Act. 

D.1.b.  The Agency is authorized to determine the length of the lease period when vouchers 
expire and when vouchers will be reissued.  This authorization waives certain 
provisions of Section 8(o)(7)(a), 8(o)(13)(F) and 8(o)(13)(G) of the 1937 Act and 
24C.F.R. §§982.303, 982.309, and 983 Subpart F. 

D.1.c. The Agency is authorized to define, adopt and implement a reexamination program 
that differs from the reexamination program currently mandated in the 1937 Act 
and its implementing regulations.  This authorization waives certain provisions of 
Section 8(o)(5) of the 1937 Act and 24 C.F.R. §982.516. 

D.2. Rent Policies and Term Limits 
 

D.2.d. The Agency is authorized to implement term limits for HCV units designated as 
part of the MTW demonstration.  This authorization waives certain provisions of 
Sections 8(o)(7) and 8(o)(13)(F)-(G) of the 1937 Act and 24 C.F.R. § 982 Subpart L 
and 983 Subpart E. 

D.4. Waiting List Policies 
The Agency is authorized to determine waiting list procedures, tenant selection procedures 
and criteria and preferences, including authorizing vouchers for relocation of witnesses and 
victims of crime that differ from the currently mandated program requirements in the 1937 
Act and its implementing regulations.  This authorization waives certain provisions of 
Sections 8(o)(6), 8(o)(13)(J), and 8(o)(16) of the 1937 Act and 24 C.F.R. §§982 Subpart E, 
982.305 and 983 Subpart F. 

 
Authorizations Related to Family Self-Sufficiency 
E. The Agency is authorized to operate any of its existing self-sufficiency and training 

programs, including its Family Self-Sufficiency (FSS) Program and any successor 
programs exempt from certain HUD program requirements.  These may include those 
requirements governing program size or participation, including whether to establish 
escrow accounts and other rent incentives and whether to establish mandatory self-
sufficiency participation requirements.  If the Agency receives dedicated funding for an 
FSS coordinator, such funds must be used to employ a self-sufficiency coordinator.  In 

Page 69 of 301



Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023. 
 Page | 29 of 195 

developing and operating such programs, the Agency is authorized to establish strategic 
relationships and partnerships with local private and public agencies and service providers 
to leverage expertise and funding.  However, notwithstanding the above, any funds granted 
pursuant to a competition must be used in accordance with the NOFA and the approved 
application and work plan.  This authorization waives certain provisions of Section 23 of 
the 1937 Act and 24 CFR §984. 

 
Rent Reform Information 
Impact Analysis 
As these youth will be referred directly by RHA’s non-profit partners, there is no impact 
anticipated on current HCV participants.  RHA does anticipate that once housed and actively 
participating in the Workforce Development Program, these young adults will experience an 
increase in financial wealth and personal welfare as they work toward becoming self-sufficient. 

To assess an individual’s progress toward becoming self-sufficient over the eight-year period, they 
will be required to join the Workforce Development Program within six months of lease up.  
Participation in the program is essential to assessing whether progress is being made toward 
becoming self-sufficient prior to the expiration of their housing assistance.  Consequently, should a 
referral for one of the Workforce Development Vouchers fail to join the Workforce Development 
Program or become inactive in the program for six consecutive months, RHA staff will initiate 
termination of assistance.  At the end of the eight-year time limit, the individual will be terminated 
from assistance; however, they can then re-apply to the HCV Program, for placement according to 
existing waiting list preferences.  

Hardship Case Criteria 
The hardship policy for the end of assistance will be very limited.  If the head or co-head of the 
family becomes disabled or experiences another life changing event that would require continued 
housing assistance, a three-person committee will review each request and decide whether an 
unrestricted voucher will be issued. Other than that, there will be no hardship exemptions from the 
eight-year limitation. 

Description of Annual Reevaluation 
RHA will track and evaluate the changing statuses of these young adults to determine whether 
progress is being made to become self-sufficient prior to voucher expiration.  

Transition Period 
This activity does not require a transition period.  RHA anticipates these vouchers will be issued to 
at-risk youth following a successful competitive process to establish referring partners.  
 

Page 70 of 301



Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023. 
 Page | 30 of 195 

2024-02:  Local Project Based Voucher Program 

A. Activity Description 
Throughout RHA’s participation in MTW, the agency has proposed and implemented several 
activities directly related to PBVs.  These activities allow for the assignment of PBVs to agency 
owned/controlled properties for ongoing partnerships, PBVs for privately owned properties, and 
the ability to assign PBVs to agency owned properties without going through a competitive 
process.  This activity serves to combine all of RHA’s current PBV activities into one Local 
Project Based Voucher Program.  In doing so, the following program elements will remain in place 
or be expanded upon: 

• To assist in providing additional housing choice for low-income families and allow RHA to 
make additional dwelling units available, RHA will continue to assign PBVs to non-Public 
Housing RHA owned/controlled dwelling units without going through the competitive 
process.  Initial contract rents which are at or below the applicable low HOME rents will be 
set by RHA rather than going through a state-certified appraiser and a HUD-approved 
independent agency.  

• RHA staff conduct inspections on all HCV and PBV units (Activity 2015-02) rather than 
using third party contractors, regardless of ownership or property management status.  This 
policy will remain in effect and apply to all PBV units. 

• Per 24 CFR §983.56, PBV assistance for units in a project cannot exceed more than 25% of 
the number of dwelling units (assisted or unassisted) in the project.  In addition, 24 CFR 
§983.6 specifies that PHAs are limited to project-basing up to 20% of the amount of budget 
authority allocated to the PHA by HUD in the PHA voucher program.  RHA will continue 
to remove the 25% cap on the number of PBVs that could be allocated to a non-Public 
Housing RHA-owned property and expand this flexibility to any property awarded PBVs 
through RHA’s competitive process.  Furthermore, RHA will also continue to eliminate the 
20% limit on the amount of voucher funding that may be utilized under its PBV program. 

• RHA will continue to expand its PBV program and allocate PBVs to privately owned 
properties in exchange for the owner’s commitment to provide affordable housing to 
agency identified at risk populations.  Local non-profits and developers can compete for the 
opportunity to receive an allocation of PBVs which will provide a minimum of a 15-year 
HAP contract providing rental subsidy to expand affordable housing units.  If applicable, 
each applicant property owner must commit to accepting referrals from RHA’s partnering 
service providers with whom a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) outlining the 
provider’s responsibilities has been executed.  The service provider has agreed to provide 
the necessary case management to assist each of the individuals and/or families with their 
long-term stability.  The applicant property owners must also agree to work collaboratively 
with the partnering service provider.   

Households referred and assisted with PBVs under this activity will be subject to the regular 
operational/rent policies that RHA has in place.  If necessary, a waiting list may be established 
and maintained by applicant property owners in compliance with RHA’s standards.   

Page 71 of 301



Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023. 
 Page | 31 of 195 

In addition, RHA proposes to expand its PBV waivers to allow for floating units within complexes.  
RHA will certify all floating units meet HQS protocols required by HUD by inspecting a 
representative sample of 20% of the units in each building, at a minimum.  Additionally, as RHA 
has already waived the limitations put in place by the project caps and budget authority, RHA 
proposes to simplify the PBV approval process and allow RHA’s Board of Commissioners to 
assign PBVs to both RHA owned/controlled non-PH units and competitively bid PBV units rather 
than requiring HUD’s approval of each property.  To ensure compliance, RHA will continue to 
conduct each of the required elements to apply for a PBV including neighborhood site standards, 
HQS inspections, rent reasonableness, subsidy layering reviews, and environmental reviews, as 
required, prior to Board approval. 

How does this achieve one or more of the statutory objectives(s)? 
This activity is expected to reduce costs and achieve greater cost effectiveness in federal 
expenditures and increase housing choice for low-income families. 

Anticipated schedule for implementing the proposed activity  
As many of the elements of this activity are already in place, it will be implemented following 
HUD’s approval of this plan.     

B. Activity Metrics 
The following Standard HUD Metrics were identified when the activities were initially 
proposed/approved and will continue to be tracked for this activity: 

2024-02 CE #1:  Agency Cost Savings 

Unit of Measurement Baseline Benchmark 

Total cost of task in dollars 
(decrease). 

Cost of task prior to 
implementation of the activity 
(in dollars). 

Expected cost of task after 
implementation of the activity  
(in dollars). 

Total cost of assigning PBVs to 
agency owned units without a 
competitive process. 

$720/property $0 

 
2024-02 HC #4:  Displacement Prevention 

Unit of Measurement Baseline Benchmark 
Number of households at or 
below 80% AMI that would lose 
assistance or need to move 
(decrease). 

Number of households prior to 
implementation of the activity. 

Expected number of households after 
implementation of the activity. 

Number of households at or 
below 80% AMI that would lose 
assistance or need to move. 

0 0 

Page 72 of 301



Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023. 
 Page | 32 of 195 

2024-02 HC #5:  Increase in Resident Mobility 

Unit of Measurement Baseline Benchmark 
Number of households able to 
move to a better unit and/or 
neighborhood of opportunity 
(increase). 

Number of households prior to 
implementation of the activity. 

Expected number of households after 
implementation of the activity. 

Number of households able to 
move to a better unit and/or 
neighborhood of opportunity. 

0 50 

 
2024-02 HC #7:  Households Assisted by Services that Increase Housing Choice 

Unit of Measurement Baseline Benchmark 

Number of households receiving 
services aimed to increase 
housing choice (increase). 

Number of households prior to 
implementation of the activity. 

Expected number of households after 
implementation of the activity. 

Number of households receiving 
services aimed to increase 
housing choice. 

0 50 

 
Data source from which the metric data will be compiled 
RHA will use its internal software to track units where a PBV has been assigned. 

C. Cost Implications 
RHA does not anticipate any additional cost implications related to this activity. 
 
D. Need/Justification for MTW Flexibility 
Note:  All references to authorizations are to the section and paragraph citation of Attachment C 
of the Standard MTW Agreement. 

The following authorizations are required to create a Local Project-Based Voucher Program: 

Authorizations Related to Both Public Housing and Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers 
B.4. Transitional/Conditional Housing Program 

The Agency may develop and adopt new short-term transitional housing programs, 
consistent with an eligible use of section 8 and 9 funds, with supportive services in one or 
more buildings in collaboration with local community-based organizations and government 
agencies.  Successful participants in these programs will be eligible for transfer to the 
Agency’s public housing or housing choice voucher programs.  

 
Authorizations Related to Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers Only 
D.1.  Operational Policies and Procedures 

The Agency is authorized to determine basic operational policies and procedures for all 
Section 8 assistance the Agency is provided under section 8(o) of the 1937 Act. 

Page 73 of 301



Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023. 
 Page | 33 of 195 

D.1.b.  The Agency is authorized to determine the length of the lease period when vouchers 
expire and when vouchers will be reissued.  This authorization waives certain 
provisions of Section 8(o)(7)(a), 8(o)(13)(F) and 8(o)(13)(G) of the 1937 Act and 
24 C.F.R. §§982.303, 982.309, and 983 Subpart F. 

D.1.e. The Agency is authorized to determine the percentage of housing voucher 
assistance that it is permitted to project-base, and criteria for expending funds for 
physical improvements on those units that differs from the percentage and criteria 
requirements currently mandated in the 1937 Act and its implementing regulations.  
This authorization waives certain provisions of Section 8 (o)(I3) of the 1937 Act 
and 24 C.F.R. §983. 

D.2.b. The Agency is authorized to determine contract rents and increases and to determine 
the content of contract rental agreements that differ from the currently mandated 
program requirements in the 1937 Act and its implementing regulations.  This 
authorization waives certain provisions of Sections 8(o)(7) and 8(o)(13) of the 1937 
Act and 24 C.F.R. §§982.308, 982.451 and 983 Subpart E. 

D.4. Waiting List Policies 
The Agency is authorized to determine waiting list procedures, tenant selection procedures 
and criteria and preferences, including authorizing vouchers for relocation of witnesses and 
victims of crime that differ from the currently mandated program requirements in the 1937 
Act and its implementing regulations.  This authorization waives certain provisions of 
Sections 8(o)(6), 8(o)(13)(J), and 8(o)(16) of the 1937 Act and 24 C.F.R. §§982 Subpart E, 
982.305 and 983 Subpart F. 

D.5. Ability to Certify Housing Quality Standards 
The Agency is authorized to certify that housing assisted under MTW will meet housing 
quality standards established or approved by HUD.  The certification form will be 
approved or provided by HUD.  This authorization waives certain provisions of Section 
8(o)(8) of the 1937 Act and 24 C.F.R. §982, Subpart I. 

D.7. Establishment of an Agency MTW Section 8 Project-Based Program 
The Agency is authorized to develop and adopt a reasonable policy and process for project-
basing Section 8 tenant-based leased housing assistance, which includes the components 
set forth: 

D.7.a. The Agency is authorized to project-base Section 8 assistance at properties owned 
directly or indirectly by the Agency that are not public housing, subject to HUD’s 
requirements regarding subsidy layering.  If the Agency chooses to project-base 
Section 8 assistance at such properties, the Agency recognizes and accepts that such 
units would no longer be eligible for operating subsidy provided under Section 9(e) 
of the 1937 Housing Act or for future capital funds provided under Section 9(d) for 
those units if it chooses to use this authorization.  Project-based assistance for such 
owned units does not need to be competitively bid, nor are the owned units subject 
to any required assessments for voluntary conversion.  This authorization waives 
certain provisions of Sections 8(o)(13)(B and D) of the 1937 Act and 24 C.F.R. 
982.1, 982.102 and 24 C.F.R. Part 983. 

Page 74 of 301



Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023. 
 Page | 34 of 195 

D.7.b. The Agency is authorized to establish a reasonable competitive process or utilize an 
existing local competitive process for project-basing leased housing assistance at 
units that meet existing Housing Quality Standards, or any standards developed by 
the Agency pursuant to this MTW Agreement and approved by the Secretary, and 
that are owned by non-profit, or for-profit housing entities.  This authorization 
waives certain provisions of 24 C.F.R. §983.51. 

D.7.c. The Agency is authorized to duly adopt, according to the requirements of local law, 
alternate standards for determining the location of existing, newly constructed or 
substantially rehabilitated housing to receive subsidy; provided, however, that in 
lieu of the Site Selection Standards currently set forth in 24 C.F.R. Section 983.57, 
the Agency will comply with the following requirements: 

i. The Agency will comply with the Fair Housing Act and Title VI of the Civil 
Rights Act of 1964, and implementing regulations thereto, in determining the 
location of newly constructed or acquired public housing units. 

ii. Units may be located in the agency’s jurisdiction, including within, but not 
limited to, the following types of urban areas: (1) an area of revitalization that 
has been designated as such by the governing jurisdiction, including 
Redevelopment Areas and Enhanced Enterprise Communities, (2) an area 
where public housing units were previously constructed and were demolished, 
(3) a racially or economically impacted area where the agency plans to 
preserve existing affordable housing, (4) in connection with HOPE VI or 
other HUD funded master planned development, (5) in areas where a needs 
analysis indicates that subsidized housing represents a low percentage of the 
total number of housing units in the area, or (6) relocating units to an area 
with a lower concentration of public housing units. 

iii. Conduct a housing needs analysis indicating that there is a real need for the 
housing in the area; and 

iv. When developing or substantially rehabilitating six or more Section 8 project-
based units, the agency will: (1) advise current residents of the subject 
properties and representative community groups in the vicinity of the subject 
property by letter to resident organizations and by public meeting, of the 
agency’s revitalization plan; and (2) certify to HUD in its Annual MTW 
Report that the comments from Residents and representative community 
groups have been considered in the revitalization plan.  Documentation 
evidencing that the agency has met the stated requirements will be maintained 
at the housing authority and submitted to HUD in its Annual MTW Report. 

D.7.d. All units that receive project-based Section 8 assistance must meet either (i.) 
existing HQS standards established by the Secretary or (ii) a local standard for 
communities receiving project-based Section 8 assistance developed by the Agency 
and approved by the Secretary.  This authorization waives certain provisions of 
Section 8(o)(8) of the 1937 Act and 24 C.F.R. §982 Subpart I.

Page 75 of 301



Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

Approved Posted for public review and comment on by HUD on August 16November 17, 2023. 
 Page | 35 of 195 

2024-03:  Alternative Reasonable Cost Limits 

A. Activity Description 
In response to the lingering housing shortage, RHA’s Board of Commissioners identified acquiring 
and/or developing new affordable housing that would effectively increase affordable housing 
options within Washoe County as a key goal in the agency’s strategic plan.  This specifically 
included exploring the ways that the agency could expand or build in greater density on land 
already owned or land that the agency may acquire.  In response, RHA proposed and received 
approval to utilize MTW funds (Activity 2021-01) in FY 2021 to assist in the 
acquisition/development of new affordable housing units, the rehabilitation of newly acquired 
properties, and the preservation and revitalization of existing affordable housing properties.  

In FY 2023, RHA identified the following new affordable housing development opportunities:   

• Carville Court is an existing RHA owned property consisting of three 2-unit duplexes 
located within the City of Reno. It was built in 1963 and purchased by RHA in 1997. Two 
of the three duplexes are currently occupied. Following the permanent relocation of 
existing tenants, the existing building will be demolished and replaced with a 2-story  
walk-up with 11 residential units that will provide supportive housing to community 
members exiting homelessness and/or at risk of homelessness.  The property will included 
a community room, and on-site offices for property management and supportive services 
staff.   

• Railyard Flats is a new affordable housing development within the City of Sparks. RHA 
purchased the land in 2023 utilizing American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) funds from the 
State of Nevada. The project is a 3-story walk-up on a 1/3 acre consisting of 15 units. It 
will target households at or below 60% AMI with four of the units set aside for households 
at or below 30% AMI. 

In FY 2024, RHA will be repositioning two of its PH sites.  This will include a RAD conversion of 
Silverada Manor and a Section 18 repositioning of Hawk View Apartments.   

• Silverada Manor was purchased by RHA in 1963.  It includes 150 units (149 ACC) that are 
available to elderly households as well as households with non-elderly members with 
disabilities.  The property needs serious capital improvements and RHA has decided to 
undertake the significant rehabilitation as part of the RAD conversions. 

• Hawk View Apartments were constructed by RHA in 1984 and includes 100 units (99 
ACC) available to families.  A Physical Needs Assessment (PNA) conducted by AEI 
Consultants in late 2022 determined the property meets the threshold for physical 
obsolescence.  Based on this, RHA has decided to pursue the disposition and demolition of 
the property under Section 18 followed by the construction of up to 200 new units of  
low-income affordable housing on the site. 

Over the past few years, the Reno/Sparks area has seen significant increases in the cost to develop 
and rehabilitate new and existing properties.  As RHA developed budgets and scopes of work and 
moved to secure financing for the development projects described above, it became clear that 
HUD’s standard TDC and HCC limits for the region do not accurately reflect local marketplace 

Page 76 of 301



Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

Approved Posted for public review and comment on by HUD on August 16November 17, 2023. 
 Page | 36 of 195 

conditions.  Through this activity, RHA is proposing to develop alternative reasonable cost limits 
to the TDC and HCC for RHA’s local non-traditional developments as well as other 
development/rehabilitation activities identified by staff and approved by RHA’s Board of 
Commissioners. 

Allowing for alternative reasonable cost limits will ensure that RHA can continue to finance 
current and future development projects that will not only increase the agency’s ability to ensure 
additional affordable housing units are developed/rehabilitated, but also increase housing choice 
for many low-income families throughout Washoe County.  With this activity RHA aims to 
decrease gaps in funding for smaller infill developments aimed at providing supportive housing for 
households below 30% AMI and/or affordable housing options for low-income households closer 
to areas of economic opportunity.  Additionally, RHA also aims to strengthen its PH repositioning 
efforts by establishing market area hard construction costs in line with those communities included 
on HUD’s List of High-Cost Cities.  This would allow RHA conversions to be eligible for a 20/80 
RAD/Section 18 blend if the hard construction costs for the project exceed 90% of the market area 
HCC. 

The following tables provide further details related to this activity: 

Table 1 – Detailed breakdown of actual or estimated HCC/TDC of recent RHA development 
projects. 

Property 
Name Building Type Year 

Completed 
# of 

Units HCC ($) TDC ($) Gross SF $/SF HCC $/SF TDC Average 
HCC/Unit 

Average 
TDC/Unit 

Willie J 
Wynn 

Apartments 
Walkup New 2019 44 $8,630,625 $12,333,911 39,732 $217.22 $310.43 $196,150.57 $280,316.16 

Railyard 
Flats Walkup New 2024 15 $4,965,918 $6,811,915 13,983 $355.14 $487.16 $331,061.20 $454,127.67 

Dick Scott 
Manor Walkup New 2024 12 $4,146,816 $4,781,130 11,195 $370.42 $427.08 $345,568.00 $398,427.50 

Hawk View 
Apartments 
(estimate) 

Walkup New 2025 200 $41,708,705 $66,259,946 177,888 $234.47 $372.48 $208,543.53 $331,299.73 

Silverada 
Manor 

(estimate) 

Rowhouse/ 
Townhome Rehab 2025 150 $30,865,404 $59,708,548 108,298 $285.00 $551.34 $205,769.36 $398,056.99 

Average $292.45 $429.70 $257,418.53 $372,445.61 

 

 

Page 77 of 301



Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

Approved Posted for public review and comment on by HUD on August 16November 17, 2023. 
 Page | 37 of 195 

Table 2 – Comparison of RHA project’s actual or estimated HCC/TDC to HUD HCC/TDC limits 

Property Name Year  
completed # of units Market Area 

HCC ($) HUD HCC ($) Market Area 
TDC ($) HUD TDC ($) 

Willie J Wynn 
Apartments* 2019 44 $8,630,625 $4,923,611 $12,333,911 $8,616,289 

Railyard Flats 2024 15 $4,965,918 $1,835,033.61 $6,811,915 $3,211,309 

Dick Scott Manor 2024 12 $4,146,816 $1,208,841.12 $4,781,130 $2,115,471.88 

Hawk View 
Apartments 
(estimate) 

2025 200 $41,708,705 $27,346,948 $66,259,946 $47,857,190 

Silverada Manor 
(estimate) 2025 150 $30,865,404 $17,601,144 $59,708,548 $30,801,944 

*Willie J Wynn Apartments HUD HCC/TDC was calculated based on FY 2019 limits. All other projects were 
calculated based on FY 2022 limits. 

As the data above demonstrates, RHA’s market area costs have been well above HUD limits for 
several years. It is also important to note that the average HCC per unit of RHA’s recent projects 
exceed 120% of the national average HCC for 2-BR walkup and elevator buildings. Based on this, 
RHA is proposing the following increased HCC/TDC limits: 

Building Type 

2022 HUD HCC 
(REGION IX – 

West:  Reno, 
Nevada) 

MTW Alternative 
Reasonable HCC 

2022 HUD TDC 
(REGION IX – 

West: Reno, 
Nevada) 

MTW Alternative 
Reasonable TDC 

ELEVATOR     

0 Bedroom $87,086.04 $121,920.46 $139,338.00 $195,073.20 

1 Bedroom $121,920.46 $170,688.64 $195,073.00 $273,102.20 

2 Bedroom $156,754.88 $219,456.83 $250,808.00 $351,131.20 

3 Bedroom $209,006.50 $292,609.10 $334,410.00 $468,174.00 

ROW HOUSE     

0 Bedroom $84,884.33 $118,838.06 $148,548.00 $207,967.20 

1 Bedroom $111,175.52 $155,645.73 $194,557.00 $272,379.80 

2 Bedroom $134,662.73 $188,527.82 $235,660.00 $329,924.00 

3 Bedroom $164,723.02 $230,612.23 $288,265.00 $403,571.00 

Page 78 of 301



Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

Approved Posted for public review and comment on by HUD on August 16November 17, 2023. 
 Page | 38 of 195 

Building Type 

2022 HUD HCC 
(REGION IX – 

West:  Reno, 
Nevada) 

MTW Alternative 
Reasonable HCC 

2022 HUD TDC 
(REGION IX – 

West: Reno, 
Nevada) 

MTW Alternative 
Reasonable TDC 

WALKUP     

0 Bedroom $81,085.78 $113,520.09 $141,900.00 $198,660.00 

1 Bedroom $110,562.25 $154,787.15 $193,484.00 $270,877.60 

2 Bedroom $139,995.56 $195,993.78 $244,992.00 $342,988.80 

3 Bedroom $184,518.25 $258,325.55 $322,907.00 $452,069.80 

 

With these increased limits, RHA’s average HCC for a Walkup and Elevator 2-BR is $207,725.31. 
This average more accurately reflects that RHA’s market area meets the threshold of a High-Cost 
City.  

How does this achieve one or more of the statutory objectives(s)? 
This activity is expected to increase housing choice for low-income families as additional 
affordable housing units will be developed within the cities of Reno and Sparks. 

Anticipated schedule for implementing the proposed activity  
Once approved, the proposed cost limits will be put in place and continue to be tracked to propose 
amendments to future alternative reasonable cost limits if needed.     

B. Activity Metrics 
The following Standard HUD Metrics have been identified and will be tracked for this activity: 

2024-03 HC #1:  Additional Units of Housing Made Available 

Unit of Measurement Baseline Benchmark 

Number of new housing units 
made available as a result of the 
activity (increase). 

Housing units of this type prior 
to implementation of the 
activity (number). 

Expected housing units of this type 
after implementation of the activity 
(number). 

Number of new housing units 
made available for households at 
or below 80% AMI. 

0 100 

Page 79 of 301



Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

Approved Posted for public review and comment on by HUD on August 16November 17, 2023. 
 Page | 39 of 195 

 
2024-03 HC #2:  Units of Housing Preserved 

Unit of Measurement Baseline Benchmark 

Number of housing units 
preserved that would otherwise 
not be made available (increase). 

Housing units preserved prior 
to implementation of the 
activity (number). 

Expected housing units preserved after 
implementation of the activity 
(number). 

Number of housing units 
preserved for households at or 
below 80% AMI. 

0 550 

 
Data source from which the metric data will be compiled 
RHA staff will present total development costs, hard construction costs, square footage, and the 
number of units developed for each project to RHA’s Board of Directors.  Internal software will be 
used to track ongoing data, which will be reviewed on an annual basis to determine whether the 
approved alternative reasonable cost limits remain viable. 

C. Cost Implications 
Implementation of this activity will result in an accurate reflection of costs to develop and/or 
rehabilitate affordable housing in Washoe County. 
 
D. Need/Justification for MTW Flexibility 
Note:  All references to authorizations are to the section and paragraph citation of Attachment C 
of the Standard MTW Agreement. 

In addition to the Broader Use of MTW Funds which provides RHA with the authorization to 
establish reasonable cost formulas for development and rehabilitation activities, the following 
authorizations are required to implement this activity: 

Authorizations Related to Public Housing 
C.16. Total Development Cost (TDC) limits 

The Agency is authorized to establish reasonable cost formulas for development and 
redevelopment activities that will replace HUD’s TDC limits in order to reflect local 
marketplace conditions for quality construction in its locality.  This authorization waives 
certain provisions of Section 6(b) of the 1937 Act and 24 C.F.R. §941.306.  

 

 

Page 80 of 301



Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

Approved Posted for public review and comment on by HUD on August 16November 17, 2023. 
 Page | 40 of 195 

Act and 24 CFR §984. 

Page 81 of 301



Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

Approved Posted for public review and comment on by HUD on August 16November 17, 2023. 
 Page | 41 of 195 

IV. Approved MTW Activities 

 Implemented Activities 
The activities discussed in this section have previously been approved by HUD and implemented 
by RHA.  The following tables provide an overview of each of the approved MTW activities 
including the year it was implemented, the primary statutory objective(s) the activity is intended to 
impact, and the Authorization(s) cited. 

Approved MTW activities 

Activity 
# Activity Name 

Fiscal Year 
Implemented / 

Amended 
Statutory Objective(s) Authorization(s) 

Cited 

2014-01 
Assign PBVs to RHA 
owned/controlled units 
without competitive process 

2014 Reduce costs and achieve 
greater cost effectiveness. 

Attachment C 
Sections D.2.b. 
and D.7.a. 

2014-02 Mobility Demonstration 2014 

Increase housing choice 
for low-income families 
and create incentives for 
families to work, seek 
work or prepare for work. 

Attachment C 
Sections D.1.b.,  
D.4., D.7.a., and  
E. 

2014-05 Simplify rent calculations and 
increase the minimum rent 2014 Reduce costs and achieve 

greater cost effectiveness. 

Attachment C 
Sections C.4., 
C.11, D.2.a., and 
D.3.b. 

2014-06 
Triennial recertifications for 
elderly/disabled participants 
on fixed incomes 

2014 

amended 2015 
amended 2017 
amended 2018 
amended 2023 

Reduce costs and achieve 
greater cost effectiveness. 

Attachment C 
Sections C.4. and 
D.1.c. 

2014-08 Partner with local nonprofit to 
provide special needs housing 2014 

Increase housing choice 
for low-income families 
and reduce costs and 
create incentives for 
families to work, seek 
work or prepare for work. 

Attachment C 
Sections B.4., 
D.1.b., and D.7.a. 

2015-01 
Elimination of all negative 
rents and simplification of 
HCV utility allowances 

2015 Reduce costs and achieve 
greater cost effectiveness. 

Attachment C 
Sections C.11. 
and D.2.a. 

2015-02 Allow RHA to inspect its 
own HCV units 2015 Reduce costs and achieve 

greater cost effectiveness. 

Attachment C 
Sections C.9.a.  
and D.5. 

Page 82 of 301



Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

Approved Posted for public review and comment on by HUD on August 16November 17, 2023. 
 Page | 42 of 195 

Activity 
# Activity Name 

Fiscal Year 
Implemented / 

Amended 
Statutory Objective(s) Authorization(s) 

Cited 

2015-03 

Eliminate Caps on PBV 
allocations and allow for 
assignment of PBVs to 100% 
of RHA-owned, non-Public 
Housing properties 

2015 

amended 2017 

Reduce costs and achieve 
greater cost effectiveness 
and increase housing 
choices for low-income 
families. 

Attachment C 
Sections D.1.e.  
and D.7.a. 

2016-01 Simplification of medical 
deductions 

2016 

amended 2018 
Reduce costs and achieve 
greater cost effectiveness. 

Attachment C 
Sections C.11.  
and D.2.a. 

2016-02 Redefine near-elderly person 
2016 

amended 2020 
Increase housing choices 
for low-income families. 

Attachment C 
Section C.2. 

2016-04 
Allow HCV participants to 
lease units that exceed the 
40% rent burden 

2016 Increase housing choices 
for low-income families. 

Attachment C 
Section D.2.a. 

2016-05 Eliminate Earned Income 
Disallowance (EID) 2016 Reduce costs and achieve 

greater cost effectiveness. 

Attachment C 
Sections C.11.  
and D.2.a. 

2016-06 

Disregard earned income of 
PH household members, age 
18-20, who are not the head 
of household or co-head 

2016 
Create incentives for 
families to work, seek 
work or prepare for work. 

Attachment C 
Section C.11. 

2016-07 

Implement a $75 fee for each 
additional HQS inspection 
when more than two 
inspections are required 

2016 Reduce costs and achieve 
greater cost effectiveness. 

Attachment C 
Section D.1.a. 

2016-08 Expand Project Based 
Voucher Program 

2016 

amended 2019 
Increase housing choices 
for low-income families. 

Attachment C 
Sections D.1.e. 
and D.4. 

2017-01 Increase verified application 
data for HCV applicants 2017 

Reduce costs and achieve 
greater cost effectiveness 
and increase housing 
choices for low-income 
families. 

Attachment C 
Section D.3.a. 

2017-02 Asset threshold to determine 
eligibility for admission 

2017 

amended 2019 
Increase housing choices 
for low-income families. 

Attachment C 
Sections C.2., 
D.3.a., D.3.b., 
and D.4. 

2018-01 Landlord Incentive Program 
2018 

amended 2020 
Increase housing choices 
for low-income families. 

Attachment C 
Sections D.1.a. 
and D.1.d. 

Page 83 of 301



Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

Approved Posted for public review and comment on by HUD on August 16November 17, 2023. 
 Page | 43 of 195 

Activity 
# Activity Name 

Fiscal Year 
Implemented / 

Amended 
Statutory Objective(s) Authorization(s) 

Cited 

2019-01 
Redetermination of rent 
reasonableness as a result of a 
change in contract rent 

2019 

Reduce costs and achieve 
greater cost effectiveness 
and increase housing 
choices for low-income 
families. 

Attachment C 
Section D.2.c. 

2019-02 Provide incentives to $0 HAP 
households 2019 

Create incentives for 
families to work, seek 
work or prepare for work. 

Attachment C 
Sections D.1.a, 
D.1.b, D.1.c and 
Section E. 

2021-01 
Affordable Housing 
Acquisition, Rehabilitation 
and Preservation 

2021 Increase housing choices 
for low-income families. 

Attachment D - 
Use of MTW 
Funds and MTW 
block grant 
outlined in PIH 
2011-45 (HA) 

2021-03 Partnership to Assist 
Homeless Youth 2021 Increase housing choices 

for low-income families. 

Attachment D - 
Use of MTW 
Funds and MTW 
block grant 
outlined in PIH 
2011-45 (HA) 

2022-01 Workforce Development 
Program 

2022 

amended 2023 

Create incentives for 
families to work, seek 
work or prepare for work. 

Attachment C 
Section E 

 

Page 84 of 301



Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

Approved Posted for public review and comment on by HUD on August 16November 17, 2023. 
 Page | 44 of 195 

2014-01:  Assign PBVs to RHA owned/controlled units without a competitive process 

Plan Year Approved, Implemented, and Amended (if applicable) 
This activity was approved and implemented in FY 2014.   

Description  
RHA owns several single-family homes, duplexes and condominiums throughout Reno, Sparks, 
and Washoe County that were purchased using various funding sources.  To expand the housing 
choice of low-income households, PBVs have been assigned to several of these scattered site units 
without going through the competitive process.  To assist in expediting the PBV approval process, 
initial contract rents at or below the applicable Low HOME Rents, are set by RHA.  RHA sets 
these rents in lieu of utilizing a state-certified appraiser and a HUD-approved independent agency. 

Status/Update  
Although the housing market has strengthened and the amount of available inventory has become 
extremely limited, RHA remains committed to purchasing or developing additional housing if the 
units will further the agency’s mission.  New and existing properties will be reviewed to determine 
whether the use of a PBV is appropriate.  RHA will continue to utilize this flexibility should the 
opportunity present itself.   

This activity will remain ongoing in FY 2024 but will be replaced with Activity 2024-02 following 
HUD approval.  It will be closed out with the next annual report. 

Planned Changes  
RHA does not anticipate any non-significant or significant changes to this activity.  There are also 
no changes or modifications to the metrics/data collection anticipated during the plan year. 

2014-02:  Mobility Demonstration 

Plan Year Approved, Implemented, and Amended (if applicable) 
This activity was approved and implemented in FY 2014.   

Description  
RHA’s Mobility Demonstration allows qualified low-income PH families with children to move to 
neighborhoods where opportunities are more abundant within the surrounding area.  To enable 
these families to move, RHA is assigning PBVs to agency-owned single-family homes, duplexes 
and condominiums located within low-poverty neighborhoods throughout the City of Reno and the 
City of Sparks.  Based on a pool of eligible households and the family’s approved voucher size, 
PH families with children, who are currently in good standing and who meet the established 
requirements to participate in the program, are provided with the opportunity to move into one of 
the identified properties.   

Status/Update  
To date, 49 PH families with children have moved to properties located in low-poverty census 
tracts, 19 of whom are still participating in the demonstration.  Overall, this activity has been 
successful with nearly 37% or 18 families having successfully transitioned off housing assistance.  

Page 85 of 301



Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

Approved Posted for public review and comment on by HUD on August 16November 17, 2023. 
 Page | 45 of 195 

In addition, five families, who are currently paying full contract rent, are expected to become  
self-sufficient and move off the program in the coming year. 

This activity will remain ongoing in FY 2024. 

Planned Changes  
RHA does not anticipate any non-significant or significant changes to this activity.  There are also 
no changes or modifications to the metrics/data collection anticipated during the plan year. 

2014-05:  Simplify rent calculations and increase the minimum rent 

Plan Year Approved, Implemented, and Amended (if applicable) 
This activity was approved and implemented in FY 2014.   

Description  
RHA is excluding all educational financial aid from income calculations and allowing self-
certification of assets under $10,000.  The full amount of student financial assistance paid directly 
to the student or to the educational institution is excluded from income calculations for HCV 
participants.  RHA’s HCV participants can now benefit from being able to attend an institution of 
higher education without being penalized with an increase in rent due to any financial assistance 
that they may secure.  Furthermore, households with assets less than $10,000 can submit a  
self-certification as to the value of the asset.  At the time of application, applicants are asked to 
provide a well-documented baseline asset value.  RHA staff will only calculate income on assets if 
the value of the assets total more than $10,000. 

Status/Update  
This activity will remain ongoing in FY 2024. 

Planned Changes  
In FY 2014, RHA raised the minimum rent from $50 to $75 not only to save significant HCV and 
PH operating subsidy but provide an incentive for participants to seek employment due to the 
higher participant contribution to rent.  As of January 1, 2023, RHA has 212 households within its 
PH and HCV programs who are paying a minimum rent of $75, 46% of these households pay a 
tenant rent of $0. 

In FY 2024, RHA proposes to raise the minimum rent to $100. This increase will affect 240 
households of which 12% will continue to pay a tenant rent of $0.  On average, affected 
households will experience a rent increase of $17/month in the HCV program and $15/month in 
the PH program. 

As no group of residents will be exempt from the minimum rent, individuals who already have 
hardship exemptions will continue to be granted that exemption.  Individuals who request an 
exemption may be granted one, based on RHA’s standard hardship policy for an exception to 
minimum rent.  RHA’s current minimum rent hardship policy states: 
 
An exception to the minimum rent can be requested if the family experiences one or more of the 
following qualifying events: 

Page 86 of 301



Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

Approved Posted for public review and comment on by HUD on August 16November 17, 2023. 
 Page | 46 of 195 

 
a. The household has lost eligibility or is awaiting an eligibility determination for Federal, 

State or local assistance, including a household with a member who is a noncitizen lawfully 
admitted for permanent residence under the Immigration and Nationality Act, and who 
would be entitled to public benefits but for Title IV of the Personal Responsibility and 
Work Opportunity Act of 1996. 

b. The household would be evicted as a result of the imposition of the minimum rent 
requirement. 

c. The income of the household has decreased because of changed circumstances, including 
loss of employment or death of a household member.  “Loss of employment” is defined as 
being laid off or terminated through no fault of the employee.  Loss of employment does 
not, for the purposes of exemption to minimum rent, include voluntarily quitting 
employment.  “Death in the family”, for the purposes of exemption to minimum rent, 
includes head of household or spouse, or any household member. 

d. Other circumstances as determined by RHA or HUD. 
 

RHA will review all household requests for exception from the minimum rent due to financial 
hardships. 

 
If RHA determines that the hardship is temporary (defined as a duration of less than 90 
consecutive days), a minimum rent will not be imposed for a period of up to ninety days from the 
date of the household’s request.  At the end of the temporary suspension period, a minimum rent 
will be imposed retroactively to the time of suspension.  If RHA determines that there is a 
qualifying long-term financial hardship, RHA must exempt the household from the minimum rent 
requirements for as long as the hardship continues.  The exemption from minimum rent shall apply 
from the first day of the month following the household’s request for exemption. 

RHA does not anticipate any non-significant or significant changes to this activity.  There are also 
no changes or modifications to the metrics/data collection anticipated during the plan year. 

2014-08:  Partner with local nonprofit to provide special needs housing 

Plan Year Approved, Implemented, and Amended (if applicable) 
This activity was approved and implemented in FY 2014.   

Description 
RHA is providing PBV units to clients of its nonprofit partners including the Domestic Violence 
Resource Center (formerly CAAW), Casa de Vida, Human Services Agency of Washoe County, 
Safe Embrace, Northern Nevada HOPES and Northern Nevada Adult Mental Health Services 
(NNAMHS). These PBVs are for two years and each of the nonprofit partners provides the 
supportive services.  

Status/Update 
This activity will remain ongoing in FY 2024 but will be replaced with Activity 2024-02 following 
HUD approval.  It will be closed out with the next annual report. 

Page 87 of 301



Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

Approved Posted for public review and comment on by HUD on August 16November 17, 2023. 
 Page | 47 of 195 

Planned Changes  
RHA does not anticipate any non-significant or significant changes to this activity.  There are also 
no changes or modifications to the metrics/data collection anticipated during the plan year. 

2015-01:  Elimination of all negative rents and simplification of HCV utility 
allowances 

Plan Year Approved, Implemented, and Amended (if applicable) 
This activity was approved and implemented in FY 2015.   

Description 
RHA’s PH residents and HCV participants no longer receive negative rents due to utility 
allowances. Furthermore, RHA simplified the HCV utility allowances for all units by creating a 
flat utility allowance schedule based on structure type and authorized voucher bedroom size. The 
new utility allowances are designed to cover the full cost of apartment utilities, but a lesser 
percentage proportionally for participants who choose single family homes, duplexes, and mobile 
homes. 

Status/Update 
Recently, RHA revised its simplified utility allowances to ensure their feasibility with the 
changing rental market.  As the region’s rental market remains tight, landlords are now requiring 
tenants to pay more utilities.  To reduce the financial burden that this changing rental market could 
have on HCV participants, RHA revised its simplified utility allowance schedule to cover the cost 
of additional utilities.  Following are RHA’s current utility allowance schedules: 

Owner Paid Water/Sewer/Trash 
Effective for annuals and vouchers issued on or after 10/1/22 

Structure Type 0-BR 1-BR 2-BR 3-BR 4-BR+ 

EES* $51 $59 $72 $86 $101 

Apartment $59 $67 $85 $103 $121 

Townhouse/Semi-Detached/Duplex $70 $80 $103 $125 $147 

Detached – Single Family House $88 $102 $127 $155 $182 

Mobile $88 $100 $123 $146 $169 
*EES – Energy Efficient Systems includes cooking, heating, and all electric. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 88 of 301



Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

Approved Posted for public review and comment on by HUD on August 16November 17, 2023. 
 Page | 48 of 195 

Tenant Paid Water/Sewer/Trash – (must pay at least 2 to qualify) 
Effective for annuals and vouchers issued on or after 10/1/22 

Structure Type 0-BR 1-BR 2-BR 3-BR 4-BR+ 

EES* $142 $152 $168 $185 $205 

Apartment $152 $160 $181 $203 $226 

Townhouse/Semi-Detached/Duplex $163 $173 $199 $225 $252 

Detached – Single Family House $190 $204 $232 $264 $296 

Mobile $190 $202 $228 $255 $283 
*EES – Energy Efficient Systems includes cooking, heating, and all electric. 
 
This activity will remain ongoing in FY 2024. 

Planned Changes  
RHA does not anticipate any non-significant or significant changes to this activity.  There are also 
no changes or modifications to the metrics/data collection anticipated during the plan year. 

2015-02:  Allow RHA to inspect its own HCV units 

Plan Year Approved, Implemented, and Amended (if applicable) 
This activity was approved and implemented in FY 2015.   

Description 
RHA owns a significant number of units which, under HUD’s established rules, had to previously 
be inspected by third party contractors.  In FY 2015, RHA staff began conducting inspections on 
all HCV and PBV units, regardless of ownership or property management status, rather than using 
third party contractors. 

Status/Update  
This activity will remain ongoing in FY 2024. 

Planned Changes  
RHA does not anticipate any non-significant or significant changes to this activity.  There are also 
no changes or modifications to the metrics/data collection anticipated during the plan year. 

2015-03:  Eliminate caps on PBV allocations and allow for assignment of PBVs to 
100% of RHA-owned, non-Public Housing properties 

Plan Year Approved, Implemented, and Amended (if applicable) 
This activity was approved and implemented in FY 2015.  It was amended in FY 2017 to eliminate 
the voucher allocation cap. 

Description 
RHA owns several non-PH complexes and dwelling units that have been utilized in various 

Page 89 of 301



Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

Approved Posted for public review and comment on by HUD on August 16November 17, 2023. 
 Page | 49 of 195 

housing programs through the assignment of PBVs.  To provide additional low-income families 
housing assistance and increase the agency’s rental revenue, the cap on the number of units where 
a PBV can be assigned within each project was lifted.  This has allowed for the assignment of 
PBVs to up to 100% of these RHA-owned, non-PH units.  In FY 2017, the 20% limit on the 
amount of voucher funding that may be utilized under the PBV program was also eliminated. 

Status/Update 
This activity will remain ongoing in FY 2024 but will be replaced with Activity 2024-02 following 
HUD approval.  It will be closed out with the next annual report. 

Planned Changes  
RHA does not anticipate any non-significant or significant changes to this activity.  There are also 
no changes or modifications to the metrics/data collection anticipated during the plan year. 

2016-01:  Simplification of medical deductions 

Plan Year Approved, Implemented, and Amended (if applicable) 
This activity was approved and implemented in FY 2016.  It was amended in FY 2018 to modify 
the income tiers further and establish a requirement that all eligible households self-certify actual 
medical expenses rather than allowing all participants to simply receive the simplified medical 
deduction regardless of whether the household incurs the expense.  

Description 
Rather than use third party verifications and require residents to provide receipts showing out of 
pocket medical expenses, RHA established and implemented a simplified medical deduction 
schedule based entirely on the household’s gross income.  Implementation resulted in the process 
becoming streamlined for RHA staff and the policy becoming easier for PH residents and HCV 
participants to understand.   

Status/Update 
This activity will remain ongoing in FY 2024. 

Planned Changes  
RHA anticipates reviewing and adjusting the standardized medical deduction table frequently to 
determine its overall viability for program participants.  Following a review of the income 
guidelines provided by the Medicare Assistance Program in relation to the 2022 Medicare 
premiums and coverage, it was determined that modifications to the medical deduction table would 
not be necessary this year. 

RHA does not anticipate any non-significant or significant changes to this activity.  There are also 
no changes or modifications to the metrics/data collection anticipated during the plan year. 

Page 90 of 301



Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

Approved Posted for public review and comment on by HUD on August 16November 17, 2023. 
 Page | 50 of 195 

2016-02:  Redefine near-elderly person 

Plan Year Approved, Implemented, and Amended (if applicable) 
This activity was approved and implemented in FY 2016.  It was expanded upon in FY 2020 to 
include the use of the near-elderly definition within the PBV program and allow PBV sites, which 
define elderly as 55 years of age and older, to be considered an elderly property.   

Description 
In FY 2016, RHA implemented a change to the near-elderly definition for the PH program to limit 
it to persons who are at least 55 years of age but below the age of 62.  These newly defined 
households are treated as “elderly” to allow for their admission from the waiting list to one of 
RHA’s senior PH complexes.  This has allowed the number of eligible families referred to these 
PH units to increase without raising concerns from current residents regarding potential lifestyle 
conflicts.  By redefining near-elderly and allowing these households to be treated as “elderly” for 
admission to RHA’s senior PH complexes, the affordable housing opportunities for these 
individuals has successfully increased.   

Status/Update 
This activity will remain ongoing in FY 2024. 

Planned Changes  
RHA does not anticipate any non-significant or significant changes to this activity.  There are also 
no changes or modifications to the metrics/data collection anticipated during the plan year. 

2016-04:  Allow HCV participants to lease units that exceed the 40% rent burden 

Plan Year Approved, Implemented, and Amended (if applicable) 
This activity was approved and implemented in FY 2016.   

Description   
To allow HCV participants to choose housing in accordance with their individual financial 
circumstances, RHA began allowing HCV participants, at their option, to lease units that exceed 
the 40% maximum rent burden.  However, at the time tenancy is approved and the HAP contract is 
executed, the maximum initial rent burden cannot exceed 50% of monthly adjusted income.  
Implementation of this activity allows participants to look for housing that may be more costly 
than otherwise permitted under HUD regulations, but it also gives participants the option to live in 
lower poverty neighborhoods with access to better schools and employment opportunities. 

Status/Update 
This activity will remain ongoing in FY 2024. 

Planned Changes  
RHA does not anticipate any non-significant or significant changes to this activity.  There are also 
no changes or modifications to the metrics/data collection anticipated during the plan year. 

Page 91 of 301



Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

Approved Posted for public review and comment on by HUD on August 16November 17, 2023. 
 Page | 51 of 195 

2016-05:  Eliminate Earned Income Disallowance (EID)  

Plan Year Approved, Implemented, and Amended (if applicable) 
This activity was approved and implemented in FY 2016.   

Description 
Earned Income Disallowance (EID) allows eligible tenants in the PH and HCV programs to 
increase their incomes through employment without triggering rent increases.  The resulting 
income increase is fully excluded for 12 months and 50% excluded for an additional 12 months. 
Under the “Streamlining Administrative Regulations for Public Housing, Housing Choice 
Voucher, Multifamily Housing, and Community Planning and Development Programs” published 
on March 8, 2016, the duration for this exclusion of wages was revised from 48 months to 24 
months. However, each eligible family member may be in a different exclusion phase or month 
count, which remains burdensome for PHA staff to track.  In FY 2016, RHA eliminated the HUD-
mandated EID from the calculation of rent.   

Status/Update  
This activity will remain ongoing in FY 2024. 

Planned Changes  
RHA does not anticipate any non-significant or significant changes to this activity.  There are also 
no changes or modifications to the metrics/data collection anticipated during the plan year. 

2016-06:  Disregard earned income of PH household members, ages 18-20, who are 
not the head of household or co-head 

Plan Year Approved, Implemented, and Amended (if applicable) 
This activity was approved and implemented in FY 2016.   

Description 
HUD regulations for PH residents require that earned income of adult children, between the ages 
of 18 and 20, be factored into the household’s rent calculation.  In many cases where an adult child 
works, the head of household has no control over the child’s willingness to contribute to the rent.  
In some cases, this increased rent burden may place the family at risk of being terminated from the 
program if the head of household is unable to pay their portion of the increased rent.   

In FY 2016, RHA began providing these adult children, ages 18-20 who live in PH and are not the 
head of household or co-head, an incentive to pursue employment and become economically self-
sufficient by revising the definition of countable income.  This revision excludes all earned income 
for these young adults when determining rent for the entire household.   

Status/Update  
This activity will remain ongoing in FY 2024. 

Planned Changes  
RHA does not anticipate any non-significant or significant changes to this activity.  There are also 
no changes or modifications to the metrics/data collection anticipated during the plan year. 

Page 92 of 301



Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

Approved Posted for public review and comment on by HUD on August 16November 17, 2023. 
 Page | 52 of 195 

2016-07:  Implement a $75 fee for each additional HQS inspection when more than 
two inspections are required 

Plan Year Approved, Implemented, and Amended (if applicable) 
This activity was approved and implemented in FY 2016.   

Description 
Currently RHA is required to conduct a re-inspection on units that fail an annual HQS inspection 
to ensure that the owner/manager has corrected the noted violations.  If the unit fails HQS, the 
owner/manager is notified in writing of the deficiencies and repairs that need to be made within 30 
days.  If the owner/manager does not take the required corrective action within the specified time, 
RHA can abate the HAP beginning 30 days from the date of the first inspection until the required 
work is totally complete.  Frequently, a third inspection is required to verify the completion of the 
noted deficiencies. 

To encourage owners/managers to correct the noted violations quickly and provide RHA’s HCV 
participants with safer living conditions, RHA began to assess a $75 fee for each additional HQS 
inspection.  This fee commences when more than two HQS inspections are required due to the 
owner/manager’s failure to complete the necessary repairs.  The fee for the inspection does not 
remove the abatement of the subsidy, but rather seeks to cover the administrative costs of 
conducting a third inspection that would not have been required had the owner/manager corrected 
the noted violations in a timely manner and incentive landlords to make timely repairs.  The 
owner/manager cannot pass this fee on to the tenant.   

Owners/managers frequently request extensions to complete the necessary repairs prior to the third 
inspection, and RHA anticipates that this will continue.  However, upon implementation of this 
activity, extensions are no longer granted for more than 30 days following the date of the second 
inspection except under certain circumstances which are approved by RHA. 

Status/Update  
This activity will remain ongoing in FY 2024. 

Planned Changes  
RHA does not anticipate any non-significant or significant changes to this activity.  There are also 
no changes or modifications to the metrics/data collection anticipated during the plan year. 

2016-08:  Expand Project Based Voucher Program 

Plan Year Approved, Implemented, and Amended (if applicable) 
This activity was approved and implemented in FY 2016.  It was expanded upon in FY 2019 to 
include families who are participating in Washoe County’s workforce development programs. 

Description  
RHA allocates PBVs to RHA-owned units which are utilized in several of RHA’s housing 
programs and to assist RHA’s local nonprofit partners in housing high risk families who have 
immediate housing needs.  On May 11, 2016, RHA received approval to amend its FY 2016 MTW 
Annual Plan to allow for the expansion of its PBV program.   

Page 93 of 301



Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

Approved Posted for public review and comment on by HUD on August 16November 17, 2023. 
 Page | 53 of 195 

This expansion allows for the allocation of up to 50 PBVs to privately owned properties in 
exchange for the owner’s commitment to provide affordable housing to individuals and/or families 
who are experiencing homelessness.  This activity was amended in FY 2019 to expand RHA’s 
PBV program to address the lack of affordable housing options for families who are actively 
participating in workforce development programs within Washoe County.   

To implement the activity effectively, RHA also received approval to remove the 25% per building 
cap established in 24 CFR §983.56 for all PBVs assigned under this activity.   

Status/Update 
This activity will remain ongoing in FY 2024 but will be replaced with Activity 2024-02 following 
HUD approval.  It will be closed out with the next annual report. 

Planned Changes  
RHA does not anticipate any non-significant or significant changes to this activity.  There are also 
no changes or modifications to the metrics/data collection anticipated during the plan year. 

2017-01:  Increase verified application data for HCV applicants 

Plan Year Approved, Implemented, and Amended (if applicable) 
This activity was approved and implemented in FY 2017.   

Description 
RHA’s Admin Plan and federal regulations require that information submitted by each applicant 
be verified by staff to ensure that the data provided by the applicant that was used to determine 
eligibility, priority status, HAP to be paid and voucher size is true and complete.  Per CFR 
§982.201(e), RHA must receive information verifying that an applicant is eligible for the HCV 
program within the period of 60 days prior to the issuance of a voucher to the applicant.  
Information not subject to change (i.e., date and place of birth) does not need to be re-verified.  
Information that is subject to change, which was verified more than 60 days prior, must be re-
verified close to certification of the applicant’s file.  If there is a delay after the file has been 
certified and referred to the HCV program that will cause an applicant to not lease up, the voucher 
is suspended while the information is re-verified.  If changes are reported late, the file will be 
returned to Admissions staff to obtain written verification and to determine their effect on 
eligibility, rent and unit size.   

The amount of time RHA staff spent following-up and tracking third-party verification requests 
was significant and often resulted in information that was no more reliable than the documents 
provided by the applicants directly. To streamline the admissions process, reduce the amount of 
time required by staff, and decrease the time necessary to build a qualified applicant pool, RHA 
received approval to extend the length of time that all verified application data related to income is 
deemed valid for the HCV program to 120 days.  Furthermore, this activity also allows stable 
income verifications, such as pensions and Social Security award letters, to be valid for the current 
year.   
 
Status/Update  
This activity will remain ongoing in FY 2024. 

Page 94 of 301



Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

Approved Posted for public review and comment on by HUD on August 16November 17, 2023. 
 Page | 54 of 195 

Planned Changes  
RHA does not anticipate any non-significant or significant changes to this activity.  There are also 
no changes or modifications to the metrics/data collection anticipated during the plan year. 

2017-02:  Asset threshold to determine eligibility for admission 

Plan Year Approved, Implemented, and Amended (if applicable) 
This activity was approved and implemented in FY 2017.  It was amended in FY 2019 to exclude 
cash assets of elderly/disabled applicants. 

Description 
Under 24 CFR §5.609, annual income is defined to include amounts derived (during the  
12-month period) from assets to which any member of the family has access. Income resulting 
from any assets held by the family must be calculated and included when determining program 
eligibility and rent portions. However, under HUD’s current guidelines, there is no limit on the 
amount of assets a family may have access to prior to determination of eligibility.   

To serve applicants who are most in financial need, RHA received approval to establish an asset 
threshold when determining eligibility for admission to its housing programs.  Should an applicant 
have combined assets with a cash value of more than $50,000, or ownership in a suitable dwelling 
unit which they have a legal right to reside in, they are determined to be ineligible for admission.  

In FY 2019, RHA amended this activity to exclude cash assets only when determining eligibility 
for elderly/disabled HCV and PH households.  Ownership in a property that the applicant has a 
legal right to reside in remains in place for all applicants when determining eligibility for RHA’s 
housing programs. 

Status/Update  
This activity will remain ongoing in FY 2024. 

Planned Changes  
RHA does not anticipate any non-significant or significant changes to this activity.  There are also 
no changes or modifications to the metrics/data collection anticipated during the plan year. 

2018-01:  Landlord Incentive Program   

Plan Year Approved, Implemented, and Amended (if applicable) 
This activity was approved and implemented in FY 2018.  It was amended in FY 2020 to expand 
upon the conditions for qualification. 

Description 
Based on information received from landlords through a survey which noted barriers to their 
continued participation in the HCV program, RHA implemented a Landlord Incentive Program in 
FY 2018 that was expanded upon in FY 2020.  The program allows landlords to receive their 
contracted HAP payment through the end of the month for units occupied by HCV participants 
vacating under the following conditions: (1) deceased tenant, (2) eviction, (3) skip, (4) a family 
responsibility violation, or (5) excessive damage to the unit that is beyond normal wear and tear.   

Page 95 of 301



Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

Approved Posted for public review and comment on by HUD on August 16November 17, 2023. 
 Page | 55 of 195 

Status/Update 
This activity will remain ongoing in FY 2024. 

Planned Changes 
In FY 2024, RHA will begin to provide the actual HAP amount through the end of the month as 
well as one additional month of full contract rent to landlords automatically regardless of the 
actual move-out date of the participant.  Landlords can utilize the additional month of contracted 
rent toward damages incurred within the unit or as compensation for a vacancy loss.   

To ensure landlords can maintain equal housing opportunities and follow their existing procedures, 
RHA does not require landlords to rent to another voucher holder to qualify for the Landlord 
Incentive Program.  However, in FY 2024 RHA will utilize single fund flexibility to expand the 
Landlord Incentive Program and provide landlords with a $500 re-lease bonus and a $1,000 
referral bonus.  Based on this expansion, current HCV landlords who sign a HAP contract to lease 
the same unit to another HCV program participant, will automatically receive a $500 re-lease 
bonus.  In addition, current landlords who refer a new landlord to the HCV program will be 
eligible for an automatic referral bonus.  To qualify for the referral bonus, the new landlord must 
be one who has never leased to one of RHA’s HCV program participants before. 

To engage and retain current and future HCV landlords, RHA began reviewing various software 
companies who specialize in landlord relationships.  In the coming year, RHA may use single fund 
flexibility to purchase software that will centralize landlord relationships, reduce housing search 
times, and expand housing opportunities. 

RHA does not anticipate any non-significant or significant changes to this activity.  There are also 
no changes or modifications to the metrics/data collection anticipated during the plan year. 

2019-01:  Redetermination of rent reasonableness as a result of a change in contract 
rent 

Plan Year Approved, Implemented, and Amended (if applicable) 
This activity was approved and implemented in FY 2019.   

Description 
The strengthening housing market and the lack of affordable housing in the City of Reno, the City 
of Sparks and Washoe County has resulted in private landlords becoming wary or simply refusing 
to rent to HCV participants.  This is oftentimes made worse by the myriad of regulations that must 
be adhered to when leasing to a family participating in the HCV program.  These burdensome 
regulations include mandatory inspections and the requirement to determine whether a CRI request 
is reasonable.  Several of RHA’s landlords expressed dissatisfaction in having to complete a rent 
reasonableness determination when requesting a rent increase and many disagree with the comps 
used if the amount requested is determined to be unreasonable.  In fact, some landlords have 
openly expressed that they can easily rent the unit to a family who is not receiving assistance at 
whatever price they deem appropriate.   

Based on the local rental market, RHA began waiving the requirement for a rent reasonableness 
determination in FY 2019 if the new requested rent amount represents a change of 10% or less.  

Page 96 of 301



Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

Approved Posted for public review and comment on by HUD on August 16November 17, 2023. 
 Page | 56 of 195 

This policy change is anticipated to assist in retaining landlords who continue to lease to HCV 
participants in this challenging rental market and alleviate the amount of time required of staff to 
process requests.   

Status/Update  
During FY 2022, RHA processed 1,202 rent change requests of which 909 or 76% sought a change 
of 10% or less.  Rent reasonableness determinations are still made by RHA staff on a regular basis.  
Staff continue to complete a rent reasonableness determination when a unit is placed under a HAP 
contract for the first time, when an owner requests a contract rent change of more than 10%, or at 
any other time RHA deems necessary.   

RHA conducted a general analysis of the local rental market to ensure this policy change continues 
to be a viable option for waiving the required rent reasonableness determination following a CRI 
request of 10% or less.  According to Zillow, the median rent price in Reno for December 2022 is 
$2,000.  This is $100 more than December 2021.  With current rental market conditions in mind, 
RHA plans to continue to alleviate some of the administrative burden required of RHA staff while 
at the same time continuing to provide an incentive to RHA’s HCV landlords by leaving this 
threshold at 10% for the coming year.   

This activity will remain ongoing in FY 2024.  

Planned Changes  
In FY 2024, RHA proposes to allow for automatic approval of a CRI without a rent reasonableness 
redetermination if the requested rent change amount does not exceed RHA’s payment standards.   

RHA does not anticipate any non-significant or significant changes to this activity.  There are also 
no changes or modifications to the metrics/data collection anticipated during the plan year. 

2019-02:  Provide incentives to $0 HAP households 

Plan Year Approved, Implemented, and Amended (if applicable) 
This activity was approved and implemented in FY 2019.   

Description 
Many of RHA’s families who increase their household earnings and begin to pay full contract rent 
also experience the “benefits cliff.”  For many of these families, an increase in earned income 
results in a loss of eligibility for certain public benefits such as Temporary Assistance for Needy 
Families (TANF), Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP), childcare subsidy and 
housing.  As a result, it is not uncommon for households approaching the end of the six-month 
period of zero assistance to elect to reduce their income or lose employment in order to keep their 
housing assistance as many remain fearful of no longer having the safety net offered through 
assistance eligibility. 

To ease this fear and increase the success rate of RHA’s HCV households in becoming 
economically self-sufficient, RHA adopted a new policy in FY 2019 that extends the length of 
time a household can remain on the HCV program while receiving zero assistance. By lengthening 
the period from six months to 12 months, RHA expects to provide an additional level of security 

Page 97 of 301



Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

Approved Posted for public review and comment on by HUD on August 16November 17, 2023. 
 Page | 57 of 195 

and confidence.  Participants can continue to increase their earned income while at the same time 
eliminating the incentive to terminate employment or reduce working hours.  

As an additional incentive to HCV participants on their way to self-sufficiency, RHA began 
allowing households at $0 HAP to accrue an escrow account for up to 12 months.  Using single-
fund flexibility, RHA began setting aside 15% of each household’s contracted rent monthly in an 
escrow account for no more than 12 months while the household remains on the program receiving 
zero assistance.  This escrow accrual begins the first month that the family reaches $0 HAP, 
accumulate monthly for up to 12 months and will be provided to the family once the HAP contract 
is terminated by RHA and the family has successfully transitioned off the HCV program. If, at any 
time during the 12-month accrual period, the family becomes eligible to receive housing assistance 
again, the amount of money accrued is forfeited and the escrow accrual starts over from zero 
if/when the household reaches $0 HAP again.  Should the family choose to move off the HCV 
program within the 12-month period that they are receiving zero assistance, they move off the 
program with the amount accrued in the account up to the date of their voluntary departure.   

This policy change is intended to encourage increased earnings and upward mobility by providing 
a small amount of additional assistance for RHA’s families as they approach the benefits cliff.  As 
a result, it is not RHA’s intent to put restrictions on what the escrow amount can be spent on.  
However, each escrow accrual during this $0 HAP period is subject to funding availability and 
payouts will be limited to one per lifetime for all adults within the household at the time the 
escrow accrual is paid to the family.  Households who accept the escrow accrual payment and 
transition off housing assistance will only be allowed to reapply following a three-year period 
without housing assistance.  Furthermore, families who are participating in RHA’s traditional FSS 
program and escrowing as part of their participation, will only be allowed to receive one escrow. 

Status/Update 
This activity will remain ongoing in FY 2024. 

Planned Changes  
RHA does not anticipate any non-significant or significant changes to this activity.  There are also 
no changes or modifications to the metrics/data collection anticipated during the plan year. 

2021-01:  Affordable Housing Acquisition, Rehabilitation and Preservation 

Plan Year Approved, Implemented, and Amended (if applicable) 
This activity was approved and implemented in FY 2021. 

Description 
Rents in the Truckee Meadows remain unstable leaving many families struggling to pay rent as 
housing affordability continues to be an issue.  In FY 2021, RHA began exploring ways that single 
fund flexibility through the MTW Demonstration could be used to assist in the 
acquisition/development of new affordable units, the rehabilitation of newly acquired properties, 
and the preservation and revitalization of existing affordable housing properties.   

Page 98 of 301



Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

Approved Posted for public review and comment on by HUD on August 16November 17, 2023. 
 Page | 58 of 195 

Status/Update 
RHA has plans to utilize this activity for the development of affordable housing units in Washoe 
County.  Use of MTW funding flexibility related to development will be committed through a 
Resolution adopted by RHA’s Board of Commissioners.  

This activity will remain ongoing in FY 2024. 

Planned Changes 
RHA does not anticipate any non-significant or significant changes to this activity.  There are also 
no changes or modifications to the metrics/data collection anticipated during the plan year. 

2021-03:  Partnership to Assist Homeless Youth 

Plan Year Approved, Implemented, and Amended (if applicable) 
This activity was approved and implemented in FY 2021. 

Description 
In FY 2021, RHA partnered with Eddy House, a local 501(c)3 non-profit, that serves as the central 
intake and assessment facility in northern Nevada for homeless youth, ages 12-24.  Recently the 
local non-profit purchased a building that now serves as a resource center during the day and an 
overnight facility.  RHA assists Eddy House with their 24-hour facility by funding up to 43 beds.   

Status/Update 
This activity will remain ongoing in FY 2024. 

Planned Changes 
RHA does not anticipate any non-significant or significant changes to this activity.  There are also 
no changes or modifications to the metrics/data collection anticipated during the plan year. 

2022-01:  Workforce Development Program 

Plan Year Approved, Implemented, and Amended (if applicable) 
This activity was approved and implemented in FY 2022.  It was amended in FY 2023 to allow for 
any adult member of the household to sign a contract to participate. 

Description 
Past successes and failures led staff to revise the agency’s definition of self-sufficiency in FY 2017 
and restructure the FSS program into a Workforce Development Program in FY 2019.  Through 
this restructuring, RHA began to provide a more client focused approach to self-sufficiency. 

Increasing the number of PH residents and HCV participants moving toward the final phase of 
self-sufficiency by directly providing or connecting them to available educational opportunities 
and job trainings that promote economic independence continues to be a main pillar of RHA’s 
Workforce Development Program.  Addressing the need for sustainable employment that 
encourages economic mobility across multiple generations should be an integral part of the 
program’s design.  To achieve this, RHA’s Workforce Development Program began addressing the 
needs of the entire family - from one individual member, to parents, and youth. 

Page 99 of 301



Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

Approved Posted for public review and comment on by HUD on August 16November 17, 2023. 
 Page | 59 of 195 

Status/Update 
By January 1, 2023, 62 participants have signed Contracts of Participation and are actively 
involved in RHA’s WFD program.  In addition, there are 16 on a waitlist until HUD approves 
RHA’s new FSS Action Plan as required under the new FSS rule.  The WFD program is designed 
for motivated participants who are ready to create a concise plan to reach self-sufficiency.  As 
such, each active participant must be interested and have the motivation to work with their 
Workforce Development Coordinator to: 

• Set and attain goals 
• Increase employment skills and/or enroll in higher education classes 
• Attend Workforce Development in-house workshops that focus on soft and hard 

employment skills 
• Conduct job searches and/or attend career fairs 
• Maintain employment 

To assist motivated WFD participants working toward the goals identified in their Individual 
Training and Services Plans (ITSPs), RHA utilized single fund flexibility to implement several 
financial incentives.  This includes providing rent credits based on goal completion and financial 
assistance with some of the most common barriers to self-sufficiency through the establishment of 
a Self-Sufficiency Fund.   

Implementation of this activity also serves as an investment in RHA’s youth.  RHA’s Youth 
Workforce Development Program, or Start Smart, has been designed to assist PH and HCV youth 
in establishing short and long-term educational and career goals.  Benefits of program participation 
are highlighted with each eligible family and include one-on-one mentoring with RHA staff, 
financial credits for workshop participation, job search support, and assistance with financial aid 
and scholarship searches. 

As of January 1, 2023, RHA has 24 youth who are actively participating in Start Smart and 
building their financial incentive credits.  Earned credits will be paid directly to the participating 
youth upon graduation from the Start Smart program.  Furthermore, each graduate will also be 
given the opportunity to apply for one of three one-time scholarships, $10,000 each, to be used 
toward post-secondary plans identified through participation in the program. 

In the coming months, RHA anticipates using single fund flexibility to assist this department on an 
as needed basis.  This may include providing necessary funding to rehab a new office space which 
was recently donated to RHA’s Workforce Development Program by CIRE Equity. 
Recruiting/employing additional Workforce Development staff, providing workshops/training for 
staff, clients and youth who are actively participating in RHA’s Workforce Development Program, 
and covering some expense incurred by partnering agencies who are committed to providing 
additional support to program participants are also activities that may require the use of single fund 
flexibilities. 

This activity will remain ongoing in FY 2024. 

Planned Changes 
RHA does not anticipate any non-significant or significant changes to this activity.  There are also 
no changes or modifications to the metrics/data collection anticipated during the plan year. 

Page 100 of 301



Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

Approved Posted for public review and comment on by HUD on August 16November 17, 2023. 
 Page | 60 of 195 

 Not yet implemented activities 

The activities discussed in this section have previously been approved by HUD, but not yet 
implemented by RHA.  The following table provides an overview of each of the approved MTW 
activities that have not yet been implemented including the year it was identified, the primary 
statutory objective(s) the activity is intended to impact, and the Authorization(s) cited. 
 

MTW activities approved but not yet implemented 
Activity  

# 
Plan Year 
Approved Activity Name Statutory Objective(s) Authorization(s) 

2021-02 2021 STAR Apprenticeship 
Program 

Create incentives for 
families to work, seek work 
or prepare for work. 

Attachment C 
Section C.11 and  
Section D.2.a. 

2021-02:  STAR Apprenticeship Program 

Description 
As Washoe County’s workforce and employers evolve, training and preparation programs are 
becoming necessary to secure several of the higher paying jobs that are available within the region.  
In FY 2021, RHA proposed using single fund flexibility to establish the STAR Apprenticeship 
Program.  This 24-week program will be designed to provide career-connected learning 
opportunities for residents of all ages.  Through the program, PH residents and HCV participants 
will be provided with on-the-job training and related classroom instruction that will serve to 
increase current skill levels.  More importantly, each STAR participant will gain valuable work 
experience within one of RHA’s departments (maintenance, development, finance, etc.) and be 
provided with continuous feedback regarding expectations and overall performance throughout.   

Update/timeline for implementation 
Although this activity was scheduled to begin in January 2021, it is now unclear when this activity 
will be implemented. 

Planned Changes 
RHA does not anticipate any non-significant or significant changes to this activity.  There are also 
no changes or modifications to the metrics/data collection anticipated during the plan year. 

 Activities on hold 

Not applicable. RHA does not have any activities on hold. 

Page 101 of 301



Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

Approved Posted for public review and comment on by HUD on August 16November 17, 2023. 
 Page | 61 of 195 

 Closed Activities 

The activities discussed in this section have previously been approved by HUD but closed by 
RHA.  The following table provides an overview of each of the approved MTW activities that 
have been closed by RHA including the year it was identified and implemented, the primary 
statutory objective(s) the activity was intended to impact, and the Authorization(s) cited. 
 

Closed MTW activities 
Activity 

# 
FY 

Implemented 
FY 

Closed Activity Name Statutory Objective(s) Authorization(s) 

2014-03 2014 2019 Rent Reform Controlled 
Study 

Create incentives for families 
to work, seek work or prepare 
for work and reduce costs and 
achieve greater cost 
effectiveness. 

Attachment C 
Sections D.1.b., 
D.1.c., D.2.a., and 
D.4. 

2014-04 2014 2021 Expand self-sufficiency 
activities 

Create incentives for families 
to work, seek work or prepare 
for work. 

Attachment C 
Section E. 

2014-07 2014 2017 Alternate HQS 
verification policy 

Reduce costs and achieve 
greater cost effectiveness. 

Attachment C 
Section D.5. 

2015-04 2015 2018 

Required Savings Plan 
for Earned Income 
Disallowance (EID) PH 
clients 

Create incentives for families 
to work, seek work or prepare 
for work. 

Attachment C 
Section E. 

2016-03 N/A 2020 
Time limited vouchers 
and redesign of 
traditional FSS Program 

Create incentives for families 
to work, seek work or prepare 
for work and reduce costs and 
achieve greater cost 
effectiveness and increase 
housing choices for low-
income families. 

Attachment C 
Section D.1.b., 
Section D.1.c., 
Section D.2.d., and 
Section E. 
 

Attachment D 
Use of MTW Funds 

2014-03:  Rent Reform Controlled Study 

Plan Year Approved, Implemented, and Closed Out 
This activity was approved and implemented in FY 2014.  It was closed out in FY 2019. 

Reason for close out  
RHA staff considered several factors before reaching a decision to close this activity.  Based on 
current rental market conditions resulting in a decline in RHA’s current HCV lease up figures 
along with the undue stress that a time-limited voucher may cause for the participating family, this 
activity was closed.  Notification was given to all remaining Rent Reform Controlled Study 
participants of RHA’s intent to close the activity at which time all active households were 
transitioned to a regular HCV voucher.  This activity was closed in FY 2019 and is no longer being 
reported on. 

Page 102 of 301



Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

Approved Posted for public review and comment on by HUD on August 16November 17, 2023. 
 Page | 62 of 195 

2014-04:  Expand self-sufficiency activities 

Plan Year Approved, Implemented, and Closed Out 
This activity was approved and implemented in FY 2014.  It was closed out in FY 2021. 

Reason for close out  
RHA recently restructured its entire FSS Program into a Workforce Development Program focused 
on Job placement and job retention for all able-bodied participants in RHA’s housing programs, 
including youth.  As the goal of this activity is to propel households toward the final phase of self-
sufficiency, RHA will no longer refer households with delinquent community service hours to the 
Workforce Development Program.  This fundamental change resulted in this activity, including the 
FSS Lite Program, being closed and replaced with 2022-01: Workforce Development Program. 

2014-07:  Alternate HQS verification policy 

Plan Year Approved, Implemented, and Closed Out 
This activity was approved and implemented in FY 2014.  It was closed out in FY 2017. 

Reason for close out  
As HUD is now allowing for Biennial HQS Inspections through Section 220 of the 2014 
Appropriations Act, this activity was closed out in FY 2017 and is no longer being reported on. 

2015-04:  Required Savings Plan for Earned Income Disallowance (EID) PH clients 

Plan Year Approved, Implemented, and Closed Out 
This activity was approved and implemented in FY 2015.  It was closed out in FY 2018. 

Reason for close out 
RHA received approval through Activity 2016-05 to eliminate the HUD-mandated EID from the 
calculation of rent.  To alleviate the impact that this would have on rent calculations for some PH 
residents and HCV participants, EID participants could keep their benefits for one year following 
plan approval.  After this initial year, all participants will have their EID benefits eliminated upon 
their first annual recertification or immediately following the termination of employment income. 
All participants have been phased off EID.  This activity was closed in FY 2018 and is no longer 
being reported on. 

2016-03:  Time limited vouchers and redesign of traditional FSS Program 

Plan Year Approved, Implemented, and Closed Out 
This activity was approved in FY 2016 but never implemented.  It was closed out in FY 2020. 

Reason for close out  
In FY 2014, RHA began issuing vouchers limited to five years as part of a Rent Reform Controlled 
Study (Activity 2014-03) within the HCV program.  RHA partnered with an outside institution to 
evaluate the continuing effects and changing statuses of families participating in the Rent Reform 
Controlled Study.  The purpose of the evaluation was to properly gauge whether increases in 

Page 103 of 301



Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

Approved Posted for public review and comment on by HUD on August 16November 17, 2023. 
 Page | 63 of 195 

income that do not affect a household’s rent and whether limiting vouchers to five years was 
incentive enough for families to become self-sufficient.  As RHA worked through the lessons 
learned from the Rent Reform Controlled Study and current rental market conditions, staff 
determined that implementation of this activity on all non-elderly/non-disabled HCV participants 
would result in undue stress on participating families.  This activity was closed in FY 2020. 
 

Page 104 of 301



 

 

Page 105 of 301



Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023.Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023. 
 Page | 65 of 195 

V. Planned Application of MTW Funds 

This section includes summary budget information for FY 2024 including planned sources and 
uses for MTW funds.   

 Planned Application of MTW Funds 

i. Estimated Sources of MTW Funds 

The MTW PHA shall provide the estimated sources and amount of MTW funding by Financial 
Data Schedule (FDS) line item.  Following is RHA’s estimated sources and amount of MTW 
funding by FDS line item: 

ESTIMATED SOURCES OF MTW FUNDS 

FDS Line-Item Number FDS Line-Item Name Dollar 
Amount 

70500  
(70300+70400) Total Tenant Revenue $3,113,896 

70600 HUD PHA Operating Grants $23,437,858 
70610 Capital Grants $1,495,961 
70700  
(70710+70720+70730+70740+70750) Total Fee Revenue $0 

71100+72000 Interest Income $363 
71600 Gain or Loss on Sale of Capital Assets $0 
71200+71300+71310+71400+71500 Other Income $288,390 

70000 Total Revenue $28,336,468 
 

ii. Estimated Application of MTW Funds 

The MTW PHA shall provide the estimated application of MTW funding in the plan year by 
Financial Data Schedule (FDS) line item.  Only amounts estimated to be spent during the plan 
year are identified here;  unspent funds that the MTW PHA is not planning during the plan year 
are not included in this section.  Following is RHA’s estimated application of MTW funds by 
FDS line item: 

ESTIMATED APPLICATION OF MTW FUNDS 

FDS Line-Item Number FDS Line-Item Name Dollar 
Amount 

91000  
(91100+91200+91400+91500+91600+91700+91800+91900) Total Operating - Administrative $3,050,751 

91300+91310+92000 Management Fee Expense $1,606,597 
91810 Allocated Overhead $0 
92500  
(92100+92200+92300+92400) Total Tenant Services $339,479 

93000  
(93100+93600+93200+93300+93400+93800) Total Utilities $644,883 

Page 106 of 301



Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023.Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023. 
 Page | 66 of 195 

 
Description of Variance between Estimated Total Revenue and Estimated Total Expenses: 

 
iii. Description of Planned Application of MTW Funding Flexibility 

The MTW PHA shall provide a thorough narrative of planned activities that use only the MTW 
single fund flexibility.  Where possible, the MTW PHA may provide metrics to track the 
outcomes of these programs and/or activities. Activities that use other MTW authorizations in 
Attachment C and/or D of the Standard MTW Agreement (or analogous section in a successor 
MTW Agreement) do not need to be described here, as they are already found in Section (III) or 
Section (IV) of the Annual MTW Plan. The MTW PHA shall also provide a thorough description 
of how it plans to use MTW single fund flexibility to direct funding towards specific housing 
and/or service programs in a way that responds to local needs (that is, at a higher or lower level 
than would be possible without MTW single fund flexibility).

93500+93700 Labor $0 
94000  
(94100+94200+94300+94500) Total Ordinary Maintenance $2,211,691 

95000  
(95100+95200+95300+95500) Total Protective Services $0 

96100  
(96110+96120+96130+96140) Total Insurance Premiums $248,136 

96000  
(96200+96210+96300+96400+96500+96600+96800) Total Other General Expenses $577,747 

96700  
(96710+96720+96730) 

Total Interest Expense & 
Amortization Cost $0 

97100+97200 Total Extraordinary Maintenance $0 
97300+97350 HAP + HAP Portability-In $18,787,722 
97400 Depreciation Expense $1,527,467 
97500+97600+97700+97800 All Other Expense $0 

90000 Total Expenses $28,994,473 

RHA populates the amounts in the preceding table directly from our most recent FDS submission whether 
unaudited or audited.  RHA has not experienced a change in the number of PH units.  RHA has continued to 
experience a change in HAP expense due to an  increase in payment standards.  The increased payment  
standards mean higher HAP payments for clients which is driven by an extremely tight rental market in Washoe 
County.  In FY 2024, RHA intends to increase current HCV lease-up to meet each of the MTW Statutory 
Requirements.   

Page 107 of 301



Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023. 
 Page | 67 of 195 

 

PLANNED APPLICATION OF MTW FUNDING FLEXIBILITY 
In FY 2024, RHA plans to submit an application to begin to reposition its PH properties through Section 18 
Demolition/Disposition, RAD PBV or a RAD PBV/Section 18 Blend.  Through this repositioning, RHA plans to 
utilize MTW single fund flexibility to augment RAD rents, provide relocation services to affected residents, and 
increase replacement reserves at each property converted.  In addition, funding flexibility will be used to 
establish ongoing tenant participation funds for continued Resident Council involvement at sites repositioned 
through Section 18 Demolition/Disposition. 
 
RHA’s Board of Commissioners have identified the expansion of resident services programs as a priority goal 
for the agency in the coming year.  Beyond the Workforce Development Program, RHA will use MTW single 
fund flexibility to provide additional services to the people we serve and expand upon the services offered to all 
residents through this department.  These expanded services will include offerings to RHA’s senior/disabled 
residents, and the activities/programs made available to RHA’s youth. 
 
RHA will continue to use single fund flexibility to pay administrative and operating costs that are not covered by 
the administrative fee in the HCV program or operating subsidy within the PH program. RHA will report these 
expenses in VMS utilizing the MTW Other field at the end of each calendar year.   
 
RHA does not anticipate any additional uses of MTW single fund flexibility other than those found in Section 
(III) or Section (IV) of the Annual MTW Plan. 
 
iv. Planned Application of PHA Unspent Operating Fund and HCV Funding 

The MTW PHA shall provide a description of planned activities and/or use(s) for unexpended 
Operating Fund and HCV Funding.  The original funding source is defined as the legacy MTW 
PHA’s appropriated Section 8 and Section 9 funding source(s) (HCV HAP, HCV Admin Fee, 
and PH Operating Subsidy).  Where possible, please identify the planned use, the estimated 
amount, to which funding source the planned use(s) is attributable, as well as the projected 
timeline or timeline update. 

 

*  Unspent HAP funding should not include amounts recognized as Special Purpose Vouchers reserves. 

**  HUD’s approval of the MTW Plan does not extend to a PHA’s planned usage of unspent funds amount entered as 
an agency’s operating reserve.  Such recording is to ensure agencies are actively monitoring unspent funding 
levels and usage(s) to ensure successful outcomes as per the short- and long-term goals detailed in the Plan. 

Original Funding Source Beginning of FY – Unspent Balances Planned Application of PHA 
Unspent Funds during FY 

HCV HAP*  $19,274,810 $11,073,563 

HCV Admin Fee $0 $0 

PH Operating Subsidy $0 $0 
TOTAL $19,274,810 $11,073,563 

Page 108 of 301



Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023. 
 Page | 68 of 195 

Description 

In FY 2024, RHA plans to develop two properties utilizing the flexibility allowed under Activity 2021-01.  The 
first project is the redevelopment of agency owned property and the second is a new development of land 
acquired using State of Nevada American Rescue Plan funds.  Both projects are anticipated to start mid to late 
2023.   

The redevelopment project, Carville Court Redevelopment, will consist of the demolition of an existing six-unit 
complex (three duplexes) that was purchased by RHA using unrestricted funds in the late 1990’s.  RHA plans to 
redevelop the site to include up to 12 new supportive housing units for individuals experiencing homelessness or 
who are at risk of homelessness.  RHA plans to partner with a local community service agency who is currently 
providing a six-month transitional housing program.  Their program is aimed at stabilizing homeless individuals 
by building life skills and providing medical and mental health stabilization.  RHA’s preliminary budget for this 
redevelopment project is $4.8 million. 

The second project is a new development of 15-units on land acquired utilizing funds awarded to RHA by the 
State of Nevada.  RHA anticipates serving households at this complex whose income is at or below 60% of the 
Area Median Income (AMI).  The preliminary budget for this development project is $6.27 million.   

 
v. Local Asset Management Plan 

a. Is the MTW PHA allocating costs within statute? 
 

b. Is the MTW PHA implementing a local asset management plan (LAMP)? 
 

c. Has the MTW PHA provided a LAMP in the appendix? 
 

d. If the MTW PHA has provided a LAMP in the appendix, please describe any proposed 
changes to the LAMP in the Plan Year or state that the MTW PHA does not plan to make 
any changes in the Plan Year.  

 
 
 

 
 

vi. Rental Assistance Demonstration (RAD) Participation 

a. Description of RAD Participation 
The MTW PHA shall provide a brief description of its participation in RAD. This 
description must include the proposed and/or planned number of units to be converted 
under RAD, under which component the conversion(s) will occur, and approximate 
timing of major milestones. The MTW PHA should also give the planned/actual 
submission dates of all RAD Significant Amendments. Dates of any approved RAD 
Significant Amendments should also be provided.

YES/No 

Yes/NO 

Yes/NO 

N/A 

Page 109 of 301



Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023. 
 Page | 69 of 195 

 
 

 

b. Has the MTW PHA submitted a RAD Significant Amendment in the appendix? A RAD 
Significant Amendment should only be included if it is a new or amended version that 
requires HUD approval. 

 

c. If the MTW PHA has provided a RAD Significant Amendment in the appendix, please 
state whether it is the first RAD Significant Amendment submitted or describe any 
proposed changes from the prior RAD Significant Amendment? 

 
 
 
 

Rental Assistance Demonstration (RAD) Participation 

RHA recently submitted an application for RAD/Section 18 blend for Silverada Manor.  A RAD 
Significant Amendment is included in this plan as the agency prepares to apply to reposition its PH 
sites in the coming year.  

Yes/NO 

This is the first RAD Significant Amendment submitted by RHA. 

Page 110 of 301



 

 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023. 
 Page | 70 of 195 

 

Page 111 of 301



Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023. 
 Page | 71 of 195 

VI. Administrative 

A. Board Resolution and Certifications of Compliance 
Board Resolution 2023-03-03 RH approving the content and submission of the FY 2024 
MTW Annual Plan and the Certifications of Compliance (see Attachment I). 

B. Documentation of Public Process 
• The FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan was discussed at multiple Resident Advisory Board 

and Resident Council meetings beginning in January 2023.  The plan continued to be 
discussed at meetings of the Resident Councils through March 2023.  Resident sign in 
sheets from each of the above-mentioned meetings are available upon request. 

• The FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan is being made available for public review and 
comment on RHA’s website and at RHA’s Administrative Office beginning January 
27, 2023 through March 28, 2023. 

• Proof of Publication Notice (see Attachment II).  The FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan was 
advertised in the Legal Notices section of the Reno Gazette-Journal as follows: 

 

• A public hearing for the FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan was held at 6:00pm on Thursday, 
March 2, 2023.  It was attended only by staff.

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING AND PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD 
 
The Housing Authority of the City of Reno (RHA) is requesting public comments and 
conducting a public hearing on the proposed MTW Annual Plan for Fiscal Year (FY) 
2024 that includes a Rental Assistance Demonstration Program and Section 18 
Repositioning Amendment. 
 
RHA’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan for the period July 1, 2023 - June 30, 2024, is 
available for public review and comment beginning January 27, 2023 through March 28, 
2023, at RHA’s Administrative Office, 1525 E. Ninth St, Reno, NV 89512 or on RHA’s 
website at www.renoha.org. Copies of the FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan may also be 
obtained by contacting Kim Anhalt, MTW Coordinator at (775) 329-3630; TDD (385) 
770-7166 or by email at kanhalt@renoha.org. 
 
The public may provide oral comments by attending the public hearing described below 
and/or submitting written comments during the comment period.  Written comments on 
RHA’s draft FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan can be mailed to the address noted above and 
must be received by close of business on Monday, March 27, 2023.  
 
A public hearing to answer questions and receive comments will be held at 6:00 PM on 
Thursday, March 2, 2023, in Silverada Manor’s Community Room, 1400 Silverada 
Blvd., Reno, NV 89512. 

Page 112 of 301



Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023. 
 Page | 72 of 195 

C. Planned and Ongoing Evaluations 
(see Attachment III) 

D. Rental Assistance Demonstration Program and Section 18 Repositioning 
Plan Amendment covering all required elements for participation in the Rental Assistance 
Demonstration Program and Section 18 Repositioning (see Attachment IV). 

E. Lobbying Disclosures 
Certification of Payments to Influence Federal Transactions and Disclosure of Lobbying 
Activities (see Attachment V). 
 

Page 113 of 301



 

 

 

Page 114 of 301



Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023. 
 Page | 74 of 195 

Attachment I:  Board Resolution and Certifications of Compliance  

Page 115 of 301



Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023. 
 Page | 75 of 195 

  

Page 116 of 301



Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023. 
 Page | 76 of 195 

 

Page 117 of 301



 

 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023. 
 Page | 77 of 195 

 

Page 118 of 301



Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023. 
 Page | 78 of 195 

Attachment II:  Proof of Publication 

Page 119 of 301



 

 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023. 
 Page | 79 of 195 

Page 120 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023. 
 Page | 80 of 195 

Attachment III:  Evaluation of the Demonstration 

Mobility Demonstration Study 
Analyses and Results as of August 30, 2022 

 

The Mobility Demonstration began in 2014 and allows households in public housing to move to PBV single-

family, duplex, or multifamily units in low-poverty neighborhoods. The purpose of this study is to determine 

if a move out of public housing to a low-poverty neighborhood improves outcomes for households with 

children. RHA has partnered with Dr. Rebecca J. Walter at the University of Washington to analyze the data 

and outcomes for the Mobility Demonstration Study.  

 

A within-subject design is used to compare household outcomes over time using administrative and American 

Community Survey (ACS) data (Table 1). Many of the households moved in public housing before the Mobility 

Demonstration Study was initiated and were enrolled in the study when they moved from public housing to 

a PBV unit. The household characteristics, household outcomes, and neighborhood characteristics assessed 

in this study are included in Table 1. The Wilcoxon Rank Sum Test was used instead of the Paired Samples T-

Test since the data violates the assumption of normality, there are outliers in the data, and the sample size 

is small. The 2016 ACS 5-year Estimates were used for the neighborhood characteristics since most 

participants moved from public housing to a PBV unit in 2014. In 2022, a new survey was administered to 

capture additional household outcomes. The survey gathers information about physical and mental health, 

safety, finances and wealth accumulation, employment and education, child well-being, and neighborhood 

and housing preferences. Twenty households have participated in the survey to-date. Descriptive statistics 

are provided for the responses since this is the first year that the new survey was conducted.  

Table 1. Variables 

 Data Source Data Type Statistical Test 

Household Characteristics   

Gender Administrative Categorical  Descriptive Statistics 

Race Administrative Categorical Descriptive Statistics 

Ethnicity Administrative Categorical Descriptive Statistics 

Years in Public Housing Administrative Discrete Descriptive Statistics 

Head of Household Age  Administrative Discrete Descriptive Statistics 

Household Size Administrative Discrete Descriptive Statistics 

Number of Adults in Household Administrative Discrete Descriptive Statistics 

Number of Children in Household Administrative Discrete Descriptive Statistics 

Household Outcome Variables    

Employment Status Administrative Categorical McNemar 

Annual Household Income Administrative Continuous Wilcoxon 

Physical and Mental Health Survey Discrete Descriptive Statistics 

Safety Survey Likert Scale Descriptive Statistics 

Financial Security/Wealth Accumulation Survey Likert Scale Descriptive Statistics 

Employment and Education Survey Likert Scale Descriptive Statistics 

Child Well-being Survey Likert Scale Descriptive Statistics 

Housing and Neighborhood Preferences Survey Rank Order Descriptive Statistics 

    

 

Page 121 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023. 
 Page | 81 of 195 

Neighborhood Characteristics    

Percent high school graduate or higher ACS Continuous Wilcoxon 

Percent bachelor's degree or higher ACS Continuous Wilcoxon 

Unemployment rate ACS Continuous Wilcoxon 

Median household income ACS Continuous Wilcoxon 

Percent of people in poverty ACS Continuous Wilcoxon 

Proportion of vacant housing units ACS Continuous Wilcoxon 

Proportion of single-family homes ACS Continuous Wilcoxon 

Owner occupancy rate ACS Continuous Wilcoxon 

Median home value ACS Continuous Wilcoxon 

Median gross rent ACS Continuous Wilcoxon 

Percent White ACS Continuous Wilcoxon 

Percent Hispanic or Latino ACS Continuous Wilcoxon 
 

Only households that participated in the study for at least one year are included in the study so within-subject 

analyses over time can be conducted. This resulted in 48 households being included in the analyses. 

Households entered and exited the study at different times. There are 21 households that are currently 

enrolled in the study and 27 households that have exited the study (Table 2).  
 

Table 2. Sample Size and Number of Years of Participation in the Study 

Participant Year Count Currently Enrolled Exits 

Year 1 48 2 8 

Year 2 38 2 7 

Year 3 29 2 4 

Year 4 23 3 4 

Year 5 16 2 2 

Year 6 12 0 0 

Year 7 12 4 1 

Year 8 7 6 1 

Total  21 27 
 

Of the 27 exits, over half of the exits from the mobility program have been voluntary self-sufficiency exits 

(Table 3). Within the second year after the move from public housing, some households voluntarily exited 

the program and were able to pay their rent in full on their own, while on the other hand, it took other 

households over six years to reach this point. The sample size is too small to generalize an approximate period 

for how long the average non-elderly and/or non-disabled household needs housing assistance before they 

can afford housing without a subsidy.  
 

Table 3. Reasons for Exiting the Program 

Reason Count Percent 

Deceased 1 4% 

Program/Lease Violation 3 11% 

Transferred to VOO 6 22% 

Voluntarily Left Program  3 11% 

Paying Full Rent/Purchased Home 14 52% 

Total 27 100% 

Page 122 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023. 
 Page | 82 of 195 

Many households in the study are White, non-Hispanic, and female-headed households that are single, 

divorced, or widowed (Table 4). The median number of years that households were in public housing before 

transferring to a PBV unit was four, with the range being from one to seventeen years. The median household 

age is thirty-six with the youngest head of household at the beginning of the study age 23 and oldest 63. The 

median household size is four and ranges from two to nine members (this study is specifically for families 

with children). The median number of adults per household is one while the median number of children is 

two (Table 4).  

 

Table 4. Household Characteristics at Baseline (n=48) 

 Count Percent 

Gender  Male 5 10.4% 

Female 43 89.6% 

Race White 38 79.2% 

Non-White 10 20.8% 

Ethnicity  Hispanic or Latino 17 35.4% 

Non-Hispanic or Latino 31 64.6% 

Marital Status  Married/Cohabitating 12 25.0% 

Single/Divorced/Widowed 36 75.0% 

  Median Range 

Years in Public Housing 4 1 - 17 

Head of Household Age 36 23 - 63 

Household Size 4 2 - 9 

Number of Adults in Household 1 1 - 4 

Number of Children in Household 2 0 - 7 

 

Although more heads of household are typically employed in PBV units compared to their tenure in public 

housing, the only year that there is a statistical difference in employment compared to baseline is Year 2 

(Table 5).  

 

Table 5. Employment Status 

 Baseline 

Unemployed 

Baseline 

Employed 

p-value1 

Year 1 (n=48)    

Unemployed 16 4 0.388 

Employed 8 20  

Year 2 (n=38)    

Unemployed 12 1 0.039* 

Employed 8 17  

Year 3 (n=29)    

Unemployed 9 1 0.070 

Employed 7 12  

Year 4 (n=23)    

Unemployed 5 2 0.109 

Employed 8 8  

    

Page 123 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023. 
 Page | 83 of 195 

Year 5 (n=16) 

Unemployed 4 3 1.000 

Employed 4 5  

Year 6 (n=12)    

Unemployed 6 0 ------2 

Employed 1 5  

Year 7 (n=12)    

Unemployed 4 0 ------2 

Employed 3 5  

Year 8 (n=7)    

Unemployed 2 0 ------2 

Employed 2 3  

* p < 0.05; 1The exact p-value is calculated based on a binomial distribution because there are 25 or fewer 

records in at least one cell. 2No value is reported because each group must have a minimum of one to 

conduct a statistical comparison. 

 

Annual household income is statistically significantly higher from baseline compared to every year recorded 

after baseline (Years 1 through 8) for households that moved from public housing to PBV units (Table 6). The 

median difference at year one was only $3,222 but at year eight is $29,188.  

 

Table 6. Annual Household Income  

 Baseline Median Comparison 

Year Median 

Median 

Difference 

Z 

Annual Household Income     

Year 1 (n=48) $16,125 $19,346 $3,222 -2.757** 

Year 2 (n=38) $14,496 $19,297 $4,801 -3.407** 

Year 3 (n=29) $15,622 $23,081 $7,459 -3.120** 

Year 4 (n=23) $15,853 $23,081 $7,228 -2.616** 

Year 5 (n=16) $16,125 $24,281 $8,157 -1.965* 

Year 6 (n=12) $11,854 $21,463 $9,609 -3.059** 

Year 7 (n=12) $11,854 $32,603 $20,749 -3.059** 

Year 8 (n=6) $15,853 $45,041 $29,188 -2.366* 

* p < 0.05; ** p < .01; *** p < .001 

 

After moving into a PBV unit, most households had either no visits or only one visit to a hospital or emergency 

room for physical health issues over the last year. Visits to a hospital or emergency room for mental health, 

behavioral health or emotional issues was rare with most households having no visits (Table 7). 

 

Page 124 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023. 
 Page | 84 of 195 

Table 7. Physical and Mental Health Outcomes (n=20) 

 Median Range 

Number times in the past year any member in the 

household visited a hospital or emergency clinic for 

physical health problems 1 0-15 

Number times in the past year any member in the 

household visited a hospital or emergency clinic for 

mental health, behavioral health, or emotional problem 0 0-2 

 

The survey asked households to rank the neighborhood amenities that were most and least important to 

them (Table 8). The most important neighborhood attribute is low crime rates. This is followed by close 

proximity to grocery stores and parks and recreation. Respondents also value sidewalks and neighborhoods 

with low population and housing density. 

 

Table 8. Neighborhood Preferences (n=20) 

A neighborhood that has a low crime rate. 

A neighborhood close to grocery stores. 

A walkable neighborhood with sidewalks. 

A neighborhood close to parks and recreation. 

A neighborhood with low population and dispersed housing density. 

A neighborhood that has a lot of diversity in terms of race, age, family type. 

A neighborhood accessible by public transportation. 

A neighborhood with low poverty rates. 

A neighborhood close to restaurants and shopping. 

A neighborhood with job opportunities nearby.  

A neighborhood with a community center and/or community events. 

A neighborhood close to downtown. 

 

The survey asked households to rank the housing and neighborhood amenities most important for their 

children (Table 9). The most important attribute was each child having their own bedroom. Low crime rates 

and being close to the children’s daycare or school is also valued by respondents.  

 

Table 9. Housing and Neighborhood Preferences for Children (n=20) 

Each child has their own bedroom. 

The neighborhood has low crime rates. 

The home is close to my child/children's school/daycare. 

The home is on a quiet street away from heavy traffic. 

The home is near a park or other recreational activities. 

The neighborhood has friendly neighbors that I can count on. 

The neighborhood has good schools/daycares. 

There are other children in the neighborhood living close by. 

The home has a yard that is safe for children to play in. 

 

In the survey, households were asked why they might stay in their current home if they are paying full 

contract rent (Table 10). Respondents were given the option to select one or multiple reasons. The most 

Most Important

Least Important

Most 
Important

Least 
Important

Page 125 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023. 
 Page | 85 of 195 

common reason for households to remain in place is because the rent is affordable, and it is too expensive 

to move somewhere else. Other common reasons include liking the home and neighborhood. Several 

households wanted to remain in place because their current home is either close to their child’s 

school/daycare, work, or family/friends. A few households don’t have time to search for a new place or move. 

Two of the households plan to move as soon as they can pay full contract rent. 

 

Table 10. Reasons for Staying in Current Home (n=20) 

 Frequency 

The rent is affordable. 18 

I like the neighborhood. 17 

I like the home. 16 

It is too expensive to move somewhere else. 16 

I don't want my child/children to go to a different daycare/school. 10 

I am close to work. 9 

I am close to family/friends. 7 

I don’t have time to search for a new place or move. 4 

I plan to move as soon as I can pay the full contract rent. 2 

I am trying to buy a home.  1 

It is quiet here. 1 

 

The survey asked each household to envision their tenure situation in five years (Table 11). The majority 

believe they will own their own home. Less than half of the respondents believe they will still be receiving 

subsidized rent – two of the respondents believe they will still be in the same home receiving subsidized rent 

while one household envisions that they will be in a different home but still receiving a subsidy due to a 

permanent disability. 

 

Table 11. Future Plans (n=10) 

 Frequency Percent 

In the same home with subsidized rent. 2 20% 

In a different home with subsidized rent. 1 10% 

In the same home paying full contract rent. 2 20% 

In a home that you own. 5 50% 

 

For neighborhood characteristics of public housing compared to PBV unit location, there are statistically 

significant differences in all neighborhood characteristics except for the owner occupancy rate. Educational 

attainment, median household income, and median home value are all statistically significantly higher in PBV 

neighborhoods compared to public housing neighborhoods. In the neighborhoods where PBV units are 

located, the poverty rate, unemployment rate, and proportion of vacant housing units are statistically 

significantly lower than the neighborhoods where public housing is located. Additionally, in PBV 

neighborhoods, there are statistically significantly higher proportions of single-family homes and rent rates. 

In the PBV neighborhoods, there is a higher percentage of White households and less Hispanic or Latino 

households than in the public housing neighborhoods (Table 10).  

 

 

Page 126 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023. 
 Page | 86 of 195 

Table 10. Neighborhood Characteristics (n=48) 

 

Public Housing 

Median PBV Median 

Median 

Difference Z 

Percent high school graduate or higher 65.2% 91.2% 26.0% -5.335*** 

Percent bachelor's degree or higher 15.0% 26.2% 11.3% -5.191*** 

Unemployment rate 9.3% 5.3% -4.0% 4.114*** 

Median household income $25,545 $52,008 $26,463 -4.627*** 

Percent of people in poverty 40.1% 12.9% -27.2% 6.032*** 

Proportion of vacant housing units 9.2% 8.4% -0.8% 4.547*** 

Proportion of single-family homes 45.0% 60.9% 15.9% -3.519*** 

Owner occupancy rate 44.8% 53.4% 8.6% -1.600 

Median home value $100,800 $164,450 $63,650 -5.663*** 

Median gross rent $823 $916 $93 -1.985* 

Percent White 68.5% 83.5% 15.0% -4.370*** 

Percent Hispanic or Latino 51.6% 27.1% -24.6% 4.709*** 

* p < 0.05; ** p < .01; *** p < .001 

 

For neighborhoods where PBV units are located compared to the Reno Metropolitan Area, neighborhood 

characteristics throughout Reno are comparable to the neighborhoods where households moved into PBV 

units (Table 11). The only major differences are the unemployment rate and median home value, which are 

both lower in neighborhoods where PBV units are located compared to Reno Metropolitan Area. 

 

Table 11. Neighborhood Characteristics in PBV Neighborhoods Compared to Reno Metro Area (n=48) 

 Reno PBV Units 

Percent high school graduate or higher 87.1% 91.2% 

Percent bachelor's degree or higher 28.9% 26.2% 

Unemployment rate 8.0% 5.3% 

Median Household Income $55,103 $52,008 

Percent of people in poverty 14.9% 12.9% 

Proportion of vacant housing units 10.0% 8.4% 

Proportion of single-family homes 59.9% 60.9% 

Owner occupancy rate 57.1% 53.4% 

Median home value $236,300 $164,450 

Median gross rent $917 $916 

Percent White 84% 83.5% 

Percent Hispanic or Latino 23.4% 27.1% 

 

Page 127 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023.     Page | 87 
of 195 

Most households feel safe in their home, neighborhood, and around their neighbors. The majority also feel safe when their children are playing 

outside in their neighborhood. Most survey respondents even feel safe walking alone in their neighborhood at night. The few households that use 

public transit also consider it to be generally safe. 

Figure 1. Safety 

 
  

Page 128 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023.     Page | 88 
of 195 

Compared to last year, 45% of households report that their household income has increased and 79% of households stated that their basic 

financial needs were met. Most households were able to make all their payments on time over the year, had lower balances on their credit cards 

compared to the previous year, and report having a higher credit score than last year. However, 55% of households report that they were unable 

to save more money than the previous year. Very few households participated in financial education classes or programs. The response regarding 

future income is mixed and only 35% of the households believe that their income will be higher in a year from now.  

Figure 2. Financial Security and Wealth Accumulation 

 
  

Page 129 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023.     Page | 89 
of 195 

Within the last year, although some households have established career development goals that they are working toward, few have enrolled in 

courses or taken advantage of job training opportunities or occupation related certificates. A quarter of the households are actively looking for a 

position that would improve their employment situation. 

Figure 3. Employment and Education 

 
  

Page 130 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023.     Page | 90 
of 195 

Most households responded positively regarding their child’s well-being. Respondents reported being able to help their child learn new skills, 

thought their child’s basic needs were met, saw substantial progress in educational goals, and were able to do things together as a family. Most 

households also reported having a network of friends and family members that supported the social development of their child and that they were 

able to provide the opportunity for their child to participate in after school, athletic, recreational, or religious activities. Childcare needs were met 

for more than half of the households although there are some households that reported this was a challenge.  

Figure 4. Child Well-Being 

 
 
 

Page 131 of 301



 

 

Page 132 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023. 
 Page | 92 of 195 
 

Attachment IV:  
Rental Assistance Demonstration (RAD) & Section 18 Repositioning  

The Housing Authority of the City of Reno will soon be submitting applications to participate in 
RAD, Section 18 Demolition/Disposition or both.  As a result, RHA will soon submit an application 
to convert its Public Housing complexes to Project Based Vouchers and Tenant Protection 
Vouchers (TPV) under the guidelines of PIH Notice 2019-23, REV-4 and any successor notices and 
PIH Notice 2021-07.  Upon conversion to Project Based Vouchers, RHA will adopt the resident 
rights, participation, waiting list and grievance procedures listed Section 1.6 of H 2019-09/PIH 
2019-23, REV-4; and H-2016-17/PIH-2016-17.  These resident rights, participation, waiting list and 
grievance procedures are appended to this Attachment.  Additionally, RHA certifies that it is 
currently compliant with all fair housing and civil rights requirements. 

RAD was designed by HUD to assist in addressing the capital needs of public housing by providing 
RHA with access to private sources of capital to repair and preserve its affordable housing assets.  
Please be aware that upon conversion, the Authority’s Capital Fund Budget will be reduced by the 
pro rata share of Public Housing Developments converted as part of the Demonstration, and that 
RHA may also borrow funds to address their capital needs.  RHA received funding from the State’s 
Home Means Nevada Initiative (HMNI) American Rescue Plan Act for each of the Development 
projects that will be included in the application.  RHA will also apply for low-income tax credits, 
tax-exempt bonds, and other local funds, which combined with RHA funds, will address the capital 
needs.  Regardless of any funding changes that may occur as a result of conversion under RAD or 
some other repositioning tool allowed by HUD, RHA certifies that it will maintain its continued 
service level at the initial baseline number of households for public housing as when it entered the 
MTW Demonstration Program, which is 745 units of Public Housing.  Following a portfolio wide 
repositioning strategy, the agency expects to transition all 745 Public Housing units to either RAD 
PBV or regular PBV units. 

Below please find the specific information related to the Public Housing properties RHA plans to 
convert to the RAD program: 

Development #1:  Hawk View Apartments 
Name of PH 
Development: 
 

Hawk View 
Apartments 

PIC Development ID: 
 
 

NV39P001007 

Conversion Type: 
 

Section 18 Demolition/ 
Disposition or RAD 
PBV/Section 18 Blend 

Transfer of Assistance: 
 

 
No 

Total Units: 
 
 

99 

Pre-RAD Unit Type: 
 
 

Family 

Post-RAD Unit Type: 
 
 

Family 

Capital Fund allocation of 
Development: 
 

TBD – Relocation, replacement 
reserve or other development 
costs will be paid with CF 

Bedroom Type Number of Units  
Pre-Conversion 

Number of Units Post-
Conversion 

Change in Number of Units 
per Bedroom Type and why 

Studio/Efficiency 0 TBD N/A 
One Bedroom 0 TBD N/A 
Two Bedroom 99 At least 99 N/A 
Three Bedroom 0 TBD N/A 
Four Bedroom 0 0 N/A 

Page 133 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023. 
 Page | 93 of 195 
 

Development #2:  Stead Manor 
Name of PH 
Development: 
 

Stead Manor 

PIC Development ID: 
 
 

NV39P001006 

Conversion Type: 
 
 

RAD PBV 

Transfer of Assistance: 
 
 

No 
Total Units: 
 
 

67 

Pre-RAD Unit Type: 
 
 

Family 

Post-RAD Unit Type: 
 
 

Family 

Capital Fund allocation of 
Development: 
 

TBD – Relocation, 
replacement reserve or other 
development costs will be paid 
with CF 

Bedroom Type Number of Units  
Pre-Conversion 

Number of Units Post-
Conversion 

Change in Number of Units 
per Bedroom Type and why 

Studio/Efficiency 0 0 N/A 
One Bedroom 0 0 N/A 
Two Bedroom 44 44 N/A 
Three Bedroom 23 23 N/A 
Four Bedroom 0 0 N/A 

 

Development #3:  Silverada Manor 
Name of PH 
Development: 
 

Silverada Manor 

PIC Development ID: 
 
 

NV39P001003 

Conversion Type: 
 

RAD PBV/Section 18 
Blend 

Transfer of Assistance: 
 
 

No 
Total Units: 
 
 

149 

Pre-RAD Unit Type: 
 
 

Senior 

Post-RAD Unit Type: 
 
 

Senior 

Capital Fund allocation of 
Development: 
 

TBD – Relocation, 
replacement reserve or other 
development costs will be paid 
with CF 

Bedroom Type Number of Units  
Pre-Conversion 

Number of Units Post-
Conversion 

Change in Number of Units 
per Bedroom Type and why 

Studio/Efficiency 22 22 N/A 
One Bedroom 64 64 N/A 
Two Bedroom 63 63 N/A 
Three Bedroom 0 0 N/A 
Four Bedroom 0 0 N/A 

Page 134 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023. 
 Page | 94 of 195 
 

Development #4:  Essex Manor 
Name of PH 
Development: 
 

Essex Manor 

PIC Development ID: 
 
 

NV39P001009 

Conversion Type: 
 
 

RAD PBV 

Transfer of Assistance: 
 
 

No 
Total Units: 
 
 

105 

Pre-RAD Unit Type: 
 
 

Family 

Post-RAD Unit Type: 
 
 

Family 

Capital Fund allocation of 
Development: 
 

TBD – Relocation, 
replacement reserve or other 
development costs will be paid 
with CF 

Bedroom Type Number of Units  
Pre-Conversion 

Number of Units Post-
Conversion 

Change in Number of Units 
per Bedroom Type and why 

Studio/Efficiency 0 0 N/A 
One Bedroom 0 0 N/A 
Two Bedroom 70 70 N/A 
Three Bedroom 35 35 N/A 
Four Bedroom 0 0 N/A 

 
Development #5:  John McGraw Court 

Name of PH 
Development: 
 

John McGraw 
Court 

PIC Development ID: 
 
 

NV39P001018 

Conversion Type: 
 
 

RAD PBV 

Transfer of Assistance: 
 
 

No 

Total Units: 
 
 

34 

Pre-RAD Unit Type: 
 
 

Senior 

Post-RAD Unit Type: 
 
 

Senior 

Capital Fund allocation of 
Development: 
 

TBD – Relocation, 
replacement reserve or other 
development costs will be paid 
with CF 

Bedroom Type Number of Units  
Pre-Conversion 

Number of Units Post-
Conversion 

Change in Number of Units 
per Bedroom Type and why 

Studio/Efficiency 0 0 N/A 
One Bedroom 34 34 N/A 
Two Bedroom 0 0 N/A 
Three Bedroom 0 0 N/A 
Four Bedroom 0 0 N/A 

 

Page 135 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023. 
 Page | 95 of 195 
 

Development #6:  Mineral Manor 
Name of PH 
Development: 
 

Mineral Manor 

PIC Development ID: 
 
 

NV39P001001 

Conversion Type: 
 

Section 18 Demolition/ 
Disposition or RAD 
PBV/Section 18 Blend 

Transfer of Assistance: 
 
 

No 

Total Units: 
 
 

144 

Pre-RAD Unit Type: 
 
 

Family 

Post-RAD Unit Type: 
 
 

Family 

Capital Fund allocation of 
Development: 
 

TBD – Relocation, 
replacement reserve or other 
development costs will be paid 
with CF 

Bedroom Type Number of Units  
Pre-Conversion 

Number of Units Post-
Conversion 

Change in Number of Units 
per Bedroom Type and why 

Studio/Efficiency 0 TBD N/A 
One Bedroom 35 At least 35 N/A 
Two Bedroom 52 At least 52 N/A 
Three Bedroom 43 At least 43 N/A 
Four Bedroom 14 At least 14 N/A 

 
Development #7:  Tom Sawyer Village 

Name of PH 
Development: 
 

Tom Sawyer 
Village 

PIC Development ID: 
 
 

NV39P001002 

Conversion Type: 
 

Section 18 Demolition/ 
Disposition or RAD 
PBV/Section 18 Blend 

Transfer of Assistance: 
 
 

No 

Total Units: 
 
 

100 

Pre-RAD Unit Type: 
 
 

Senior/Disabled 

Post-RAD Unit Type: 
 
 

Senior/Disabled 

Capital Fund allocation of 
Development: 
 

TBD – Relocation, 
replacement reserve or other 
development costs will be paid 
with CF 

Bedroom Type Number of Units  
Pre-Conversion 

Number of Units Post-
Conversion 

Change in Number of Units 
per Bedroom Type and why 

Studio/Efficiency 24 At least 24 N/A 
One Bedroom 50 At least 50 N/A 
Two Bedroom 26 At least 26 N/A 
Three Bedroom 0 0 N/A 
Four Bedroom 0 0 N/A 

 

Page 136 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023. 
 Page | 96 of 195 
 

Development #8:  Myra Birch Manor 
Name of PH 
Development: 
 

Myra Birch 
Manor 

PIC Development ID: 
 
 

NV39P001010 

Conversion Type: 
 
 

RAD PBV 

Transfer of Assistance: 
 
 

No 

Total Units: 
 
 

56 

Pre-RAD Unit Type: 
 
 

Family 

Post-RAD Unit Type: 
 
 

Family 

Capital Fund allocation of 
Development: 
 

TBD – Relocation, 
replacement reserve or other 
development costs will be paid 
with CF 

Bedroom Type Number of Units  
Pre-Conversion 

Number of Units Post-
Conversion 

Change in Number of Units 
per Bedroom Type and why 

Studio/Efficiency 0 0 N/A 
One Bedroom 0 0 N/A 
Two Bedroom 56 56 N/A 
Three Bedroom 0 0 N/A 
Four Bedroom 0 0 N/A 

 
Over time, RHA intends to reposition all eight of its Public Housing sites.  Staff is still determining 
the Scope of Work for each of the projects noted.  As a result, RHA’s Relocation Plan is not 
available with this RAD Amendment.  RHA is currently working to procure a relocation firm who 
will help draft the Relocation Plan and assist with relocation activities of tenants being temporarily 
displaced due to conversion.  The Relocation Plan will be written based on HUD recommendations 
and adhere to the requirements set forth in H-2016-17/PIH-2016-17.  The Plan will describe the 
procedures that RHA intends to follow to assist each family at the sites undergoing a conversion 
where relocation is applicable. 
 
Resident Rights, Participation, Waiting List and Grievance Procedures 
Section 1.6 Special Provisions Affecting Conversions to Project Based Vouchers from PIH Notice 
2019-23, REV-4. 
 
1. No Rescreening of Tenants upon Conversion.  Pursuant to the RAD Statute, at conversion, 

current households cannot be excluded from occupancy at the Covered Project based on any 
rescreening, income eligibility, or income targeting.  With respect to occupancy in the Covered 
Project, current households in the Converting Project will be grandfathered for application of 
any eligibility requirements for actions that occur after conversion.9  Post-conversion, the tenure 
of all residents of the Covered Project is protected pursuant to PBV requirements regarding 
continued occupancy unless explicitly modified in this Notice.  Thus, Section 8(o)(4) of the 
1937 Act and 24 CFR § 982.201, concerning eligibility and targeting of tenants for initial 
occupancy, will not apply for current households.  Once the grandfathered household moves 
out, the unit must be leased to an eligible family.  MTW agencies may not alter this 
requirement. 
 

 
 
9  These protections also apply when a household is relocated to facilitate new construction or repairs following 

conversion and subsequently returns to the Covered Project. 

Page 137 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023. 
 Page | 97 of 195 
 

2. Right to Return.  Any resident that may need to be temporarily relocated to facilitate 
rehabilitation or construction has a right to return to an assisted unit at the Covered Project once 
rehabilitation or construction is completed.  Permanent involuntary displacement of residents 
may not occur as a result of a project’s conversion of assistance, including, but not limited to, as 
a result of a change in bedroom distribution, a de minimis reduction of units, the reconfiguration 
of efficiency apartments, or the repurposing of dwelling units in order to facilitate social service 
delivery.  Where the transfer of assistance to a new site is warranted and approved, residents of 
the Converting Project will have the right to reside in an assisted unit at the new site once 
rehabilitation or construction is complete. 

 
3. Phase in of Tenant Rent Increases.  If, purely as a result of conversion, the amount a tenant 

would pay for rent and utilities under the PBV program (the tenant’s TTP) would increase the 
tenant’s TTP by more than the greater of 10 percent or $25, the rent increase will be phased in 
over 3 or 5 years.  To implement this provision, HUD is specifying alternative requirements for 
section 3(a)(1) of the Act, as well as 24 CFR § 983.3 (definition of “total tenant payment” 
(TTP)) to the extent necessary to allow for the phase -in of tenant rent increases.  A PHA must 
create a policy setting the length of the phase-in period at three years, five years or a 
combination depending on circumstances and must communicate such policy in writing to 
affected residents.   For example, a PHA may create a policy that uses a three-year phase-in for 
smaller increases and a five-year phase in for larger increases in rent.  This policy must be in 
place at conversion and may not be modified after conversion. 

 
The method described below explains the set percentage-based phase in the owner must follow 
according to the phase-in period established.  For purposes of this section “Calculated PBV 
TTP” refers to the TTP calculated in accordance with regulations at 24 CFR § 5.628 and the 
“most recently paid TTP” refers to the TTP recorded on line 9j of the family’s most recent HUD 
Form 50058.  If a family in a project converting from Public Housing to PBV was paying a flat 
rent immediately prior to conversion, the PHA should use the flat rent amount to calculate the 
phase-in amount for Year 1, as illustrated below. 
 
Three Year Phase-In: 

• Year 1:  Any recertification (interim or annual) performed prior to the second annual 
recertification after conversion – 33% of difference between most recently paid TTP 
or flat rent and the Calculated PBV TTP 

• Year 2: Year 2 Annual Recertification (AR) and any Interim Recertification (IR) 
prior to Year 3 AR – 50% of difference between most recently paid TTP and the 
Calculated PBV TTP 

• Year 3: Year 3 AR and all subsequent recertifications – Full Contract PBV TTP 
 

Five Year Phase-In: 

• Year 1: Any recertification (interim or annual) performed prior to the second annual 
recertification after conversion – 20% of difference between most recently paid TTP 
or flat rent and the Calculated PBV TTP 

• Year 2: Year 2 AR and any IR prior to Year 3 AR – 25% of difference between most 
recently paid TTP and the Calculated PBV TTP 

Page 138 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023. 
 Page | 98 of 195 
 

• Year 3: Year 3 AR and any IR prior to Year 4 AR – 33% of difference between most 
recently paid TTP and the Calculated PBV TTP 

• Year 4: Year 4 AR and any IR prior to Year 5 AR – 50% of difference  between 
most recently paid TTP and the Calculated PBV TTP 

• Year 5 AR and all subsequent recertifications – Full Calculated PBV TTP 
 

Please Note: In either the three-year phase-in or the five-year phase-in, once the Calculated 
PBV TTP is equal to or less than the previous TTP, the phase in ends and tenants will pay full 
TTP from that point forward.  MTW agencies must also implement a three or five-year phase-in 
for impacted residents but may alter the terms above as long as it establishes a written policy 
setting forth the alternative terms. 

 
4. Family Self Sufficiency (FSS) and Resident Opportunities and Self Sufficiency Service 

Coordinator (ROSS-SC) programs.  Public Housing residents that are currently FSS 
participants will continue to participate in the PHA’s FSS program.  The PHA may continue to 
use any FSS funds already awarded to serve those FSS participants who live in units converted 
by RAD.  At the completion of the FSS grant, PHAs should follow the normal closeout 
procedures outlined in the grant agreement.  If the PHA continue to run an FSS program that 
serves PH and/or HCV participants, the PHA will continue to be eligible (subject to NOFA 
requirements) to apply for FSS funding.  Due to the program merger between PH FSS and HCV 
FSS that took place pursuant to the FY14 Appropriations Act (and was continued in the 
subsequent Appropriation Acts), no special provisions are required to continue serving FSS 
participants that live in public housing units converting to PBV under RAD. 

 
However, PHAs should note that until provisions of the Economic Growth, Regulatory Relief, 
and Consumer Protection Act are implemented, there are certain FSS requirements (e.g., escrow 
calculation and escrow forfeitures) that apply differently depending on whether the FSS 
participant is a participant under the HCV program or a public housing resident, and PHAs must 
follow such requirements accordingly.  All PHAs will be required to administer the FSS 
program in accordance with FSS regulations at 24 CFR part 984, the participants’ contracts of 
participation, and the alternative requirements established in the “Waivers and Alternative 
Requirements for the FSS Program” Federal Register notice, published on December 29, 2014, 
at 79 FR 78100.  Further, upon conversion to PBV, if the PHA no longer has a public housing 
program, funds already escrowed for FSS participants shall be transferred into the HCV escrow 
account and be considered TBRA funds, thus reverting to the HAP account if forfeited by the 
FSS participant.  
 

5.  Resident Participation and Funding.  In accordance with Attachment 1B, residents of 
Covered Projects with assistance converted to PBV will have the right to establish and operate a 
resident organization for the purpose of addressing issues related to their living environment and 
be eligible for resident participation funding. 

 
6. Resident Procedural Rights.  The following items must be incorporated into both the Section 8 

Administrative Plan and the owner’s lease, which includes the required tenancy addendum, as 
appropriate.  Evidence of such incorporation may be requested by HUD for purposes of 
monitoring the program. 

Page 139 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023. 
 Page | 99 of 195 
 

a. Termination Notification.  HUD is incorporating additional termination notification 
requirements to comply with section 6 of the Act for public housing projects that 
convert assistance under RAD.  In addition to the regulations at 24 CFR § 983.257 
related to Owner termination of tenancy and eviction (which MTW agencies may not 
alter), the termination procedure for RAD conversions to PBV will require that 
PHAs provide adequate written notice of termination of the lease which shall be: 
i. A reasonable period of time, but not to exceed 30 days: 

1. If the health or safety of other tenants, owner employees, or persons residing 
in the immediate vicinity of the premises is threatened; or 

2. In the event of any drug-related or violent criminal activity or any felony 
conviction; 

ii. Not less than 14 days in the case of nonpayment of rent; and 
iii. Not less than 30 days in any other cases, except that if a state or local law 

provides for a shorter period of time, such shorter period shall apply. 
b. Grievance Process.  Pursuant to requirements in the RAD Statute, HUD is 

establishing additional resident procedural rights to comply with section 6 of the Act. 
For the termination of assistance and several other PHA determinations, PBV 
program rules require the PHA to provide an opportunity for an informal hearing, as 
outlined in 24 CFR § 982.555.  RAD will specify alternative requirements for 24 
CFR § 982.555(b) in part, which outlines when informal hearings are not required, to 
require that: 
i. In addition to reasons that require an opportunity for an informal hearing given in 

24 CFR § 982.555 (a)(1)(i)-(v), an opportunity for an informal hearing must be 
given to residents for any dispute that a resident may have with respect to an 
Owner’s action in accordance with the individual’s lease or the contract 
administrator in accordance with RAD PBV requirements that adversely affect 
the resident’s rights, obligations, welfare, or status. 
1. For any hearing required under 24 CFR § 982.555(a)(1)(i)-(v), the contract 

administrator will perform the hearing, as is the current standard in the 
program.  The hearing officer must be selected in accordance with 24 CFR § 
982.555(e)(4)(i). 

2. For any additional hearings required under RAD, the Owner will perform the 
hearing. 

ii. There is no right to an informal hearing for class grievances or to disputes 
between residents not involving the Owner or Contract Administrator. 

iii. The Owner gives residents notice of their ability to request an informal hearing 
as outlined in 24 CFR § 982.555(c)(1) for informal hearings that will address 
circumstances that fall outside of the scope of 24 CFR § 982.555(a)(1)(i)-(vi). 

iv. The Owner provides opportunity for an informal hearing before an eviction. 
Current PBV program rules require that hearing procedures must be outlined n the 
PHA’s Section 8 Administrative Plan. 

Page 140 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023. 
 Page | 100 of 195 
 

7. Earned Income Disregard (EID).  Tenants who are employed and are currently receiving 
the EID exclusion at the time of conversion will continue to receive the EID after 
conversion, in accordance with regulations at 24 CFR § 5.617.  Upon the expiration of the 
EID for such families, the rent adjustment shall not be subject to rent phase-in, as described 
in Section 1.6.C.4; instead, the rent will automatically rise to the appropriate rent level based 
upon the tenant income at that time. 

Under the Housing Choice Voucher program, the EID exclusion is limited only to persons 
with disabilities (24 CFR § 5.617(b)).  In order to allow all tenants (including non-disabled 
persons) who are employed and  currently receiving the EID at the time of conversion to 
continue to benefit from this exclusion in the PBV project, the provision in 24 CFR § 
5.617(b) limiting EID to disabled persons is waived.  The waiver, and resulting alternative 
requirement, apply only to tenants receiving the EID at the time of conversion.   No other 
tenant (e.g., tenants that move into the property following conversion or tenants who at one 
time received the EID but are no receiving the EID exclusion at the time of conversion due 
to loss of employment) is covered by this waiver. 
 

8. Jobs Plus.  N/A 

9. When Total Tenant Payment Exceeds Gross Rent.  Under normal PBV rules, the PHA 
may select an occupied unit to be included under the PBV HAP Contract only if the unit’s 
occupants are eligible for housing assistance payments  (24 CFR § 983.53(c)).  Also, a PHA 
must remove a unit from the contract when no assistance has been paid for 180 days because 
the family’s TTP has risen to a level that is equal to or greater than the contract rent, plus 
any utility allowance, for the unit (i.e., the Gross Rent) (24 CFR § 983.258).  Since the rent 
limitation under this Section of the Notice may result in a family’s TTP equaling or 
exceeding the gross rent for the unit, for residents living in the Converting Project prior to 
conversion and who will return to the Covered Project after conversion, HUD is waiving 
both of these provisions and requiring that the unit for such families be placed on and/or 
remain under the HAP contract when TTP equals or exceeds the Gross Rent.  Further, HUD 
is establishing the alternative requirement that until such time that the family’s TTP falls 
below the gross rent, the rent to the owner for the unit will equal the lesser of (a) the 
family’s TTP, less the Utility Allowance, or (b) any applicable maximum rent under LIHTC 
regulations.  During any period when the family’s TTP falls below the gross rent, normal 
PBV rules shall apply.  As necessary to implement this alternative provision, HUD is 
waiving the provisions of Section 8(o)(13)(H) of the Act and the implementing regulations 
at 24 CFR § 983.301 as modified by Section 1.6.B.5 of this Notice.  In such cases, the 
resident is considered a participant under the program and all of the family obligations and 
protections under RAD and PBV apply to the resident.  Likewise, all requirements with 
respect to the unit, such as compliance with the HQS requirements, apply as long as the unit 
is under HAP Contract.  The PHA is required to process these individuals through the Form 
50058 submodule in PIC. 

Unless a waiver is requested and approved as described below, any new admission to the 
Covered Project must meet the eligibility requirements at 982.201 and require a subsidy 
payment at admission to the program, which means their TTP may not equal or exceed the 
gross rent for the unit at that time.  Further, a PHA must remove a unit from the contract 
when no assistance has been paid for 180 days.  If units are removed from the HAP contract 

Page 141 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023. 
 Page | 101 of 195 
 

because a new admission’s TTP comes to equal or exceed the gross rent for the unit and if 
the project is fully assisted, HUD is imposing an alternative requirement that the PHA must 
reinstate the unit after the family has left the property.  If the project is partially assisted, the 
PHA may substitute a different unit for the unit on the HAP contract in accordance with 24 
CFR § 983.207 or, where “floating units have been permitted, Section 1.6.B.10 of the 
Notice. 

A PHA may request a waiver from HUD for the Covered Project in order to admit otherwise 
eligible families whose TTP exceeds gross rent and to allow the units those families occupy 
to remain under the HAP contract even if the PHA has not made a housing assistance 
payment for a family in 180 days. 

For a Covered Project that consists of 100 percent RAD PBV units, the PHA must 
demonstrate that a waiver is necessary in order to avoid an undue concentration of poverty at 
the Covered Project. A PHA may evidence this by providing data showing, for example: 

• how eligible income-certified applicants on the waiting list must be passed over 
because their incomes result in zero HAP at admission causing a higher 
concentration of poverty at the covered project; or  

• how the income of newly admitted families is causing a markedly higher 
concentration of poverty than the PHA’s non-RAD PBV projects.  

The resulting impact on the property must be compared with the concentration of poverty at 
non-RAD PBV projects in the PHA’s jurisdiction. If there are no non-RAD PBV projects in 
the PHA’s jurisdiction, the PHA may alternatively demonstrate that the median income of 
families that could be admitted to the Covered Project is significantly lower than the median 
income of new admissions from the waiting list to the PHA’s HCV program since the time 
of the RAD conversion.  

For any other Covered Project, the PHA must demonstrate that the property contains 
specific units (e.g., units suitable for large families or accessible units) for which there are 
insufficient alternative housing opportunities. 

If the waiver is approved, the new admission[s] families covered under the waiver are 
participants under the program and all of the family obligations and protections under RAD 
and PBV apply to the family, and the unit is subject to all program requirements. Such 
waiver requests should be submitted to the PIH Field Office in accordance with Notice PIH 
2018-16. 

10. Under-Occupied Unit.  If a family is in an under-occupied unit under 24 CFR § 983.260 at 
the time of conversion, the family may remain in this unit until an appropriate-sized unit 
becomes available in the Covered Project. When an appropriate sized unit becomes available 
in the Covered Project, the family living in the under-occupied unit must move to the 
appropriate-sized unit within a reasonable period of time, as determined by the 
administering Voucher Agency. In order to allow the family to remain in the under-occupied 
unit until an appropriate-sized unit becomes available in the Covered Project, 24 CFR § 
983.260 is waived for current residents remaining or returning to the Covered Project. MTW 
agencies may not modify this requirement. 

Page 142 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023. 
 Page | 102 of 195 
 

 
PBV:  Other Miscellaneous Provisions 

1.  Access to Records, Including Requests for Information Related to Evaluation of 
Demonstration.  PHAs and the Owner must cooperate with any reasonable HUD request 
for data to support program evaluation, including but not limited to project financial 
statements, operating data, Choice-Mobility utilization, and rehabilitation work. Please see 
Appendix IV for reporting units in Form HUD-50058.  

2.  Ongoing PHA Board Review of Operating Budget.  The Owner must submit to the 
administering PHA’s Board the operating budget for the Covered Project annually. The 
PHA’s Board must confirm that the Owner is making deposits into the Reserve for 
Replacement account in accordance with the RCC as well as assess the financial health of 
the Covered Project. 

3.  Davis-Bacon Act and Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968 
(Section 3).  These sections have been moved to 1.4.A.13 and 1.4.A.14.  

4.  Establishment of Waiting List. 24 CFR § 983.251 sets out PBV program requirements 
related to establishing and maintaining a voucher-wide, PBV program-wide, or site-based 
waiting list from which residents for the Covered Project will be admitted. These provisions 
shall apply unless the project is covered by a remedial order or agreement that specifies the 
type of waiting list and other waiting list policies. The PHA shall consider the best means to 
transition applicants from the current public housing waiting list, including:  

a.  Transferring an existing site-based waiting list to a new site-based waiting list.  
b.  Transferring an existing site-based waiting list to a PBV program-wide or HCV 

program-wide waiting list.  
c. Transferring an existing community-wide public housing waiting list to a PBV 

program-wide or HCV program-wide waiting list, an option particularly relevant for 
PHAs converting their entire portfolio under RAD.  

d. Informing applicants on a community-wide public housing waiting list how to 
transfer their application to one or more newly created site-based waiting lists.  

For any applicants on the public housing waiting list that are likely to be ineligible for 
admission to a Covered Project converting to PBV because the household’s TTP is likely to 
exceed the RAD gross rent, the PHA shall consider transferring such household, consistent 
with program requirements for administration of waiting lists, to the PHA’s remaining 
public housing waiting list(s) or to another voucher waiting list, in addition to transferring 
such household to the waiting list for the Covered Project.  

To the extent any wait list relies on the date and time of application, the applicants shall 
have priority on the wait list(s) to which their application was transferred in accordance with 
the date and time of their application to the original waiting list.  

If the PHA is transferring assistance to another neighborhood and, as a result of the transfer 
of the waiting list, the applicant would only be eligible for a unit in a location which is 

Page 143 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023. 
 Page | 103 of 195 
 

materially different from the location to which the applicant applied, the PHA must notify 
applicants on the waiting list of the transfer of assistance, and on how they can apply for 
residency at other sites.  

If using a site-based waiting list, PHAs shall establish a waiting list in accordance with 24 
CFR § 903.7(b)(2)(ii)-(iv) to ensure that applicants on the PHA’s public housing 
community-wide waiting list have been offered placement on the Covered Project’s initial 
waiting list. In all cases, PHAs have the discretion to determine the most appropriate means 
of informing applicants on the public housing community-wide waiting list given the 
number of applicants, PHA resources, and admissions requirements of the projects being 
converted under RAD. A PHA may consider contacting every applicant on the public 
housing waiting list via direct mailing; advertising the availability of housing to the 
population that is less likely to apply, both minority and non-minority groups, through 
various forms of media (e.g., radio stations, posters, newspapers) within the marketing area; 
informing local non-profit entities and advocacy groups (e.g., disability rights groups); and 
conducting other outreach as appropriate. Any activities to contact applicants on the public 
housing waiting list must be conducted in accordance with the requirements for effective 
communication with persons with disabilities at 24 CFR § 8.6 and with the obligation to 
provide meaningful access for persons with limited English proficiency (LEP). 

When using a site-based waiting list, PHAs should consider waiting list and transfer policies 
that expand opportunities for tenants seeking an emergency transfer under, or consistent 
with, the PHA’s Emergency Transfer Plan. This includes allowing for easier moves between 
assisted properties.  

To implement this provision, HUD is specifying alternative requirements for 24 CFR § 
983.251(c)(2). However, after the initial waiting list has been established, the PHA shall 
administer its waiting list for the Covered Project in accordance with 24 CFR § 983.251(c).  

A PHA must maintain any site-based waiting list in accordance with all applicable civil 
rights and fair housing laws and regulations.  

5.  Mandatory Insurance Coverage.  The Covered Project shall maintain at all times 
commercially available property and liability insurance to protect the project from financial 
loss and, to the extent insurance proceeds permit, promptly restore, reconstruct, and/or repair 
any damaged or destroyed project property.  

6.  Future Refinancing.  Owners must receive HUD approval for any refinancing or 
restructuring of secured debt during the HAP Contract term to ensure the financing is 
consistent with long-term preservation of the Covered Project. With respect to any financing 
contemplated at the time of conversion (including any permanent financing which is a 
conversion or take-out of construction financing), such consent may be evidenced through 
the RCC but HUD review of liens must be performed prior to execution.  

7.  Administrative Fees for Public Housing Conversions During the Year of Conversion. 
For the remainder of the Calendar Year in which the HAP Contract becomes effective (i.e., 
the “year of conversion”), RAD PBV projects will be funded with public housing funds. For 
example, if the project’s assistance converts effective July 1, 2015, the public housing ACC 
between the PHA and HUD will be amended to reflect the number of units under HAP 

Page 144 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023. 
 Page | 104 of 195 
 

Contract, but will be for zero dollars, and the RAD PBV HAP Contract will be funded with 
public housing money for July through December 2015. Since TBRA is not the source of 
funds, PHAs should not report leasing and expenses into VMS during this period, and PHAs 
will not receive section 8 administrative fee funding for converted units during this time.  

PHAs operating an HCV program typically receive administrative fees for units under a 
HAP Contract, consistent with recent appropriation act references to “section 8(q) of the 
[United States Housing Act of 1937] and related appropriations act provisions in effect 
immediately before the Quality Housing and Work Responsibility Act of 1998” and 24 CFR 
§ 982.152(b). During the year of conversion mentioned in the preceding paragraph, these 
provisions are waived. PHAs will not receive Section 8 administrative fees for PBV RAD 
units during the year of conversion.  

After the year of conversion, the Section 8 ACC will be amended to include Section 8 
funding that corresponds to the units covered by the Section 8 ACC. At that time, the regular 
Section 8 administrative fee funding provisions will apply.  

8.  Choice-Mobility. One of the key features of the PBV program is the mobility component, 
which provides that if the family has elected to terminate the assisted lease at any time after 
the first year of occupancy in accordance with program requirements, the PHA must offer 
the family the opportunity for continued tenant-based rental assistance, in the form of either 
assistance under the voucher program or other comparable tenant-based rental assistance.  

If as a result of participation in RAD a significant percentage of the PHA’s HCV program 
becomes PBV assistance, it is possible for most or all of a PHA’s turnover vouchers to be 
used to assist those RAD PBV families who wish to exercise mobility. While HUD is 
committed to ensuring mobility remains a cornerstone of RAD policy, HUD recognizes that 
it remains important for the PHA to still be able to use tenant-based vouchers to address the 
specific housing needs and priorities of the community. Therefore, HUD is establishing the 
following alternative requirement for PHAs where, as a result of RAD, the total number of 
PBV units (including RAD PBV units) under HAP Contract administered by the PHA 
exceeds 20 percent of the PHA’s authorized units under its HCV ACC with HUD: The 
alternative mobility policy provides that an eligible voucher agency would not be required to 
provide more than three-quarters of its turnover vouchers in any single year to the residents 
of Covered Projects. While a voucher agency is not required to establish a voucher inventory 
turnover cap, if such a cap is implemented, the voucher agency must create and maintain a 
waiting list in the order in which the requests from eligible households were received. In 
order to adopt this provision, this alternative mobility policy must be included in an eligible 
PHA’s administrative plan.  

To effectuate this provision, HUD is providing an alternative requirement to Section 
8(o)(13)(E) of the Act and 24 CFR § 983.261(c). Please note that this alternative 
requirement does not apply to PBVs entered into outside of the context of RAD . MTW 
agencies may not alter this requirement.  

9.  Reserve for Replacement. The Owner shall establish and maintain a replacement reserve in 
an interest-bearing account to aid in funding extraordinary maintenance and repair and 
replacement of capital items in accordance with applicable regulations. The reserve must be 
built up to and maintained at a level determined by HUD to be sufficient to meet projected 

Page 145 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023. 
 Page | 105 of 195 
 

requirements. For FHA transactions, Replacement Reserves shall be maintained in 
accordance with the FHA Regulatory Agreement. For all other transactions, Replacement 
Reserves shall be maintained in a bank account or similar instrument, as approved by HUD, 
where funds will be held by the Owner or mortgagee and may be drawn from the reserve 
account and used subject to HUD guidelines.  

10. Initial Certifications and Tenant Rent Calculations. The Contract Administrator uses the 
family’s public housing tenant rent (reflected on line 10f of the family’s most recent HUD 
Form 50058) at the date of the conversion to calculate the PBV HAP and tenant rent until 
the effective date of the earlier of the family’s first regular or interim recertification 
following the date of conversion. At the earlier of the family’s first regular or interim 
recertification, the Contract Administrator will use the family’s TTP based on the 
recertification and the HCV utility allowance (or the PBV site-specific utility allowance, if 
applicable) to determine the PBV HAP and tenant rent. This means that the family pays the 
same tenant rent as the family was paying under the public housing program until the earlier 
of first regular or interim reexamination following conversion, at which point the normally 
applicable PBV calculation for the tenant rent becomes effective. (Under the PBV program, 
the monthly HAP is the rent to owner minus the tenant rent, and the tenant rent is the family 
TTP minus the utility allowance.)  

Significant Amendment Definition 

As part of the Rental Assistance Demonstration (RAD), RHA is redefining the definition of a 
substantial deviation from the PHA Plan to exclude the following RAD-specific items: 

a. The decision to convert to Project Based Rental Assistance or Project Based Voucher 
Assistance; 

b. Changes to the Capital Fund Budget produced as a result of each approved RAD 
Conversion, regardless of whether the proposed conversion will include use of additional 
Capital Funds; 

c. Changes to the construction and rehabilitation plan for each approved RAD conversion; 
and 

d. Changes to the financing structure for each approved RAD conversion.

Page 146 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023. 
 Page | 106 of 195 
 

 
 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT 
Office of Public and Indian Housing  

Office of Housing 
 
 

Special Attention of: 
Public Housing Agencies 
Public Housing Hub Office Directors 
Public Housing Program Center Directors 
Multifamily HUB Directors 
Multifamily Program Center Directors 
Regional and Field Office Directors 
Regional Administrators 
Performance Based Contract Administrators 
RAD Transaction Managers 
Regional Relocation Specialists 

Notice        H 2016-17 
                   PIH 2016-17 (HA) 
 
Issued:      November 10, 2016 

 
Effective: November 10, 2016 

 
Expires: This Notice remains in effect until     

amended, superseded, or rescinded 
 
Supplements: 
                   PIH Notice 2012-32 (HA) REV-2 
 
Supersedes: 
                  H 2014-09/PIH 2014-17 

 
 
 

SUBJECT: Rental Assistance Demonstration (RAD) Notice Regarding Fair Housing and Civil 
Rights Requirements and Relocation Requirements Applicable to RAD First Component –  
Public Housing Conversions.1 

 
SECTION 1. Purpose, Applicability and Major Provisions of this Notice 
 
1.1. Purpose 
 
This notice (Notice) provides PHAs,2 Project Owners, and their RAD development partners with 
guidance regarding key fair housing and civil rights statutory and regulatory requirements, 
explains the situations in which HUD is requiring front-end fair housing and civil rights reviews, 
and provides information regarding the types of information that must be submitted to facilitate 
HUD’s review of certain fair housing and civil rights requirements in connection with public 
housing conversions under the First Component of RAD. This Notice also includes guidance 
 
 
1 While this Notice addresses fair housing and civil rights requirements and relocation requirements, the fair housing and 
civil rights requirements are not limited to relocation issues. 
2 Consistent with PIH Notice 2012-32 (HA) REV-2 (PIH 2012-32 (HA) REV-2) (the “RAD Notice”), this Notice uses 
the term “PHA” to refer to the owner of the project prior to the RAD conversion and “Project Owner” to refer to the 
owner of the project after the RAD conversion. 

1 

Page 147 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023 Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023. 
 Page | 107 of 195 
 

regarding key relocation statutory and regulatory requirements, and details relocation 
requirements under RAD. This Notice only applies to projects converting under the First 
Component of RAD; it does not apply to the Second Component of RAD.3 

The RAD program was established as a tool for preserving and improving low-income housing 
stock. RAD is intended to facilitate reinvestment in or redevelopment of the long-term- 
affordable stock of HUD-assisted housing properties. RAD also provides mobility benefits for 
assisted residents of converted properties through the choice mobility option, allowing these 
households to access tenant-based Housing Choice Vouchers. In some cases, RAD can be a tool 
for transfer of rental assistance from distressed or poorly selected sites to new sites in high 
opportunity areas. In all cases, the objective is to better serve low-income residents and the 
broader community in complying with fair housing, other civil rights, and relocation laws. 
 
This Notice provides PHAs and Project Owners with guidance relating to planning and 
implementing public housing (First Component) RAD conversions in a manner consistent with 
existing fair housing and other civil rights requirements, including, but not limited to, those 
associated with the Fair Housing Act, Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, Executive Order 
11063, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Titles II and III of the Americans with 
Disabilities Act, the Architectural Barriers Act of 1968, and their implementing regulations. 
Section 4 of this Notice summarizes key provisions of existing law applicable to RAD 
transactions. 
 
To further compliance with these existing requirements, PIH 2012-32 (HA) REV-2, issued June 
15, 2015 (the “RAD Notice”) established that specific PHA decisions and activities planned to  
be part of a First Component RAD conversion must be reviewed by HUD prior to 
implementation (the “front-end” fair housing and civil rights reviews). Through a front-end 
review of the enumerated PHA decisions, HUD seeks to assist PHAs and Project Owners in 
meeting their fair housing, other civil rights, and relocation obligations. Section 5 of this Notice 
explains the situations in which HUD is requiring front-end fair housing, other civil rights, and 
relocation reviews, details the procedures for HUD’s front-end review and the type of 
information that must be submitted for these reviews, and the timeframes for these reviews. 
 
Finally, in Sections 6 and 7 this Notice provides PHAs and Project Owners with guidance 
regarding RAD program and other statutory and regulatory relocation assistance requirements 
when planning for or implementing resident moves as a result of a conversion of a public  
housing project under RAD. This guidance includes reiterated and new requirements, the 
corresponding required reviews, and explanation of the interaction between RAD relocation 
procedures and certain existing public housing requirements. PHAs and Project Owners 
implementing RAD transactions may be subject to (a) the requirements of the Uniform 
Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, as amended, (URA), 
 
 
3 Important fair housing, other civil rights, and relocation considerations apply also to the Second Component of 
RAD as provided in the RAD Notice. Participants in the Second Component of RAD must continue to comply with 
applicable fair housing, civil rights, and relocation statutes and regulations, and HUD may, at any time, initiate 
compliance or enforcement actions in connection with such requirements. The RAD Notice will continue as the 
primary source of information on fair housing and other civil rights requirements covering the Second Component of 
RAD without any change until further notice. 

2 

Page 148 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023. 
 Page | 108 of 195 
 

(b) the requirements of Section 104(d) of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974 
(Section 104(d)) if CDBG or HOME funds are included as part of the project, (c) fair housing  
and other civil rights considerations implicated by relocation activities, and (d) requirements for 
relocating residents under the RAD Notice. 
 
1.2.  PHA and Project Owner Responsibilities 
 
This Notice explains RAD’s front-end fair housing and other civil rights review requirements in 
greater detail than was provided in the RAD Notice and this Notice restates and revises RAD’s 
relocation requirements. However, the fair housing, other civil rights, and relocation 
requirements that apply to RAD conversions are neither limited to those discussed in this Notice, 
nor to those specifically reviewed by HUD in the front-end review. 
 
MEETING HUD’S PROCESS AND REVIEW REQUIREMENTS NEVER CONSTITUTES 
COMPLIANCE WITH SUCH LAWS. THE OBLIGATION TO COMPLY WITH 
APPLICABLE FAIR HOUSING, OTHER CIVIL RIGHTS, AND RELOCATION LAWS 
REMAINS WITH THE PHA AND PROJECT OWNER. 
 
The fair housing and civil rights requirements that apply to RAD conversions are not limited to 
those discussed in this Notice. PHAs and Project Owners are responsible at all times for  
ensuring that their RAD activities (including those activities implemented by their agents, 
consultants, contractors, or other RAD team members) comply with all applicable fair housing 
and civil rights requirements. PHAs and Project Owners shall be accountable for all fair housing 
and civil rights compliance issues with respect to their RAD activities, whether those activities  
are undertaken directly or through agents, consultants, contractors, or other RAD team members. 
While HUD provides this non-exhaustive guidance to assist PHAs and Project Owners during 
transactions, complying with the requirements set forth in this Notice does not necessarily mean 
that they, or their agents or consultants, are in compliance with fair housing and civil rights 
requirements.4 

This Notice is not intended to, and shall not be construed to, reduce or in any way limit the 
application of fair housing, other civil rights, and relocation laws and regulations to RAD 
transactions. For example, HUD’s reliance on a PHA’s certification that a site meets the site and 
neighborhood standards required by the RAD Notice is not a determination of compliance with 
the duty to affirmatively further fair housing or other fair housing and civil rights requirements. 
As another example, HUD’s approval of a site for new construction does not, by itself, constitute  
a determination of the PHA’s compliance with all provisions of Title VI and its duty to 
affirmatively further fair housing found in the Fair Housing Act and other fair housing and civil 
rights requirements, nor indicate HUD’s approval of the PHA’s or locality’s overall housing 
strategy. HUD’s approval of a RAD conversion after front-end review reflects only that the 
project may proceed through the RAD conversion process; it does not constitute a determination 
 
 
 
4 The PHA’s or Project Owner’s agents, consultants, contractors, and other RAD team members may also have fair 
housing and other civil rights obligations (whether under this Notice or otherwise) and the forgoing does not, in any 
way, limit the independent obligation of any such parties to ensure their own compliance with applicable fair housing 
and other civil rights laws. 

3 

Page 149 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023. 
 Page | 109 of 195 
 

that the project is in compliance with applicable fair housing, civil rights, and relocation 
requirements. 
 
HUD’s approval of a front-end review submission is based on limited information and is  
intended to assist the PHA or Project Owner in meeting their fair housing, civil rights, and 
relocation obligations.5 The PHA is responsible for ensuring that its RAD conversion is 
consistent with its certification to affirmatively further fair housing and complies with applicable 
civil rights laws.6 The front-end reviews described in this Notice shall not be construed to limit 
other fair housing and civil rights investigations that HUD may conduct. HUD retains all 
compliance and enforcement authority. 
 
HUD’s determination that the PHA or Project Owner has failed to meet submission, certification, 
or approval requirements with respect to fair housing, other civil rights, or relocation  
requirements is grounds for terminating a Commitment to enter into a Housing Assistance 
Payments Contract (CHAP), denying the issuance of a RAD Conversion Commitment (RCC), or 
denying authority to convert under RAD. 
 
1.3. Applicability 
 
The content of this Notice should not be relied upon in carrying out any other activities funded 
under any other HUD program, except where specifically directed by HUD. 
 
This Notice supplements the RAD Notice with respect to fair housing and civil rights 
requirements applicable to public housing properties converting under RAD and with respect to  
all matters related to the relocation of residents as a result of RAD public housing conversions.  
To the extent that there is a conflict between this Notice and the RAD Notice, this Notice shall 
govern. This Notice replaces and supersedes Notice H 2014-09/PIH 2014-17 (issued July 14, 
2014). 
 
Upon issuance, the terms of this Notice will apply to all projects that have applied for conversion 
of assistance under the First Component of RAD but have not yet converted. As this Notice 
provides guidance, clarification, and explanation regarding fair housing and civil rights 
requirements that are already applicable to RAD conversions, this Notice shall not affect any 
front-end civil rights approvals provided by HUD prior to the effective date of this Notice and 
otherwise shall be effective with respect to front-end civil rights approvals without exception. 
However, with respect to relocation activities for Converting Projects under the First Component 
where a PHA has already submitted a Financing Plan pursuant to the RAD Notice at the time of 
issuance of this Notice, and provided that the Financing Plan has been accepted for full review 
after initial screening for completeness, the PHA may, within sixty (60) days after issuance of  
this Notice, request (in writing uploaded to the RAD Resource Desk) to be governed by H 2014- 
 
 

 
5 For example, the front-end review is specific to an individual site. A PHA that does not promote fair housing 
choice outside areas of minority concentration and continues to site affordable housing in minority concentrated areas 
may be in noncompliance with the duty to affirmatively further fair housing and other fair housing and civil rights 
obligations, even if the specific site is approved based on the information provided and pursuant to the front- end 
review of the PHA’s site and neighborhood standards submission. 
6 See 24 C.F.R. § 5.105 and, as applicable, 24 C.F.R. § 983.57(b)(2) or Appendix III of the RAD Notice. 

4 

Page 150 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023. 
 Page | 110 of 195 
 

09/PIH 2014-17. For such projects and where otherwise appropriate in cases of hardship as 
determined by HUD, HUD may apply the terms of H 2014-09/PIH 2014-17 with respect to 
relocation activities, but not with respect to fair housing and civil rights requirements. 
 
RAD projects which have been awarded Choice Neighborhoods Implementation (CNI) grants  
are subject to the provisions of the applicable Choice Neighborhoods Notice of Funding 
Availability (NOFA) and grant agreement regarding site and neighborhood standards and are not 
subject to the RAD front-end civil rights transaction reviews described in this Notice. For 
properties being redeveloped with funding under a CNI grant, the relocation requirements set 
forth in this Notice are superseded by guidance regarding relocation included in the CNI NOFA. 
Permanent involuntary displacement of public housing or Section 8 assisted residents may not 
occur as a result of a Choice Neighborhood project’s conversion of assistance. 
 
1.4. Explanation of Major Provisions 
 
This Notice adds to and revises pre-existing guidance related to fair housing, civil rights, and 
relocation (as contained in the RAD Notice and H 2014-09/PIH 2014-17) with respect to RAD 
transactions. Among the key provisions and changes are the following: 
 
Fair Housing & Civil Rights 

• Reaffirms the applicability of fair housing and civil rights requirements to all RAD- 
related activities (see, e.g., Section 3.3 and Section 4); 

• Reiterates when HUD front-end civil rights review (originally outlined in the RAD 
Notice) is required in addition to the PHA’s analysis and certification of compliance, to 
assist the PHA and Project Owner to comply with fair housing and civil rights 
requirements (see Section 5.3); 

• Outlines certain conditions under which HUD will conduct a front-end review to 
determine whether the site is in an area of minority concentration relative to the site’s 
housing market area (see Section 5.4(A)); 

• Provides guidance, for purposes of the RAD front-end civil rights review, on the concepts 
of “area of minority concentration” and “housing market area” that are reviewed when 
determining whether a site is in an area of minority concentration (see Section 5.4(B)); 

• Elaborates on specific information that HUD will consider, and that PHAs should provide 
evidence of, in order for a proposed site to meet the existing exceptions to permit new 
construction in an area of minority concentration, identifies presumptions for meeting the 
sufficient comparable opportunities exception and describes factors that HUD may 
consider in evaluating the overriding housing needs exception (see Section 5.4(C) and 
Section 5.4(D)); 

• Articulates issues that HUD will consider in completing the front-end civil rights review 
for transfers of assistance, including, for example, accessibility and minority 
concentration (see Section 5.5); 

• Outlines the information to be submitted for HUD’s front-end civil rights review of 
transactions where unit reductions, unit reconfigurations, or changes in occupancy are 
proposed (see Section 5.6); 

• Identifies the situations where front-end civil rights reviews are required when changes in 
the accessibility features of a site are made (see Section 5.7(B)); and 

5 

Page 151 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023. 
 Page | 111 of 195 
 

• Prohibits the Project Owner of a Converted Project with a PBRA HAP contract from 
initiating any new leasing or marketing activities (other than leasing and outreach to 
households holding a right to return to the Covered Project), including the solicitation, 
distribution or acceptance of applications or development of a waiting list, until HUD has 
approved the Affirmative Fair Housing Marketing Plan (“AFHMP”) (see Section 5.8). 

 
Relocation 

• Requires PHAs or Project Owners to prepare a written relocation plan for all transactions 
that involve permanent relocation or temporary relocation anticipated to exceed 12 
months (see Section 6.1); 

• Requires PHAs to provide residents with a RAD Information Notice (RIN) in order to 
ensure that residents are informed of potential project plans and of their rights in 
connection with RAD prior to submission of the RAD application (see Section 6.6(A)); 

• Clarifies that the General Information Notice (GIN), when applicable, should be provided 
as soon as feasible and no later than 30 days following the issuance of the CHAP (see 
Section 6.6(B)); 

• Requires Project Owners to provide a notification of Return to the Covered Project, when 
applicable (see Section 6.6(F)); 

• Moves the date before which PHAs are prohibited from beginning any physical 
relocation earlier in the conversion process (specifically, from the date of Closing to the 
later of the effective date of the RCC and the expiration of the 30- or 90-day RAD Notice 
of Relocation period, as applicable) (see Section 6.8); 

• Clarifies the specific requirements applicable to different types of relocation (e.g., moves 
within a property, temporary relocation of less than 12 months, etc.) (see, e.g., Section 
6.4); 

• Provides enhanced guidance on the right to return requirements, any offers of alternative 
housing options and the documentation that must be retained when tenants choose an 
alternative housing option and decline their right to return (see, e.g., Section 6.2 and 
Section 6.10); 

• Describes how HUD has administratively implemented URA requirements and URA 
relocation assistance and payments for displaced persons, when applicable, to residents 
who choose to decline the right of return and, instead, choose voluntary permanent 
relocation (see, e.g., Section 6.4(C) through (F) and Section 6.10); 

• Requires PHAs to maintain detailed data regarding each household that will be relocated, 
with key dates of notices and moves (see Section 6.9); and 

• Identifies key fair housing and civil rights requirements applicable during relocation (see, 
e.g., Section 4). 

 
1.5. Request for Public Comment 
 
HUD acknowledges the complexity of the issues addressed in this Notice. This Notice is 
effective immediately upon issuance, but HUD also seeks comment from the public regarding  
the clarity and organization of the Notice and regarding areas where the policies and procedures 
described are unclear or ambiguous. HUD will consider whether changes in response to 
comments are justified and will implement any appropriate changes in a revision of this Notice. 
Please submit all comments to RAD@hud.gov within 30 days of the issuance of this Notice. 

6 

Page 152 of 301

mailto:RAD@hud.gov


 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023. 
 Page | 112 of 195 
 

1.6. Paperwork Reduction Act 
 
In accordance with the Paperwork Reduction Act (PRA), HUD may not conduct or sponsor, and  
a person is not required to respond to, a collection of information unless the collection displays a 
currently valid OMB control number. OMB approved information collection forms will be  
posted on the RAD website and the Federal Register. 

7 

Page 153 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023. 
 Page | 113 of 195 
 

SECTION 2. Table of Contents 
 
The contents of this Notice are divided into the following parts: 

SECTION 1.  Purpose, Applicability and Major Provisions of this Notice ...................................... 1 
1.1. Purpose ............................................................................................................................. 1 
1.2. PHA and Project Owner Responsibilities ......................................................................... 3 
1.3. Applicability ..................................................................................................................... 4 
1.4. Explanation of Major Provisions ...................................................................................... 5 
1.5. Request for Public Comment ........................................................................................... 6 
1.6. Paperwork Reduction Act ................................................................................................. 7 

SECTION 2.  Table of Contents ....................................................................................................... 8 
SECTION 3.  Background .............................................................................................................. 10 

3.1. RAD Authority ............................................................................................................... 10 
3.2. Definitions ...................................................................................................................... 10 
3.3. Applicable Legal Authorities ......................................................................................... 10 
3.4. Further Information ........................................................................................................ 11 

SECTION 4.  Generally Applicable Fair Housing and Civil Rights Requirements Relevant   
Throughout the RAD Conversion Process .............................................................. 11 

SECTION 5.  Application of Key Fair Housing and Civil Rights Requirements to RAD 
Transactions ............................................................................................................. 17 

5.1. RAD Eligibility Review ................................................................................................. 17 
5.2. PHA’s Proposed Site Selection and Certification .......................................................... 18 
5.3. RAD Front-End Civil Rights Transaction Review ......................................................... 20 

A) Activities Subject to Front-End Civil Rights Review ............................................. 20 
B) Fair Housing, Civil Rights, and Relocation Checklist ............................................ 22 
C) Timing of Front-End Review Submissions ............................................................. 23 
D) Completion of HUD’s Front-End Review .............................................................. 23 

5.4. Front-End Civil Rights Review for RAD Transactions Involving New Construction ... 24 
A) Conditions Triggering Review ............................................................................... 24 
B) Analysis of Areas of Minority Concentration ......................................................... 25 
C) The Sufficient Comparable Opportunities Exception ............................................. 26 
D) The Overriding Housing Needs Exception ............................................................. 30 

5.5. Front-End Civil Rights Review for RAD Transactions Involving Transfer of 
 Assistance ...................................................................................................................... 32 

A) Applicable Standards .............................................................................................. 32 
B) Analysis of Transfers of Assistance ........................................................................ 33 

5.6. Front-End Civil Rights Review for RAD Transactions Involving Reduction in 
Number of Units, Changes in Bedroom Distribution of Units and Changes in 

 Occupancy Requirements ............................................................................................... 34 
A) Review of Reductions in the Number of Units, Reductions or Increases in the 

Number of UFAS Accessible Units or Changes in Bedroom Distribution ............. 34 
B) Review of Changes in Occupancy Type ................................................................. 36 

5.7. Other Front-End Civil Rights Review for RAD Transactions ....................................... 36 
A) Conversions of Assistance in Which the Construction Schedule Indicates that 

Relocation is Likely to Exceed 12 Months. ........................................................... 36 

8 

Page 154 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023. 
 Page | 114 of 195 
 

B) Conversions of Assistance Involving New Construction or Substantial 
  Alteration, as those terms are defined by Section 504. ........................................... 36 

C) Remedial Agreements and Orders. ......................................................................... 37 
5.8. Affirmative Fair Housing Marketing Plan (AFHMP) Requirements for Projects 

Converting to PBRA Assistance .................................................................................... 37 
SECTION 6.  RELOCATION REQUIREMENTS ........................................................................ 38 

6.1. Planning .......................................................................................................................... 39 
6.2. Resident Right to Return ................................................................................................ 41 
6.3. Admissions and Continued Occupancy Requirements ................................................... 43 
6.4. Types of Moves and Relocation ..................................................................................... 43 

A) Moves within the same building or complex of buildings ...................................... 43 
B) Temporary relocation lasting one year or less ......................................................... 44 
C) Temporary relocation initially expected to last one year or less, but which 
 extends beyond one year ........................................................................................ 44 
D) Temporary relocation anticipated to last more than one year ................................. 44 
E) Permanent moves in connection with a transfer of assistance ................................ 45 
F) Voluntary permanent relocation ............................................................................. 46 

6.5. Initiation of Negotiations (ION) Date ............................................................................ 46 
6.6. Resident Relocation Notification (Notices) ................................................................... 46 

A) RAD Information Notice ........................................................................................ 47 
B) General Information Notice (49 C.F.R. § 24.203(a)).............................................. 48 
C) Notice of Intent to Acquire (49 C.F.R. § 24.203(d)) ............................................... 49 
D) RAD Notice of Relocation ...................................................................................... 49 
E) URA Notice of Relocation Eligibility – for residents whose temporary 

relocation exceeds one year (49 C.F.R. § 24.203(b)) ............................................. 52 
F) Notification of Return to the Covered Project ........................................................ 53 

6.7. Relocation Advisory Services ........................................................................................ 53 
6.8. Initiation of Relocation ................................................................................................... 54 
6.9. Records and Documentation; Resident Log ................................................................... 54 
6.10. Alternative Housing Options .......................................................................................... 56 

A) Requirements for Any Offer of Alternative Housing Options ................................ 56 
B) Assisted Housing Options as Alternatives .............................................................. 57 
C) Monetary Elements Associated With Alternative Housing Options....................... 58 
D) Disclosure and Agreement to Alternative Housing Options ................................... 58 

6.11. Lump Sum Payments ..................................................................................................... 60 
SECTION 7.  APPLICABILITY OF HCV AND PUBLIC HOUSING REQUIREMENTS ......... 60 

7.1. HCV Waiting List Administration Unrelated to the RAD Transaction .......................... 60 
7.2. HCV Waiting List Administration Related to the RAD Transaction ............................. 61 
7.3. Public Housing Transfers Unrelated to the RAD Transaction ....................................... 61 
7.4. Resident Initiated Public Housing Transfers Related to the RAD Transaction.............. 62 
7.5. Public Housing as a Temporary Relocation Resource ................................................... 62 
7.6. Terminations (Including Evictions) and End of Participation Unrelated to the 

RAD Transaction ........................................................................................................... 63 
7.7. Right-Sizing ................................................................................................................... 63 

9 

Page 155 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023 Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023. 
 Page | 115 of 195 
 

Appendix I – Applicable Legal Authorities 
Appendix II – Recommended Relocation Plan Contents 
 
SECTION 3. Background 
 
3.1. RAD Authority 
 
RAD is authorized by the Consolidated and Further Continuing Appropriations Act of 2012  
(Pub. L. No. 112-55, enacted November 18, 2011), as amended by the Consolidated 
Appropriations Act, 2014 (Public Law 113-76, enacted January 17, 2014), the Consolidated and 
Further Continuing Appropriations Act, 2015 (Public Law 113-235, enacted December 6, 2014), 
and the Division L, Title II, Section 237 of the Consolidated Appropriations Act (Public Law  
114-113, enacted December 18, 2016), collectively and as it may be further amended from time  
to time, the “RAD Statute.” RAD allows certain eligible properties to convert assistance to long- 
term project-based Section 8 contracts and has two separate components. The First Component 
allows projects funded under the public housing program to convert their assistance to long-term, 
project-based Section 8 rental assistance contracts. Under this component of RAD, public  
housing agencies (PHAs) may choose between two different Section 8 housing assistance 
programs: project based vouchers (PBVs) or project-based rental assistance (PBRA). The 
“Second Component” of RAD allows owners of projects funded under the Rent Supplement  
(Rent Supp), Rental Assistance Payment (RAP), and Moderate Rehabilitation programs to  
convert certain units to PBV or PBRA Section 8 units following certain contract expirations or 
terminations. The RAD Statute is implemented by the RAD Notice. 
 
3.2. Definitions 
 
All capitalized terms defined in the RAD Notice, as amended, shall have the definitions ascribed 
to them therein unless otherwise specifically noted in this Notice.7 Pre-conversion projects  
whose assistance is converting from public housing to Section 8 under RAD are referred to in the 
RAD Notice and in this Notice as “Converting Projects.” Post-conversion projects are referred to 
in the RAD Notice and this Notice as “Covered Projects.” 
 
3.3. Applicable Legal Authorities 
 
Appendix I to this Notice identifies key legal authorities with respect to fair housing, civil rights, 
and resident relocation. Part 2 of Appendix I provides greater detail regarding federal 
accessibility requirements set forth in three of the legal authorities described in Appendix I, 
 
 
7 Many of the fair housing and civil rights concepts used throughout this Notice are terms of art that are defined in 
applicable statutes and regulations identified in Appendix I of this Notice, while others have been developed through 
judicial interpretation. PHAs and Project Owners should familiarize themselves with these terms of art and should 
consult 42 U.S.C. § 3602 (Fair Housing Act); 24 C.F.R. §§ 5.152-100.20 (Fair Housing Act); 42 U.S.C. §§ 2000d- 
2000d-4a (Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964); 24 C.F.R. § 1.2 (Title VI); 29 U.S.C. § 705 (Rehabilitation Act); 
24 C.F.R. § 8.3 (Section 504); 42 U.S.C. §§ 12102, 12132, 12181 (Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA)); 28 
C.F.R. § 35.104 (Title II of the ADA); and 28 C.F.R. § 36.104 (Title III of the ADA). In addition, many of the 
relocation concepts are terms of art that are defined in 42 U.S.C. § 4601 et seq. (Uniform Relocation Act (URA)), 
Section 104(d) of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974 codified at 42 U.S.C. § 5304(d), and their 
implementing regulations at 49 C.F.R Part 24 and 24 C.F.R. Part 42 subpart C. 

10 

Page 156 of 301



 

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023. 
 Page | 116 of 195 
 

Part 1. PHAs and Project Owners must be familiar with these legal authorities and must  
evaluate, based on the facts of their situation, which legal authorities are applicable in which 
situations. Failure to comply with any legal authority as applicable to the PHA’s or Project 
Owner’s actions or inactions may result in liability under such authority. Appendix I does 
not attempt to provide a complete and exhaustive explanation of the legal authorities, nor to fully 
inventory the situations in which each legal authority is applicable. Instead, Appendix I is an 
overview intended to serve as a general introduction or reminder for PHAs and Project Owners of 
these fair housing, other civil rights, and relocation authorities and to facilitate their  
identification of appropriate topics for further research or expert counsel. The recitation of these 
legal authorities neither expands nor diminishes their applicability to the PHA’s and Project 
Owner’s activities in connection with their RAD conversion. 
 
The RAD Statute authorizes the Secretary of HUD to waive or specify alternative requirements 
for certain provisions of law, except for requirements related to, among others, fair housing and 
nondiscrimination.8 In addition to the general application of various federal statutes and their 
implementing regulations as discussed in Appendix I, below, HUD regulations at 24 C.F.R. § 
5.105 apply such authorities to all HUD programs, including RAD. 
 
3.4. Further Information 
 
Because each RAD proposal varies in its scope, this Notice may not address each PHA’s or 
Project Owner’s specific circumstances. PHAs and Project Owners should carefully review the 
laws, regulations, notices, and guidance material referenced in this Notice. Any questions related 
to the administration of the RAD program should be referred to the appropriate RAD Transaction 
Manager (TM) or may be emailed to rad@hud.gov. 
 
SECTION 4. Generally Applicable Fair Housing and Civil Rights Requirements Relevant 

Throughout the RAD Conversion Process 
 
This Section provides a summary overview of key principles regarding program implementation 
and an overview of generally applicable fair housing and civil rights requirements. Appendix I 
identifies the key legal authorities from which these principles are derived. These key principals, 
together and with the legal authorities identified in Appendix I, frame the PHA’s efforts to 
implement a RAD conversion. In some cases, these requirements are particularly relevant to the 
process of planning the RAD conversion, while in others they have particular relevance for the 
structure of the RAD transaction itself, and in yet other cases, both. Elements of RAD 
transactions that have civil rights implications include, but are not limited to, transfers of 
assistance, temporary and permanent relocation, demolition, site selection, new construction, 
occupancy policies, changes in unit configuration, increases or reductions in units, waiting list 
administration policies, policies regarding return of temporarily relocated tenants, substantial 
rehabilitation or alteration, program accessibility, tenant selection policies and priority transfers, 
providing information to and communicating with persons with Limited English Proficiency 
(LEP) and persons with disabilities, reasonable accommodation policies, and Affirmative Fair 
 
 
 
 
8 See Pub. L. No. 112-55, as amended. 

11 

Page 157 of 301

mailto:rad@hud.gov


 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023.  
      Page | 117 of 195 
 

Housing Marketing Plans (AFHMPs). All PHAs must consider civil rights when structuring  
these and other elements of their RAD transaction. 
 
RAD transactions are governed by the same civil rights authorities that govern HUD-assisted 
activities generally.9 Converting Projects are subject to civil rights and equal opportunity 
requirements under the public housing regulations, and Covered Projects are subject to civil  
rights and equal opportunity requirements under the PBV regulations or the PBRA regulations,  
as applicable.10 As described further below, the Fair Housing Act prohibits discrimination in 
housing11 and requires all federal executive departments and agencies to “administer their 
programs and activities relating to housing and urban development … in a manner affirmatively  
to further” fair housing.12 In addition, all programs or activities receiving Federal financial 
assistance are subject to Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 forbidding discrimination on the 
basis of race, color, and national origin13 and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973,  
which forbids discrimination on the basis of disability and requires that programs or activities 
receiving Federal financial assistance make such programs or activities “when viewed in its 
entirety” readily accessible to persons with disabilities and make reasonable accommodation to 
the needs of persons with disabilities.14 RAD transactions are also subject, as applicable, to the 
requirements of Titles II and III of the Americans with Disabilities Act, Executive Order 11063, 
and HUD regulations at 24 C.F.R. part 107. Thus, as with the administration of all HUD  
programs and all HUD-assisted activities, fair housing and civil rights issues must be considered 
in the administration of the RAD program. PHAs must not implement actions and policies that 
may have a discriminatory effect on the basis of race, color, sex, national origin, religion, 
disability, or familial status or that may impede, obstruct, prevent, or undermine efforts to 
affirmatively further fair housing.15 Note, in particular, the following requirements: 

• Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing (AFFH): The Fair Housing Act requires that 
HUD administer its programs and activities in a manner that affirmatively furthers the 
purposes of the Fair Housing Act. The Fair Housing Act not only prohibits 
discrimination but, in conjunction with other statutes, directs HUD’s recipients, including 
PHAs, to take significant actions to overcome historic patterns of segregation, achieve 
truly balanced and integrated living patterns, promote fair housing choice, and foster 
inclusive communities that are free from discrimination. Through various statutes, 
regulations, and executive orders, PHAs must take various actions in accordance and in 
conjunction with their Fair Housing Act obligation to affirmatively further fair housing. 
For example, under regulations implementing the United States Housing Act of 1937 (the 
Act), HUD recipients must, among other requirements, certify that they will affirmatively 
further fair housing. In addition, under HUD’s Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing 
(AFFH) rule promulgated July 16, 2015, PHAs must periodically conduct an Assessment 

 
 
9 See 24 C.F.R. § 5.105. 
10 See, e.g., 24 C.F.R. §§ 880.601, 881.601 and 983.8 for civil rights related regulations applicable to PBV and  
PBRA transactions. 
11 See 42 U.S.C. §§ 3601 et seq., and HUD regulations in 24 C.F.R. part 100 
12 42 U.S.C. § 3608(d) and (e). 
13 See 42 U.S.C. §§ 2000d et. seq., and HUD regulations in 24 C.F.R. part 1. 
14 See 29 U.S.C. §§ 701 et seq., and HUD regulations in 24 C.F.R. part 8. 
15 See 24 C.F.R. part 1 and part 100 subpart G. 

12 

Page 158 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023.  
      Page | 118 of 195 
 

of Fair Housing (AFH) as set out by the rule, either individually or in collaboration with  
other program participants.16 Under the AFFH rule, in order to develop a successful  
affirmatively furthering fair housing strategy, the PHA must assess the elements and 
factors that cause, increase, contribute to, maintain, or perpetuate segregation, racially or 
ethnically concentrated areas of poverty, significant disparities in access to opportunity,  
and disproportionate housing needs. PHAs must ensure that their activities in connection  
with a RAD conversion are consistent with their AFH, including any applicable joint or  
regional AFH in which they are a joint participant, and with any applicable Analysis of 
Impediments to Fair Housing Choice (AI), Fair Housing Equity Assessment, PHA 5-Year  
Plan, PHA Annual Plan, Moving to Work (MTW) Plan, or related planning documents  
and other regulatory and programmatic requirements implementing the obligation to  
affirmatively further fair housing to which they are a party.17 

• Nondiscriminatory Site Selection: HUD’s site and neighborhood standards require that 
the proposed site is suitable from the standpoint of facilitating and furthering full 
compliance with the applicable provision of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act, the Fair 
Housing Act, Executive Order 11063, and Department regulations implementing these 
authorities. The site must meet the Section 504 site selection requirements in 24 C.F.R. 
§ 8.4(b)(5). Additional provisions appear in 24 C.F.R. § 983.57(b) of the PBV rules and, 
for PBRA, in Appendix III of the RAD Notice. HUD’s Title VI regulation specifically 
prohibits site selection that has the “purpose or effect of excluding individuals from, 
denying them the benefits of, or subjecting them to discrimination” on the basis of race, 
color, or national origin.18 The Title VI regulations also impose an obligation on the part 
of an applicant or recipient of HUD financial assistance to take actions to overcome the 
effect of prior discrimination or conditions that limit participation by persons of a 
particular race, color, or national origin.19 In addition, HUD’s Section 504 regulation 
prohibits recipients from selecting sites the purpose or effect of which would (1) exclude 
qualified individuals with disabilities from or deny them the benefit of a program or 
activity, or otherwise subject them to discrimination; or (2) defeat or substantially impair 
the accomplishment of the objectives of the program or activity with respect to qualified 
individuals with disabilities.20 ADA regulations likewise prohibit site selections that 
have the purpose or effect of excluding individuals with disabilities (including members 
of the public with disabilities), denying them benefits, or subjecting them to 
discrimination.21 Finally, the Fair Housing Act prohibits discriminatory site selection, 
including perpetuation of segregation in transfers of assistance and new construction. 

 
• Meaningful Access for Persons with Limited English Proficiency (LEP): The PHA or 

Project Owner is required to take reasonable steps to ensure (a) they provide meaningful 
access to programs and activities for persons who have a limited ability to read, speak, or 
understand English; (b) any person with LEP who will be temporarily relocated or 

 
 
16 24 C.F.R. § 5.150 et seq. 
17 See 24 C.F.R. § 5.150 et seq. and 24 C.F.R. §§ 91.225, 91.325, or 91.425. 
18 See 24 C.F.R. § 1.4(b)(3). 
19 See 24 C.F.R. § 1.4(b)(6). 
20 See 24 C.F.R. § 8.4(b)(5). 
21 See 28 C.F.R. § 35.130(b)(4); 28 C.F.R. § 36.301. 

13 

Page 159 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023.  
      Page | 119 of 195 
 

permanently displaced has meaningful access to any public meetings regarding the 
project; and (c) they provide meaningful access to LEP persons to any information 
provided to residents including, but not limited to, any relocation notices. Generally, the 
PHA or Project Owner will be responsible for providing oral interpreters at meetings, 
including ensuring their competence, and covering any associated translation and 
interpretation costs.22 

• Effective Communication for Persons with Disabilities: Communications and 
materials must be provided in a manner that is effective for persons with hearing, visual, 
and other communication-related disabilities consistent with Section 504 of the 
Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (24 C.F.R. § 8.6) and with 49 C.F.R. § 24.5, and as applicable, 
the Americans with Disabilities Act. This includes ensuring that, unless such actions 
would result in undue financial and administrative burdens or fundamental alterations, 
notices and resident meetings are provided in appropriate alternative formats as needed, 
e.g., Braille, audio, large type, accessible electronic communications, assistive listening 
devices, and sign language interpreters. Even in cases where the proposed actions may 
result in undue financial and administrative burdens or fundamental alterations, certain 
actions must still be taken. Specifically, appropriate auxiliary aids and services that 
would not result in such undue burdens or fundamental alterations must still be provided 
to ensure effective communication. 

 
• Accessible Meeting Facilities for Persons with Disabilities: Pursuant to regulations 

implementing Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 and the Americans with 
Disabilities Act of 1990, as applicable, all programs and activities must be held in 
accessible locations unless doing so would result in an undue financial and administrative 
burden on the PHA and/or Project Owner, in which case the PHA or Project Owner must 
take any action that would not result in such undue burden but would nevertheless ensure 
that individuals with disabilities receive the benefits and services of the program or 
activity, e.g., briefings at an alternate accessible site or in-home briefing.23 Individuals 
with disabilities must receive services in the most integrated setting appropriate to their 
needs. The most integrated setting appropriate to the needs of qualified individuals with 
disabilities is a setting that enables individuals with disabilities to interact with persons 
without disabilities to the fullest extent possible.24 

 
 
 
 
22 For more information about LEP obligations, see HUD’s Limited English Proficiency (LEP) Frequently Asked 
Questions guidance at 
http://portal.hud.gov/hudportal/HUD?src=/program_offices/fair_housing_equal_opp/promotingfh/lep-faq#q26. 
23 In selecting locations for consultation with residents, the PHA and/or Project Owner shall be guided by the goal of 
maximizing participation in an integrated setting so that residents with disabilities and residents without disabilities 
may hear and consider each other’s views. Priority shall be given to using on-site accessible locations (including,  
e.g., TV rooms or informal gathering places), even if doing so may require multiple sessions with smaller groups of 
residents. In addition, Title III of the Americans with Disabilities Act requires private entities that operate places of 
public accommodation, including social service establishments, leasing offices of private housing developments, and 
certain private housing providers, to comply with certain physical accessibility requirements which are similar to the 
requirements under Section 504 and Title II. 
24 See 28 C.F.R. part 35, Appendix B. 

14 

Page 160 of 301

http://portal.hud.gov/hudportal/HUD?src=/program_offices/fair_housing_equal_opp/promotingfh/lep-faq&q26


 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023.  
      Page | 120 of 195 
 

• Accessibility for Persons with Disabilities Throughout the Planning and 
Implementation Process: A number of accessibility requirements, including but not 
limited to site selection, apply to all RAD conversions, as they do to the PHA’s activities 
regardless of the PHA’s participation in RAD.25 PHAs and Project Owners should also 
be aware that state or local laws, regulations, and codes may contain greater accessibility 
requirements. This Notice provides, in Appendix I, Part 2, an overview of accessibility 
requirements under existing law. The information in Appendix I, Part 2 is intended to 
assist with the PHA’s or Project Owner’s compliance with accessibility requirements. 
PHAs and Project Owners must review Appendix I, Part 2 early-on in planning for the 
RAD transaction. PHAs and Project Owners may determine that it is most efficient to 
address accessibility matters early in the project planning. In addition, PHAs and Project 
Owners must evaluate, throughout the transaction and based on the facts of their 
situation, which requirements are applicable in which situations to ensure they 
appropriately address accessibility requirements. PHAs and Project Owners are 
responsible for ensuring that the architectural drawings and construction comply with the 
PHA’s and Project Owner’s obligations and all Federal civil rights requirements, 
including accessibility requirements under the Fair Housing Act, Section 504, and the 
ADA. 

 
Accessibility requirements also apply during all stages of a RAD transaction, including 
during relocation. Existing information (e.g., resident characteristics forms, including 
identification of the need for accessible unit features; records of approved reasonable 
accommodations; and records of the presence of accessible unit features) and the 
residents themselves should be consulted throughout the process of developing and 
implementing a RAD conversion. Related activities include, but are not limited to: 

 
o Identifying and maintaining existing and pending reasonable accommodations, 

including the need for larger units to accommodate live-in aides or special 
equipment; 

o Determining what direct services may be needed as a reasonable accommodation 
(e.g., packing, moving, identification of temporary housing); 

o Identifying accessible unit features and assuring that temporary or permanent 
replacement housing contains comparable features; 

o Budgeting appropriately to ensure that reasonable accommodations are addressed. 

For more information about compliance with accessibility requirements, the PHA or 
Project Owner should refer to appropriate notices concerning civil rights requirements 
and may contact HUD’s Office of Fair Housing and Equal Opportunity in either the 
Washington, D.C. or applicable field offices for more specific guidance. For additional, 
non-exhaustive guidance on providing relocation assistance to persons with disabilities, 
see Exhibit 3-1 in HUD Handbook 1378. 

 
 
 
25 For more detailed information on these laws and their requirements, see PIH Notice 2010-26, issued July 26, 2010 
(available at http://www.hud.gov/offices/pih/publications/notices/10/pih2010-26.pdf). While this notice has an 
expiration date in 2011, because the notice summarizes and discusses regulatory requirements, the information in the 
notice provides helpful guidance. 

15 

Page 161 of 301

http://www.hud.gov/offices/pih/publications/notices/10/pih2010-26.pdf


 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023.  
      Page | 121 of 195 
 

• Reasonable Accommodations in Rules, Policies, Practices and Services: Under the 
Fair Housing Act, the PHA or Project Owner must make reasonable accommodations in 
rules, policies, practices, and services when such accommodations may be necessary to 
afford a person with a disability an equal opportunity to use and enjoy a dwelling.26 
Under Section 504, the PHA or Project Owner must also make reasonable 
accommodations to residents with disabilities, which may include providing and paying 
for structural modifications to dwelling units and public or common use areas. Titles II 
and III of the ADA provide similar requirements. Common examples of reasonable 
accommodations that may occur during relocation are permitting an individual with a 
disability to relocate near public transportation, providing a unit larger than otherwise 
permitted for a live-in aide, and making exceptions to no-animal rules for assistance and 
service animals. Accommodations generally need not be made where providing such an 
accommodation would be an undue financial and administrative burden or a fundamental 
alteration of the nature of the service. However, reasonable accommodations must be 
made to the extent the accommodation does not impose an undue financial and 
administrative burden or a fundamental alteration of the nature of the service. 
Reasonable accommodations must follow the individual with the disability throughout 
the RAD process, including during relocation. Furthermore, PHAs and Project Owners 
may be required to provide particular reasonable accommodations during relocation, such 
as assistance moving household items.27 

• Physical Changes to Dwelling Units, Public and Common Use Areas and Other 
Facilities for Accessibility: Under the Fair Housing Act, the PHA or Project Owner may 
be required to permit reasonable modifications. A reasonable modification is a structural 
change made to existing premises, occupied or to be occupied by a person with a 
disability, in order to afford such person full enjoyment of the premises. Reasonable 
modifications can include structural changes to interiors and exteriors of dwellings and to 
common and public use areas. A request for a reasonable modification may be made at 
any time during the tenancy. When relocating an individual with a disability who has 
such modifications in their dwelling unit or public and common use areas because of the 
individual’s disability, regardless of who made them, the PHA or Project Owner has an 
obligation to provide and pay for such modification in the new dwelling. When 
considering requests by individuals with disabilities for structural changes to units or 
public and common use areas, PHAs and Project Owners should take particular note that 
they may be required to make and pay for such structural modifications as reasonable 

 

 
26 For additional information regarding reasonable accommodations under the Fair Housing Act, see the Joint 
Statement of the Department of Housing and Urban Development and the Department of Justice, Reasonable 
Accommodations Under the Fair Housing Act (May 17, 2004), at 
http://www.hud.gov/offices/fheo/library/huddojstatement.pdf. 
27 See 49 C.F.R. part 24, Appendix A, § 24.2(a)(8)(vii), which states that under the URA, “Reasonable 
accommodation of a displaced person with a disability at the replacement dwelling means the Agency is required to 
address persons with a physical impairment that substantially limits one or more of the major life activities. In these 
situations, reasonable accommodation should include the following at a minimum: Doors of adequate width; ramps or 
other assistance devices to traverse stairs and access bathtubs, shower stalls, toilets and sinks; storage cabinets, 
vanities, sink and mirrors at appropriate heights. Kitchen accommodations will include sinks and storage cabinets 
built at appropriate heights for access. The Agency shall also consider other items that may be necessary, such as 
physical modification to a unit, based on the displaced person’s needs.” 

16 

Page 162 of 301

http://www.hud.gov/offices/fheo/library/huddojstatement.pdf


 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023.  
      Page | 122 of 195 
 

accommodations under Section 504 and because of similar requirements under the ADA 
even though the Fair Housing Act may only require the owner to allow such changes to 
be made and paid for by the individual with a disability. Before determining that they are 
not required to make or pay for structural changes, PHAs and Project Owners are 
encouraged to consider carefully their obligations under each applicable statute. 

 
SECTION 5.  Application of Key Fair Housing and Civil Rights Requirements to RAD 

Transactions 
 
The generally applicable fair housing and other civil rights requirements described above, and in 
Appendix I, apply throughout the planning and implementation of a RAD transaction and the 
PHA is responsible for ensuring compliance with these requirements. As key requirements may 
be misunderstood, the RAD program has established specific additional procedures to assist  
RAD participants to ensure they comply with the applicable requirements. Specifically, the  
RAD Notice established a civil rights eligibility review and criteria for front-end civil rights 
reviews. 
 
This Section elaborates on these requirements from the RAD Notice. The front-end review 
procedures described below establish procedures and criteria for the supplemental front-end 
review and technical assistance, criteria which are specific to the RAD program. Criteria for this 
supplemental front-end review are informed by, but not the same as, fair housing or civil rights 
rules and policies generally. 
 
This Section is organized to loosely follow the stages of a RAD conversion transaction,  
beginning with RAD eligibility and continuing through site selection, transfer of assistance, unit 
design requirements and marketing. In addition, this Section describes the timing and  
procedures for submitting data and documents to HUD so that HUD may complete its front-end 
review. The submission procedures are also designed to serve as a tool for PHAs to identify 
issues of potential concern at appropriate stages of the RAD conversion and as a tool for HUD to 
identify potential needs for technical assistance. 
 
5.1. RAD Eligibility Review 
 
To be eligible for RAD, the PHA must meet all eligibility requirements set forth in Section 1.3 of 
the RAD Notice, including the civil rights threshold requirements found at Section 1.3.G of the 
RAD Notice. A PHA must not have a charge, cause determination, lawsuit, or letter of findings, 
referenced in Section 1.3.G of the RAD Notice, against the PHA itself, its transferees, proposed 
development partners, or sub-recipients that has not been resolved, or is not in the process of  
being resolved, to HUD’s satisfaction. This determination shall be made prior to issuance of the 
CHAP. 
 
The CHAP may be revoked by HUD if HUD determines that the terms of the conversion would 
be inconsistent with fair housing and civil rights laws or a fair housing or civil rights court order, 
settlement agreement, or voluntary compliance agreement. HUD may terminate a CHAP or  
RCC if it determines that the terms of the conversion would be inconsistent with fair housing or 
civil rights laws or is inconsistent with, would hinder, or would delay satisfaction of a fair 
housing or civil rights court order, settlement agreement, or voluntary compliance agreement. 

17 

Page 163 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023.  
      Page | 123 of 195 
 

HUD may terminate an approval to proceed with a RAD conversion if it determines that the  
terms of the conversion would be inconsistent with fair housing or civil rights laws or a fair 
housing or civil rights court order, settlement agreement, or voluntary compliance agreement. 
 
5.2. PHA’s Proposed Site Selection and Certification 
 
For all RAD conversions, the PHA must comply with all applicable site selection requirements  
as set forth in this Notice and the RAD Notice and in accordance with any additional applicable 
published guidance provided by HUD. As set forth in the RAD Notice, conversions of  
assistance to PBV involving new construction, whether on a new site or on a current site, are 
subject to the site selection standards set forth in 24 C.F.R. § 983.57(a), (b), (c) and (e), but 
excluding 24 C.F.R. § 983.57(b)(1) and (c)(2). All other conversions to PBV, including transfers 
of assistance to an existing property other than the Converting Project, are subject to the  
standards set forth in 24 C.F.R. § 983.57(a), (b), (c) and (d), but excluding 24 C.F.R. § 
983.57(b)(1) and (c)(2).28 Site selection requirements set forth at Appendix III of the RAD  
Notice apply to RAD conversions to PBRA assistance, as does the requirement not to place 
housing in neighborhoods with highly concentrated poverty based on the criteria formulated for 
transfers under Section 8(bb) of the United States Housing Act of 1937.29 PBV and PBRA site 
selection must also be consistent with the requirements of the Fair Housing Act, Title VI, Section 
504, the ADA and their implementing regulations. 
 
It is the PHA’s responsibility to ensure that the site selection complies with all applicable site 
selection requirements, including the requirements of this Notice and the RAD Notice. Pursuant 
to the RAD Notice, the PHA must certify with the submission of its Annual Plan, Significant 
Amendment to its Annual Plan, or MTW Plan that it complies with the applicable site selection 
requirements and must maintain records of its analysis and the data relied upon in making its 
determination of compliance. The PHA must also determine and subsequently state in the 
certification that the site is “suitable from the standpoint of facilitating and furthering full 
compliance with the applicable provisions of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, Title VIII 
of the Civil Rights Act of 1968, Executive Order 11063, and HUD regulations issued pursuant 
thereto.”30 Although this Notice provides detail regarding certain civil rights-related site and 
neighborhood standards, PHAs must certify compliance with all applicable site and  
neighborhood standards.31 

The PHA must also certify that, in conducting its review of site selection for the proposed  
project, the PHA completed a review with respect to accessibility for persons with disabilities  
and that the proposed site is consistent with applicable accessibility standards under the Fair 
Housing Act, Section 504, and the ADA. The site and neighborhood standards for PBV and 
PBRA require the site to be “suitable from the standpoint of facilitating and furthering full 
compliance with” the Fair Housing Act and require the site to meet the Section 504 site selection 
 
 
 
28 See the provisions of Section 1.6.A.4 of the RAD Notice. 
29 42 U.S.C. § 1437f(bb). 
30 For RAD conversions to PBRA, the RAD Notice uses the term “the site and neighborhood is suitable,” rather than 
“the site is suitable.” See Appendix III of the RAD Notice, paragraph (a). 
31 See 24 C.F.R. § 983.57 and the RAD Notice at Section 1.4(A)(7) 

18 

Page 164 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023.  
      Page | 124 of 195 
 

requirements described in 24 C.F.R. § 8.4(b)(5).32 The Fair Housing Act, as implemented at 24 
C.F.R. § 100.205, requires “covered multifamily dwellings” built for first occupancy after March 
13, 1991, to contain accessible design features. HUD’s Section 504 regulations at 24 C.F.R. § 
8.4(b)(5) require that, in determining the site or location of a federally assisted facility, an 
applicant for assistance or recipient may not make selections the purpose or effect of which 
would: (i) exclude qualified individuals with disabilities from, deny them the benefits of, or 
otherwise subject them to discrimination under, any program or activity that receives Federal 
financial assistance from HUD, or (ii) defeat or substantially impair the accomplishment of the 
objectives of the program or activity with respect to qualified individuals with disabilities. Title  
II of the ADA contains a similar requirement that a public entity, such as the PHA, may not, in 
determining the site or location of a facility, make selections (i) that have the effect of excluding 
individuals with disabilities from, denying them the benefits of, or otherwise subjecting them to 
discrimination; or (ii) that have the purpose or effect of defeating or substantially impairing the 
accomplishment of the objectives of the service, program, or activity with respect to individuals 
with disabilities.33 Factors relevant to a site review under these standards may include, among 
others: 
 

• Site features, such as inaccessible slopes in routes, lack of accessible sidewalks, curb 
ramps, accessible parking spaces, and placement of dumpsters or other physical 
features that would impede access to and movement within the site; 

• Building features, such as inaccessible building entrances, other methods of ingress 
and egress, public and common use areas (e.g., the rental office, parking areas, mail 
areas, trash areas, community rooms, shared use toilet rooms, laundry facilities and 
walkways inside and outside that connect these public and common use areas to 
units), and barriers to access by members of the public; and 

• Lack of accessible transit or para-transit and accessible public sidewalks and 
accessible transportation stops. 

 
When such conditions are present at the site and would exclude individuals with disabilities  
from, deny them the benefits of, or otherwise subject them to discrimination, or would defeat or 
substantially impair the accomplishment of the objectives of the program or activity with respect 
to individuals with disabilities, the site must not be selected unless the proposal includes 
remediation of the barriers to achieve compliance with accessibility requirements (including 
identification and remediation of any nonconforming design and construction conditions in 
“covered multifamily dwellings” under the Fair Housing Act). Remediation of the barriers may 
include, for example, physical accessibility improvements to the site, arrangements for access to 
accessible supportive services, or reasonable accommodations for current or prospective  
residents with disabilities, including members of the public. The Financing Plan submitted to 
HUD must describe and document resources sufficient to pay for the remediation of accessibility 
barriers.34 
 
 
 
32 See 24 C.F.R. § 983.57(b)(2) (PBV conversions); see also, Appendix III (a) of the RAD Notice (PBRA 
conversions). 
33 See 28 C.F.R. § 35.130(b)(4). 
34 In conducting its review prior to certification, and in preparing for the certification, PHAs and Project Owners may 
find it useful to consult with their local or regional FHEO office, the United States Access Board, local or state 

19 

Page 165 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023.  
      Page | 125 of 195 
 

While all PHAs must certify their compliance with applicable site selection requirements as 
described in this Section, some RAD transactions will also be subject to a front-end review of the 
site selection. For transactions involving activities that present site selection issues of greater 
complexity, as described in Sections 5.3 through 5.5 below, front-end review will allow HUD’s 
Office of Fair Housing and Equal Opportunity (FHEO) to assist the PHA to consider relevant  
laws and regulations while completing its site selection review and certification. 
 
5.3. RAD Front-End Civil Rights Transaction Review 
 
Fair Housing Act and other civil rights issues may arise throughout a RAD transaction. Under  
the Fair Housing Act, an assessment of site suitability includes an analysis of the impact that the 
siting of the project would have on patterns of segregation for protected classes. The Fair 
Housing Act is of particular importance when a RAD proposal concerns site selection for new 
construction or reconfiguration of housing on the original public housing site – for example, the 
unit size distribution (e.g., conversion of larger bedroom size units to one-bedroom units, which 
may have an adverse impact on housing opportunities for families with children) or a reduction  
in the number or distribution of accessible units (which may have an adverse impact on housing 
opportunities for persons with disabilities). RAD conversions involving new construction must 
also comply with the Fair Housing Act’s accessibility requirements. 
 
Compliance with all applicable fair housing and civil rights requirements is the responsibility of 
both the PHA and the Project Owner. However, to assist with compliance, HUD’s Office of Fair 
Housing and Equal Opportunity (FHEO) will conduct a front-end civil rights review of project 
proposals containing activities identified as particularly at risk of violating applicable fair  
housing and civil rights laws. The activities that must be submitted for front-end civil rights 
review are listed in Section 5.3(A), below. 
 

A) Activities Subject to Front-End Civil Rights Review 
 
All RAD conversions that include one or more of the activities listed below (Sections 5.3(A)(1) 
through 5.3(A)(9)) are subject to a front-end review for compliance with certain civil rights and 
fair housing requirements. The specific items that HUD will review in the front-end review will 
depend on which activities are involved in the specific transaction. A RAD conversion may not 
include one of the activities below without prior written approval from HUD. All Financing  
Plans must include evidence that the PHA has secured written approval from HUD for any of the 
following activities that are included in its RAD conversion: 
 

(1) Conversions of assistance involving new construction, whether on a new site or 
on a current site, in an area of minority concentration. Front-end review of this 
activity shall be pursuant to Section 5.4(B), below and, in addition, the PHA shall 

 
 
 
 

 
architectural access board or other accessibility authority for information on accessibility standards. Other sources of 
information on accessibility requirements may include protection and advocacy organizations or independent living 
centers. In addition, the non-HUD resources may provide advice on how to assess accessibility needs and formulate 
physical accessibility strategies. 

20 

Page 166 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023.  
      Page | 126 of 195 
 

certify in its Annual Plan compliance with site and neighborhood standards 
applicable to new construction as described in Section 5.2. 

 
(2) Transfers of assistance where all or a portion of the Converting Project’s 

assistance is transferred to a new site(s) (either new construction or to an existing 
project) as part of the subject transaction. Front-end review of this activity shall 
be pursuant to Section 5.5(B), below and, in addition, the PHA shall certify in its 
Annual Plan compliance with site and neighborhood standards applicable to 
existing housing as described in Section 5.2. 

 
(3) Conversions of assistance where the total number of units in the Covered Project 

is less than the original number of units in the Converting Project (this includes de 
minimis reductions). Front-end review of this activity shall be pursuant to 
Section 5.6. 

 
(4) Conversions of assistance where the Covered Project’s unit configuration is 

different from the unit configuration of the Converting Project. Front-end review 
of this activity shall be pursuant to Section 5.6. 

 
(5) Conversions involving a change in occupancy, where the Covered Project serves a 

different population from the one served by the Converting Project (e.g., when a 
Converting Project serves families but the Covered Project is subject to an elderly 
preference or introduction of restrictions or preferences based on age or disability 
that will change the occupancy of the property). Front-end review of this activity 
shall be pursuant to Section 5.6. 

 
(6) Conversions of assistance in which the construction schedule indicates that 

relocation is likely to exceed 12 months. Front-end review of this activity shall be 
pursuant to Section 5.7(A). 

 
(7) Conversions of assistance involving new construction or substantial alteration,35 

as those terms are defined in Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973. 
Front-end review of this activity shall be pursuant to Section 5.7(B). 

 
(8) Conversions of assistance involving a Converting Project subject to a Voluntary 

Compliance Agreement or Conciliation Agreement with HUD or a Consent 
Decree or Settlement Agreement with the U.S. Department of Justice or HUD, or 
where the PHA is subject to such an agreement affecting its entire housing 
portfolio or otherwise related to the Converting Project. Front-end review of this 
activity shall be pursuant to Section 5.7(C). 

 
 
 
 
 

 
35 Section 504 defines substantial alteration of a housing project as alterations where a housing project has 15 or 
more units, and the rehabilitation costs will be 75% or more of the replacement cost of the completed facility. See 24 
C.F.R. § 8.23 (a). 

21 

Page 167 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023.  
      Page | 127 of 195 
 

(9) Conversions of assistance where HUD has identified potential fair housing and 
civil rights concerns or a history of such concerns. Front-end review of this 
activity shall be pursuant to Section 5.7(C). 

 
PHAs should note that a proposed RAD conversion may trigger front-end review regarding more 
than one of the activities listed in subsections (1) through (9) of this Section. For example, 
depending on the details of the proposal, a new construction on-site project could require review 
under subsections (1), (3), (4), (5), (6), and (7), or could require review under only subsections 
(1) and (7). 
 
As part of HUD’s review of these elements of the RAD conversion plans, HUD may require that 
PHAs that are carrying out portfolio or multi-phased conversions provide information on their 
conversion plans for other projects or subsequent phases to ensure that the overall plans for RAD 
conversion are consistent with civil rights and fair housing. 
 

B) Fair Housing, Civil Rights, and Relocation Checklist 
 
In connection with HUD’s front-end fair housing and civil rights and relocation reviews  
described in this Section 5 and in Section 6, HUD is requiring submission of a Fair Housing,  
Civil Rights, and Relocation Checklist (the “Checklist”). The Checklist will facilitate the PHAs’ 
and Project Owners’ submission of necessary information to complete these reviews.36 HUD 
anticipates that a revised Checklist, when available following Paperwork Reduction Act  
approval, will be separated into parts which can be submitted incrementally as the PHA and 
Project Owner develop the RAD transaction plans, with different elements of the Checklist 
applicable at different stages of the transaction planning process. For example, submissions 
regarding site selection for a RAD transaction involving new construction may occur well before 
submissions regarding a proposal to change the unit configuration. 
 
The Checklist will outline the minimum information or documentation which HUD will need in 
order to review each part of the Checklist. After HUD’s initial review of any portion of the 
Checklist, HUD may determine that the data provided in the Checklist is insufficient for HUD to 
complete its review, in which case HUD may require the PHA or Project Owner to provide 
supplemental information. The PHA should submit each part as early as possible once the 
information covered in the applicable part is known. All information specified in the applicable 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
36 The Checklist is available at www.hud.gov/rad. As of the publication of this Notice, references to the Checklist 
refer to the existing FHEO Accessibility and Relocation Plan Checklist under OMB Approval 2577-0276. The PHA 
shall use the existing Checklist to provide information related to demonstrating compliance with fair housing, other 
civil rights, and relocation requirements (including accessibility requirements) and, as necessary, may require 
additional materials for HUD to complete its review, which the PHA may provide in such form as the PHA 
determines appropriate. Also at www.hud.gov/rad, HUD has provided a listing of information that, depending on the 
circumstances, HUD may require to complete different components of its front-end review. The Checklist is being 
revised to fully capture the submission requirements described in this Notice. The revised Checklist will be subject to 
Paperwork Reduction Act approval and will be posted at the website listed above when available for use. 

22 

Page 168 of 301

http://www.hud.gov/rad
http://www.hud.gov/rad


 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023.  
      Page | 128 of 195 
 

part of the Checklist must be submitted to HUD for HUD to begin its civil rights review – partial 
submissions of any applicable part of the Checklist will not be accepted.37 

C) Timing of Front-End Review Submissions 
 
PHAs and Project Owners are encouraged to submit applicable portions of the Checklist and 
information associated with a particular activity subject to front-end review as early as possible  
in the development of their plans. The PHA must ensure that HUD has approved all applicable 
parts of the Checklist prior to submission of the Financing Plan. Upon request from the PHA, 
HUD may, at HUD’s sole discretion, permit submission of the Financing Plan prior to receipt of 
approval of the applicable parts of the Checklist and conditioned upon subsequent receipt of such 
approvals, in which event the PHA and Project Owner may proceed at their own risk. 
 
Early approval of the site of the Covered Project is critical for RAD transaction proposals subject 
to front-end civil rights review involving site selection standards, specifically new construction  
in areas of minority concentration (see Section 5.3(A)(1)) and transfers of assistance (see Section 
5.3(A)(2)). The PHA must conduct its own assessment of the site during the early stages of 
planning its RAD transaction. The guidance in this Notice and the Checklist are tools intended to 
assist the PHA in conducting its own assessment of the site. 
 
The PHA must provide HUD with the Checklist and backup information sufficient for HUD to 
review the site with respect to the applicable standards. The site selection information should be 
provided to HUD no later than ninety (90) days following the issuance of the CHAP or, if the 
CHAP has already been issued as of the publication of this Notice, within ninety (90) days 
following publication of this Notice. In the event of a change in plans for the Converting Project 
that would require a front-end review of the site selection standards, the PHA must provide the 
Checklist and backup documentation within sixty (60) days of the change in plans. PHAs are 
strongly encouraged to provide front-end review submissions and secure HUD approval prior to 
applying for LIHTCs or taking action the reversal of which (in the event of non-approval of the 
site) would be detrimental to the PHA or the Project Owner. PHAs are also encouraged to  
contact FHEO for technical assistance prior to submission of these materials. 
 
All PHAs shall submit a certification consistent with the requirements of Section 5.2, above.  
This certification may be prepared specifically in connection with the Checklist or as part of the 
PHA Annual Plan or Significant Amendment. However, HUD will not consider a submission 
complete for front-end civil rights review without this certification. All RAD conversions must 
submit the PHA certification described in Section 5.2 no later than at the time of submission of 
the Financing Plan. 
 

D) Completion of HUD’s Front-End Review 
 
HUD will not approve a RAD conversion if HUD determines that the conversion would operate  
to discriminate in violation of applicable fair housing and civil rights laws. HUD will not  
approve proposals that have the purpose, intent, or effect of discriminating on the basis of 
 
 
37 The Checklist refers to the existing FHEO Accessibility and Relocation Checklist until a revised Checklist is approved 
for use pursuant to the Paperwork Reduction Act. 

23 

Page 169 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023.  
      Page | 129 of 195 
 

protected class (i.e., race, color, national origin, religion, sex, disability, and familial status). If 
HUD does not approve a proposed activity based on a front-end review, then it will provide a 
written description of concerns or deficiencies. The PHA may resubmit the front-end review 
materials with a changed proposal and/or with additional information addressing HUD’s  
concerns and any deficiencies in the proposal or the submission. 
 
In some circumstances, a special condition to the transaction’s RCC will be necessary to ensure 
that a RAD transaction conforms to fair housing and civil rights requirements. Special  
conditions to the RCC reflect the conditions necessary in order to complete the RAD conversion. 
For example, if there is an outstanding remedial agreement or order requiring particular 
development activities or operating policies to correct a violation of a fair housing or other civil 
rights requirement, the RCC generally will condition participation in RAD upon agreement by  
the PHA or the Project Owner, as applicable, to comply with the provisions of such agreements  
or orders after conversion. 
 
5.4. Front-End Civil Rights Review for RAD Transactions Involving New Construction 
 

A) Conditions Triggering Review 
 
If the proposed project is located in an area of minority concentration, the new site may be 
approved only if it falls under a permitted exception and meets the other site selection 
requirements described in Section 5.2. Under the PBV and PBRA site and neighborhood 
standards, HUD may approve new construction in an area of minority concentration, consistent 
with the regulatory requirements cited above, only if: 
 

a. Sufficient, comparable housing opportunities for minority families in the income 
range to be served by the proposed project exist outside areas of minority 
concentration; or 

b. The project is necessary to meet overriding housing needs that cannot be met in that 
housing market area.38 

As described in the RAD Notice and in Section 5.3(A) of this Notice, above, HUD will conduct a 
front-end civil rights review of the PHA’s proposed site in certain circumstances. This Notice 
specifies that for conversions of assistance involving new construction where there are  
indications that the site may be located in an area of minority concentration per the criteria in 
subsections (i), (ii), or (iii), below (whether the construction is located on the existing public 
housing site or on a new site), HUD will conduct a front-end civil rights review of the site to 
determine whether the site is in an area of minority concentration and, if so, whether it meets one 
of the exceptions that would allow for new construction in an area of minority concentration. 
 
The PHA shall submit for HUD front-end review the PHA’s findings, together with backup 
documentation, regarding site selection when the site meets any of the following criteria: 
 

i. The PHA self-identifies the area of the site as an area of minority concentration, 
 
 
 
38 24 C.F.R. § 983.57(e)(3) and Appendix III of the RAD Notice, paragraph (e). 

24 

Page 170 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023.  
      Page | 130 of 195 
 

ii. The census tract of the site meets the extent of minority concentration described in 
Section 5.4(B)(1), below, or 

iii. An area comprised of the census tract of the site together with all adjacent census 
tracts, analyzed as a whole, meets the extent of minority concentration described in 
Section 5.4(B)(1), below. 

 
If any of these three criteria is applicable, HUD will conduct a review to determine whether the 
site is in an area of minority concentration and, if applicable, whether the proposed site fits one  
of the exceptions permitting new construction in an area of minority concentration described in 
this Section 5.4. A proposed RAD transaction which does not meet one of these triggers must 
still be evaluated by the PHA and the PHA must certify compliance with the site selection 
requirements as described in Section 5.2, above. 
 
A PHA seeking to undertake new construction must receive written approval from HUD of any 
site selection subject to front-end review prior to entering into any construction contract for that 
new construction. 
 

B) Analysis of Areas of Minority Concentration 
 
This Section sets forth the methodology that HUD will use in the analysis of the extent of  
minority concentration, the area of the site, and the housing market area for purposes of the RAD 
front-end civil rights review. As noted below, this analysis is fact specific and PHAs may submit 
documentation to inform HUD’s analysis in cases where there is strong evidence that an 
alternative methodology would be more appropriate. 
 

(1) For purposes of RAD, a site is considered to be in an area of minority 
concentration when either (i) the percentage of persons of a particular racial or 
ethnic minority within the area of the site is at least 20 percentage points higher 
than the percentage of that minority group in the housing market area as a whole 
or (ii) the total percentage of minority persons within the area of the site is at least 
20 points higher than the total percentage of minorities in the housing market area 
as a whole.39 

(2) For purposes of RAD, the analysis of an area of minority concentration will use 
census tracts to approximate the “area” of the site but the analysis may consider 
alternate proposed geographies instead of the census tract in instances where there 
is strong evidence that such geography is more appropriate. Strong evidence that 
an alternative geography is more appropriate includes: (i) that the site is close to 
the edge of the census tract, (ii) that the population of the census tract is heavily 
influenced by the size of the Converting Project, or (iii) that the local community 

 
 

 
39 The percentage of minorities shall be calculated by subtracting the percentage of White Non-Hispanic persons in 
the relevant area from 100%. The analysis shall be based on the most recently available decennial census data found  
at http://factfinder.census.gov/faces/tableservices/jsf/pages/productview.xhtml?pid=DEC_10_DP_DPDP1&src=pt. 
However, if such data is more than five years old, and if either the PHA or HUD requests the use of more recent data 
based on such party’s awareness of significant and material shifts in the demographics of the relevant area in the 
intervening years, the analysis shall be based on the most recent American Communities Survey data. 

25 

Page 171 of 301

http://factfinder.census.gov/faces/tableservices/jsf/pages/productview.xhtml?pid=DEC_10_DP_DPDP1&src=pt


 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023.  
      Page | 131 of 195 
 

understanding of the immediate neighborhood dictates a different boundary. 
Local community understanding of the immediate neighborhood is often informed 
by factors such as patterns of housing stock (such as different residential densities 
in different areas or differential housing prices for similar properties), community 
facilities and amenities (such as schools and commercial areas) or major 
geographic barriers (such as rivers or interstate highways), among other factors.40 
HUD will determine the site’s “area” using the best available evidence and 
following the legal standards set forth in applicable case law. 

 
(3) For purposes of the RAD analysis under this Section 5.4, a “housing market area” 

is the geographic region from which it is likely that residents of housing at the 
proposed site would be drawn for a given multifamily housing project. A housing 
market area generally corresponds to, as applicable: (i) the Metropolitan 
Statistical Area (MetroSA); (ii) the Micropolitan Statistical Area (MicroSA); or 
(iii) if the site is in neither a MetroSA nor a MicroSA, either (x) the county or 
statistically equivalent area, or (y) the PHA’s service area, whichever is larger.41 
The analysis may consider a larger or smaller housing market area in instances 
where there is strong evidence that such housing market area is more appropriate. 
Strong evidence that an alternative housing market area is more appropriate may 
include factors such as regional employment centers and commuting patterns 
serving such employment centers. A PHA seeking to use an alternative housing 
market area must consult with HUD and establish to HUD’s satisfaction that the 
methodology for identifying and documenting the alternative housing market area 
is warranted and sound. 

 
C) The Sufficient Comparable Opportunities Exception 

 
As required by the RAD Notice and noted in Section 5.4(A), one of the exceptions under which 
the site and neighborhood standards permit new construction in areas of minority concentration  
is if sufficient, comparable housing opportunities for low-income minority families exist outside 
areas of minority concentration. This section clarifies HUD’s procedures for assessing 
comparable housing opportunities and evaluating how the proposed new construction will impact 
the balance of housing choices within and outside areas of minority concentration. It also  
includes a list of the information PHAs should submit to inform HUD’s assessment of relevant 
factors, and key considerations guiding HUD’s analysis of each factor. 
 
Under the governing PBV and PBRA requirements, units are considered comparable 
opportunities if they are the same household type (e.g., elderly, disabled, family, large family), 
tenure type (owner, renter), require approximately the same total tenant payment toward rent, 
 
 
 

 
40 For further explanation, see, e.g., King v. Harris, 464 F.Supp.827, 839-41 (E.D.N.Y. 1979). 
41 Items (i) and (ii) are consistent with a Core Based Statistical Area as defined by the Office of Management and 
Budget. For reference, a Core Based Statistical Area consists of the county or counties or equivalent entities 
associated with at least one core (urbanized area or urban cluster) of at least 10,000 population, plus adjacent  
counties having a high degree of social and economic integration with the core as measured through commuting ties 
with the counties associated with the core. 

26 

Page 172 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023.  
      Page | 132 of 195 
 

serve the same income group, are located in the same housing market area, and are in standard 
condition.42 

It is important to note that the sufficient comparable housing opportunities exception “does not 
require that in every locality there be an equal number of assisted units within and outside of  
areas of minority concentration. Rather, application of this standard should produce a reasonable 
distribution of assisted units each year, that, over a period of several years, will approach an 
appropriate balance of housing choices within and outside areas of minority concentration. An 
appropriate balance in any jurisdiction must be determined in light of local conditions affecting 
the range of housing choices available for low-income minority families and in relation to the 
racial mix of the locality’s population.”43 

HUD will assess “the overall impact of HUD-assisted housing on the availability of housing 
choices for low-income minority families in and outside areas of minority concentration, and 
must take into account the extent to which the following factors are present, along with other 
factors relevant to housing choice.”44 Under this exception, it is not sufficient for one factor to  
be present, nor is it required that all factors be present, as the analysis must consider all relevant 
facts and evaluate the totality of the circumstances. 
 

• “A significant number of assisted housing units are available outside areas of 
minority concentration.”45 While HUD must consider all factors relevant to housing 
choice, 30% or more of deeply subsidized housing units for very low-income persons 
would be a significant number. To facilitate HUD’s consideration of this factor, a 
PHA should provide the number, occupancy type, and location of all comparable 
assisted units.46 

• “There is significant integration of assisted housing projects constructed or 
rehabilitated in the past 10 years, relative to the racial mix of the eligible 
population.”47 To facilitate HUD’s consideration of this factor, a PHA should 
provide the name and location of assisted housing projects constructed or 
rehabilitated in the PHA’s jurisdiction in the past 10 years and the demographic 
characteristics of the residents of each of these projects; 

• “There are racially integrated neighborhoods in the locality.”48 To facilitate HUD’s 
consideration of this factor, a PHA should provide the name and census tracts where 
these racially integrated neighborhoods are located. In general, HUD will consider a 
neighborhood racially integrated if the neighborhood does not have a high 
concentration of persons of a particular race or ethnicity when compared to the 
housing market area in which the neighborhood is located. 

 

 
42 See 24 C.F.R. § 983.57(e)(3)(iv) and Appendix III of the RAD Notice, paragraph (e)(1)(A). 
43 24 C.F.R. § 983.57(e)(3)(iii); see also Appendix III of the RAD Notice, paragraph (e)(1). 
44 24 C.F.R. § 983.57(e)(3)(v); see also Appendix III of the RAD Notice, paragraph (e)(1)(B). 
45 24 C.F.R. § 983.57(e)(3)(v)(A) and Appendix III of the RAD Notice, paragraph (e)(1)(B)(i). 
46 Note that this factor is in reference to comparable assisted units that may or may not be in the PHA’s portfolio. 
The presumption stated at the end of this Section (i.e., that sufficient comparable opportunities exist if at least 50%  
of the comparable hard units in the PHA’s portfolio, including PBV developments using the PHA’s subsidy, are 
outside areas of minority concentration) is focused on units within the PHA’s portfolio. 
47 24 C.F.R. § 983.57(e)(3)(v)(B) and Appendix III of the RAD Notice, paragraph (e)(1)(B)(ii). 
48 24 C.F.R. § 983.57(e)(3)(v)(C) and Appendix III of the RAD Notice, paragraph (e)(1)(B)(iii). 

27 

Page 173 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023.  
      Page | 133 of 195 
 

• “Programs are operated by the locality to assist minority families that wish to find 
housing outside areas of minority concentration.”49 Such programs may include 
measures such as increasing payment standards in excess of 110% of FMR or the use 
of Small Area FMRs, including in setting exception rents, or reservation of a 
percentage of HCVs dedicated to support choice mobility selections or 
implementation of proven mobility counseling and supports for residents, provided 
the PHA provides sufficient evidence that it will continue such measures. To 
facilitate HUD’s consideration of this factor, a PHA should provide the names of the 
applicable program(s); the entity responsible for implementing the program(s) (e.g., 
city, county, state government); and any information demonstrating that the 
program(s) has been successful or predictably will achieve success in assisting 
persons who wish to move to non-concentrated areas. 

• “Minority families have benefited from local activities (e.g., acquisition and write- 
down of sites, tax relief programs for homeowners, acquisitions of units for use as 
assisted housing units) undertaken to expand choice for minority families outside of 
areas of minority concentration.”50 To facilitate HUD’s consideration of this factor, a 
PHA should provide the names of the applicable activity(s); the entity responsible for 
implementing the activity(s) (e.g., city, county, state government); and any 
information demonstrating that the activity(s) has been successful in expanding 
choice for minority families outside of areas of minority concentration; 

• “A significant proportion of minority households has been successful in finding units 
in non-minority areas under the tenant-based assistance programs” (e.g., the Housing 
Choice Voucher programs).51 To facilitate HUD’s consideration of this factor, a PHA 
should provide the number of minority households receiving Housing Choice 
Vouchers; the number of minority households using HCVs in non-minority areas; and 
the non-minority census tracts where the HCVs are being used. While each local 
situation is distinct and HUD must consider all factors relevant to housing choice, 
30% or more of new leases signed by minority heads of household using HCVs 
located in non-minority areas over a period greater than three years prior to the date 
of HUD’s analysis would be a significant proportion. 

• “Comparable housing opportunities have been made available outside areas of 
minority concentration through other programs.”52 To facilitate HUD’s consideration 
of this factor, a PHA should describe the opportunities that have been made available, 
the location of those opportunities, and the number of minority families that have 
benefitted from the program in recent years. Such programs could include choice 
mobility strategies, acquisition strategies to acquire and add to the PHA’s portfolio 
existing apartments in high opportunity areas and transfers of assistance to high 
opportunity areas. 

 
HUD may consider evidence based on a reliable housing market analysis in evaluating the  
foregoing factors, along with other factors relevant to housing choice. In the event HUD 
 
 

 
49 24 C.F.R. § 983.57(e)(3)(v)(D); see also Appendix III of the RAD Notice, paragraph (e)(1)(B)(iv). 
50 24 C.F.R. § 983.57(e)(3)(v)(E); see also Appendix III of the RAD Notice, paragraph (e)(1)(B)(v). 
51 24 C.F.R. § 983.57(e)(3)(v)(F); see also Appendix III of the RAD Notice, paragraph (e)(1)(B)(vi). 
52 24 C.F.R. § 983.57(e)(3)(v)(G) and Appendix III of the RAD Notice, paragraph (e)(1)(B)(vii). 

28 

Page 174 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023.  
      Page | 134 of 195 
 

determines such an analysis would assist in this evaluation, HUD will consult with appropriate 
parties to establish or accept an appropriate methodology for such an analysis to address HUD’s 
civil rights concerns and to ensure appropriate independence between the analyst and the PHA or 
Project Owner commissioning and paying for the study. 
 
Absent information to the contrary, for purposes of HUD’s front-end review of the PHA’s 
analysis, HUD will apply a presumption that sufficient comparable opportunities exist if at least 
50% of the comparable hard units in the PHA’s portfolio, including PBV developments using the 
PHA’s subsidy, are outside areas of minority concentration.53 The PHA’s portfolio includes all 
public housing, PBV and PBRA hard units (including those developed under HOPE VI or  
Choice Neighborhoods) controlled by the PHA and its instrumentalities or funded using PHA- 
controlled subsidy. Upon adequate documentation of this presumption, the PHA need not  
provide additional documentation for HUD’s front-end review of the sufficient comparable 
opportunities exception. This presumption may be rebutted by information to the contrary, 
including information regarding the preceding factors. In assessing whether sufficient  
comparable opportunities exist when the presumption does not apply, HUD will consider the 
factors listed above. 
 
Absent information to the contrary, for purposes of HUD’s front-end review of the PHA’s 
analysis, HUD will apply a presumption that sufficient comparable opportunities exist if a set of 
RAD conversions from a single public housing property, individually or in a combination of 
transactions, will result in the creation of as many similarly-affordable housing units outside  
areas of minority concentration as are constructed on the original public housing site. To  
evaluate the creation of similarly-affordable units, HUD will compare (i) the number of 
affordable units that will be redeveloped on site, to (ii) the number of similarly-affordable 
housing units that will be created through new construction, imposition of new long-term 
affordability restrictions or transfer of RAD assistance to one or more sites outside areas of 
minority concentration.54 Similarly-affordable shall mean RAD units compared to RAD units  
and LIHTC/non-RAD units compared to LIHTC/non-RAD units. The newly created similarly- 
affordable units must be owned, controlled, sponsored, under common ownership, control or 
sponsorship, or financially supported by the PHA or by an entity with a managing ownership 
interest in the Project Owner. When a PHA seeks to claim this exception, HUD prefers that the 
transaction creating the similarly-affordable units on the site outside areas of minority 
concentration close (with an immediate or delayed HAP effective date, if applicable) prior to the 
closing of the RAD conversion in the area of minority concentration. However, if the PHA 
determines that such a sequence is not reasonably possible, unless otherwise approved by HUD 
the PHA must provide evidence to HUD that the transfer of assistance to a site outside areas of 
 
 

 
53 When determining the percentage of units outside of areas of minority concentration, the PHA must include the 
number of units planned at the proposed site in its calculations. While not required, PHAs or Project Owners may 
assist HUD in consideration of this presumption by submitting to HUD a map produced by the Affirmatively 
Furthering Fair Housing Data and Mapping Tool (“AFFH-T”), as may be available on the HUD website from time  
to time, showing the location of publicly assisted housing. 
54 For example, if the PHA proposes to build 25 RAD units, 20 non-RAD LIHTC units and 15 unrestricted units on- 
site, such a plan could be acceptable if paired with creation of 15 RAD units at one site and 10 RAD units plus 20 
non-RAD LIHTC units at a second site. The 15 unrestricted units in the minority concentrated area are not part of  
the analysis as they are not affordable units. 

29 

Page 175 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023.  
      Page | 135 of 195 
 

minority concentration is highly likely to occur and the PHA must contractually agree with HUD 
to create such units. Evidence that the transfer is highly likely to occur must include: 
 

• The project name and property address of the site of the similarly-affordable units to 
be created, 

• The census tract and data to confirm that it is not in an area of minority concentration, 
• Evidence of site control, 
• Evidence of zoning to permit construction of the similarly-affordable units if the 

affordable units are to be created through new construction, 
• A reasonable and feasible sources and uses statement for the transaction, and 
• Evidence of financing commitments exceeding 90% of the necessary sources to 

complete the transaction. Evidence of financing commitments must include an 
LIHTC allocation if the use of LIHTCs is projected. 

 
D) The Overriding Housing Needs Exception 

 
As noted in Section 5.4(A), the second exception under which the site and neighborhood  
standards permit new construction in areas of minority concentration is if the project is necessary 
to meet overriding housing needs that cannot be met in that housing market area. The new 
construction site selection standards under RAD55 outline two examples of circumstances, 
consistent with fair housing and other civil rights objectives, that would permit the application of 
the overriding housing needs exception: (1) when the site is “an integral part of an overall local 
strategy for the preservation or restoration of the immediate neighborhood;” or (2) when the site  
is “located in a neighborhood experiencing significant private investment that is demonstrably 
improving the economic character of the area (a “revitalizing area”).”56 

(1) Establishing that a Site is an Integral Part of an Overall Local Strategy for the 
Preservation or Restoration of the Immediate Neighborhood 

 
To establish that a site is an integral part of an overall local strategy for the preservation or 
restoration of the immediate neighborhood, a PHA must document that the locality has a 
demonstrated commitment to revitalization that includes or is in addition to the RAD conversion, 
as demonstrated by the following: 
 

i. The site is located in a defined geographic area that is the subject of an official, 
currently operational and realistically achievable plan for the improvement or 
revitalization of the immediate neighborhood (which plan may include areas beyond 
the immediate neighborhood); and 

ii. The Covered Project conforms to, and the site is integral to, the goals, strategies, and 
objectives of the improvement or revitalization plan. 

 
 

 
55 See 24 C.F.R. § 983.57(e)(2) for PBV transactions and paragraph (e) of Appendix III of the RAD Notice for  
PBRA transactions. 
56 24 C.F.R. § 983.57(e)(3)(vi); see also Appendix III of the RAD Notice, paragraph (e)(1)(B)(viii)(2). In 
demonstrating an overriding housing need, the “neighborhood” is determined in each situation based on the overall 
facts and circumstances and cannot be mechanically determined. The “immediate neighborhood” is generally a 
smaller geographic area than the “neighborhood.” 

30 

Page 176 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023.  
      Page | 136 of 195 
 

In determining whether such an official, currently operational and realistically achievable plan  
for the improvement or revitalization of the area exists, HUD will consider relevant factors 
including, for example, whether: 
 

• The strategy itself, or a plan supporting the strategy, has been enacted, adopted, or 
ratified by a municipal, county, or state legislative body; 

• There has been progress to implement the plan, or the strategy as a whole.57 
• The plan or strategy as a whole, or the elements applicable to the Covered Project, 

are consistent with the jurisdiction’s land use or zoning code, development 
regulations, or other official body of laws or rules; 

• Strategies or activities under the plan are incorporated in current public, quasi- 
public agency or major institutional work plans; 

• The plan, or the strategy as a whole, includes objectives and initiatives related to 
the preservation or restoration of a geography larger than the Converting Project 
and any associated public housing site; 

• A jurisdiction has published solicitations or incentives for development projects in 
the improvement or revitalization area; 

• The plan is incorporated in the applicable jurisdiction’s Consolidated Plan or 
other comprehensive community development plan; 

• A jurisdiction has explicitly designated the geographic area for improvement or 
revitalization (e.g., Business Improvement District; Enterprise Zone designation; 
Promise Zone designation; Choice Neighborhoods designation); 

• An implementing agency has retained a construction firm to break ground on the 
improvement or revitalization; and/or 

• An implementing agency has secured financing, such as the issuance of bonds or 
final approval for tax increment financing. 

 
(2) Establishing that the Site is Located in a “Revitalizing Area” 

 
Evidence that the site is located in a revitalizing area experiencing significant private investment 
that is demonstrably improving the economic character of the area is also an example of a site 
which meets an overriding housing need. HUD will consider all relevant factors in making a 
determination that the site is located in a “revitalizing area” but in particular will consider 
whether: 
 

i. The neighborhood has demonstrated signs of revitalization, through indicators such as 
low or declining census tract poverty rates, low or declining violent crime rates or 
evidence of high or increased educational opportunity, high or increasing median 

 
 
 

 
57 Indicators of progress should be appropriate to the amount of time since the plan or strategy was developed and 
there must be a reasonable, supportable expectation that the plan will continue to be implemented. For example, if a 
plan was launched 3-4 years prior and the initial steps of the plan required implementation of an initiative (such as 
real estate development) which has a long pre-development planning period, HUD may consider whether there has 
been activity to seek land development approvals or to develop construction drawings or to secure funding 
commitments or other activities providing evidence that one or more material elements of the plan or strategy are 
actually being implemented. 

31 

Page 177 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023.  
      Page | 137 of 195 
 

household income, high or increasing homeownership rates and/or high or increased 
employment; and 

ii. There is high private and public investment in retail, commercial, or housing 
development that has occurred or will imminently occur in the area which may 
include, among other considerations: 
• Evidence of new or improved retail centers, grocery stores, pharmacies, 

healthcare facilities, community centers, educational and recreational facilities, 
municipal services, and transportation serving the neighborhood; 

• Evidence of private and public investment or housing development that has 
occurred or will imminently occur in the area; 

• Evidence of economic conditions that are impacting the preservation of affordable 
housing in the neighborhood, including indicators of gentrification such as 
housing costs rising more sharply in the neighborhood than in the jurisdiction 
overall, accelerated rates of homeownership in the neighborhood, and 
disproportionate depletion of larger dwellings for families with children. 

 
(3) Circumstances in Which an Overriding Housing Needs Exception Does Not 

Apply 
 
A PHA cannot establish that a site meets the overriding housing needs exception if the only 
reason the need cannot otherwise be feasibly met is that discrimination on the basis of race,  
color, religion, sex, national origin, age, familial status, or disability renders sites outside areas of 
minority concentration unavailable or if the use of this standard in recent years has had the effect 
of circumventing the obligation to provide housing choice.58 For example, the overriding  
housing needs exception may not be applied if the reason that the project cannot be sited outside 
of an area of minority concentration is due to community opposition to the project based on the 
actual or perceived protected characteristics of the residents or prospective residents of the  
project. In addition, a recipient may not exclusively rely on this exception as a means of siting 
projects without creating housing opportunities outside of areas of minority concentration or 
without preserving existing housing outside of areas of minority concentration. 
 
5.5. Front-End Civil Rights Review for RAD Transactions Involving Transfer of Assistance 
 

A) Applicable Standards 
 
Transfers of assistance are subject to the site selection standards for existing or rehabilitated 
housing set forth in 24 C.F.R. § 983.57(a)-(d), with the exception of 24 C.F.R. § 983.57(b)(1)  
and (c)(2), for PBV conversions and Appendix III of the RAD Notice for PBRA conversions. 
All transfers of assistance to a new site(s) are subject to front-end review by HUD, as required by 
the RAD Notice and noted in Section 5.3(A)(2) of this Notice. Conversions involving a transfer  
of assistance may also involve one or more of the other activities which trigger front-end review 
as described in Section 5.3(A). In transfers of assistance involving any of these activities, HUD 
 

 
58 24 C.F.R. § 983.57(e)(3)(vi) and Appendix III of the RAD Notice, paragraph (e)(2). The PBRA site and 
neighborhood standards use the phrase “on the basis of race, color, creed, sex or national origin.” See Appendix III  
of the RAD Notice. 

32 

Page 178 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023.  
      Page | 138 of 195 
 

will conduct a front-end review based on the requirements applicable to each activity. A PHA 
must submit documentation for the front-end civil rights review of each specific activity as 
required by the relevant sections of this Notice. 
 

B) Analysis of Transfers of Assistance 
 
Through the front-end review of transfers of assistance by FHEO, HUD seeks to assist the PHA  
in avoiding discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin, religion, sex, disability or 
familial status. The front-end review of transfers of assistance will apply the site selection 
standards for existing/rehabilitated housing.59 This review shall consider: 

(1) The accessibility of the proposed site for persons with disabilities; 
 

(2) The ability of the RAD conversion to remediate accessibility concerns; 
 

(3) Whether the transfer of assistance would result in assisted units being located in 
an area where the total percentage of minority persons is significantly higher than 
the total percentage of minority persons in the area of the original public housing 
site or in an area where the percentage of persons of a particular racial or ethnic 
minority is significantly higher than the percentage of that minority group in the 
area of the original public housing site.60 For purposes of this analysis, HUD will 
examine the minority concentration of: 

 
(a) the census tract of the original public housing site compared to the census 

tract of the proposed site; and 
(b) an area comprised of the census tract of the original public housing site 

together with all adjacent census tracts compared to an area comprised of the 
census tract of the proposed site together with all adjacent census tracts. 

 
(4) Whether the site selection has the purpose or effect of: 

 
(a) Excluding individuals from, denying them the benefits of, or subjecting them 

to discrimination under the RAD program or the applicable rental assistance 
program; 

(b) Excluding qualified individuals with disabilities from or denying them the 
benefit of the RAD program or the applicable rental assistance program, or 
otherwise subjecting them to discrimination; 

(c) Defeating or substantially impairing the accomplishment of the objectives of 
the RAD program or the applicable rental assistance program with respect to 
qualified individuals with disabilities; and 

 
 
 
59 24 C.F.R. § 983.57(d) and Appendix III of the RAD Notice, paragraphs (a) through (d). The site selection 
standards for existing/rehabilitated housing do not apply the minority concentration test used for new construction 
found at 24 C.F.R. § 983.57(e)(3) and Appendix III of the RAD Notice, paragraph (e). 
60 While this review is not explicitly called out in 24 C.F.R. § 983.57(d) and Appendix III of the RAD Notice, it is 
derived from HUD’s and the PHA’s obligations to comply with civil rights laws and regulations, including those 
referenced in 24 C.F.R. § 983.57(b)(2) and Appendix III of the RAD Notice. 

33 

Page 179 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023.  
      Page | 139 of 195 
 

(d) Excluding individuals with disabilities (including members of the public with 
disabilities), denying them benefits or subjecting them to discrimination. 

 
Under the RAD Notice, there are other standards for review of a transfer of assistance which are 
not examined as part of the front-end civil rights review but are examined as part of the RAD 
Financing Plan review (e.g., criteria formulated for transfers under Section 8(bb) of the United 
States Housing Act of 1937 regarding neighborhoods with highly concentrated poverty). 
Identification of considerations for the front-end review do not preclude review by HUD of all 
standards referenced in the RAD Notice. 
 
5.6. Front-End Civil Rights Review for RAD Transactions Involving Reduction in  

Number of Units, Changes in Bedroom Distribution of Units and Changes in 
Occupancy Requirements 

 
The RAD Notice allows PHAs to reduce the number of units, change the bedroom distribution of 
units, or change the occupancy of projects as part of their RAD conversion.61 However, the  
RAD Notice also provides that such changes (including de minimis changes) must undergo a 
front-end civil rights review and receive approval from HUD prior to submission of the  
Financing Plan. The Checklist will require data for review along with an explanation, backed by 
sufficient evidence, of how the PHA determined that that the proposed change will not result in 
discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin, religion, sex, disability, familial status, 
actual or perceived sexual orientation, gender identity or marital status.62 

A) Review of Reductions in the Number of Units, Reductions or Increases in the 
Number of UFAS Accessible Units or Changes in Bedroom Distribution 

 
This Section describes the considerations relevant to a front-end review of reductions in units, 
changes in the number of UFAS accessible units or changes in bedroom distribution. Such 
changes must not be the result of an intentional effort to discriminate against members of a 
protected class. For example, reductions or changes, including reductions in UFAS accessible 
units or which would impede residents with disabilities from having live-in aides, that intended  
to exclude persons with disabilities would be unlawful discrimination because of a disability. 
 
 
61 See Sections 1.4.A.4 and 1.4.A.10 of the RAD Notice. 
62 Reductions in the number of units, changes in the bedroom distribution of units, or changes in occupancy violate 
the Fair Housing Act (the Act) if they have a discriminatory effect on the basis of race, color, national origin, 
religion, sex, disability, or familial status. Unlawful housing discrimination may be established by a policy’s or 
practice’s discriminatory intent or by its discriminatory effect, even if not motivated by discriminatory intent, 
consistent with the standards outlined in 24 C.F.R. § 100.500. A policy or practice can have an unjustified 
discriminatory effect, even when the provider had no intent to discriminate. Under this standard, a facially-neutral 
policy or practice that has a discriminatory effect violates the Act if it is not supported by a legally sufficient 
justification. In addition, the policy or practice violates the Act if the housing developer or provider intentionally 
discriminates, including for example, by reducing the number of bedrooms with the intent of limiting families with 
children. Furthermore, the policy or practice may also violate the Act where it creates, increases, reinforces, or 
perpetuates segregated housing patterns because of race, color, religion, sex, handicap, familial status, or national 
origin. In addition, any changes must conform with the Equal Access rule requirement that determinations of 
eligibility for housing that is assisted by HUD or subject to a mortgage insured by the FHA shall be made in 
accordance with program eligibility requirements, and the housing must be made available, without regard to actual  
or perceived sexual orientation, gender identity or marital status. 24 C.F.R. § 5.105(a)(2). 

34 

Page 180 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023.  
      Page | 140 of 195 
 

Similarly, replacing larger units with smaller units so as to exclude families with children would 
be unlawful discrimination because of familial status. 
 
Additionally, reductions in units or changes in bedroom distribution must not have an unjustified 
discriminatory effect on members of a protected class. For example, a reduction in units could 
have a discriminatory impact if it excludes members of a particular race or religion. Reductions 
or changes that have a disparate impact on a protected class are unlawful under the Fair Housing 
Act if they are not necessary to achieve a substantial, legitimate, nondiscriminatory interest of  
the developer or housing provider, or if such interest could be served by another practice that has  
a less discriminatory effect. 
 
The RAD Notice allows for a de minimis reduction in units at Converting Projects, which 
includes both a small number of units as well as the reduction of certain units that have been 
vacant for 24 months prior to application, that are being or will be used for social service 
delivery, or efficiencies that will be reconfigured to one-bedroom units.63 In addition, a PHA 
converting multiple properties can consolidate the de minimis reductions derived from multiple 
properties at a small number of sites. The RAD Notice also allows for changes in bedroom 
distribution. Such de minimis reductions are still subject to front end civil rights review and 
applicable fair housing and civil rights laws. 
 
HUD shall conduct a front-end civil rights review if the plan for a Converting Project results in: 
 

• A reduction in the number of dwelling units in any of the following categories: (i) units 
with two bedrooms, (ii) units with three bedrooms or (iii) units with four or more 
bedrooms. 

• A reduction in the number of UFAS accessible units; 
• An increase in the number of UFAS accessible units for persons with mobility 

impairments beyond 10% of the units in the Covered Project or 1 unit, whichever is 
greater. 

• An increase in the number of UFAS accessible units for persons with vision and hearing 
impairments beyond 4% of the units in the Covered Project or 1 unit, whichever is 
greater. 

 
When a Converting Project is subject to a front-end civil rights review under this subsection, the 
PHA shall submit to HUD the relevant part of the Checklist together with a justification which 
must demonstrate that the changes are not the result of discriminatory intent and will not have a 
discriminatory effect on members of protected classes, particularly families with children and 
individuals with disabilities. Relevant data for this analysis of the proposed change at the project 
may include the PHA’s overall affordable housing stock, the demand for affordable housing in 
the market as evidenced by information such as the overall jurisdiction and regional  
demographic data available from the AFFH Data and Mapping Tool (e.g., both basic 
demographic and disproportionate housing needs data), the PHA’s waiting list or a reliable 
market study of households seeking assisted housing, compared to the relative proportions of 
 
 
 
 
63 See Section 1.4.A.4 of the RAD Notice. 

35 

Page 181 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023.  
      Page | 141 of 195 
 

units serving any particular household type in the proposed project, the PHA’s total housing stock 
or all assisted housing in the area. 
 
For any increase in UFAS units subject to front-end review, HUD will assess indicators of local 
need (see Section 5.7(B), below) and whether the change would operate to concentrate 
individuals with disabilities in a particular property or to exclude individuals with certain types  
of disabilities from a particular property. 
 

B) Review of Changes in Occupancy Type 
 
RAD conversions that result in the implementation of an admissions preference (e.g., residency 
preferences or restrictions) at the Covered Project that would alter the occupancy of the property 
(e.g., family units converting to elderly units, elderly/disabled units converting to elderly only 
units) are subject to a front-end civil rights review by HUD pursuant to the RAD Notice and 
Section 5.3(A). A PHA must demonstrate that the proposed change in occupancy type is 
consistent with the demand for affordable housing in its jurisdiction as demonstrated by factors 
such as the demographics of its current occupancy, the demographics of its waiting list or a 
market study. Such preferences, restrictions, or geographic residency preferences must be 
reflected in a PBRA project’s Affirmative Fair Housing Marketing Plan (AFHMP) or, for a PBV 
project, the PHA’s Administrative Plan. 
 
5.7. Other Front-End Civil Rights Review for RAD Transactions 
 

A) Conversions of Assistance in Which the Construction Schedule Indicates that 
Relocation is Likely to Exceed 12 Months. 

 
The front end civil rights review shall focus on whether the relocation will result in  
discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin, religion, sex, disability, and familial 
status, based primarily, but not exclusively, on the data required in the Checklist. 
 

B) Conversions of Assistance Involving New Construction or Substantial Alteration, 
as those terms are defined by Section 504. 

 
While the PHA is responsible for compliance with all requirements described in Section 4, above 
and in this subsection, the front-end review will be conducted based on a review of the Checklist 
and shall include confirming the provision of any required accessible units and confirming the 
PHA is applying the appropriate accessibility standards. HUD will require the PHA to provide 
information regarding the provision of at least the minimum number of units accessible for 
persons with mobility impairments and units accessible for persons with hearing and vision 
impairments as required by applicable law (generally 5% of units accessible for persons with 
mobility impairments and an additional 2% of units accessible for persons with hearing and  
vision impairments). For purposes of establishing an upper threshold of accessible units below 
which RAD front-end review will not be required, HUD will accept that up to 10% of units 
accessible for persons with mobility impairments and up to 4% of units accessible for persons 
with hearing and vision impairments is consistent with local need, without further review, absent 
information to the contrary. HUD will consider a PHA’s request for higher percentages based, to 
HUD’s satisfaction, on reliable indicators of local need, such as census data or other available 
current data. HUD is available to assist PHAs in determining appropriate indicators of local 

36 

Page 182 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023.  
      Page | 142 of 195 
 

need for units with accessible features. The RAD conversion scope of work submitted with the 
Financing Plan must reflect the construction or retrofitting of residential units and public and 
common use areas to comply with all applicable accessibility requirements. 
 

C) Remedial Agreements and Orders. 
 
Front-end review in situations where the Converting Project or PHA is subject to enforcement 
actions or binding voluntary compliance agreements, settlement agreements, conciliation 
agreements, or consent decrees or orders of the nature described in Sections 5.3(A)(8) and  
5.3(A)(9) shall be conducted on a case-by-case basis as appropriate to the specific situation. 
 
5.8. Affirmative Fair Housing Marketing Plan (AFHMP) Requirements for Projects 

Converting to PBRA Assistance 
 
For all projects converting to PBRA assistance, a PHA or Project Owner must complete form 
HUD-935.2A, the Affirmative Fair Housing Marketing Plan (AFHMP) - Multifamily Housing, 
and submit it to HUD for approval with the RAD Financing Plan.64 Affirmative Fair Housing 
Marketing requirements are designed to achieve a condition in which individuals of similar 
income levels in the same housing market area have similar housing choices available to them 
regardless of their race, color, national origin, religion, sex, disability, or familial status.65 They 
are also a means to carry out the mandate of Section 808(e)(5) of the Fair Housing Act that HUD 
administer its programs and activities in a manner to affirmatively further fair housing. These 
requirements mandate that PHAs or Project Owners identify groups that are least likely to apply 
for upcoming housing opportunities and to implement special marketing and outreach activities  
to ensure that these groups are aware of these opportunities. 
 
The AFHMP must be submitted to HUD with the Financing Plan. A separate AFHMP is  
required for each distinct PBRA HAP contract. The PHA must submit an AFHMP even if the 
project has an existing waiting list and is not accepting new applicants. The PHA or Project 
Owner should consult the instructions in the form HUD 935.2A and HUD’s Implementing 
Affirmative Fair Housing Marketing Requirements Handbook (HUD Handbook 8025.1) for 
guidance on completing the AFHMP and carrying out an affirmative marketing program. The 
Handbook provides a detailed resource on the content of the AFHMP, which includes marketing 
activities, residency preferences, and staff training. 
 
When submitting an AFHMP for HUD approval, the PHA or Project Owner must ensure that the 
occupancy designation and any residency preferences are consistent with the PHA Plan or 
Significant Amendment to the PHA Plan, that such designation and preferences are consistent 
with the Checklist submitted to HUD and that the AFHMP includes affirmative marketing 
 

 
64 The most recent version of the AFHMP is HUD Form 935.2A, OMB Approval Number 2529-0013. See 24 
C.F.R. § 880.601(a)(2) and 24 C.F.R. § 200.615; see also Section 10.8 of the Multifamily Accelerated Processing 
(MAP) Guide. The PHA or its management agent should consult the instructions in the form HUD 935.2A and 
HUD’s Implementing Affirmative Fair Housing Marketing Requirements Handbook (HUD Handbook 8025.1) for 
guidance on completing the AFHMP and carrying out an affirmative marketing program. The Handbook provides a 
detailed resource on the content of the AFHMP, which includes marketing activities, residency preferences, and  
staff training. 
65 See 24 C.F.R. § 200.610. 

37 

Page 183 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023.  
      Page | 143 of 195 
 

activities that are consistent with its occupancy designation and the populations identified as  
least likely to apply. Any subsequent changes to occupancy designation or residency preferences 
shall be proposed, submitted and reviewed in accordance with standard PBRA requirements. If a 
PHA or Project Owner plans to adopt any local or residency preferences, the Project Owner must 
submit its Tenant Selection Plan along with the AFHMP (see HUD Handbook 4350.3, page 4-4). 
 
The Multifamily Housing Office of Asset Management and Portfolio Oversight and the Office of 
Fair Housing and Equal Opportunity (“FHEO”) review the AFHMP. FHEO issues HUD’s  
official letter of approval or disapproval. Disapproval letters will specify the reason a plan was 
rejected and the revisions required. The PHA or Project Owner must make the required changes 
and resubmit a corrected plan to HUD for approval. 
 
The PBRA contract becomes effective on the first day of a month, following closing. Approval  
of the AFHMP is not a condition to closing of the RAD conversion. When the project is  
preparing to accept applications, it must follow its approved AFHMP to ensure that groups least 
likely to apply are aware of the housing opportunities. The Project Owner is responsible for 
ensuring that the AFHMP is in place throughout the life of any FHA mortgage or PBRA  
contract. The Project Owner may not market or lease any unit not occupied by a household 
exercising its right to remain in or return to the Covered Project prior to approval of the AFHMP. 
Marketing or leasing includes the solicitation, distribution or acceptance of applications or 
development of a waiting list. 
 
SECTION 6. RELOCATION REQUIREMENTS 
 
In some cases, as explained in this Section, the activities associated with the RAD transaction  
may require the relocation of residents. In the event of acquisition, demolition, construction or 
rehabilitation activities performed in connection with a RAD conversion, the PHA and/or Project 
Owner66 should plan such activities to reasonably minimize any disruption to residents’ lives, to 
ensure that residents are not exposed to unsafe living conditions and to comply with applicable 
relocation, fair housing and civil rights requirements. As discussed in Section 6.1, below, a 
written relocation plan is required in some circumstances and strongly encouraged for any 
conversion resulting in resident moves or relocation. Further, the obligations due to relocating 
residents under RAD are broader than URA relocation assistance and payments and RAD 
specifies requirements which are more protective of residents than standard URA requirements, 
including additional notices (see Section 6.6) and a right to return (see Section 6.2). This Notice 
requires that certain information be provided to all households, beginning prior to submission of 
the RAD application. 
 
Any resident who moves as a direct result of acquisition, rehabilitation or demolition for an 
activity or series of activities associated with a RAD conversion may, depending on the 
circumstances and length of time of the relocation, be eligible for relocation assistance and 
payments under the URA. Additionally, Section 104(d) relocation and one-for-one replacement 
 
 
66 Under the URA, the term “displacing agency” refers to the agency or person that carries out a program or project 
which will cause a resident to become a displaced person. Projects vary and, for any specific task described in this 
Notice, the displacing agency may be either the PHA or the Project Owner, as determined by the allocation of roles 
and responsibilities between the PHA and Project Owner. 

38 

Page 184 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023.  
      Page | 144 of 195 
 

housing requirements may also apply when CDBG- or HOME-funds are used in connection with  
a RAD conversion. The applicability of the URA or Section 104(d) to RAD conversions is fact- 
specific, which must be determined in accordance with the applicable URA and Section 104(d) 
regulations.67 

Eligibility for specific protections under this Notice applies to any person residing in a  
Converting Project who is legally on the public housing lease, has submitted an application to be 
added to an existing lease, or is otherwise in lawful occupancy at the time of the issuance of the 
CHAP and at any time thereafter until conversion of assistance under RAD. All such residents  
of a Converting Project have a right to return and are eligible for relocation protections and 
assistance as provided by this Notice. The eligibility criteria set forth in this paragraph apply to 
the protections under this Notice regardless of whether residents or household members meet the 
statutory and regulatory requirements for eligibility under URA.68 
 
6.1. Planning 
 
If there is a possibility that residents will be relocated as a result of acquisition, demolition, or 
rehabilitation for a Converting Project, PHAs must undertake a planning process in conformance 
with the URA statutory and regulatory requirements in order to minimize the adverse impact of 
relocation (see 49 § C.F.R. 24.205). PHAs must also ensure that their relocation planning is 
conducted in compliance with applicable fair housing and civil rights requirements. 
 
The PHA shall prepare a written relocation plan if the RAD conversion involves permanent 
relocation (including, without limitation, a move in connection with a transfer of assistance) or 
temporary relocation anticipated to last longer than one year. While a written relocation plan is 
not required for temporary relocation lasting one year or less, HUD strongly encourages PHAs,  
in consultation with any applicable Project Owners, to prepare a written relocation plan for all 
RAD conversions to establish their relocation process clearly and in sufficient detail to permit 
consistent implementation of the relocation process and accurate communication to the residents. 
Appendix II contains recommended elements of a relocation plan. 
 
During the planning stages of a RAD transaction and based on the results of this planning 
process, a PHA must submit applicable portions of the Checklist described in Section 5.3(B) to 
HUD, together with any required backup documentation, as early as possible once the 
information covered in the applicable part is known.69 All parts of the Checklist must be 
submitted to HUD prior to submission of the Financing Plan. The Checklist will allow HUD to 
assist the PHA to comply, and to evaluate the PHA’s compliance, with relocation requirements, 
including civil rights requirements related to relocation. 
 
 
 
 
67 42 U.S.C. § 4601 et seq., 42 U.S.C. § 5304(d), and their implementing regulations at 49 C.F.R Part 24 and 24 
C.F.R. Part 42 subpart C. 
68 A nonexclusive listing of persons who do not qualify as displaced persons under URA is at 49 C.F.R.  
24.2(a)(9)(ii). See also, Paragraph 1-4(J) of HUD Handbook 1378. See Section 6.5 of this Notice for discussion of the 
date of “initiation of negotiations.” 
69 The Checklist refers to the existing FHEO Accessibility and Relocation Checklist until a revised Checklist is  
approved for use pursuant to the Paperwork Reduction Act. 

39 

Page 185 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023.  
      Page | 145 of 195 
 

The following presents a general sequencing of relocation planning activities within the RAD 
conversion process for informational and planning purposes only. Specific requirements are set 
forth in the provisions of this Notice. 
 

Stage Activities 
1.  Prior to submission of 

RAD application 
• Determine potential need for relocation in connection with 

proposed conversion plans. 
• Meet with residents to discuss proposed conversion plans, 

communicate right to return, and solicit feedback. 
• Provide the RAD Information Notice (RIN) to residents as 

described in Section 6.6(A) of this Notice. 
2.  After submission of  
 RAD application 

• Assess the need for relocation planning in connection with 
proposed conversion plans. Determine if technical 
assistance would be beneficial to ensuring compliance with 
relocation requirements. 

• Survey residents to inform relocation planning and 
relocation process. 

• Develop a relocation plan (see Appendix II for 
recommended content). 

• Prepare Significant Amendment to PHA Plan and engage 
with the Resident Advisory Board, residents and the public 
regarding Plan amendment.70 

3.  Following issuance of  
 the CHAP, or earlier if 
 warranted 

• Provide the General Information Notice (GIN) to residents 
when the project involves acquisition, rehabilitation, or 
demolition as described in Section 6.6(B) of this Notice and 
relocation may be required. 

4.  While preparing 
 Financing Plan 

• Discuss the outlines of the conversion plans and their 
impact on relocation with the HUD transaction manager. 

• Refine the plan for relocation and integrate the construction 
schedule into the relocation strategy; seek to minimize off- 
site or disruptive relocation activities. 

• Identify relocation housing options . 
• Budget for relocation expenses and for compliance with 

accessibility requirements. 
• Submit the Checklist and, where applicable, the relocation 

plan. 
• If the conversion involves acquisition, at the discretion of 

the Project Owner issue Notice of Intent to Acquire 
(NOIA). 

• If a NOIA is issued, at the discretion of the Project Owner 
provide residents with appropriate relocation notices as 

 
 
 
70 Alternatively, the PHA may submit a new PHA Five-Year or Annual Plan, especially if it is on schedule to do so. 
Under any scenario, the PHA must consult with the Resident Advisory Board and undertake the community 
participation process. 

40 

Page 186 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023.  
      Page | 146 of 195 
 

Stage Activities 
 described in Section 6.6(C) through 6.6(E) of this Notice at 

this time. 
5.  From RAD Conversion 
 Commitment (RCC) to 
 Closing 

• Meet with residents to describe approved conversion plans 
and discuss required relocation. 

• The effective date of the RCC marks the date of “Initiation 
of Negotiations” (ION), as defined in the URA (49 § C.F.R. 
24.2(a)(15)). 

• If no NOIA was provided while preparing the Financing 
Plan, provide residents with appropriate relocation notices 
as described in Section 6.6(C) through 6.6(E) of this 
Notice. 

• Resident relocation may begin following the effective date 
of the RCC, subject to applicable notice requirements. 

6.  Post-Closing • Ongoing implementation of relocation 
• Notify the residents regarding return to the Covered Project 

as described in Section 6.6(F) of this Notice 
• Implementation of the residents’ right to return 

 
 
6.2. Resident Right to Return 
 
Any public housing or Section 8 assisted resident that may need to be relocated temporarily to 
facilitate rehabilitation or construction has a right to return to an assisted unit at the Covered 
Project once rehabilitation or construction is complete.71 Permanent involuntary displacement of 
public housing or Section 8 assisted residents may not occur as a result of a project’s conversion 
of assistance. The Project Owner satisfies the RAD right to return to a Covered Project if the 
Project Owner offers the resident household either: a) a unit in the Covered Project in which the 
household is not under-housed; or b) a unit in the Covered Project which provides the same  
major features as the resident’s unit in the Converting Project prior to the implementation of the 
RAD conversion. In the case of a transfer of assistance to a new site, residents of the Converting 
Project have the right to reside in an assisted unit meeting the requirements set forth in this 
paragraph at the Covered Project (the new site) once the Covered Project is ready for occupancy 
in accordance with applicable PBV or PBRA requirements. 
 
If proposed plans for a Converting Project would preclude a resident from returning to the 
Covered Project, the resident must be given an opportunity to comment and/or object to such 
plans. Examples of project plans that may preclude a resident from returning to the Covered 
Project include, but are not limited to: 
 

• Changes in bedroom distribution which decrease the size of units such that the resident 
would be under-housed;72 

 

 
71 The right to return is not a right to any specific unit in the Covered Project. Tenancies other than public housing  
or Section 8 assisted residents (such as commercial tenants) do not hold a right to return and are subject to standard 
relocation requirements applicable to such tenants under the URA. 
72 See the RAD Notice for a description of the procedures that must be undertaken if a resident is over-housed. 

41 

Page 187 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023.  
      Page | 147 of 195 
 

• Where a) the PHA is reducing the number of assisted units at a property (if authorized to 
do so under Section 1.5.B of the RAD Notice) and b) the resident cannot be 
accommodated in the remaining assisted units; 

• The imposition of income eligibility requirements, such as those associated with LIHTC 
or other program financing, under which the current resident may not be eligible;73 and 

• Failure to provide reasonable accommodation to an individual with disabilities, in 
violation of applicable law, which reasonable accommodation may include installation of 
accessibility features that are needed by the individual with disabilities.74 

If the resident who would be precluded from returning to the Covered Project objects to such 
plans, the PHA must alter the project plans to accommodate the resident’s right to return to the 
Covered Project. 
 
If the resident who would be precluded from returning to the Covered Project prefers to 
voluntarily and permanently relocate rather than object to the project plans, the PHA must secure 
informed, written consent to a voluntary permanent relocation in lieu of returning to the Covered 
Project and must otherwise comply with all the provisions of Section 6.10, below, regarding 
alternative housing options. The PHA cannot employ any tactics to pressure residents into 
relinquishing their right to return or accepting alternative housing options. A PHA may not 
terminate a resident’s lease if the PHA fails to obtain the resident’s consent and the resident  
seeks to exercise the right to return. 
 
In the case of a multi-phase transaction, the resident has a right to return to the Covered Project  
or to other converted phases of the property which have converted and are available for 
occupancy at the time the resident is eligible to exercise the right to return. A relocated resident 
should get the benefit of improvements facilitated by the resident’s relocation and conversion  
and completion of future phases cannot be assured. In most cases, this means that the resident’s 
right to return must be accommodated within the Covered Project associated with resident’s 
original unit. However, in those cases where improvements to multiple phases of a site are 
occurring simultaneously, the PHA or Project Owner may treat multiple Covered Projects on the 
same site as one for purposes of the right to return. If the PHA or Project Owner seeks to have  
the resident exercise the right of return at a future phase, the PHA or Project Owner would need 
to secure the resident’s consent to such plan as an alternative housing option pursuant to Section 
6.10, below. 
 
In implementing the right of return, the Project Owner shall comply with all applicable fair 
housing laws and implementing regulations, including, but not limited to, the Fair Housing Act, 

 
73 In these cases, a PHA may elect to exclude some units from the applicable financing program, for example, 
claiming LIHTC for a subset of the units and not claiming tax credits in connection with the units occupied by 
households over the LIHTC maximum eligibility of 60% of AMI. 
74 Refer to the Joint Statement of the Department of Housing and Urban Development and the Department of  
Justice, Reasonable Modifications Under the Fair Housing Act (March 5, 2008), at 
http://www.hud.gov/offices/fheo/disabilities/reasonable_modifications_mar08.pdf for additional detail regarding 
applicable standards for reasonable accommodations and accessibility features which must be provided. If the 
resident has paid for installation of accessibility features in the resident’s prior unit, the PHA or Project Owner shall 
pay for the installation of comparable features in the new unit. Violations of law may also result in other sanctions. 

42 

Page 188 of 301

http://www.hud.gov/offices/fheo/disabilities/reasonable_modifications_mar08.pdf


 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023.  
      Page | 148 of 195 
 

Title VI of the Civil Rights Act, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act, and Titles II and III of the 
Americans with Disabilities Act. 
 
6.3. Admissions and Continued Occupancy Requirements 
 
Resident households may not be denied relocation housing or the right to return based on 
rescreening, income eligibility, or income targeting. PHAs may only offer housing options with 
screening, income eligibility or income targeting requirements if the impacted residents meet the 
admission and occupancy policies applicable to such housing. However, whether or not in a 
temporary relocation situation, the household remains subject to the applicable program policies 
regarding continued occupancy of an assisted unit by an incumbent resident of the unit. 
 
6.4. Types of Moves and Relocation 
 
Any time project plans require a resident to move from their current unit, the resident is eligible 
for assistance as described in this Notice. Assistance may vary depending on the options  
provided to residents, whether the relocation is temporary or permanent and, if applicable, the 
length of time the resident is in temporary accommodations.75 In all circumstances, the move or 
relocation must be in compliance with applicable requirements of this Notice and consistent with 
applicable fair housing and civil rights requirements. Each type of move is discussed below. 
 

A) Moves within the same building or complex of buildings76 

Temporary or permanent moves within the same building or complex of buildings may be 
appropriate given the extent of work to be completed to permit phasing of rehabilitation or 
construction. Moves within the same building or complex of buildings are not considered 
relocation under RAD and a tenant generally does not become displaced under the URA.  
Whether permanent (i.e., the tenant will move to and remain in an alternative unit) or temporary 
(i.e., the tenant will move to another unit and return to their original unit), the PHA or Project 
Owner must reimburse residents for all reasonable out-of-pocket expenses incurred in connection 
with any move and all other terms and conditions of the move(s) must be reasonable.77 The final 
move must be to a unit which satisfies the right to return requirements specified in Section 6.2 of 
this Notice. 
 
 
 
 
 
75 PHAs should note that the definitions of “permanent” vary between the URA and RAD. For example, 
“permanent displacement” under the URA includes moves from the original building or complex of buildings lasting 
more than one year. The RAD Notice, meanwhile, considers “permanent relocation” to be separation from the 
RAD-assisted unit upon completion of the conversion and any associated rehabilitation and construction. The 
duration of a temporary move may exceed one year. In the case of a transfer of assistance, it is not permanent 
relocation under RAD when the resident must move from the original complex of buildings to the destination site in 
order to retain occupancy of the RAD-assisted unit. 
76 An example of relocation within the same building or complex of buildings would be if one floor of a multi-story 
building is vacant, and the PHA is moving residents from another floor to the vacant units. 
77 Failure to reimburse residents for moving or other out-of-pocket expenses and any other terms and conditions of  
the move which may be unreasonable may result in the resident becoming a displaced person under the URA if the 
resident subsequently moves from the property. 

43 

Page 189 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023.  
      Page | 149 of 195 
 

B) Temporary relocation lasting one year or less 
 
If a resident is required to relocate temporarily, to a unit not in the same building or complex of 
buildings, for a period not expected to exceed one year in connection with the RAD conversion, 
the resident’s temporarily occupied housing must be decent, safe, and sanitary and the resident 
must be reimbursed for all reasonable out-of-pocket expenses incurred in connection with the 
temporary relocation. These expenses include, but are not limited to, moving expenses, increased 
housing costs (e.g., rent and utilities), meals if the temporary housing lacks cooking facilities  
(e.g., during a short hotel stay, whether or not on an emergency basis) and other applicable 
expenses.78 

C) Temporary relocation initially expected to last one year or less, but which extends 
beyond one year 

 
In the event that a resident has been temporarily relocated, to a unit not in the same building or 
complex of buildings, for a period which was anticipated to last one year or less but the 
temporary relocation in fact exceeds one year, the resident qualifies as a “displaced person”  
under the URA and as a result immediately becomes eligible for all permanent relocation 
assistance and payments as a “displaced person” under the URA, including notice pursuant to 
Section 6.6(E). This assistance would be in addition to any assistance the person has already 
received for temporary relocation, and may not be reduced by the amount of any temporary 
relocation assistance. 
 
In such event, the PHA or Project Owner shall offer the resident the opportunity to choose to 
voluntarily permanently relocate with the offered URA assistance or to choose to remain 
temporarily relocated based on updated information from the PHA or Project Owner about when 
they can return to the completed RAD unit. The PHA or Project Owner must present this 
opportunity to the resident when the temporary relocation extends beyond one year and each  
time thereafter that the temporary relocation extends beyond the previously anticipated duration. 
In presenting such opportunity, the PHA or Project Owner must inform the resident in writing  
that his or her acceptance of voluntary permanent relocation, with the associated assistance,  
would terminate the resident’s right to return to the Covered Project. The PHA or Project Owner 
must provide the resident with at least 30 days to decide whether to remain in temporary 
relocation status or to voluntarily relocate permanently. 
 

D) Temporary relocation anticipated to last more than one year 
 
When the PHA anticipates that the temporary relocation, to a unit not in the same building or 
complex of buildings, will last more than one year, but the resident is retaining the resident’s  
right to return to the Covered Project, the resident is considered temporarily relocated under  
RAD and is eligible to receive applicable temporary relocation assistance and payments. Under 
the URA, the resident becomes eligible to receive applicable relocation assistance and payments 
as a “displaced person” when the temporary relocation period exceeds one year and each time 
thereafter that the temporary relocation extends beyond the previously anticipated duration, at 
 

 
78 HUD Handbook 1378, Chapter 2, Section 2-7 governs activities subject to URA requirements and informs, but is 
not binding upon, any RAD activities not governed by the URA. PHAs may also refer to HUD Form 40030. 

44 

Page 190 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023.  
      Page | 150 of 195 
 

which time the PHA or Project Owner shall offer the resident the opportunity to choose to 
voluntarily permanently relocate or to remain temporarily relocated, as described in Section 
6.4(C), above. 
 
In order to allow residents to make the election earlier than required under the URA (thereby 
avoiding a year in temporary relocation housing prior to electing voluntary permanent  
relocation), if the PHA or Project Owner anticipates that temporary relocation will last more than 
one year, the PHA or Project Owner shall provide the resident with an initial option to (a) be 
temporarily relocated, retain the right to return to the Covered Project when a unit becomes 
available and receive assistance, including temporary housing and reimbursement for all 
reasonable out-of-pocket expenses associated with the temporary relocation, or (b) accept RAD 
voluntary permanent relocation assistance and payments equivalent to what a “displaced person” 
would receive under the URA. The PHA or Project Owner must inform the resident in writing 
that his or her acceptance of voluntary permanent relocation, with the associated assistance,  
would terminate the resident’s right to return to the Covered Project. The PHA or Project Owner 
must provide the resident with at least 30 days to decide whether to remain in temporary 
relocation status or to voluntarily relocate permanently. 
 

E) Permanent moves in connection with a transfer of assistance 
 
In cases solely involving a transfer of assistance to a new site, resident relocation from the 
Converting Project to the Covered Project is not, by itself, generally considered involuntary 
permanent relocation under RAD. However, the URA and/or Section 104(d) is likely to apply in 
most cases. In cases of a transfer of assistance to a new site where it has also been determined 
that the URA and/or Section 104(d) apply to the transfer of assistance, residents may be eligible 
for all permanent relocation assistance and payments for eligible displaced persons under the 
URA and/or Section 104(d). If the URA applies to a move of this type, the PHA or Project 
Owner must make available at least one, and when possible, three or more comparable 
replacement dwellings pursuant to 49 C.F.R. § 24.204(a). However, provided the transfer of 
assistance unit meets the URA definition of a comparable replacement dwelling pursuant to 49 
C.F.R. § 24.2(a)(6), that unit could in fact represent the most comparable replacement dwelling  
as determined by the agency for purposes of calculating a replacement housing payment, if any, 
under 49 C.F.R. § 24.402. 
 
Whether or not the URA and/or Section 104(d) apply, under RAD the residents are entitled to 
relocation assistance and payments, including counseling in preparation for the relocation,  
written notices of the relocation (including a 90-day RAD Notice of Relocation), and 
reimbursement for all reasonable out-of-pocket expenses, including moving expenses, incurred  
in connection with the move. It should be noted that the RAD relocation assistance and  
payments provided to transferring residents in this paragraph differ from those required under the 
URA and/or Section 104(d) as described above. Where both frameworks apply, the residents  
must receive the more extensive protections offered under either framework. 
 
If HUD determines that the distance from the Converting Project to the site of the Covered  
Project is significant and the resident could not reasonably be required to move to the new site, 
then HUD will require the PHA to adjust project plans to accommodate the resident in an  
assisted unit (e.g., a public housing unit, some other project-based Section 8 unit or a market unit 

45 

Page 191 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023.  
      Page | 151 of 195 
 

with a housing choice voucher) within a reasonable distance of the site of the Converting Project. 
HUD will evaluate whether this requirement applies on a case by case basis, considering whether 
the distance would impose a significant burden on residents’ access to existing employment, 
transportation options, schooling or other critical services. Accommodating the resident may also  
be satisfied by the resident’s consent to an alternative housing option pursuant to Section 6.10. 
The requirement set forth in this paragraph is in addition to all protections, including, for 
example, the offer of comparable replacement dwellings, which are required in all instances  
where a transfer of assistance is subject to the URA and/or Section 104(d). 
 

F) Voluntary permanent relocation 
 
A resident may elect to relinquish their right of return and consent to voluntary permanent 
relocation pursuant to an alternative housing option offered and accepted according to the 
procedures described in Section 6.10, which Section specifies protections to ensure the resident’s 
decision is fully informed. By selecting voluntary permanent relocation, the resident is electing  
to receive RAD permanent relocation assistance and payments which are equivalent to the 
relocation payments and assistance required to be provided to a “displaced person” pursuant to  
the regulations implementing the URA. 
 
6.5. Initiation of Negotiations (ION) Date 
 
Eligibility for URA relocation assistance is effective on the date of initiation of negotiations 
(ION) (49 C.F.R. § 24.2(a)(15)). For Converting Projects, the ION date is the effective date of  
the RCC. The ION date is also typically the date when PHAs can begin to issue RAD Notices of 
Relocation (except in the case of acquisitions when the PHA can issue a Notice of Intent to 
Acquire and RAD Notices of Relocation prior to the ION date). Any person who is in lawful 
occupancy on the ION date is presumed to be entitled to relocation payments and other  
assistance. 
 
PHAs and Project Owners should note that prior to the ION date, a resident may be eligible as a 
displaced person for permanent relocation assistance and payments under the URA if HUD 
determines, after analyzing the facts, that the resident’s move was a direct result of the project. 
However, resident moves taken contrary to specific instructions from the PHA or Project Owner 
(for example, contrary to instructions not to move if contained in a General Information Notice) 
are generally not eligible as a displaced person under the URA. 
 
6.6. Resident Relocation Notification (Notices) 
 
PHAs and Project Owners are encouraged to communicate regularly with the residents regarding 
project plans and, if applicable, the resulting plans for relocation. When residents may be 
relocated for any time period (including, without limitation, a move in connection with a transfer 
of assistance), written notice must be provided to the resident heads of households, including the 
notices listed below as applicable.79 PHAs and Project Owners are also encouraged to provide 
 
 
79 The notices required under Sections 6.6(B) through 6.6(E) must be delivered in accordance with URA resident 
notification requirements, including the requirement that the notice be personally served or delivered by certified or 
registered first class mail return receipt requested. All notices must be delivered to each household (i.e., posting in 

46 

Page 192 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023.  
      Page | 152 of 195 
 

additional relocation notices and updates for the residents’ benefit as appropriate for the specific 
situation. 
 
To ensure that all residents understand their rights and responsibilities and the assistance  
available to them, consistent with URA requirements at 49 C.F.R. § 24.5 and civil rights 
requirements, PHAs and Project Owners must ensure effective communication with individuals 
with disabilities, including through the provision of appropriate auxiliary aids and services, such 
as interpreters and alternative format materials. Similarly, PHAs and Project Owners are  
required to take reasonable steps to ensure meaningful access for LEP persons in written and oral 
materials. Each notice shall indicate the name and telephone number of a person to contact with 
questions or for other needed help and shall include the number for the telecommunication  
device for the deaf (TDD) or other appropriate communication device, if applicable, pursuant to 
24 C.F.R. §8.6(a)(2). 
 
The purpose of these notifications is to ensure that residents are informed of their potential rights 
and, if they are to be relocated, of the relocation assistance available to them. Two initial notices 
launch this effort and provide critical information regarding residents’ rights. The first, the RAD 
Information Notice, is to be provided at the very beginning of the RAD conversion planning 
process in order to ensure residents understand their rights, to provide basic program information 
and to facilitate residents’ engagement with the PHA regarding project plans. The GIN, 
meanwhile, provides information specifically related to protections the URA provides to  
impacted residents. Subsequent notices provide more detailed information regarding relocation 
activities specific to the household, including tailored information regarding eligibility and 
timelines for relocation. 
 
PHAs should note that a resident move undertaken as a direct result of the project may be  
eligible to receive relocation assistance and payments under the URA even though the PHA has 
not yet issued notices to them. Sample notices which may be used as-is or modified to fit the 
peculiarities of each situation are provided on the RAD website at www.hud.gov/rad. 
 

A) RAD Information Notice 
 
The RAD Information Notice is to be provided to residents at the very beginning of the RAD 
conversion planning process in order to convey general written information on potential project 
plans and residents’ basic rights under RAD, and to facilitate residents’ engagement with the  
PHA regarding the proposed RAD conversion. The PHA shall provide a RAD Information  
Notice to all residents of a Converting Project prior to the first of the two meetings with residents 
required by the RAD Notice, Section 1.8.2, and before submitting a RAD Application. This  
RAD Information Notice shall be provided without regard to whether the PHA anticipates any 
relocation of residents in connection with the RAD conversion. The RAD Information Notice 
must do the following: 
 
 
 
 
 
common areas is insufficient) and methods of delivery (e.g., certified mail, U.S. mail, or hand delivery) must be 
documented in the PHA’s or Project Owner’s files. 

47 

Page 193 of 301

http://www.hud.gov/rad


 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023.  
      Page | 153 of 195 
 

• Provide a general description of the conversion transaction (e.g., the Converting Project, 
whether the PHA anticipates any new construction or transfer of assistance, whether the 
PHA anticipates partnering with a developer or other entity to implement the transaction); 

• Inform the resident that the early conceptual plans are likely to change as the PHA 
gathers more information, including, among other items, resident opinions, analysis of 
the capital needs of the property and financing options; 

• Inform the resident that the household has a right to remain in the unit or, if any 
relocation is required, a right to return to an assisted unit in the Covered Project (which 
may be at the new site in the case of a transfer of assistance); 

• Inform the resident that they will not be subject to any rescreening as a result of the 
conversion; 

• Inform the resident that the household cannot be required to move permanently without 
the resident’s consent, except in the case of a transfer of assistance when the resident may 
be required to move a reasonable distance, as determined by HUD, in order to follow the 
assisted unit; 

• Inform the resident that if any relocation is involved in the transaction, the resident is 
entitled to relocation protections under the requirements of the RAD program and, in 
some circumstances, the requirements of the URA, which protections may include 
advance written notice of any move, advisory services, payment(s) and other assistance 
as applicable to the situation; 

• Inform the resident that any resident-initiated move from the Converting Project could 
put any future relocation payment(s) and assistance at risk and instruct the resident not to 
move from the Converting Project; and 

• Inform the resident that the RAD transaction will be completed consistent with fair 
housing and civil rights requirements, and provide contact information to process 
reasonable accommodation requests for residents with disabilities during the relocation. 

 
B) General Information Notice (49 C.F.R. § 24.203(a)) 

 
The purpose of the General Information Notice (GIN) is to provide information about URA 
protections to individuals who may be displaced as a result of federally-assisted projects 
involving acquisition, rehabilitation or demolition. A GIN provides a general description of the 
project, the activities planned, and the relocation assistance that may become available. 
 
A GIN shall be provided to any person scheduled to be displaced as soon as feasible based on  
the facts of the situation. In certain instances, such as when the PHA knows that a project will 
involve acquisition, rehabilitation or demolition, “as soon as feasible” may be simultaneous with 
issuance of the RAD Information Notice. For any RAD conversion involving acquisition, 
rehabilitation or demolition, “as soon as feasible” shall be no later than 30 days following the 
issuance of the CHAP. In instances where acquisition, rehabilitation or demolition is not 
anticipated at the time of the CHAP but project plans change to include such activities, pursuant 
to this Notice the PHA shall provide the GIN as soon as feasible following the change in project 
plans. 

48 

Page 194 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023.  
      Page | 154 of 195 
 

For RAD, the GIN must do at least the following: 
 

• Inform the resident that he or she may be displaced for the project and generally describe 
the relocation payment(s) for which the resident may be eligible, the basic conditions of 
eligibility, and the procedures for obtaining the payment(s); 

• Inform the resident that, if he or she qualifies for relocation assistance as a displaced 
person under the URA, he or she will be given reasonable relocation advisory services, 
including referrals to replacement properties, help in filing payment claims, and other 
necessary assistance to help the displaced resident successfully relocate; 

• Inform the resident that, if he or she qualifies for relocation assistance as a displaced 
person under the URA, he or she will not be required to move without 90 days advance 
written notice; 

• Inform the resident that, if he or she qualifies for relocation assistance as a displaced 
person under the URA, he or she cannot be required to move permanently unless at least 
one comparable replacement dwelling has been made available; 

• Inform the resident that any person who is an alien not lawfully present in the United 
States is ineligible for relocation advisory services and relocation payments, unless such 
ineligibility would result in exceptional and extremely unusual hardship to a qualifying 
spouse, parent, or child (see 49 C.F.R. § 24.208(h) for additional information); 

• Describe the resident’s right to appeal the PHA’s determination as to a resident’s 
eligibility for URA assistance; and 

• Inform the resident that the RAD transaction will be completed consistent with fair 
housing and civil rights requirements, and provide contact information to process 
reasonable accommodation requests for residents with disabilities during the relocation. 

 
Because of the potential confusion caused by evolving policy directions in the RAD program 
regarding delivery of the GIN, for actions taken prior to the issuance of this Notice, HUD will 
consider the facts and circumstances of each conversion, with emphasis on the underlying URA 
requirements, in monitoring and enforcing a PHA’s compliance with this requirement. 
 

C) Notice of Intent to Acquire (49 C.F.R. § 24.203(d)) 
 
For conversions involving acquisition, the Project Owner (the “acquiring agency”) may provide 
to residents of the Converting Project a Notice of Intent to Acquire (NOIA).80 The NOIA may  
be provided no earlier than 90 days prior to the PHA’s reasonable estimate of the date of 
submission of a complete Financing Plan. While eligibility for URA relocation assistance is 
generally effective on the effective date of the RCC (the ION date), a prior issuance of a NOIA 
establishes a resident’s eligibility for relocation assistance and payments on the date of issuance 
of the NOIA and prior to the ION date. 
 

D) RAD Notice of Relocation 
 
If a resident will be relocated to facilitate the RAD conversion, the PHA shall provide written 
notice of such relocation by means of a RAD Notice of Relocation. The RAD Notice of 
 

 
80 Acquisition includes a new ownership entity’s purchase of the Covered Project from the PHA, such as a purchase 
by a single purpose entity, an affiliate or a low-income housing tax credit ownership entity. 

49 

Page 195 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023.  
      Page | 155 of 195 
 

Relocation may not be issued until: 1) the effective date of the RCC (the ION date) if the 
conversion does not involve acquisition; or 2) the earlier of the issuance of the Notice of Intent to 
Acquire (see Section 6.6(C)) or the effective date of the RCC (the ION date) if the conversion 
involves acquisition. Prior to issuance of the RAD Notice of Relocation, PHAs and Project 
Owners should meet with each resident household to provide preliminary relocation advisory 
services and to determine their needs and preferences.81 

A RAD Notice of Relocation is not required for residents who will not be relocated. As a best 
practice, PHAs or Project Owners should notify residents that they are not being relocated once 
that determination has been made if they were previously informed by the GIN and/or by other 
methods that relocation was a possibility.82 

A RAD Notice of Relocation shall provide either: 1) 30-days’ notice to residents who will be 
relocated for twelve months or less; or 2) 90-days’ notice to residents who will be relocated for 
more than twelve months.83 The RAD Notice of Relocation must conform to the following 
requirements: 
 

(1) The notice must state the anticipated duration of the resident’s relocation. 
 

(2) The notice must specify which entity (the PHA or the Project Owner) is primarily 
responsible for management of the resident’s relocation and for compliance with 
the relocation obligations during different periods of time (i.e., before vs. after 
Closing). 

 
(3) For residents who will be relocated for twelve months or less: 

 
• The PHA or Project Owner must provide this notice a minimum of 30 days 

prior to relocation.84 PHAs or Project Owners may deem it appropriate to 
provide longer notice periods for persons who will be temporarily relocated 

 
 

 
81 PHAs and Project Owners should note the URA relocation advisory services requirement for personal interviews. 
See Section 6.7 of this Notice. In sequencing the RAD Notice of Relocation, PHAs and Project Owners wishing to 
offer alternative housing options pursuant to Section 6.10 should also note the additional complexity in the timeline 
of notices. Pursuant to Section 6.10(D), the resident can consent to an alternative housing option only after issuance 
of the NOIA or the effective date of the RCC and 30 days after presentation of the alternative housing options. In 
some cases, for example, when the resident would not otherwise be relocated for over twelve months, the RAD 
Notice of Relocation must include both the information described in Section 6.6(D)(3) and the information in  
Section 6.6(D)(4). The PHA or Project Owner should consider discussing the alternative housing options prior to 
issuing the RAD Notice of Relocation so that the RAD Notice of Relocation can be tailored to the resident’s  
situation. 
82 The RAD program does not require a “notice of non-displacement,” which HUD relocation policy generally uses 
for this purpose. 
83 The 90-day notice is required for residents relocated for more than twelve months, whether or not they intend to 
return to the Covered Project and whether or not they are eligible for assistance and payments as a displaced person 
under URA. Recipients of the 90-day notice would include those residents who have voluntarily accepted a 
permanent relocation option as well as those residents who are relocated within the same building or complex of 
buildings. 
84 Note that residents may elect to move to the relocation housing before the 30 days have elapsed. However, a PHA 
may not require a resident to move prior to this time. 

50 

Page 196 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023.  
      Page | 156 of 195 
 

for an extended period of time (over 6 months), or if necessary due to personal 
needs or circumstances. 

• The notice must explain that the PHA or Project Owner will reimburse the 
resident for all reasonable out-of-pocket expenses incurred in connection with 
any temporary move (including, but not limited to, increased housing costs 
and moving costs). 

• The notice must explain the reasonable terms and conditions under which the 
resident may exercise the right to return to lease and occupy a unit in the 
Covered Project. 

 
(4) For residents who will be relocated for more than twelve months, including for 

residents who may wish to voluntarily accept a permanent relocation option: 
 

• The PHA or Project Owner must provide this notice a minimum of 90 days 
prior to relocation of residents.85 

• The notice must offer the choice to be temporarily relocated, thereby 
preserving the resident’s right to return, or the choice to be voluntarily 
permanently relocated pursuant to the procedures set forth in Section 6.10, 
together with guidance that the resident has at least thirty (30) days to 
consider the choice. 

• For residents who voluntarily elect to be permanently relocated, the 90-day 
notice period may only begin once the PHA or Project Owner has made 
available at least one comparable replacement dwelling consistent with 
49 C.F.R. § 24.204(a).86 

• The notice must describe the available relocation assistance, the estimated 
amount of assistance based on the individual circumstances and needs, and the 
procedures for obtaining the assistance. The notice must be specific to the 
resident and his or her situation so that the resident will have a clear 
understanding of the type and amount of payments and/or other assistance the 
resident household may be entitled to claim. 

• The notice must comply with all requirements for a URA Notice of Relocation 
Eligibility as described in 49 C.F.R. § 24.203(b). 

 
(5) The notice must inform the resident that the relocation will be completed 

consistent with fair housing and civil rights requirements, and it must provide 
contact information to process reasonable accommodation requests for residents 
with disabilities during the relocation. 

 
For short-term relocations, the RAD Notice of Relocation may also contain the information  
required in the Notice of Return to the Covered Project (see Section 6.6(F)). 
 
 
 
 
85 Note that residents may elect to move to the relocation housing before the 90 days have elapsed. However, a PHA 
may not compel a resident to move prior to this time. 
86 PHAs should note that URA regulations also require, where possible, that three or more comparable replacement 
dwellings be made available before a resident is required to move from his or her unit. 

51 

Page 197 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023.  
      Page | 157 of 195 
 

E) URA Notice of Relocation Eligibility – for residents whose temporary relocation 
exceeds one year (49 C.F.R. § 24.203(b)) 

 
After a resident has been temporarily relocated for one year, notwithstanding a prior issuance of  
a RAD Notice of Relocation, the PHA or Project Owner must provide an additional notice: the 
notice of relocation eligibility in accordance with URA requirements (“URA Notice of  
Relocation Eligibility”). The URA Notice of Relocation Eligibility is not required if the resident 
has already accepted permanent relocation assistance.87 

The URA Notice of Relocation Eligibility must conform to URA requirements as set forth in 49 
C.F.R. part 24 and shall: 
 

• Provide current information as to when it is anticipated that the resident will be able to 
return to the Covered Project. 

• Give the resident the choice to remain temporarily relocated based upon the updated 
information or to accept permanent URA relocation assistance at that time instead of 
exercising the right to return at a later time. 

 
If the resident chooses to accept permanent URA relocation assistance and this choice requires  
the resident to move out of their temporary relocation housing, the URA requires that the PHA or 
Project Owner make available at least one, and when possible, three or more comparable 
replacement dwellings pursuant to 49 C.F.R. § 24.204(a), which comparability analysis is in 
reference to the resident’s original unit. The URA further requires that the resident receive 90 
days’ advance written notice of the earliest date they will be required to move pursuant to 49 
C.F.R. § 24.203(c). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
87 To illustrate, consider the following examples. 

• Example 1: The household is expected to be relocated for 11 months. The resident would receive a RAD 
Notice of Relocation offering only temporary relocation. Construction delays result in the extension of the 
relocation such that, in fact, it exceeds 12 months. When the temporary relocation exceeds 12 months, the 
resident must receive a URA Notice of Relocation Eligibility offering a choice between continuation in 
temporary relocation status and permanent relocation. 

• Example 2: The household is expected to be relocated for 14 months. The resident would receive a RAD 
Notice of Relocation offering a choice between temporary relocation status and permanent relocation. If 
the household elects temporary relocation, the URA Notice of Relocation Eligibility is required as an 
additional notice following twelve months in temporary relocation status. 

• Example 3: The household is expected to be relocated for 14 months. The resident would receive a RAD 
Notice of Relocation offering a choice between temporary relocation status and permanent relocation. If 
the household elects permanent relocation, the URA Notice of Relocation Eligibility is not required. 

• Example 4: The household can be accommodated with temporary relocation of 3 months, but has been 
offered and seeks to accept permanent relocation pursuant to an alternative housing option. This resident 
would receive a RAD Notice of Relocation under Section 6.6(D)(4) offering a choice between temporary 
relocation status (the default option) and permanent relocation (the alternative housing option), instead of 
the RAD Notice of Relocation under Section 6.6(D)(3) which would be expected absent a permanent 
relocation option. The URA Notice of Relocation Eligibility is not required in either case because a 
temporary relocation exceeding 12 months was never anticipated nor experienced. 

52 

Page 198 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023.  
      Page | 158 of 195 
 

F) Notification of Return to the Covered Project 
 
With respect to all temporary relocations, the PHA or Project Owner must notify the resident in 
writing reasonably in advance of the resident’s expected return to the Covered Project, informing  
the resident of: 
 

• The entity (the PHA or the Project Owner) with primary responsibility for managing the 
resident’s relocation; 

• The address of the resident’s assigned unit in the Covered Project and, if different from 
the resident’s original unit, information regarding the size and amenities of the unit; 

• The date of the resident’s return to the Covered Project or, if the precise date is not 
available, a reasonable estimate of the date which shall be supplemented with reasonable 
additional notice providing the precise date; 

• That the PHA or Project Owner will reimburse the resident for all reasonable out-of- 
pocket expenses incurred in connection with the return relocation; and 

• The resident’s options and the implications of those options if the resident determines 
that he or she does not want to return to the Covered Project and wants to decline the 
right of return.88 

Reasonable advance notice shall be 15% of the duration of the resident’s temporary relocation or 
90 days, whichever is less. For short-term relocations, the PHA or Project Owner may include 
this information within the RAD Notice of Relocation. 
 
6.7. Relocation Advisory Services 
 
Throughout the relocation planning process, the PHA and Project Owner should be in 
communication with the residents regarding the evolving plans for relocation. Notwithstanding 
this best practice, certain relocation advisory services, described below, are required by the  
URA. 
 
The URA regulations require the PHA or Project Owner to carry out a relocation assistance 
advisory program that includes specific services determined to be appropriate to residential or 
nonresidential displacements. The specific advisory services to be provided, as determined to be 
appropriate, are outlined at 49 C.F.R. § 24.205(c). For residential displacement under the URA, a 
personal interview is required for each displaced resident household to determine the relocation 
needs and preferences of each resident to be displaced. The resident household shall be provided 
an explanation of the relocation payments and other assistance for which the resident may be 
eligible, the related eligibility requirements, and the procedures for obtaining such assistance. 
Advisory counseling must also inform residents of their fair housing rights and be carried out in 
 

 
88 If the resident declines to return to the Covered Project upon completion of the period of temporary relocation, the 
resident shall be considered to have voluntarily moved out of the property, without the benefit of further relocation 
assistance. For example, a PHA or Project Owner may have rented a market-rate apartment as a temporary  
relocation resource for a six-month period. In such a situation, the resident may decline to return to the Covered 
Project and choose to remain in the market-rate apartment at the expiration of the six-month period, but shall not be 
eligible for any further relocation assistance and payments (including rent differential payments) under this Notice, 
the URA or Section 104(d), if applicable, in connection with the resident’s decision to remain in the temporary 
housing and not return to the Covered Project. 

53 

Page 199 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023.  
      Page | 159 of 195 
 

a manner that satisfies the requirements of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Fair 
Housing Act, and Executive Order 11063 (49 C.F.R. § 24.205(c)(1)).89 Such advisory services 
under the URA may include counseling to ensure that residents affected by the project  
understand their rights and responsibilities and the assistance available to them (49 C.F.R. 
§ 24.205(c)). In addition, the PHA or Project Owner should inform residents that if they believe 
they have experienced unlawful discrimination, they may contact HUD at 1-800-669-9777 
(Voice) or 1-800-927-9275 (TDD) or at http://www.hud.gov. 
 
6.8. Initiation of Relocation 
 
PHAs and Project Owners may not initiate any involuntary physical relocation until both the 
RCC is in effect and the applicable RAD Notice of Relocation period has expired (i.e., after 
either 30 or 90 days’ notice as applicable depending on nature of the relocation, as described 
above). This prohibition applies to all types of RAD transactions, regardless of whether the  
RAD Notice of Relocation is provided after issuance of a NOIA (for conversions involving 
acquisition) or following the effective date of the RCC (for all other conversions). PHAs are 
advised to account for the required 30-day or 90-day written notice periods in their planning 
process, to ensure that notices which satisfy all applicable requirements are issued prior to taking 
any action to initiate relocation. 
 
Neither involuntary nor voluntary relocation for the project shall take place prior to the 
effective date of the RCC, unless moves are authorized under Section 7, below (“Applicability 
of HCV and Public Housing Requirements”) or unless HUD provides explicit approval which 
will only be provided in extraordinary circumstances. The PHA must wait until the RAD Notice 
of Relocation period has expired before it may initiate any involuntary relocation. However, a 
resident may request to move voluntarily, and the PHA may honor a resident’s request to move, 
before the applicable 30-day or 90-day period has elapsed, provided that the PHA may not take 
any action to encourage or coerce a resident to make such a request. If a resident has elected an 
alternative housing option, PHAs are advised to ensure that any consent to voluntary permanent 
relocation does not expire prior to the date of the relocation, as described in Section 6.10. 
 
HUD may use administrative data to identify and investigate projects where relocation may be 
occurring prior to RCC. 
 
6.9. Records and Documentation; Resident Log 
 
HUD may request from the PHA or Project Owner written records and documentation in order to 
evidence the PHA’s and/or Project Owner’s compliance, as applicable, with this Notice and the 
URA.90 HUD may request to review some or all of such records in the event of compliance 
 

 
89 For example, under fair housing and civil rights laws, the PHA and Project Owner may be required to inform 
residents about and provide reasonable accommodations for individuals with disabilities, such as search assistance;  
take appropriate steps to ensure effective communication with individuals with disabilities, such as through the 
provision of auxiliary aids and services, such as interpreters and alternate format documents; provide advisory 
counseling services in accessible locations and in an accessible manner for individuals with disabilities; and take 
reasonable steps to ensure meaningful access for LEP persons. See Section 4 of this Notice for more information on 
these requirements. 
90 Chapter 6 of HUD Handbook 1378 includes guidance on URA recordkeeping requirements. 

54 

Page 200 of 301

http://www.hud.gov/


 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023.  
      Page | 160 of 195 
 

concerns, in the event a project is identified for additional review based on administrative data,  
in the event of audits for purposes of monitoring the RAD program as a whole, upon selection of  
a random sample of projects and/or at other times at HUD’s sole discretion. The records shall 
include resident files for all households relocated in connection with RAD and a resident log as 
described in this Section. 
 
As part of such written record, the PHA or Project Owner must maintain data sufficient to  
deliver to HUD a resident log of every household that resides at the Converting Project at the  
time of the first required resident meeting on the proposed conversion pursuant to Section 1.8 of 
the RAD Notice (the “First Resident Meeting”) and of every household that moves into the 
Converting Project after the First Resident Meeting and before the conversion of assistance  
under RAD. If any relocation is required, the log shall track resident status through completion  
of rehabilitation and construction, including re-occupancy after relocation. The resident log must 
include, but need not be limited to, the following information: 
 

• Name of head of household 
• PHA’s resident identification number and/or the last four digits of the head-of- 

household’s Social Security Number 
• The head of household’s race and ethnicity as reported on the HUD Form 50058 or the 

HUD Form 50058 MTW (the “Form 50058”). For purposes of the resident log, all 
references to the Form 50058 shall be to the form most recently prepared at the time of 
the First Resident Meeting or, for residents who moved in after the First Resident 
Meeting, the form most prepared at the time of the resident’s initial occupancy. 

• A Yes/No indication if there is any household member reported as having a disability on 
the Form 50058. 

• A Yes/No indication if there is any household member reported as under the age of 18 on 
the effective date of action of the Form 50058; 

• The household’s relevant unit address, unit size and household size at the following 
times: 

o The time of the First Resident Meeting or the time of a resident’s initial 
occupancy if after the First Resident Meeting 

o The time of the issuance of the CHAP or the time of a resident’s initial occupancy 
if after the issuance of the CHAP 

o Proximate and prior to the PHA or Project Owner having authority to initiate 
involuntary relocation activities (i.e., at the time of issuance of the RCC unless 
otherwise approved by HUD upon extraordinary circumstances) 

o Completion of the relocation process following construction or rehabilitation and 
with return of all households exercising the right of return 

• The household’s residence status at the time of issuance of the RCC (e.g., in residence at 
the Converting Project, transferred to other public housing, moved out, evicted or other 
with explanation) 

• The household’s residence status upon completion of re-occupancy (e.g., in residence at 
the Covered Project/never relocated, in residence at the Covered Project/temporarily 
relocated and returned, transferred to other public housing, moved out, evicted, 
permanently relocated or other with explanation) 

• The following dates for each resident household, as applicable: 
o Date of the RAD Information Notice 

55 

Page 201 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023.  
      Page | 161 of 195 
 

o Date of the GIN 
o Date of the CHAP 
o Date of NOIA 
o Date of RAD Notice of Relocation 
o Date of URA Notice of Relocation Eligibility 
o Date of most recent consent to voluntary permanent relocation91 
o Date of relocation away from the Converting Project or Covered Project 
o Dates of any intermediate relocation moves 
o Date of return to the Covered Project or to the household’s post-closing 

permanent address.92 
• The following information for each resident household, as applicable: 

o The type of move (e.g., the types identified in Section 6.4, above) 
o The form of any temporary relocation housing (e.g., hotel, assisted housing, 

market-rate housing) 
o The address and unit size of any temporary relocation housing 
o Whether alternative housing options were offered consistent with Section 6.10, 

below 
o Any material terms of any selected alternative housing options 
o The type and amount of any payments for 

▪ Moving expenses to residents and to third parties 
▪ Residents’ out-of-pocket expenses 
▪ Rent differential payments or other payments for temporary or permanent 

rental assistance, together with the rent and utilities (if applicable) that were 
the basis for the calculations 

▪ Any other relocation-related compensation or assistance 
 
6.10. Alternative Housing Options 
 
Under the RAD Notice, “involuntary permanent relocation” is prohibited and each resident must 
be able to exercise his or her right of return to the Covered Project. A PHA or Project Owner is 
permitted to offer a resident alternative housing options when a resident is considering his or her 
future housing plans, provided that at all times prior to the resident’s decision, the PHA and 
Project Owner preserve the resident’s ability to exercise his or her right of return to the Covered 
Project. 
 

A) Requirements for Any Offer of Alternative Housing Options 
 
All residents who are similarly situated must be given the same offer of alternative housing  
options. If the PHA or Project Owner seeks to limit the number of households that accept the 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
91 The most recent consent must be within 180 days of the actual relocation date, as discussed in Section 6.10(D). 
92 In the case of voluntary permanent relocation, the date of “return” may be the same as the date of relocation away 
from the Converting Project. 

56 

Page 202 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023.  
      Page | 162 of 195 
 

offer of alternative housing options, the PHA or Project Owner shall determine a fair and  
reasonable method for selection among similarly situated residents.93 

In connection with any offer and acceptance of alternative housing options, the PHA or Project 
Owner must ensure that the residents’ decisions are: 1) fully informed; 2) voluntary; and 3) 
carefully documented. Any alternative housing option must include, at a minimum, all  
relocation assistance and payments required under this Notice, the URA and Section 104(d), as 
applicable, and may include other elements. Funds administered by HUD may not be used to  
pay any monetary elements not required under this Notice, the URA or Section 104(d). 
 
Acceptance of an alternative housing option is considered voluntary permanent relocation and  
the accompanying RAD relocation assistance and payments for which the resident may be 
eligible must be administered in accordance with all requirements for an eligible displaced  
person under the URA and its implementing regulations and, where applicable, Section 104(d) and 
its implementing regulations. 
 
PHAs may not propose or request that a displaced person waive rights or entitlements to 
relocation assistance under the URA or Section 104(d). The PHA must provide a written notice  
of URA or Section 104(d) relocation assistance and payments for which the resident may be 
eligible so that the resident may make an informed housing choice. The resident must be 
provided at least thirty (30) days to consider the offer of voluntary permanent relocation and the 
resident’s acceptance of the PHA’s offer of voluntary permanent relocation must be in writing 
signed by the head of the household for that unit. 
 

B) Assisted Housing Options as Alternatives 
 
Alternative housing option packages may include a variety of housing options and PHAs and 
Project Owners shall take particular care to ensure program compliance with the regulations 
applicable to the alternative housing options. Examples of alternative housing options may 
include: 
 

• Transfers to public housing 
• Admission to other affordable housing properties subject to the program rules applicable 

to such properties 
• Housing Choice Vouchers (HCVs) subject to standard HCV program administration 

requirements. PHAs must operate their HCV programs, including any HCVs offered as 
an alternative housing option, in accordance with their approved policies as documented 
in their Section 8 Administrative Plan and HUD regulations at 24 C.F.R. part 982. Any 
offer of an HCV as an alternative housing option must be made consistent with the 

 
 

 
93 For example, if the RAD conversion is financed by LIHTC and a few residents would not meet LIHTC program 
requirements, the PHA and Project Owner may want to offer these household alternative voluntary permanent 
relocation options. However, they must offer the same alternative housing options to all such households. As a 
second example, if the PHA and Project Owner seek to create two on-site vacancies of a particular unit size in order 
to facilitate temporary relocation on-site, the PHA may offer an alternative housing option of a housing choice 
voucher to all residents of applicably sized units (assuming that to do so is consistent with the PHA’s voucher 
administration policies), and conduct a lottery to select the two households which will receive the vouchers. 

57 

Page 203 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023.  
      Page | 163 of 195 
 

PHA’s admission preferences and other applicable policies and procedures set forth in the  
Section 8 Administrative Plan. 

• Homeownership programs subject to the applicable program rules 
• Other options as may be identified by the PHA and/or Project Owner 

 
C) Monetary Elements Associated With Alternative Housing Options 

 
A PHA or a Project Owner may include a monetary element in an alternative housing option 
package, provided that: 
 

• Any monetary element associated with the alternative housing option shall be completely 
distinct from and in addition to any required RAD, URA or Section 104(d) relocation 
payments and benefits for which the resident is eligible (“Required Relocation 
Payments”). 

• No funds administered by HUD may be used to pay for any monetary element associated 
with the alternative housing option other than Required Relocation Payments. 

• Any monetary element associated with the alternative housing option other than Required 
Relocation Payments must be the same amount offered to all similarly situated 
households.94 

• Any alternative housing option package must comply fully with the disclosure and 
agreement provisions of this Notice. 

 
D) Disclosure and Agreement to Alternative Housing Options 

 
In providing an offer of alternative housing options to a resident, the PHA or Project Owner must 
inform the resident in writing of: a) his or her right to return;95 b) his or her right to comment on 
and/or object to plans which would preclude the resident from returning to the Covered Project; 
c) the requirement that if the resident objects to such plans, the PHA or Project Owner must alter 
the project plans to accommodate the resident in the Covered Project; and d) a description of  
both the housing option(s) and benefits associated with the right of return and the alternative 
housing options and benefits being offered. In the description of the available housing options 
and benefits, the PHA or Project Owner shall include a description of any temporary housing 
options associated exercising the right of return and a description of any permanent alternative 
housing options as well as a reasonable estimate of the financial implications of all temporary  
and permanent options on the resident long-term. 
 
 
 
94 Monetary payments other than Required Relocation Payments are considered “temporary, nonrecurring or  
sporadic income” pursuant to 24 C.F.R. § 5.609(c)(9) and consequently are excluded from income for purposes of 
eligibility and assistance calculations under certain HUD programs. Residents should be reminded that monetary 
payments other than URA relocation payments may be taxable under the Internal Revenue Code, that monetary 
payments, including required relocation payments, may affect residents’ eligibility for other assistance programs and 
that the resident should seek knowledgeable guidance on these matters, including guidance on the taxation of 
monetary payments under state law. 
95 In the case of a transfer of assistance to a new site a significant distance from the Converting Project as described  
in Section 6.4(E), the resident shall be informed of the resident’s right to return to the Covered Project at the new  
site and of the resident’s right to an assisted unit within a reasonable distance of the site of the Converting Project, as 
described in Section 6.4(E). 

58 

Page 204 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023.  
      Page | 164 of 195 
 

The written notification may request written consent from the resident to exercise the alternative 
housing option and receive permanent relocation assistance and payments pursuant to RAD, the 
URA and/or Section 104(d), as applicable, in addition to any benefits associated with the 
alternative housing option. As part of any voluntary consent, the resident head of household  
must acknowledge in writing that acceptance of such assistance terminates the resident’s right to 
return to the Covered Project. In order to ensure that the resident has sufficient time to seek 
advice and consider the alternative housing options, any consent to an alternative housing option 
executed within 30 days of the written presentation of the options shall be invalid. 
 
Any offer of alternative housing options must be made in writing and the acceptance of the 
alternative must be voluntary and in writing. The offer of an alternative housing option must 
contain the following elements: 
 

• The resident is informed of his or her right to return to the Covered Project and that 
neither the PHA nor the Project Owner can compel the resident to relinquish his or her 
right to return. The offer of alternative housing options must clearly state that acceptance 
of any alternative would relinquish the resident’s right to return to the Covered Project. 

• The offer of an alternative housing option must be accompanied by identification of 
comparable housing units which the resident may use to understand the nature of housing 
options available to them and the rent and estimated utility costs associated with such 
housing options. This information must also be accompanied by a reasonable estimate of 
any replacement housing payment or “gap payment” for which the resident may be 
eligible. 

• The offer of an alternative housing option must be accompanied by information regarding 
moving payments and assistance that would be available if the resident exercises the right 
of return and if the resident accepts the alternative housing option. 

• Residents must be offered advisory assistance to consider their options. 
• To be fully informed, the offer must outline the implications and benefits of each 

alternative housing option being made available (i.e., of accepting each alternative 
housing option as compared to exercising his or her right to return) as well as a 
reasonable estimate of when the resident’s relocation might occur. Implications and 
benefits include payment amounts, differences in rent calculations, differences in 
program rules, housing location, and potential long-term implications such as household 
housing expenses multiple years in the future. 

• To be fully voluntary, the resident must have at least thirty (30) days following delivery 
of the written offer to consider their options. LEP persons must be provided a written 
translation of the offer and oral interpretation of any meetings or counseling in the 
appropriate language. In addition, PHAs must comply with their obligation to ensure 
effective communication with persons with disabilities. 

• The resident cannot be asked to make a decision which will be implemented at a distant 
future time. Consequently, the resident may not provide written consent to an alternative 
housing option (and consequently, consent to voluntary permanent relocation) until after 

59 

Page 205 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023.  
      Page | 165 of 195 
 

the earlier of issuance of the NOIA or the effective date of the RCC.96 If a resident signs 
a written consent to accept an alternative housing option, that written consent is valid for 
180 days. If relocation (after the applicable notice periods) has not occurred within this 
180 day period, then the PHA or Project Owner must secure a new consent to accept an 
alternative housing option. New relocation notices are generally not required. 

• The acceptance must be in writing signed by the resident head of household, including a 
certification of facts to document that the household is relinquishing its right to return and 
that the decision and the acceptance of the alternative housing option was fully informed 
and voluntary. 

• Residents accepting alternative housing options to relinquish their right to return will be 
considered to have voluntarily and permanently relocated. Such residents are to be 
provided applicable RAD, URA and/or Section 104(d) relocation assistance and 
payments. 

 
The information included with the offer of alternative housing options is to aid the resident in 
making decisions regarding the desirability of the alternative housing options and neither  
satisfies nor replaces the relocation notices and information required to be provided to residents 
pursuant to this Notice, the URA or Section 104(d). 
 
While HUD does not require PHAs to submit documentation of alternative housing options 
offered to residents or the residents’ elections, PHAs must keep auditable written records of such 
consultation and decisions. HUD may request this documentation at any time, including as part  
of a review of the Checklist or if relocation concerns arise. 
 
6.11. Lump Sum Payments 
 
PHAs and Project Owners should note that certain relocation payments to displaced residential 
tenants may be subject to 42 USC § 3537c (“Prohibition of Lump-Sum Payments”) and must be 
disbursed in installments. The PHA or Project Owner may determine the frequency of the 
disbursements which must be made in installments. Handbook 1378, Chapter 3-7(D) provides 
guidance on the manner and frequency of disbursing payments subject to this requirement. 
 
Any monetary element beyond Required Relocation Payments which may be associated with an 
alternative housing option described in Section 6.10, above, is not relocation assistance and is 
therefore not subject to the requirements regarding lump sum payments. 
 
SECTION 7. APPLICABILITY OF HCV AND PUBLIC HOUSING REQUIREMENTS 
 
7.1. HCV Waiting List Administration Unrelated to the RAD Transaction 
 
From time to time, a resident of a Converting Project may place themselves on the PHA’s  
waiting list for HCVs independent of any planned RAD transaction. With respect to residents of  
a Converting Project prior to the effective date of the HAP contract, PHAs should continue to 
 
 
96 The PHA and Project Owner should note that securing resident consent to an alternative housing option may delay 
the issuance of the RAD Notice of Relocation. The RAD Notice of Relocation must be specific to whether the 
resident will be temporarily or permanently relocated. 

60 

Page 206 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023.  
      Page | 166 of 195 
 

administer their HCV waiting list in accordance with their Section 8 Administrative Plans. 
Residents who rise to the top of the HCV waiting list independent of any preference for  
relocating RAD residents or other RAD provisions and accept an HCV are not considered to be 
relocated as a result of the RAD conversion. Standard administration of the PHA’s HCV waiting 
list is not considered relocation. 
 
7.2. HCV Waiting List Administration Related to the RAD Transaction 
 
From time to time, a PHA may wish to use HCV resources as a relocation option in connection 
with a RAD transaction. In order to do so, a PHA must modify its Section 8 Administrative Plan 
to provide a preference for relocating RAD residents and the PHA is subject to Section 6.8 of  
this Notice relating to initiation of relocation. Further, if a PHA provides a preference for 
relocating RAD residents, the PHA must be explicit regarding the nature of the HCV as a 
relocation resource. If the PHA anticipates using the HCV as a temporary relocation resource,  
the PHA must recognize that it cannot rescind an HCV once issued to the resident (i.e., the  
family would have to voluntarily relinquish their voucher and may choose to remain in the HCV 
program indefinitely). The PHA must also provide a preference for admission to the Covered 
Project in order to satisfy the right to return. Alternatively, if the PHA anticipates using the  
HCV as a voluntary permanent relocation resources, the PHA must comply with the alternative 
housing options provisions of Section 6.10.97 

 
7.3. Public Housing Transfers Unrelated to the RAD Transaction 
 
From time to time, a resident of a Converting Project may request a transfer to another public 
housing property independent of any planned RAD transaction. With respect to residents of a 
Converting Project prior to the effective date of the HAP contract, PHAs must continue to 
administer their admissions and occupancy procedures as adopted. Any prohibitions in this 
Notice on implementing relocation do not apply to residents requesting public housing transfers, 
moves pursuant to the Violence Against Women Act (VAWA)98 or reasonable accommodation 
moves. Standard administration of the PHA’s admissions and occupancy policy is not  
considered relocation.99 Transfers not undertaken for the RAD project are not subject to URA. 
However, it is recommended that the PHA document the transfer carefully, including an 
acknowledgement by the resident that the transfer is not undertaken for the RAD project, is not 
 
 
 
 

 
97 PHAs and Project Owners should note that while in most cases, there is no rent differential between the tenant  
paid rent in a public housing unit and in an HCV, there are some situations (such as flat rent households) where a 
difference does exist. Rental assistance payments under the URA are required if there is a difference between these 
two amounts. 
98 Title IV, section 40001-40703. 
99 Standard administration of the PHA’s admissions and occupancy policy is permitted. However, HUD is sensitive  
to concerns that discussion of the planned RAD conversion and construction activities may cause residents to 
perceive a pressure to transfer without the counseling and moving assistance which would be available were the 
household to wait until relocation. If relocation at the Converting Project is planned, PHAs are strongly advised to 
document any such transfers carefully and to provide any households moving under standard admissions and 
occupancy policies with additional notices referencing the assistance and payments which would be available if the 
household were to remain in place until the relocation plan is implemented. 

61 

Page 207 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023.  
      Page | 167 of 195 
 

subject to URA requirements and that the resident is moving notwithstanding the guidance in the 
GIN or other relocation guidance from the PHA. 
 
7.4. Resident Initiated Public Housing Transfers Related to the RAD Transaction 
 
Pursuant to Section 1.8 of the RAD Notice, households in the Converting Project who do not 
want to transition to the Section 8 program may be offered, if available, the opportunity to move 
to other public housing owned by the PHA. Such move shall be implemented as a transfer and 
shall be prioritized equivalent to a “demolition, disposition, revitalization or rehabilitation 
transfer” as described in Section 11.2 of the applicable Public Housing Occupancy Guidebook. 
Transfers for this purpose do not require any modification to the PHA’s admissions and 
occupancy policy and may occur at any time pursuant to the PHA’s admissions and occupancy 
policy. Transfers for this purpose, while initiated by the resident, are the result of the PHA- 
initiated RAD transaction and the PHA must bear the reasonable costs of transfer. The  
reasonable cost of the transfer includes not just the cost of packing, moving, and unloading, but 
also the cost of disconnecting and reconnecting any existing resident-paid services such as 
telephone and cable television. The PHA must also document that the resident’s transfer request  
is fully informed and fully voluntary, which documentation must include an acknowledgement  
by the resident that the transfer is not undertaken at the request of the PHA or under pressure 
from the PHA, that the resident is moving notwithstanding the guidance in the GIN or other 
relocation guidance from the PHA and that the resident is withdrawing from participation in the 
RAD program and consequently losing rights, including the right to return, which accrue to 
residents participating in the RAD program. A public housing resident who voluntarily seeks a 
public housing transfer is generally not considered to be displaced under the URA or Section 
104(d), where applicable. 
 
7.5. Public Housing as a Temporary Relocation Resource 
 
PHAs and Project Owners may wish to mitigate the relocation budget associated with the RAD 
conversion by using units within the PHA’s portfolio as relocation resources. In light of its 
mission to serve as many low-income households as possible, including its need to accommodate 
emergency transfers (such as moves pursuant to VAWA), the PHA should minimize the use of  
the public housing units not converting under RAD for temporary relocation of RAD impacted 
residents. HUD has a strong preference that the PHA use the units within the PHA’s Converting 
Projects as a temporary relocation resource prior to using units in the remainder of the PHA’s 
public housing portfolio. PHAs may elect not to lease units within the Converting Projects or, if 
necessary, the remainder of its portfolio, for this purpose only to the extent reasonably necessary 
to facilitate construction or rehabilitation. 
 
Upon the effective date of the HAP contract (usually also the effective date of the RAD 
conversion), each resident of a Covered Project becomes a participant in the Section 8 program 
and is no longer part of the public housing program. A PHA may use public housing as a 
temporary relocation resource if approved by HUD, which approval shall depend on the  
proposed structure. PHAs wishing to use public housing units as a temporary relocation resource 
must consult with HUD’s Office of Public and Indian Housing (PIH) prior to the formal request 
for HUD approval. It is unlikely that HUD would approve a request to use public housing units 

62 

Page 208 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023.  
      Page | 168 of 195 
 

as a relocation resource for a period exceeding one year after the effective date of the HAP 
contract. 
 
If HUD grants approval, HUD shall provide alternative requirements regarding PIH Information 
Center (PIC) documentation of the occupancy of these temporary relocation resources. PHAs 
must follow any guidance or instructions regarding treatment of the public housing units in 
HUD’s data systems as may be provided from time to time. 
 
PHAs and Project Owners should note that, absent written approval, if a resident seeks to occupy  
a public housing unit after the effective date of the HAP contract, the resident would need to be 
readmitted to public housing in a manner consistent with the waitlist and admissions policies and 
must exit the Section 8 program. 
 
7.6. Terminations (Including Evictions) and End of Participation Unrelated to the RAD 

Transaction 
 
Public housing program requirements related to continued occupancy and termination, including 
rules on grievances and related hearings, remain in effect until the effective date of a new PBV  
or PBRA HAP contract. If a resident is evicted in accordance with applicable state and local law 
and the eviction is not undertaken for the purpose of evading the obligation to make available 
RAD relocation and URA payments and other assistance, the resident is generally not entitled to 
relocation assistance and payments under this Notice or the URA (49 C.F.R. § 24.206). If a 
resident voluntarily ends his or her participation in the public housing program, in the absence of 
evidence that the end of participation was induced by the PHA for the purpose of evading the 
obligation to make available RAD relocation and URA payments and other assistance, the 
resident is generally not entitled to relocation assistance and payments under this Notice or the 
URA. 
 
7.7. Right-Sizing 
 
Public housing, PBV and PBRA requirements mandate that, upon the availability of a unit which 
is appropriate for the household size, the PHA or Project Owner must transfer a household that is 
under- or over-housed into the unit appropriate to the household’s size. However,  
accommodating all residents pursuant to the right of return has primacy over right-sizing 
requirements and may, in some cases, require temporarily over-housing households. In such 
circumstances, the PHA or Project Owner shall subsequently transfer the household to an 
appropriate size unit when available, as is required by the applicable program regulation. Such 
actions shall be governed by the applicable program regulation and shall not be considered 
relocation under this Notice. 

63 

Page 209 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023.  
      Page | 169 of 195 
 

 
 
 

Lourdes Castro-Ramirez 
Principal Deputy Assistant Secretary for    

Public and Indian Housing 
 
 
 
 
 

Edward L. Golding 
Principal Deputy Assistant Secretary for   

Housing 
 
 
APPENDIX I: Applicable Legal Authorities 
 
APPENDIX II: Recommended Relocation Plan Contents 

64 

Page 210 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023.  
      Page | 170 of 195 
 

APPENDIX I: Applicable Legal Authorities 
 

Part 1 
 
This Appendix to the Notice identifies key legal authorities with respect to fair housing, civil  
rights, and resident relocation. This Appendix is not exhaustive of applicable legal authorities, 
which authorities may also include other Federal statutes, regulations and Executive Orders, and 
civil rights provisions related to other programs (including funding programs) associated with the 
RAD transaction. 
 
Fair Housing Act (Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968, as amended) 
 
The Fair Housing Act, 42 U.S.C. § 3601 et seq., and its implementing regulations, 24 C.F.R. part 
100, prohibit discrimination in the sale, rental, and financing of dwellings, and in other housing- 
related transactions, based on race, color, national origin, religion, sex, disability, or familial 
status. The Fair Housing Act applies to for-sale and rental housing, whether the housing is 
privately or publicly funded, including housing supported by tax credits. Single family homes, 
condominiums, apartment buildings, time-shares, dormitories, transitional housing, homeless 
shelters that are used as a residence, student housing, assisted living housing, and other types of 
housing are all covered by the Fair Housing Act. 
 
Among its substantive provisions, the Fair Housing Act requires “covered multifamily  
dwellings,” designed and constructed for first occupancy after March 13, 1991, to be readily 
accessible to and usable by persons with disabilities. In buildings with four or more dwelling 
units and at least one elevator, all dwelling units and all public and common use areas are subject 
to the Act’s design and construction requirements. In buildings with four or more dwelling units 
and no elevator, all ground floor units and public and common use areas are subject to the Act’s 
design and construction requirements.100 In addition, the Fair Housing Act requires that housing 
providers make reasonable accommodations in rules, policies, and services, when such 
accommodations may be necessary to afford a person with a disability equal opportunity to use 
and enjoy a dwelling unit, including public and common use areas, and that housing providers 
permit reasonable modifications of existing premises for persons with disabilities. 
 
The Fair Housing Act also requires HUD to administer HUD programs and activities in a manner 
that affirmatively furthers fair housing (42 U.S.C. § 3608(e)(5). HUD’s affirmatively furthering 
fair housing (“AFFH”) rule in 24 C.F.R. §§ 5.150-5.180 will apply to PHAs (except for qualified 
PHAs) for the PHA’s fiscal year that begins on or after January 1, 2018 for which a new 5-year 
plan is due, as provided in 24 C.F.R. § 903.5. The affirmatively furthering fair housing 
regulations will apply to qualified PHAs, for the PHA’s fiscal year that begins on or after  
January 1, 2019 for which a new 5-year plan is due, as provided in 24 C.F.R. § 903.5.101 
 
 
 

 
100 See 42 U.S.C. § 3604(f)(3)(c) and 24 C.F.R. § 100.205. 
101 For purposes of the AFFH rule, “[a]ffirmatively furthering fair housing means taking meaningful actions, in 
addition to combating discrimination, that overcome patterns of segregation and foster inclusive communities free 
from barriers that restrict access to opportunity based on protected characteristics. Specifically, affirmatively 
furthering fair housing under the AFFH rule means taking meaningful actions that, taken together, address 

65 

Page 211 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023.  
      Page | 171 of 195 
 

Additional detail and discussion of the interplay between the Fair Housing Act, Section 504, and 
Titles II or III of the Americans with Disabilities Act as these authorities relate to accessibility 
requirements is described in Part 2 of this Appendix. 
 
United States Housing Act of 1937 (1937 Act) 
 
The United States Housing Act of 1937 (1937 Act) (42 U.S.C. § 1437c-1(d)(15)) requires PHAs 
to submit a 5-year plan and an Annual Plan. Pursuant to HUD regulations, the Annual Plan 
includes a certification by the PHA that the PHA will affirmatively further fair housing. 
 
Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 
 
Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq.) and HUD’s implementing 
regulation (24 C.F.R. part 1) prohibit recipients of Federal financial assistance from 
discriminating, excluding from participation, or denying benefits to, any person on the basis of 
race, color, or national origin. In addition, Title VI regulations prohibit HUD recipients of 
Federal financial assistance from utilizing criteria or methods of administration which have the 
effect of subjecting individuals to discrimination because of their race, color, or national origin 
(24 C.F.R. § 1.4(b)(2)(i)). When determining the site or location of housing, recipients may not 
make selections with the purpose or effect of excluding individuals from, denying them the 
benefits of, or subjecting them to discrimination on the ground of race, color, or national origin 
(24 C.F.R. § 1.4(b)(3)). An applicant or recipient of HUD financial assistance also has an 
obligation to take reasonable action to remove or overcome the consequences of prior 
discriminatory practices regardless of whether the recipient engaged in discriminatory conduct 
(24 C.F.R. § 1.4(b)(6)). 
 
Recipients of Federal financial assistance are required to take reasonable steps to ensure  
meaningful access to their programs and activities for persons who have limited ability to read, 
speak, or understand English – i.e., individuals who have limited English proficiency (LEP). 
This includes oral and written communications during relocation and throughout a RAD 
transaction. Such language assistance may include, but is not limited to, providing written 
translation of notices regarding the plans for the project and relocation and oral interpretation at 
meetings. Otherwise, LEP persons may be denied participation in, and the benefit of, the 
recipients’ program or activity. On January 22, 2007, HUD issued “Final Guidance to Federal 
Financial Assistance Recipients Regarding Title VI Prohibition Against National Origin 
Discrimination Affecting Limited English Proficient Persons” (LEP Guidance), available at: 
http://www.lep.gov/guidance/HUD_guidance_Jan07.pdf.102 
 
 

 
significant disparities in housing needs and in access to opportunity, replacing segregated living patterns with truly 
integrated and balanced living patterns, transforming racially and ethnically concentrated areas of poverty into areas 
of opportunity, and fostering and maintaining compliance with civil rights and fair housing laws.” 24 C.F.R. § 
5.150. Meaningful actions means significant actions that are designed and can be reasonably expected to achieve a 
material positive change that affirmatively furthers fair housing by, for example, increasing fair housing choice or 
decreasing disparities in access to opportunity. See 24 C.F.R. § 5.152. 
102 See also Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to Services for Persons with Limited English Proficiency, 
which requires recipients of Federal financial assistance to take reasonable steps to provide meaningful access to 

66 

Page 212 of 301

http://www.lep.gov/guidance/HUD_guidance_Jan07.pdf


 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023.  
      Page | 172 of 195 
 

Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 
 
Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 provides: “No otherwise qualified individual with  
a disability in the United States … shall, solely by reason of her or his disability, be excluded 
from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any 
program, service or activity receiving Federal financial assistance.”103 

Among other things, HUD’s regulations implementing Section 504 (in 24 C.F.R. part 8) prohibit 
recipients of Federal financial assistance, in determining the site or location of a facility  
receiving such assistance, from making site selections the purpose or effect of which would (1) 
exclude qualified individuals with disabilities from or deny them the benefits of a program or 
activity, or otherwise subject them to discrimination; or (2) defeat or substantially impair the 
accomplishment of the objectives of the program or activity with respect to qualified individuals 
with disabilities.104 These prohibitions apply to both determining the site of permanent facilities 
and a site for relocation of residents. 
 
Furthermore, HUD’s implementing regulations prohibit discrimination, the denial of benefits, or 
the exclusion of participation of individuals with disabilities from the programs or activities of 
recipients of federal financial assistance because a recipient’s facilities are inaccessible. Such 
recipients must provide qualified individuals with disabilities with program access, which may 
require modification of architectural features of facilities in RAD transactions for individuals  
with disabilities to have access to the program. Certain architectural specifications apply to 
facilities that are altered or newly constructed with HUD financial assistance, such as facilities 
where assistance is transferred and facilities used as temporary or permanent relocation sites for 
residents of a project undergoing a RAD conversion. If alterations are made to a housing  
facility, the alterations to dwelling units in the facility are required, to the maximum extent 
feasible (i.e., if doing so would not impose undue financial and administrative burdens on the 
operation of the project), to be made readily accessible to and usable by individuals with 
disabilities. If alterations taken to a development that has 15 or more units and the cost of the 
alterations is 75% or more of the replacement cost of the completed facility (except when it 
requires removal of structural load-bearing members), or if the facility is newly constructed, then  
a minimum of 5% of the total dwelling units, or at least one unit in a development, whichever is 
greater, must be made accessible for persons with mobility impairments. An additional 2% of  
the units, but not less than one unit, in a development must be accessible for persons with  
hearing and vision impairments. 
 
In addition, regulations implementing Section 504 require recipients to make reasonable 
accommodations for persons with disabilities. A reasonable accommodation is a change, 
adaptation, or modification to a policy, program, service, or workplace which will allow a 
qualified person with a disability to participate fully in a program, take advantage of a service, or 
perform a job. Section 504 also includes effective communication requirements, such as 
 
 
their programs and activities for LEP persons. E.O. 13166 directs all Federal agencies, including HUD, to issue 
guidance to help recipients of Federal financial assistance in providing such meaningful access to their programs. 
103 29 U.S.C. § 794. HUD’s Section 504 regulation that applies to recipients of Federal financial assistance, 
including PHAs and Project Owners, is located at 24 C.F.R. part 8. 
104 24 C.F.R. § 8.4(b)(5). 

67 

Page 213 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023.  
      Page | 173 of 195 
 

providing interpreters and alternate format documents (e.g., Braille, large print, accessible  
electronic communications) for persons with disabilities. 
 
Additional detail and discussion of the interplay between Section 504, the Fair Housing Act, and 
Titles II or III of the Americans with Disabilities Act as these authorities relate to accessibility 
requirements is described in Part 2 of this Appendix. 
 
Titles II and III of the Americans with Disabilities Act 
 
Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) prohibits discrimination on the basis of 
disability in all services, programs, and activities provided or made available by public entities. 
Title II of the ADA applies to housing developed or operated by state and local governments, 
which includes a PHA. Title III of the ADA prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability by 
public accommodations and requires places of public accommodation and commercial facilities  
to be designed, constructed, and altered in compliance with established accessibility standards. 
For example, Title III applies to rental offices, sales offices, homeless shelters, hotels and motels, 
and commercial spaces associated with housing, such as daycare centers, social service offices, 
and sales and retail establishments. Titles II or III also will generally apply to community spaces 
and facilities, such as neighborhood networks, to computer centers (including the computers in  
the centers), and to transportation services and conveyances provided by PHAs and Project 
Owners. 
 
Additional detail and discussion of the interplay between Titles II and III of the Americans with 
Disabilities Act, the Fair Housing Act, and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act as these  
authorities relate to accessibility requirements is described in Part 2 of this Appendix. 
 
Section 109 
 
Section 109 of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974 (HCDA of 1974), Title I, 
prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin, disability, age, religion, and 
sex in Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) programs and activities. Section 109 
applies to RAD projects that receive CDBG or other assistance under Title I of the HCDA of 
1974. 
 
In addition to its responsibility for enforcing other Federal statutes prohibiting discrimination in 
housing, HUD has a statutory obligation under Section 109 to ensure that individuals are not 
subjected to discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin, disability, age, religion, or 
sex by recipients of CDBG funds. Section 109 charges HUD with enforcing the right of 
individuals to live in CDBG-funded housing and participate covered programs and activities free 
from such discrimination. However, this additional statutory authority only applies to programs 
authorized under Title I of the HCDA of 1974, such as CDBG and programs, such as Section  
108 loan guarantees and the Historically Black Colleges and Universities program. 
 
Equal Access to HUD-assisted or HUD-insured Housing 
 
HUD requires its housing programs to be open to all eligible individuals and families regardless  
of sexual orientation, gender identity or marital status. HUD recipients and subrecipients must 
comply with 24 C.F.R. § 5.105(a)(2) when determining eligibility for housing assisted with HUD 

Page 214 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023.  
      Page | 174 of 195 
 

68 

Page 215 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023.  
      Page | 175 of 195 
 

funds or subject to an FHA-insured mortgage, and when making such housing available. This 
includes making eligibility determinations and making housing available regardless of actual or 
perceived sexual orientation, gender identity, or marital status, and prohibiting inquiries about 
sexual orientation or gender identity for the purpose of making eligibility determinations or 
making housing available. Applicants are encouraged to become familiar with these  
requirements, HUD’s definitions of sexual orientation and gender identity at 24 C.F.R. § 5.100, 
clarifications to HUD’s definition of family at 24 C.F.R. § 5.403, and other regulatory changes 
made through HUD’s Equal Access Rule, published in the Federal Register at 77 FR 5662 (Feb.  
3, 2012). 
 
Section 3: Economic Opportunities for Low- and Very Low-income Persons. 
 
Certain HUD programs require recipients of assistance to comply with Section 3 of the Housing 
and Urban Development Act of 1968 (Section 3), 12 U.S.C. § 1701u (Economic Opportunities  
for Low- and Very Low-Income Persons in Connection with Assisted Projects), and the HUD 
regulations at 24 C.F.R. part 135. The regulations at 24 C.F.R. part 135 implementing Section 3 
ensure, to the greatest extent feasible, that training, employment, contracting and other economic 
opportunities be directed to low- and very low-income persons, especially recipients of 
government assistance for housing, and to businesses that provide economic opportunities to  
low-and very low-income persons where proposed project is located. Recipients of funds  
covered by Section 3 must comply with 24 C.F.R. part 135, particularly subpart B-Economic 
Opportunities for Section 3 residents and Section 3 Business Concerns, and Subpart E-Reporting 
and Recordkeeping. HUD encourages recipients to search the national Section 3 Business 
Registry to find local businesses that prioritize hiring Section 3 residents. 
 
Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 
 
The Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, as 
amended, 42 USC § 4601 et seq. (URA) is a Federal law that establishes minimum standards for 
programs or projects receiving Federal financial assistance that include the acquisition of real 
property (real estate) and/or displace persons from their homes, businesses, or farms as a result  
of acquisition, rehabilitation, or demolition.105 The URA implementing Federal regulations can 
be found at 49 C.F.R. part 24. Project-Based Voucher (PBV) and Project-Based Rental 
Assistance (PBRA) are considered Federal financial assistance for purposes of the URA. As a 
result, the URA will apply to acquisitions of real property and relocation of persons from real 
property that occur as a direct result of acquisition, rehabilitation or demolition for a project that 
involves conversion of assistance to PBV or PBRA programs under RAD. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
105 For additional guidance, see HUD Handbook 1378 Tenant Assistance, Relocation, and Real Property  
Acquisition), available at: 
http://portal.hud.gov/hudportal/HUD?src=/program_offices/comm_planning/library/relocation/policyandguidance/h 
andbook1378. 

69 

Page 216 of 301

http://portal.hud.gov/hudportal/HUD?src=/program_offices/comm_planning/library/relocation/policyandguidance/handbook1378
http://portal.hud.gov/hudportal/HUD?src=/program_offices/comm_planning/library/relocation/policyandguidance/handbook1378


 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023.  
      Page | 176 of 195 
 

Section 104(d) of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974 
 
Section 104(d) of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as amended, 42 USC 
§ 5304(d), (Section 104(d)), is a Federal law that applies when a lower-income dwelling is 
demolished or converted (as conversion is defined in accordance with 24 C.F.R. § 42.305) to a 
use other than lower-income housing in connection with a Community Development Block  
Grant Program (CDBG) or HOME Investment Partnerships Program (HOME) funded activity. 
Under Section 104(d), a lower-income person is considered displaced and, therefore eligible for 
Section 104(d) relocation assistance if the person permanently moves from real property or 
permanently moves personal property from real property as a direct result of the demolition or 
conversion of a lower-income dwelling to a use other than lower-income dwelling unit in 
connection with a CDBG or HOME funded activity. The Section 104(d) one-for-one 
replacement housing requirements may apply with respect to occupied and vacant occupiable 
lower-income dwelling units that are demolished or converted to a use other than lower-income 
dwelling units in connection with CDBG or HOME funded activity. Section 104(d) 
implementing regulations can be found at 24 C.F.R. part 42, Subpart C. Additional HUD policy 
and guidance for Section 104(d) is available in HUD Handbook 1378, Chapter 7. 
 
Part 2 – Accessibility Requirements 
 
Federal accessibility requirements apply to all RAD projects – whether they include new 
construction, alterations, or existing facilities. Applicable laws include, but are not limited to,  
the Fair Housing Act, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act, and Titles II or III of the Americans 
with Disabilities Act (ADA). A PHA or Project Owner must comply with each law that applies  
to its project and with the requirement that provides the most accessibility when two or more  
laws apply. All three laws include new construction requirements. Substantial alterations, 
additions, rehabilitation and existing facilities must be in compliance with applicable 
requirements of Section 504 and the ADA.106 All three laws may also require reasonable 
accommodations or modifications. 
 
Accessibility Requirements for New Construction 
 
The Fair Housing Act requires all “covered multifamily dwellings” designed and constructed for 
first occupancy after March 13, 1991, to be readily accessible to and usable by persons with 
disabilities. In buildings with four or more dwelling units and at least one elevator, all dwelling 
units and all public and common use areas must meet the Fair Housing Act’s design and 
construction requirements. In buildings with four or more dwelling units and no elevator, all 
ground floor units and public and common use areas must meet the Fair Housing Act’s design 
and construction requirements. The Fair Housing Act requires that all covered multifamily 
dwellings be designed and constructed so that public and common use areas are readily  
accessible to and usable by persons with disabilities; all doors are sufficiently wide to allow 
passage by persons using wheelchairs; all units contain accessible routes into and through the 
dwelling unit; light switches, electrical outlets, thermostats, and other environmental controls are 
in accessible locations; reinforcements are installed in bathroom walls to allow later installation 
 

 
106See 24 C.F.R. § 100.205 (Fair Housing Act) and 24 C.F.R. §§ 8.22 and 8.23 (Section 504). See also 28 C.F.R. § 
35.151(b) and 28 C.F.R. part 36 (ADA Titles II and III regulations, respectively). 

70 

Page 217 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023.  
      Page | 177 of 195 
 

of grab bars; and kitchens and bathrooms are usable such that a person in a wheelchair can 
maneuver about the space.107 These design and construction requirements apply whether the 
housing is privately or publicly funded, including housing supported by tax credits.108 

New construction of a multifamily housing project containing five or more dwelling units is also 
subject to physical accessibility requirements under Section 504. Under Section 504, a “project” 
includes all residential and appurtenant structures, equipment, roads, walks, and parking lots 
which are covered by a single contract or application for Federal financial assistance, or are 
treated as a whole for processing purposes, whether or not they are located on a single site.109  
The accessibility standards for new construction under Section 504 are the Uniform Federal 
Accessibility Standards (UFAS).110 HUD recipients may also use the 2010 ADA Standards for 
Accessible Design under title II of the ADA, except for certain specific identified provisions, as 
detailed in HUD’s Notice on “Instructions for use of alternative accessibility standard,”  
published in the Federal Register on May 23, 2014 (“Deeming Notice”). This option exists until 
HUD formally revises its Section 504 regulation to adopt an updated accessibility standard. 
Refer to HUD’s Deeming Notice for more information. 
 
Section 504 also requires that a minimum of 5% of the total dwelling units or at least one unit, 
whichever is greater, is required to be accessible for persons with mobility impairments. An 
additional 2% of the total dwelling units or at least one unit, whichever is greater, is required to  
be accessible for persons with vision and hearing impairments.111 HUD may prescribe a higher 
percentage or number of units upon request by any affected recipient or by any State or local 
government or agency based upon demonstration to the reasonable satisfaction of HUD of a need 
for a higher percentage or number, based on census data or other available current data, or in 
response to evidence of a need for a higher percentage or number received in any other manner.  
In reviewing such request or otherwise assessing the existence of such needs, HUD shall take  
into account the expected needs of eligible persons with and without disabilities.112 

Title II of the ADA prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability in all services, programs, 
and activities provided or made available by public entities. Title II of the ADA applies to 
housing programs, including housing developed or operated by state and local governments, 
which includes PHAs. Title III of the ADA prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability by 
public accommodations, including rental offices, and requires places of public accommodation 
and commercial facilities to be designed, constructed, and altered in compliance with established 
accessibility standards. All newly constructed or altered facilities, including facilities altered to 
 
 
107 See 24 C.F.R. § 100.205. 
108 For more information about the design and construction provisions of the Fair Housing Act, see 
www.fairhousingfirst.org. See also the Joint Statement of the Department of Housing and Urban Development and 
the Department of Justice, Accessibility (Design and Construction) Requirements for Covered Multifamily  
Dwellings Under the Fair Housing Act (April 30, 2013), available at: 
www.hud.gov/offices/fheo/library/hudjointstatement.pdf. 
109 See 24 C.F.R. § 8.3. 
110 The UFAS are available at https://www.access-board.gov/guidelines-and-standards/buildings-and-sites/about-the- 
aba-standards/ufas). See also 24 C.F.R. § 8.32. 
111 See 24 C.F.R. § 8.22. 
112 See HUD regulation at 24 C.F.R. § 8.22(c). 

71 

Page 218 of 301

http://www.fairhousingfirst.org/
http://www.hud.gov/offices/fheo/library/hudjointstatement.pdf
https://www.access-board.gov/guidelines-and-standards/buildings-and-sites/about-the-aba-standards/ufas
https://www.access-board.gov/guidelines-and-standards/buildings-and-sites/about-the-aba-standards/ufas


 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023.  
      Page | 178 of 195 
 

comply with program access and readily achievable barrier removal obligations that exist under 
Titles II or III of the ADA, must comply with the U.S. Department of Justice’s ADA  
architectural accessibility standards as described in the following U.S. Department of Justice 
Technical Assistance document ADA Requirements, Effective Date/Compliance Date (Feb. 
2011), http://www.ada.gov/revised_effective_dates-2010.htm. 

Accessibility Requirements for Alterations 

If a building was constructed for first occupancy after March 13, 1991, the building must be in 
compliance with, and all alterations must maintain the building’s accessible features so that the 
building continues to meet, the Fair Housing Act’s accessibility requirements. In addition, 
without regard to the date of construction for first occupancy, certain alterations may be required 
under the Fair Housing Act if requested by a resident as a reasonable accommodation or 
modification or otherwise required to remediate accessibility deficiencies in the design and 
construction of the building. 
 
Under HUD’s Section 504 regulation, alterations include any structural change in a facility or a 
change to its permanent fixtures or equipment. If alterations are undertaken to a project that has 
fifteen or more units and the cost of the alterations is 75% or more of the replacement cost of the 
completed facility, this qualifies as “substantial alterations,” in which the new construction 
provisions of 24 C.F.R. § 8.22 apply.113 

When alterations are made that do not qualify as substantial alterations, alterations to dwelling 
units in a multifamily housing project shall, to the maximum extent feasible, be made to be  
readily accessible to and usable by individuals with disabilities.114 If alterations of single  
elements or spaces of a dwelling unit, when considered together, amount to an alteration of a 
dwelling unit, the entire dwelling unit shall be made accessible. Once 5% of the dwelling units  
in a housing project are readily accessible to and usable by individuals with mobility  
impairments, no additional elements of dwelling units or entire dwelling units are required to be 
accessible under this provision. However, alterations to meet ongoing accessibility needs are 
always required, for example, in response to a reasonable accommodation request. Alterations to 
common areas or parts of facilities that affect accessibility of existing housing facilities shall, to 
the maximum extent feasible, be made to be accessible to and usable by individuals with 
disabilities. For purposes of this paragraph, the phrase “to the maximum extent feasible” shall  
not be interpreted as requiring that a recipient (including a PHA) make a dwelling unit, common 
area, facility or element thereof accessible if doing so would impose undue financial and 
administrative burdens on the operation of the multifamily housing project.115 

All altered facilities covered by Titles II or III of the ADA must be altered in accordance with the 
U.S. Department of Justice’s 2010 ADA Standards for Accessible Design and applicable ADA 
 
 
 
113 See 24 C.F.R. § 8.23(a). The sole exception is that load bearing structural members are not required to be  
removed or altered. 
114 HUD may require a higher number or percentage of accessible units pursuant to 24 C.F.R. § 8.22(c) and 24 
C.F.R. § 8.23(b)(2). 
115 24 C.F.R. § 8.23(b). 

72 

Page 219 of 301

http://www.ada.gov/revised_effective_dates-2010.htm


 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023.  
      Page | 179 of 195 
 

regulations, unless subject to certain safe harbors identified in the 2010 ADA revised regulations 
for Titles II and III, as applicable.116 

HUD will consider on a case-by-case basis a PHA’s request to undertake limited new 
construction on the site of a Covered Project undergoing rehabilitation to comply with 
accessibility requirements on the site. 
 
Additional Accessibility Requirements for Both New Construction and Alterations 
 
Accessible units must be distributed throughout projects and sites and be available in a sufficient 
range of sizes and amenities so that a qualified individual with disabilities’ choice of living 
arrangements is, as a whole, comparable to that of other persons eligible under the same 
program.117 This provision shall not be construed to require provision of an elevator in any 
multifamily housing project solely for the purpose of permitting location of accessible units  
above or below the accessible grade. 
 
PHAs are encouraged to use universal design principles, visitability principles and active design 
guidelines in planning new construction or retrofit work, wherever feasible. However, adherence 
to universal design principles does not replace compliance with the accessibility requirements of 
Section 504, the ADA and the Fair Housing Act. 
 
Program Accessibility Requirements 
 
Under Section 504, recipients must operate each existing housing program or activity receiving 
Federal financial assistance so that the program or activity, when viewed in its entirety, is 
accessible to and usable by individuals with disabilities. Title II of the ADA also includes a 
program access requirement, while Title III of the ADA requires readily achievable barrier 
removal.118 Further, Section 504, the Fair Housing Act, and the ADA require that reasonable 
accommodations/modifications be granted to address disability-related needs of individuals with 
disabilities.119 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
116 See http://www.ada.gov/regs2010/2010ADAStandards/2010ADAstandards.htm. 
117 See 24 C.F.R. §§ 8.26 and 8.27. 
118 See 28 C.F.R. § 35.150; 28 C.F.R. § 36.304. 
119 For more information on reasonable accommodations, see the HUD/DOJ Joint Statement on Reasonable 
Accommodations Under the Fair Housing Act at 
http://portal.hud.gov/hudportal/documents/huddoc?id=JOINTSTATEMENT.PDF. While this joint statement  
focuses on the Fair Housing Act, the principles discussed in the statement generally apply to requests for reasonable 
accommodation under Section 504, except, for purposes of Section 504, HUD recipients are required to provide and 
pay for structural modifications as a reasonable accommodation. 

73 

Page 220 of 301

http://www.ada.gov/regs2010/2010ADAStandards/2010ADAstandards.htm
http://portal.hud.gov/hudportal/documents/huddoc?id=JOINTSTATEMENT.PDF


 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023.  
      Page | 180 of 195 
 

APPENDIX II: Recommended Relocation Plan Contents 
 

While RAD mandates written relocation plans only for projects which involve permanent 
relocation (including, without limitation, a move in connection with a transfer of assistance) or 
temporary relocation anticipated to last longer than one year, HUD strongly encourages PHAs to 
document their relocation planning process and procedures in a written relocation plan. The 
following provides suggested content for required and recommended relocation plans. In the  
case of any discrepancy between this description of the recommended relocation plan contents 
and the provisions of the Notice to which this Appendix is attached or any applicable laws or 
regulations with respect to the URA or Section 104(d), the provisions of the Notice or applicable 
laws and regulations shall govern. 
 
The basic elements of the relocation plan include: 
 

• A general description of the project and project elements that may create relocation 
needs; 

• Information on residents of the project and eligibility for relocation assistance and 
payments; 

• Information regarding how the project will address the RAD right to return requirements 
and the project’s re-occupancy policies; 

• A detailed discussion of plans for temporary relocation assistance; 
• A detailed discussion of any transfer of assistance; 
• A detailed discussion of any offers of alternative housing options and plans for voluntary 

permanent relocation assistance; 
• A detailed discussion of compliance with fair housing and civil rights requirements, 

including accessibility requirements; 
• The relocation budget; and 
• The appeals process. 

 
The plan as a whole should discuss the specific steps to be taken to minimize the adverse impacts 
of relocation on the residents. 
 
I. Project Summary 
 
The Relocation Plan should provide a general description of the property (e.g., year built, 
location, number of units, configuration, resident population served). The project summary 
should also identify the nature of the activities to be undertaken, including acquisition, 
demolition, rehabilitation, and construction activities and additional detail regarding the project 
scope (e.g., gut rehab, systems replacement, modest in-unit renovations, transfer of assistance). 
The project summary should also discuss how any construction activities are to be implemented 
(i.e., vacate the property entirely, vacate specific floors or buildings, rehabilitation with residents 
in place). The summary should also discuss the overall theory of relocation, for example,  
whether a few households will be relocated off-site and the vacant units will be used as  
temporary housing before other households move back to their original units (a “hoteling” 
approach), or whether the vacant units will be permanently occupied, with the residents vacating 
other units to be renovated (a “domino” approach). 

74 

Page 221 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023.  
      Page | 181 of 195 
 

The relocation plan should also identify the funding sources which may trigger relocation 
requirements, with particular attention to the potential presence of HOME or CDBG funds which 
may trigger Section 104(d) requirements. 
 
II. Project Occupancy 
 
The Relocation Plan should provide information on occupancy of the property including the 
number of residents, their household type (family, elderly), any non-residential (commercial) 
occupants, and should identify how any routine needs (such as continuation of utilities such as 
telephone service) and civil rights compliance issues (for example, limited English proficiency, 
disabilities, reasonable accommodations and unit modifications that have been or may be 
necessary) shall be identified and addressed. The Relocation Plan may specify the community 
meetings, interviews and/or other processes that will be undertaken to assess the residents’ needs. 
 
The Relocation Plan should also address eligibility for relocation assistance and payments, 
applying the rules of the Notice to the particularities of the project. 
 
III. Resident Return and Re-occupancy Policies 
 
The Plan should address how the project will honor the RAD right to return requirements and the 
“no re-screening upon conversion” policy. With respect to residents who will be temporarily 
relocated, the Plan should include the methodology that will be used to determine the sequence  
in which residents will re-occupy units at the project after rehabilitation, demolition, and/or 
construction is completed, and to determine how residents are matched with units if the residents 
are not able to return to their original unit. For example, if units will come online in stages, the 
plan should outline how the PHA or Project Owner will determine when each resident will return 
to the property. 
 
IV. Temporary Relocation Assistance 
 
The plan should detail the temporary housing resources to be used, the anticipated duration of 
temporary relocations, notices to be provided and the temporary relocation assistance the PHA or 
Project Owner will provide for residents (Paragraph 2-7 of HUD Handbook 1378). Topics to be 
addressed in the Plan include: 
 

• Temporary Housing Resources. The Plan should identify the nature and availability of 
the temporary housing resources the PHA or Project Owner anticipates using. On-site 
resources are generally preferred. However, in some cases, PHAs or Project Owners may 
need to use hotel rooms for short-term relocations, or market-rate apartments. If the PHA 
or Project Owner anticipates using other assisted housing resources (such as HCVs, 
public housing or other properties with regulatory restrictions), the PHA or Project 
Owner should take particular care to address regulatory issues. 

• Allocation of Temporary Relocation Resources. The Plan should describe a fair and 
reasonable methodology for allocating temporary relocation housing to residents on a 
nondiscriminatory basis. 

• Duration of Temporary Relocation. In the event that the Plan includes relocation which 
is anticipated to exceed one year, it should detail the requirements which apply to those 

75 

Page 222 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023.  
      Page | 182 of 195 
 

residents (such as the issuance of a Notice of Relocation to the resident covering  
eligibility for URA relocation assistance, the offer of permanent relocation assistance and 
payments at URA levels and, if conditions warrant, the subsequent issuance of a Notice of 
Eligibility) as distinct from requirements that apply to residents who are not relocated for  
more than one year. 

• Packing and Moving Assistance. The Plan should address how the PHA or Project 
Owner intends to provide or reimburse for packing and moving services and expenses. 
Considerations the Plan may want to address include: 

o Instructions and supplies (e.g., boxes, markers, tape) to be provided if residents 
prefer to pack their own personal possessions and items of value; 

o Assistance in packing to be provided if residents need assistance or prefer not to 
pack their personal possessions; 

o Guidance on how residents request to pack their own possessions or to receive 
packing assistance; and 

o How the PHA or Project Owner intends to provide or reimburse for moving 
services and expenses. The PHA or Project Owner can choose to do one or more 
of the following: 

▪ Undertake the moves itself, using employees of the PHA or Project Owner 
or “force account labor”120 

▪ Use a contractor or moving company 
▪ Reimburse residents for all actual, reasonable and necessary moving 

expenses. 
• Storage. The Plan should address whether storage of the resident’s personal property is 

necessary and the arrangements for such storage. 
• Damage or Loss. The Plan should address Insurance for the replacement value of the 

property in connection with the move and necessary storage and/or the replacement value 
of property lost, stolen, or damaged in the process of moving (not through the fault or 
negligence of the displaced person, his or her agent, or employee) where insurance 
covering such loss, theft, or damage is not reasonably available. 

• Out-of-Pocket Expenses. The nature of out of pocket expenses vary based on the nature 
of the temporary relocation moves. For example, hotel stays or in-place renovation may 
trigger the need for reimbursement of meals while a kitchen is unavailable. The Plan 
should outline the anticipated out-of-pocket expenses and the PHA’s or Project Owner’s 
plans and budget with respect to these expenses. 

• Leasing Arrangements. The Plan should address whether the resident will have a direct 
lease or other contractual relationship with the owner of the temporary relocation 
resource or whether the PHA or Project Owner will hold the lease and the resident will 
maintain a contractual relationship with the PHA or Project Owner. 

• Utility Costs. The Plan should address whether residents will need to disconnect and 
reconnect necessary utilities and, if so, how the PHA or Project Owner anticipates 
managing this process and any associated expenses. Necessary utilities may include 
telephone, cable service, Internet access or other items. The Plan should address payment 
of utility deposits, if required at the temporary relocation housing (HUD Handbook 1378, 
paragraph 2-7(A)(3)). 

 
 
120 Defined at 24 C.F.R. 905.108. 

76 

Page 223 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023.  
      Page | 183 of 195 
 

• Reasonable Accommodations. The plan should address whether residents with 
disabilities will require reasonable accommodations during temporary relocation and, if 
so, how the PHA or Project Owner anticipates ensuring the provision of reasonable 
accommodations and any associated expenses. Reasonable accommodations may 
include, among other items, the provision of transportation assistance, relocation to 
locations which are physically accessible and located near public transportation, and 
modifications to policies to allow individuals with disabilities to reside with a live-in 
aide. 

 
V. Transfer of Assistance 
 
Relocation planning in the context of transfer of assistance is particularly complex. The PHA 
should address how RAD, URA and Section 104(d) requirements each apply, as the same  
activity may be treated differently under each regulatory framework. The Plan should  
specifically outline the PHA’s procedures to ensure that the applicable requirements are applied 
to each situation appropriately. The Plan should also address whether relocation is required for 
any businesses or residents at the destination site. Finally, the Plan should address whether two 
moves – from the public housing site to an intermediate site and then to the transfer of assistance 
site – are necessary while the Covered Project is being constructed or rehabilitated. 
 
VI. Alternative Housing Options and Voluntary Permanent Relocation Assistance 
 
If the PHA or Project Owner seeks to offer alternative housing options, the Plan should identify 
those options and the manner in which they are presented to residents for decision. The plan 
should also outline the counseling the PHA or Project Owner will provide to assist the residents  
in determining what options may be available and the financial implications of those options, for 
example, 
 

1. Discussion of whether units available in the market (either in the affordable market or the 
unrestricted market) will meet the financial and dwelling requirements of relocated 
residents; 

2. The general area or location of unit(s); 
3. Where applicable, the accessibility of such units for individuals with disabilities; 
4. Criteria for receiving relocation assistance; and 
5. Any other information that might benefit residents in their consideration of housing 

choices. 
 
The Plan should identify how the PHA or Project Owner will work with any residents who have 
elected voluntary permanent relocation. The Plan should further include a description of the 
permanent relocation assistance the PHA or Project Owner will provide to such residents. Topics 
to be addressed in the Plan include: 
 

• Replacement Housing. The Plan should address the availability of comparable 
replacement housing, the notices to be provided and the provisions to ensure that 
appropriate accessibility features are available in compliance with applicable laws and 
regulations. 

77 

Page 224 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023.  
      Page | 184 of 195 
 

• Fair housing considerations. The Plan should address referrals to housing not located in 
areas of minority concentration and compliance with requirements regarding accessible 
housing for persons with disabilities. The Plan should address how the PHA or Project 
Owner will determine if residents have paid for the acquisition and/or installation of 
accessible features in the housing from which they are being relocated and how the PHA 
or Project Owner will ensure that the replacement housing contains required and 
comparable accessible features or that the resident is appropriately compensated for the 
cost of acquiring and/or installing required and comparable accessible features. 

• Packing and Moving Assistance. The Plan should address how the PHA or Project 
Owner intends to provide or reimburse for packing and moving services and expenses. 
Considerations the Plan may want to address include: 

o Instructions and supplies (e.g., boxes, markers, tape) to be provided if residents 
prefer to pack their own personal possessions and items of value; 

o Assistance in packing to be provided if residents need assistance or prefer not to 
pack their personal possessions; 

o Guidance on how residents request to pack their own possessions or to receive 
packing assistance; and 

o How the PHA or Project Owner intends to provide or reimburse for moving 
services and expenses consistent with 49 C.F.R. § 24.301 or, at the resident’s 
option, 49 C.F.R. § 24.302. 

• Storage. The Plan should address whether storage of the resident’s personal property is 
necessary and the arrangements for such storage. See 49 C.F.R. § 24.301(g)(4). 

• Damage or Loss. The Plan should address Insurance for the replacement value of the 
property in connection with the move and necessary storage and/or the replacement value 
of property lost, stolen, or damaged in the process of moving (not through the fault or 
negligence of the displaced person, his or her agent, or employee) where insurance 
covering such loss, theft, or damage is not reasonably available. 

• Dislocation Allowance. The Plan should address when the resident is entitled to a 
dislocation allowance and the amount of such dislocation allowance, consistent with the 
URA Fixed Residential Moving Cost Schedule available at: 
www.fhwa.dot.gov/real_estate/uniform_act/relocation/moving_cost_schedule.cfm. 

• Appliances. The Plan should address disconnecting, dismantling, removing, 
reassembling, and reinstalling relocated household appliances and other personal 
property. 

• Security Deposits and Utility Costs. The Plan should address how the PHA or Project 
Owner anticipates managing transfer of utility arrangements, security deposits and any 
associated expenses. Utilities may include telephone, cable service, Internet access or 
other items that may have been in place in the resident’s original home. See 49 C.F.R. 
§ 24.301(h)(12). 

• Replacement Housing Payment. The Plan should address the circumstances in which 
displaced residents may be entitled to a replacement housing payment (RHP) to cover the 

78 

Page 225 of 301

http://www.fhwa.dot.gov/real_estate/uniform_act/relocation/moving_cost_schedule.cfm


 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023.  
      Page | 185 of 195 
 

increase, if any, in monthly housing costs for a 42-month period pursuant to URA 
requirements or a 60-month period pursuant to Section 104(d).121 

 
VII. Relocation Budget 
 
Based on the results of the planning process, the PHA or Project Owner should create a  
relocation budget that includes the following six components: 
 

1) The cost of administering the plan and providing assistance and counseling. 
 

2) Reasonable moving expenses for a person with disabilities, which may include the cost of 
moving assistive equipment that is the personal property of the residents, the furnishings 
and personal belonging of a live-in aide, and/or other reasonable accommodations (HUD 
Handbook 1378, Paragraph 3-2). 

 
3) The cost of the physical move of the residents’ belongings. (It is suggested that the move 

costs be broken down by average cost per move type multiplied by the number of 
moves.) This physical move cost total should be based on the move scenarios anticipated 
or projected by the resident survey. The move costs should consider: 

 
For temporary relocation moves: 

• Number and cost of two-way moves (i.e., a move to another unit and then a return 
move) within the same building/complex. 

• Number and cost of two-way moves to a unit not in the same building/complex 
 
For permanent moves: 

• Number and cost of one-time moves into another unit in the same 
building/complex. 

• Number and cost of one permanent move to a unit not within the same 
building/complex 

• Any required dislocation allowance 
 

4) The estimated cost of projected increases in monthly housing costs and other expenses 
for temporary relocation (if applicable). 

 
5) The estimated cost of projected replacement housing payments (RHP) (42-month period 

for URA or 60-month period if Section 104(d) applies). 
 

6) Contingency costs estimated for carrying out the relocation process necessary to 
complete the proposed project. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
121 See also, CPD Notice 2014-09 “Effective Date of Moving Ahead for Progress in the 21st Century Act (MAP-21) 
Changes to Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, as amended (URA) 

Page 226 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023.  
      Page | 186 of 195 
 

Payment Limits and Replacement Housing Payment Eligibility Criteria.” 

79 

Page 227 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023.  
      Page | 187 of 195 
 

VIII. Written and Oral Communications with Individuals with Disabilities and LEP  
Persons and Use of Accessible Meeting Locations 

 
The Plan should identify how the PHA or Project Owner will take appropriate steps to ensure 
effective communication with residents and other individuals with disabilities involved in the 
relocation, such as through the provision of sign language and other interpreters and large print, 
Braille, accessible electronic, and other alternate format written communications. The Plan 
should identify the measures to be taken to ensure the most integrated meeting settings 
appropriate to individuals with disabilities. The Plan should identify how the PHA or Project 
Owner will ensure meaningful access for LEP persons, such as through written materials and  
oral communications provided in languages other than English. 
 
IX. Appeal Process 
 
The Plan should specify the procedures to be followed if a resident disagrees with the PHA’s or 
Project Owner’s decision as to the resident’s eligibility to receive relocation assistance, the 
amount of a relocation payment, or the adequacy of a comparable replacement dwelling offered  
to a resident. These procedures should include the process for filing a written appeal to the 
displacing agency and the specific appeal procedures to be followed consistent with 49 C.F.R. 
24.10 (and 24 C.F.R. § 42.390 if Section 104(d) is involved). 
 
X. Certification 
 
The Plan should contain a certification of compliance with this Notice (or H 2014-09/PIH 2014- 
17, if applicable), the URA, fair housing and civil rights requirements and, if applicable, Section 
104(d). 
 
Technical Assistance 
 
For detailed technical assistance regarding the contents or provisions of a written relocation plan,  
the PHA or Project Owner should direct questions to their RAD Transaction Manager or email 
rad@hud.gov. 

80 

Page 228 of 301

mailto:rad@hud.gov


 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 
 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023.  
      Page | 188 of 195 
 

 

Page 229 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  

 

 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023.      Page | 189 of 195 
 
 Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023.        Page | 189 of 195 
 

Attachment V:  Lobbying Disclosures 

Page 230 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  

 

 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023.      Page | 190 of 195 
 
 Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023.        Page | 190 of 195 
 

 

Page 231 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 

 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023.      Page | 191 of 195 
 
 Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023.        Page | 191 of 195 
 

 

Page 232 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  

 

 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023.      Page | 192 of 195 
 
 Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023.        Page | 192 of 195 
 

Attachment VI:  Plan Amendment 

A.  Board Resolution and Certifications of Compliance 
Board Resolution 24-01-XX RH approving the content and submission of the amended FY 
2024 MTW Annual Plan and updated Certifications of Compliance.  

 
B. Documentation of Public Process 

The amended FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan was made available for public review on RHA’s 
website beginning November 17, 2023.  It was discussed at multiple Resident Council 
meetings in December 2023.  Resident sign in sheets from each of the above-mentioned 
meetings are available upon request.   
 
The plan remained available for public review and comment on RHA’s website and at 
RHA’s Administrative Office from November 17, 2023, until the day of the Board of 
Commissioners approval on January 23, 2024.  RHA received no comments during the 
comment period. 
 
The FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan Amendment was advertised in the Legal Notices section of 
the Reno Gazette Journal on November 20, 2023, and November 27, 2023, as follows:  
 

 

The Housing Authority of the City of Reno (RHA) is requesting public comments and 
conducting a public hearing on an amendment to the FY 2024 Moving to Work (MTW) 
Annual Plan.  The amendment proposes to allow RHA to develop alternative reasonable 
cost limits to the Total Development Cost (TDC) and Housing Construction Cost (HCC) 
limits that are separate from HUD’s standard limits to better reflect local costs to 
develop and rehabilitate new and existing properties. 

RHA’s amended FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan will be available for public review and 
comment from November 17, 2023 through January 22, 2024 at RHA’s Administrative 
Office, 1525 E. Ninth St, Reno, NV 89512 and on RHA’s website at www.renoha.org.  
Copies of the amended FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan may also be obtained by contacting 
Kim Anhalt, MTW Coordinator, at (775) 329-3630; TDDY (785) 770-7166 or by email 
at kanhalt@renoha.org. 

The public may provide oral comments by attending the public hearing described below 
and/or submitting written comments during the comment period.  Written comments on 
the proposed plan amendment can be submitted by mail to the address noted above.  
Comments must be received by close of business day on January 22, 2024. 

A Public Hearing to answer questions and receive comments will be held on Thursday,  
January 4, 2024 at 6:00pm in Silverada Manor’s Community Room, 1400 Silverada 
Blvd., Reno, NV 89512. 
 

Page 233 of 301

http://www.renoha.org/
mailto:kanhalt@renoha.org


 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  

 

 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023.      Page | 193 of 195 
 
 Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023.        Page | 193 of 195 
 

An invitation for public review and comment was included in a special newsletter which 
was sent out to all PH residents and HCV participants.  This newsletter announced the 
availability of RHA’s amended plan for review and comment as well as the date of the 
scheduled public hearing.   
 
A public hearing to discuss the amended plan and receive comments was held on January 4, 
2024, at 6:00 PM in Silverada Manor’s Community Room.  Six residents of Silverada 
Manor and Tom Sawyer Village attended the public hearing with questions regarding 
repositioning.  No comments or questions were received in response to this proposed 
amendment.

Page 234 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  

 

 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023.      Page | 194 of 195 
 
 Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023.        Page | 194 of 195 
 

Page 235 of 301



 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  
 Housing Authority of the City of Reno’s FY 2024 MTW Annual Plan  

 

 Posted for public review and comment on November 17, 2023.      Page | 195 of 195 
 
 Approved by HUD on August 16, 2023.        Page | 195 of 195 
 

 

Page 236 of 301



OMB Approval No. 2577-0216 (exp. 3/31/2024) 
 

 

form HUD 50900: Certifications of Compliance (3/2021)  
  

CERTIFICATIONS OF COMPLIANCE 
 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT 
OFFICE OF PUBLIC AND INDIAN HOUSING 

 

Certifications of Compliance with Regulations: 
Board Resolution to Accompany the Annual Moving to Work Plan 

 

Acting on behalf of the Board of Commissioners of the Moving to Work Public Housing Agency (MTW PHA) listed below, as its Chair or 
other authorized MTW PHA official if there is no Board of Commissioners, I approve the submission of the Annual Moving to Work Plan 
for the MTW PHA Plan Year beginning (07/01/2023), hereinafter referred to as "the Plan", of which this document is a part and make 
the following certifications and agreements with the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) in connection with the 
submission of the Plan and implementation thereof: 
 
(1) The MTW PHA published a notice that a hearing would be held, that the Plan and all information relevant to the public hearing was 

available for public inspection for at least 30 days, that there were no less than 15 days between the public hearing and the 
approval of the Plan by the Board of Commissioners, and that the MTW PHA conducted a public hearing to discuss the Plan and 
invited public comment. 
 

(2) The MTW PHA took into consideration public and resident comments (including those of its Resident Advisory Board or Boards) 
before approval of the Plan by the Board of Commissioners or Board of Directors in order to incorporate any public comments into 
the Annual MTW Plan. 

 

(3) The MTW PHA certifies that the Board of Directors has reviewed and approved the budget for the Capital Fund Program grants 
contained in the Capital Fund Program Annual Statement/Performance and Evaluation Report, form HUD-50075.1 (or successor 
form as required by HUD). 

 

(4) The MTW PHA will carry out the Plan in conformity with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Fair Housing Act, section 504 of 
the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, and title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. 

 

(5) The Plan is consistent with the applicable comprehensive housing affordability strategy (or any plan incorporating such strategy) 
for the jurisdiction in which the PHA is located. 

 

(6) The Plan contains a certification by the appropriate state or local officials that the Plan is consistent with the applicable 
Consolidated Plan. 
 

(7) The MTW PHA will affirmatively further fair housing by fulfilling the requirements set out in HUD regulations found at Title 24 of 
the Code of Federal Regulations, including regulations in place at the time of this certification, and any subsequently promulgated 
regulations governing the obligation to affirmatively further fair housing. The MTW PHA is always responsible for understanding 
and implementing the requirements of HUD regulations and policies, and has a continuing obligation to affirmatively further fair 
housing in compliance with the 1968 Fair Housing Act, the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, The Cranston-
Gonzalez National Affordable Housing Act, and the Quality Housing and Work Responsibility Act of 1998. (42 U.S.C. 3608, 
5304(b)(2), 5306(d)(7)(B), 12705(b)(15), and 1437C–1(d)(16)).  The MTW PHA will affirmatively further fair housing by fulfilling the 
requirements at 24 CFR 903.7(o) and 24 CFR 903.15, which means that it will take meaningful actions to further the goals identified 
in  its Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Choice(AI),Assessment of Fair Housing (AFH), and/or other fair housing planning 
documents conducted in accordance with the requirements of 24 CFR Part 5, that it will take no action that is materially 
inconsistent with its obligation to affirmatively further fair housing, and that it will address fair housing issues and contributing 
factors in its programs, in accordance with 24 CFR 903.7(o), and will address impediments to fair housing choice identified in its AI, 
AFH, and/or other fair housing planning documents associated with any applicable Consolidated or Annual Action Plan under 24 
CFR Part 91. 

 

(8) The MTW PHA will comply with the prohibitions against discrimination on the basis of age pursuant to the Age Discrimination Act 
of 1975 and HUD’s implementing regulations at 24 C.F.R. Part 146.    

 

(9) In accordance with 24 CFR 5.105(a)(2), HUD’s Equal Access Rule, the MTW PHA will not make a determination of eligibility for 
housing based on sexual orientation, gender identity, or marital status.  

 

(10) The MTW PHA will comply with the Architectural Barriers Act of 1968 and 24 CFR Part 41, Policies and Procedures for the 
Enforcement of Standards and Requirements for Accessibility by the Physically Handicapped. 

 

(11)  The MTW PHA will comply with the requirements of section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, Employment 
Opportunities for Low-or Very-Low Income Persons, and with its implementing regulation at 24 CFR Part 75. 

 

Page 237 of 301



OMB Approval No. 2577-0216 (exp. 3/31/2024) 
 

 

form HUD 50900: Certifications of Compliance (3/2021)  
  

(12) The MTW PHA will comply with requirements with regard to a drug free workplace required by 24 CFR Part 24, Subpart F. 
 

(13) The MTW PHA will comply with requirements with regard to compliance with restrictions on lobbying required by 24 CFR Part 87, 
together with disclosure forms if required by this Part, and with restrictions on payments to influence Federal Transactions, in 
accordance with the Byrd Amendment and implementing regulations at 49 CFR Part 24. 

 

(14) The MTW PHA will comply with acquisition and relocation requirements of the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property 
Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 and implementing regulations at 49 CFR Part 24 as applicable. 

 

(15) The MTW PHA will take appropriate affirmative action to award contracts to minority and women's business enterprises under 24 
CFR 5.105(a). 

 

(16) The MTW PHA will provide HUD or the responsible entity any documentation needed to carry out its review under the National 
Environmental Policy Act and other related authorities in accordance with 24 CFR Part 58. Regardless of who acts as the 
responsible entity, the MTW PHA will maintain documentation that verifies compliance with environmental requirements pursuant 
to 24 Part 58 and 24 CFR Part 50 and will make this documentation available to HUD upon its request. 

 

(17) With respect to public housing and applicable local, non-traditional development the MTW PHA will comply with Davis-Bacon or 
HUD determined wage rate requirements under section 12 of the United States Housing Act of 1937 and the Contract Work Hours 
and Safety Standards Act. 

 

(18) The MTW PHA will keep records in accordance with 24 CFR 85.20 and facilitate an effective audit to determine compliance with 
program requirements. 

 

(19) The MTW PHA will comply with the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act and 24 CFR Part 35. 
 

(20) The MTW PHA will comply with the policies, guidelines, and requirements of 2 CFR Part 225 (Cost Principles for State, Local and 
Indian Tribal Governments) and 2 CFR Part 200. 

 

(21) The MTW PHA must fulfill its responsibilities to comply with and ensure enforcement of Housing Quality Standards, as defined in 
24 CFR Part 982 or as approved by HUD, for any Housing Choice Voucher units under administration. 

 

(22) The MTW PHA will undertake only activities and programs covered by the Plan in a manner consistent with its Plan and will utilize 
covered grant funds only for activities that are approvable under the Moving to Work Agreement and Statement of Authorizations 
and included in its Plan. 

 

(23) All attachments to the Plan have been and will continue to be available at all times and all locations that the Plan is available for 
public inspection. All required supporting documents have been made available for public inspection along with the Plan and 
additional requirements at the primary business office of the PHA and at all other times and locations identified by the MTW PHA 
in its Plan and will continue to be made available at least at the primary business office of the MTW PHA. 

 
 
Housing Authority of the City of Reno                                          NV001 

MTW PHA NAME MTW PHA NUMBER/HA CODE 
 
I/We, the undersigned, certify under penalty of perjury that the information provided above is true and correct.  
WARNING: Anyone who knowingly submits a false claim or makes a false statement is subject to criminal and/or civil 
penalties, including confinement for up to 5 years, fines, and civil and administrative penalties.  (18 U.S.C. §§ 287, 1001, 
1010, 1012; 31 U.S.C. §3729, 3802). 
 
Dave Aiazzi                                                                                       Chairman, Board of Commissioners 

NAME OF AUTHORIZED OFFICIAL TITLE 
 
 
_________________________________________ _________________________________________ 
SIGNATURE DATE 

 

Page 238 of 301



 
 
 
 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF RENO 
RESOLUTION 24-01-08 RH 

 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO PROJECT-

BASE UP TO 125 VETERANS AFFAIRS SUPPORTIVE HOUSING (VASH) 
VOUCHERS AND UP TO 50 HOUSING CHOICE VOUCHERS (HCV) AT 
PROPOSED AND/OR EXISTING RENTAL PROPERTIES THROUGH A 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP). 
 

WHEREAS, it is the mission and desire of the Housing Authority of the City of 
Reno (RHA) and the Board of Commissioners to provide affordable housing options for 
low income individuals and families throughout Reno, Sparks, and Washoe County; and 

 
WHEREAS, research shows there is insufficient affordable housing for low 

income individuals and families throughout Reno, Sparks, and Washoe County; and 
 
WHEREAS, the US Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) 

allows Public Housing Authorities to project base vouchers to increase housing 
opportunities for low-income families and meet the affordable housing needs of the local 
community; and 

 
WHEREAS, the RHA has determined that there is a need for permanent 

supportive housing targeted to low-income veterans who are homeless or at-risk of 
homelessness based on data from the Continuum of Care, the HUD Consolidated Plan, 
and demand for housing vouchers; and 

 
WHEREAS, the US Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) 

allows Public Housing Authorities to project base VASH vouchers for a maximum 
initial term of 20-years through a Housing Assistance Payments (HAP) contract, with 
automatic renewals thereafter subject to the terms of the HAP contract and HUD 
funding; and 

 
WHEREAS, under the Agency's MTW FY 2024 Annual Plan Local Project Based 

Voucher Program (Activity 2024-02), the RHA provides project-based vouchers to assist 
in providing additional housing choice for low-income families and to allow RHA to make 
additional dwelling units available. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of 

Commissioners of the Housing Authority of the City of Reno as follows: 
 
1. That the Executive Director is authorized to issue one or more Request for 

Proposals (RFP) to project-base up to 125 Veterans Affairs Supportive Housing 
(VASH) vouchers and up to 50 Housing Choice Vouchers (HCV) at proposed 
and/or existing rental properties. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 239 of 301



 
 
 
2. This Resolution is to be effective upon the date of its adoption. 

 
 
 
ADOPTED THIS    23rd        DAY OF    January     , 2024. 
 
 
 
     
 
    ATTEST: 
 
 
 
      
CHAIRMAN   SECRETARY 
 

Page 240 of 301



 

 

 

 
 
SUBJECT: Commissioner Reports.  (Discussion) 
 
 
FROM:          Executive Director                    RECOMMENDATION: Discussion 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

RENO HOUSING AUTHORITY 
 

 AGENDA ITEM NUMBER: 4                                                                       January 23, 2024 

Page 241 of 301



 

 

 
SUBJECT: Executive Director/Secretary's Report.  (Discussion) 
 
 
FROM:           Executive Director                RECOMMENDATION: Discussion 
 

 
A. Update on Agency Activities 
 

• RHA held a groundbreaking for Railyard Flats on January 17, 2024. The event was 
well attended. Site grading is completed, and construction has started. The City of 
Sparks is currently processing updated design plans relating to the change in two 
windows on the south facing elevation. 
 

• RHA partnered with Nevada Apartments Association on a Housing Choice Voucher 
(HCV) Lunch and Learn session on January 9, 2024. Over 30 people registered 
and staff was able to provide information on the HCV and the various landlord 
incentives available through the Authority. 

 
• Staff will hold a tour of RHA properties for elected officials on Friday, January 26, 

2024. The tour will provide an overview of RHA, its programs and upcoming 
development projects, as well as the opportunity to view several RHA public and 
expanded housing properties. 

 
• The Executive Director was interviewed for the Renoites podcast on January 19, 

2023. The episode will air within the next six weeks. April Conway will send 
information on how to listen to the podcast once the air date is known. 

 
• The Executive Director will be interviewed on Nevada Newsmakers on January 22, 

2023, to discuss RHA, its programs and housing, and related topics. April Conway 
will send information on how to view the episode once the air date is known. 
 

• RHA’s Director of Development and Director of Resident Services will be on Face 
the State on January 23, 2024, to discuss recent development projects, upcoming 
plans, and our workforce development and resident services programming. 

 
• RHA has partnered with Nevada Rural Housing Authority to provide media training 

to its leadership teams. Training will be held February 1, 2024. 
 

• Staff will attend EDAWN’s State of the Economy luncheon on February 8, 2023, to 
learn more about the northern Nevada economic forecast and better understand its 
potential impacts for housing. 

 

RENO HOUSING AUTHORITY 
 

 AGENDA ITEM NUMBER: 5                                                                       January 23, 2024 

Page 242 of 301



 

 

• The US Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) released its 
proposed final rule for implementing a 30-Day Notification Requirement Prior to 
Termination of Lease for Nonpayment of Rent. RHA and SNRHA have collaborated 
to submit joint public comment that identifies various concerns with the proposed 
rule. A draft of the public comment is attached for Commissioners’ reference. RHA 
and SNRHA will submit the public comment no later than January 29, 2024. 

 
• RHA is working with the Southern Nevada Regional Housing Authority and Nevada 

Rural Housing Authority on a joint letter to the Nevada Housing Division asking 
them to adopt each PHAs utility allowances as a standard that can be used in tax 
credit and other projects that receive project-based vouchers (PBV) and HOME 
funds to alleviate the need to request federal site-specific waivers for each project 
as the PBV and HOME program have conflicting utility allowance requirements. 

 
• The Executive Team met with Kate Landers, Senator Jackie Rosen’s Legislative 

Assistant in Washington DC assigned to housing issues. Topics covered included 
the value of MTW designation and the MTW contract extension, the Truckee 
Meadows Public Lands Bill, the need for additional housing choice vouchers, and 
growing Tenant Accounts Receivables and the HUD proposed final rule mentioned 
in the prior bullet. Ms. Landers will follow up with additional information regarding 
the Lands Bill. Staff sent follow-up information on MTW and RHA to her. 

 
• RHA’s Director of Development was appointed to the Nevada Housing Coalition 

Board of Directors.  
 

• Gaston & Wilkerson merged with CloudTen Residential and will be operating under 
CloudTen Management. Current management operations will not be impacted but 
new management agreements will be brought to the Board later this spring to 
amend for the name and related changes. 

 
• The office redesign is substantially complete, and the updated spaces provide for 

better workflow and collaboration amongst staff and departments. Initial feedback 
from staff has been positive. The remaining furniture will be delivered and installed 
in February. Heidi McKendree, Nestor Garcia, the maintenance team, and IT 
department did a herculean job of clearing out old furniture, disassembling and 
reassembling IT equipment, and providing clear spaces for the installation.  

 
B. Update on Rental Assistance Voucher Programs / Asset Management 

Rental Assistance Voucher Programs 

Voucher Type Total Voucher 
Baseline 

Vouchers Leased 
as of 7/5/22 

Percent 
Leased 

Vouchers Issued 
Not Yet Leased 

Housing Choice Voucher 2,484 2,168 87% 63 

VASH 541 284 52% 56 

EHV 137 106 77% 17 

FYI 15 5 33% 5 

Page 243 of 301



 

 

 
Number HQS Inspections 

Conducted by Month  
December 2023 248 

 
 
City of Sparks Eviction Prevention Program 
 

Total Funding 
Awarded 

Total Assistance 
Approved as of 1/3/24 

Number of Households 
Approved as of 1/3/24 

Percent 
Funding 

Spent 
$1,309,500 $699,826 155 53% 

 
Housing Choice Vouchers (HCV) 
Description: Vouchers used by clients to lease a unit in Washoe County of their choosing.  Applicants are pulled from the RHA HCV 
Waitlist.  These vouchers also include Project Based Vouchers.  The RHA has chosen to Project Base 107 of our HCV’s to assist 
special populations obtain housing.  Of the total 107 PBV units, 95 are assigned to RHA owned properties.   
 
Lease-Up Expectations:  Although total voucher allocation is 2524, HUD has set the agency’s leasing expectation at 2382 (AKA RHA’s 
MTW Baseline), which is the maximum leasing expectation set by HUD when RHA signed its MTW Contract.  Funds provided by HUD 
to support the HCV program are also used to support the agency’s MTW activities and therefore full lease up of all 2524 vouchers is not 
expected or suggested by HUD.   
 
Veteran’s Affairs Supporting Housing Vouchers (VASH) 
Description:  Vouchers allocated by HUD with an ongoing partnership with the VA to serve homeless veterans.  The VA provides case 
management services to participants.  The VA makes direct referrals to RHA of eligible clients and the RHA provides a VASH voucher.  
Currently, RHA has project-based 9 of these vouchers. 
 
Emergency Housing Vouchers (EHV) 
Description:  Vouchers allocated by HUD for the specific purpose of assisting homeless individuals or families or those at risk of 
homelessness in obtaining housing.  RHA is partnering with four local agencies (Catholic Charities, Health Plan of Nevada, Washoe 
County Human Services-Our Place and Volunteers of America) that have experience providing services to this population.  Referrals for 
the program must come from the regional Continuum of Care (CoC) coordinated entry system.  Direct referrals are received by the RHA 
from the partnering agency and the RHA provides the EHV voucher.   
 
Foster Youth to Independence Vouchers (FYI) 
Description:  Voucher allocated by HUD for the specific purpose of assisting foster youth aging out of the foster care system.  RHA is 
partnering with Washoe County Human Services and Eddy House to provide referrals and case management to clients.  Direct referrals 
are received by the RHA from the partnering agency and the RHA provides the FYI voucher. 

Asset Management 

 
• During the month of December, Asset Management filled the Compliance Specialist 

and General Office Clerk 1 positions. We currently have an open Assistant 
Manager and a Maintenance II position. A candidate was selected and is currently 
going through the pre-employment process for the Assistant Manager and 
interviews will be conducted during the month of January for the Maintenance II 
position.  
 

• Maintenance staff have continued teaming up on Thursdays to complete leaf 
removal and other miscellaneous tasks. The team recently went through training on 
how to properly operate the new Kubota bucket tractor in preparation for the snowy 
season. Maintenance has also reviewed their shops to ensure they have all the 
necessary material and tools on site once the adverse weather arrives.   

 

Page 244 of 301



 

 

• The Assistant Manager team went through the Tax Credit Specialist training 
delivered through the National Center for Housing Management. This training is the 
first of three training courses the managers will need to complete prior to Silverada 
and Hawk View repositioning being completed. 

 
• Public Housing ended the month of September with 68 vacancies for an overall 

occupancy rate of 90.95% across all sites. In December, seven residents vacated 
their unit, and no units were leased.  

 
C. Update on Workforce Development, Elderly Services, and youth activities 

Department Updates 
• The Director of Resident Services is participating in a panel for the Federal Home 

Loan Bank of San Francisco’s Innovations in Mortgage Finance Symposium in 
Los Angeles, CA on February 7, 2024. Discussions will include various ways to 
foster homeownership for low and middle-income households, and the several 
opportunities to utilize downpayment assistance programs nationwide. 
 

• Quest Counseling & Consulting Inc. is providing (Naloxone) Narcan and training 
on proper administration for interested RHA staff members to have on hand in the 
event of an emergency. This initiative aligns with HUD’s recent recognition of the 
importance of overdose prevention. 

 
• Staff is working closely with HUD, the University of Nevada, Reno, the Nevada 

System of Higher Education, and the Guardian Scholars Program to discuss 
and brainstorm multiple initiatives to test, in order to successfully house foster youth 
enrolled in higher education, while simultaneously providing wraparound service to 
ensure self-sufficiency.  

 
Elderly Services 

• RHA is partnering with St. Mary’s Home Care Services to host an event in which a 
notary and experts in DNRs, POLSTs, and Advanced Directives will be available to 
assist RHA seniors in ensuring their end-of-life wishes are known.  

Workforce Development (WFD) 
• The WFD team hosted a “Meet and Greet: Motivational Mixer” for all current and 

former workforce development clients to get together, share their stories, and build 
a community of like-minded individuals as they enter 2024. 
 

• RHA is hosting a Homeownership Seminar for all interested clients on Saturday, 
February 24, 2024. Workshops will be offered throughout the day on topics 
including how the loan process works, how to overcome credit challenges, different 
financing options, downpayment assistance programs, and more. Many community 
partners will be joining us to table and mingle with guests.  

Youth/Family Activities 
• Staff are preparing for the Major Taylor Bike Camp, happening over WCSD spring 

break in partnership with the Reno Bike Project. Ten RHA youth will enjoy spring 
break riding through the trails of the Truckee Meadows.  

Page 245 of 301



 

 

 
• RHA’s Youth Coordinator attended the Raising Hope Conference, hosted by the 

Nevada Office of Suicide Prevention, to gain insight into the mental health 
challenges our young people face. Staff is working internally and with partners to 
plan multiple events and initiatives to promote positive mental health and assist our 
families with the resources they need throughout the upcoming year. 

Resident Councils 
• Resident Services staff is working with Development and Asset Management staff 

to actuate 2023 resident council community beautification fund projects. Thanks to 
this funding, residents will soon enjoy new gardening spaces, new computer labs 
inside their community rooms, new BBQ areas, picnic tables and more! 
 

• Resident council board members are taking January and February to work on 
planning and budgeting for the calendar year 2024. Staff look forward to the great 
events and activities councils will host for their communities starting in March. 
 

* The Authority’s community partners are designated in bold within the Update on Elderly Services, Workforce 
Development, and youth activities headers. 

 
D. Update on Public Affairs Activities 

 
Media: traditional and social 

• Invited city and county elected officials who don’t, to follow RHA on social media. 
• Cori and April each participated in the KTVN Share Your Christmas event on 12/8 
• Cori participated on the Senior Spectrum radio show on 12/20   
• Hilary participated in Renoites podcast on 1/19 
• Hilary participated in Nevada Newsmakers 1/22 
• Responded to an KRNV Ask Joe query. No story came of it. 
• In social media we promoted a series of RHA 2023 Accomplishments social posts, 

Start Smart workshops, holidays donations from the public, Bobos/Sky Tavern 
participation in the RHA Family Ski Program, and upcoming WFD workshops. 
 

Opportunity Knocks Magazine 
 

• Getting mailed to community partners in the coming few weeks. 

 
Other 

• Final planning for RHA’s elected officials tour/open house on 1/26   
• Final planning for Railyard Flats groundbreaking event on 1/17 
• Final planning for RHA/Nevada Rural joint media training set for 2/2 
• Looking for sponsorship for DSM furniture/outfitting needs 

 
 
 
 

Page 246 of 301



 

 

E. Update on Development Activities 

 
Silverada Manor & Hawk View Redevelopment 

• RAD and Section 18 applications are still under review by HUD. Review is going 
slower than anticipated and has caused delays in project timelines. Resident 
relocation won’t begin at Hawk View until March and Silverada will likely get pushed 
back to May. RHA staff has reached out several times to HUD staff but had difficulty 
getting ahold of them. Staff will be working with HUD Field Office to try to speed 
review up. 

• RHA and Brinshore submitted a HOME application for $1M for Hawk View in early 
January. If selected to move forward, RHA and Brinshore will present the project to 
WCHC TRC in mid-February. 

• RHA also secured Wells Fargo as a sponsor for Hawk View Federal Home Loan 
Bank Affordable Housing Program grant application. Brinshore will begin work on 
AHP application shortly and will be requesting $1.2M.  RHA staff is working 
diligently to complete the required steps for RAD Concept Call for Silverada Manor 
by the end of November. Aiming for the Concept Call to happen mid-December. 

• Brinshore released Lender/Investor RFP for Silverada in early January and will be 
releasing RFP for Hawk View in early February.  

• Design sets and floor plans are progressing nicely and will be presented to the 
Board at the February meeting. General contractor is set to receive Silverada plans 
by end of month to begin estimating process for GMP. RHA, Brinshore, and Frame 
Architecture to have a pre-application meeting with City of Reno Development 
Services staff at the end of January. 

Dick Scott Manor 
• Construction is moving forward on schedule, within budget and current project 

scope. Stucco will be installed starting the end of January. 

Railyard Flats 
• Groundbreaking occurred on January 17. The event was very well attended by the 

community and elected leaders. The event also attracted strong media coverage. 
• Site work began in mid-January. 
• Staff are still working with City of Reno staff to close on HOME-ARP loan-to-grant 

agreement. This has taken longer than expected but the goal is to close by end of 
January. The delay has not impacted RHA’s ability to fulfill pay requests. 

Stead Manor 
• Received schematic design estimates in December which showed that full scope of 

work is within budget range if developer fee is lowered to cover more construction 
costs. It is important to note that estimates will likely be lower as the design is 
further developed. 

• Set to receive completed design development documents in March and 
construction documents in April. 

Page 247 of 301



 

 

McGraw Court/Silver Sage Court 
• Received schematic design estimates in December which showed that the full 

scope of work is significantly higher than the current budget. More details related to 
this are provided in the Item 10 staff report.  

• Set to receive completed design development documents on January 20 and set of 
50% construction documents in March.  

Carville Court 
• Expecting notification of potential HOME-ARP award in mid-February.  
• After reviewing program requirements, the decision was made to not pursue 

additional funding from the Washoe County Affordable Housing Trust Fund for this 
project. This means that the project will remain at 11-units. 

Paradise Plaza 
• Property donation is set to close in February.  
• Environmental Review has been ordered. This needs to be completed before HUD-

held reserves can be used for rehabilitation. 

Essex Manor 
• No project updates as of January 2024. 

Capital Fund 
• No CFP updates for January 2024. 

 
 
F. Update on Information Technology activities 

 
Yardi Implementation 

• We are transitioning from the Implementation Team to the Client Success Support 
Team. This allows us to receive support from a team of technicians that specialize 
in their roles compared to funneling all issues through our account manager.  

• We are working closely with the Asset Management team to correctly configure 
each property and corresponding menus for Affordable Rent Café. 

• We are also working with the Asset Management team for the roll out of the Legal 
Module which allows us to manage all our client’s current, pending, and historical 
legal matters. 

• The Development, Finance, and IT departments will be collaborating during the Job 
Cost Module setup beginning on January 29th.  

Laserfiche Implementation 
• After the Rental Assistance files were completed in December, the scanning team 

transitioned to working on Public Housing files. They are close to finishing Mineral 
Manor’s clients and will then move to unaided properties.  

• Our team continues to create workflows that automate processes for both the Asset 
Management and Rental Assistance departments.  

 

Page 248 of 301



 

 

Other Projects 
• Through December and the beginning of January, IT worked diligently with all 

departments to move equipment and relocate staff while construction completed. 
Our team was flexible and responsive as the agency adapted to changing 
circumstances.   

G.   Update on MTW Activities 
 
FY 2025 Annual MTW Plan 

• One new MTW activity is being proposed in FY 2025.  This activity will eliminate 
interim recertifications due to an increase in household income unless requested by 
a participant in RHA’s Workforce Development Program.  RHA will continue to 
process interim recertifications related to decreases in income, change in 
household composition and when an increase to contract rent is requested by a 
landlord. Staff are proposing this activity to further align interim recertifications with 
new federal HOTMA regulations, promote resident self-sufficiency, and increase 
staff efficiency. 

• RHA’s Landlord Incentive Program is being expanded upon to allow for a vacancy 
loss payment if the unit passes Housing Quality Standards (HQS) on the first 
inspection and to extend the length of time that the initial inspection results are valid 
from 45 days to 90 days. 

• RHA is amending one current activity that will allow RHA’s clients with less than 
$50,000 in assets to submit a self-certification as to the value and amount of 
expected income. 

• Proposed activities and amendments will be presented to RHA’s Resident Advisory 
Board on January 25.  During this meeting, residents can provide comments and/or 
concerns regarding each of the proposed/amended MTW activities.  
 
 

H. Financials 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 249 of 301



Public Housing 12/31/2023 12/31/2022
 Variance Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

Variance 

Percentage

Actual Revenue                       2,537,517                              2,320,492                                 217,025 9.35%

Budgeted Revenue                       2,642,189                              2,334,419                                 307,770 13.18%

Actual Expenditures                       2,603,951                              2,549,026                                   54,926 2.15%

Budgeted Expenditures                       3,306,296                              2,842,850                                 463,447 16.30%

Actual Surplus (deficit)                         (66,434)                              (228,533)                                 162,099 -70.93%

ENTITY-WIDE FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE 6 MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

2,320,492 

2,549,026 2,537,517 
2,603,951 

 -

 500,000

 1,000,000

 1,500,000

 2,000,000

 2,500,000

 3,000,000

Actual Revenue Actual Expenditures

Public Housing

12/31/2022 12/31/2023

Page 1 of 7

Page 250 of 301



ENTITY-WIDE FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE 6 MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

Housing Choice Voucher (Rental 

Assistance and MTW)
12/31/2023 12/31/2022

 Variance Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

Variance 

Percentage

Actual HAP Revenue                     12,295,517                            11,226,881                              1,068,636 9.52%

Budgeted HAP Revenue                     13,975,083                            12,796,302                              1,178,781 9.21%

Actual HAP Payments to Landlords                     12,662,500                            12,269,797                                 392,703 3.20%

Budgeted HAP Payments to Landlords                     12,347,975                            12,612,458                                (264,483) -2.10%

Actual Fee & Other Revenue                       2,369,245                              1,616,195                                 753,050 46.59%

Budgeted Fee & Other Revenue                       1,500,891                              1,336,297                                 164,595 12.32%

Actual Expenditures                       2,743,572                              1,555,864                              1,187,708 76.34%

Budgeted Expenditures                       2,614,332                              1,697,036                                 917,296 54.05%

Actual Surplus (deficit)                       (741,310)                              (982,585)                                 241,275 -24.56%

11,226,881 
12,269,797 

1,616,195 1,555,864 

12,295,517 12,662,500 

2,369,245 2,743,572 

 -

 2,000,000

 4,000,000

 6,000,000

 8,000,000

 10,000,000

 12,000,000

 14,000,000

 16,000,000

 18,000,000

 20,000,000

Actual HAP Revenue Actual HAP Payments to Landlords Actual Fee & Other Revenue Actual Expenditures

Housing Choice Voucher (Rental Assistance and MTW)

12/31/2022 12/31/2023

Page 2 of 7

Page 251 of 301



ENTITY-WIDE FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE 6 MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

Neighborhood Stabilization Program 

(NSP)
12/31/2023 12/31/2022

 Variance Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

Variance 

Percentage

Actual Revenue                          689,716                                 590,907                                   98,809 16.72%

Budgeted Revenue                          706,044                                 597,103                                 108,941 18.25%

Actual Expenditures                          367,652                                 385,083                                 (17,431) -4.53%

Budgeted Expenditures                          419,993                                 343,875                                   76,118 22.14%

Actual Restricted Surplus (deficit)                         322,064                                205,824                                 116,240 56.48%

590,907 

385,083 

689,716 

367,652 

 -

 100,000

 200,000

 300,000

 400,000

 500,000

 600,000

 700,000

 800,000

Actual Revenue Actual Expenditures

Neighborhood Stabilization Program (NSP)

12/31/2022 12/31/2023

Page 3 of 7

Page 252 of 301



ENTITY-WIDE FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE 6 MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

Business Activities 12/31/2023 12/31/2022
 Variance Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

Variance 

Percentage

Actual Revenue                       1,959,247                              2,069,373                                (110,126) -5.32%

Budgeted Revenue                       1,982,964                              2,048,739                                 (65,775) -3.21%

Actual Expenditures                          841,010                                 865,856                                 (24,846) -2.87%

Budgeted Expenditures                          846,540                                 860,547                                 (14,007) -1.63%

Actual Unrestricted Surplus (deficit)                     1,118,237                             1,203,517                                 (85,280) -7.09%

2,069,373 

865,856 

1,959,247 

841,010 

 -

 500,000

 1,000,000

 1,500,000

 2,000,000

 2,500,000

Actual Revenue Actual Expenditures

Business Activities

12/31/2022 12/31/2023

Page 4 of 7

Page 253 of 301



ENTITY-WIDE FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE 6 MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

Washoe Affordable Housing (WAHC) 12/31/2023 12/31/2022
 Variance Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

Variance 

Percentage

Actual HAP Revenue                     13,052,231                            13,354,565                                (302,334) -2.26%

Budgeted HAP Revenue                     13,407,944                            12,868,645                                 539,299 4.19%

Actual HAP Payments to Landlords                     13,052,231                            13,354,565                                (302,334) -2.26%

Budgeted HAP Payments to Landlords                     13,407,944                            12,868,645                                 539,299 4.19%

HAP Surplus (Deficit)                                  -                                           -                                            -   0.00%

Actual Admin and Fee Revenue                          639,752                                 453,908                                 185,844 40.94%

Budgeted Admin and Fee Revenue                          515,606                                 516,507                                      (902) -0.17%

Actual Expenditures                          457,402                                 376,675                                   80,727 21.43%

Budgeted Expenditures                          396,193                                 353,779                                   42,414 11.99%

 Unrestricted Profit (Loss)                        182,350                                 77,233                                 105,117 136.10%

Actual compared to budget                         182,350                                  77,233                                105,117 136.10%

13,354,565 13,354,565 

453,908 376,675 

13,052,231 13,052,231 

639,752 457,402 

 -

 2,000,000

 4,000,000

 6,000,000

 8,000,000

 10,000,000

 12,000,000

 14,000,000

 16,000,000

Actual HAP Revenue Actual HAP Payments to Landlords Actual Admin and Fee Revenue Actual Expenditures

Washoe Affordable Housing (WAHC)

12/31/2022 12/31/2023

Page 5 of 7

Page 254 of 301



ENTITY-WIDE FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE 6 MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

COCC 12/31/2023 12/31/2022
 Variance Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

Variance 

Percentage

Actual Revenue                       1,064,652                              1,040,416                                   24,236 2.33%

Budgeted Revenue                       1,093,950                              1,191,195                                 (97,245) -8.16%

Actual Expenditures                          990,495                              1,628,962                                (638,467) -39.19%

Budgeted Expenditures                       1,553,667                              1,938,852                                (385,186) -19.87%

Actual Unrestricted Surplus (deficit)                           74,157                              (588,546)                                 662,703 -112.60%

1,040,416 

1,628,962 

1,064,652 
990,495 

 -

 200,000

 400,000

 600,000

 800,000

 1,000,000

 1,200,000

 1,400,000

 1,600,000

 1,800,000

Actual Revenue Actual Expenditures

COCC

12/31/2022 12/31/2023

Page 6 of 7

Page 255 of 301



ENTITY-WIDE FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE 6 MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

Entity-Wide Totals 12/31/2023 12/31/2022
 Variance Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

Variance 

Percentage

Actual HAP Revenue                     25,347,748                            24,581,446                                 766,302 3.12%

Budgeted HAP Revenue                     27,383,027                            25,664,947                              1,718,080 6.69%

Actual HAP Payments to Landlords                     25,714,731                            25,624,362                                   90,369 0.35%

Budgeted HAP Payments to Landlords                     25,755,919                            25,481,103                                 274,816 1.08%

HAP Surplus (Deficit)                       (366,983)                           (1,042,916)                               675,933 -64.81%

Actual Fee & Other Revenue                       9,260,129                              8,091,290                              1,168,839 14.45%

Budgeted Fee & Other Revenue                       8,441,644                              8,024,260                                 417,384 5.20%

Actual Expenditures                       8,004,083                              7,361,466                                 642,618 8.73%

Budgeted Expenditures                       9,137,021                              8,036,939                              1,100,083 13.69%

 Unrestricted Profit (Loss)                     1,256,046                               729,825                               526,221 72.10%

Actual Surplus (deficit)                         889,063                              (313,091)                              1,202,154 -383.96%

24,581,446 
25,624,362 

8,091,290 7,361,466 

25,347,748 25,714,731 

9,260,129 

8,004,083 

 -

 5,000,000

 10,000,000

 15,000,000

 20,000,000

 25,000,000

 30,000,000

Actual HAP Revenue Actual HAP Payments to Landlords Actual Fee & Other Revenue Actual Expenditures

Entity-Wide Totals

12/31/2022 12/31/2023

Page 7 of 7

Page 256 of 301



 

 

   
 

January 16, 2024 
 
Regulations Division  
Office of General Counsel  
U. S. Department of Housing and Urban Development  
451 7th Street SW, Room 10276  
Washington, DC 20410-0500 
 

RE: Public Comment on Docket FR-6387-P-01, 30-Day Notification Requirement Prior to Termination 
of Lease for Nonpayment of Rent 
 

To Whom It May Concern: 
 
On behalf of the Housing Authority of the City of Reno (RHA) and the Southern Nevada Regional Housing 
Authority (SNRHA), we appreciate the opportunity to comment on the U.S. Department of Housing and 
Urban Development’s (HUD) proposed final rule, FR-6387-P-01, published on December 1, 2023, 
regarding 30-Day Notification Requirement Prior to Termination of Lease for Nonpayment of Rent. 
 
As the two Public Housing Authorities (PHA) in the State of Nevada that provide federally subsidized 

Public Housing, we understand and support the intent behind HUD’s proposed final rule and also 

recognize the challenges that our households face when evicted. However, we are concerned that 

permanently implementing a 30-day notice requirement will result in even higher Tenant Accounts 

Receivable (TAR) balances, negative impacts to Public Housing Assessment System (PHAS) scores, and 

funding shortfalls to our agencies which may impact our long-term ability to provide high-quality, public 

housing. Further, while we try and work with our families during unforeseen circumstances, delaying 

evictions of bad actors is punitive to the many families struggling to find affordable housing and forced 

to sit on our waitlists longer while those not paying rent continue to reside in the units.  

Per HUD’s proposed final rule, RHA and SNRHA can incorporate additional information into our current 

nonpayment of rent termination notices to include information on how tenants can recertify their 

income, request a minimum rent hardship exemption, or apply for outside financial assistance, if 

applicable. However, we believe this can be done, and tenants can apply for these services, while still 

issuing a 14-Day notice of termination for non-payment of rent. Allowing for the additional 6-day grace 

period before issuing a 14-Day Notice, gives tenants substantial time to notify the public housing 

authority of their need for recertification or exemption or application(s) for financial assistance. Under 

the current interim rule, this timeframe is extended to 36 days, and by the time it passes, the resident 

has been assessed the following months’ rent before being able to address the previous month’s 

balance due in court.  

Under both the interim and proposed final rules, PHA’s are not able to proceed with an additional 30-

Day Notice for Non-Payment of Rent on any newly delinquent rent until the previous notice has been 

Page 257 of 301



RHA and SNRHA Public Comment to HUD 
Docket No. FR-6387-P-01 
Page 2 of 2 
 

 
 

addressed through the courts or satisfied by having the balance paid. This compounds the problem of 

non-payment and creates larger TAR balances. RHA and SNRHA have had repeated instances in which 

Justice Court judges have ruled to provide additional time for residents to pay the past due rent amount 

noted in the initial notice, thus delaying the PHA’s ability to file a notice for any subsequent delinquency. 

Once that deadline has passed, the resident is behind in rent payments by several months and the PHA 

must then serve a new 30-day Notice of Nonpayment of Rent. In most instances, this unfortunate cycle 

continues until the resident is ultimately locked out, the PHA is carrying a large TAR balance and the 

agency’s PHAS score is negatively impacted. Additionally, the balance owed and/or lock-out negatively 

impacts the household’s ability to find housing in the future. 

RHA and SNRHA are not alone in this experience. Since the 30-Day Notice of Nonpayment of Rent has 

been in place, PHA’s across the nation have seen TAR balances grow and our write-offs more than 

double in comparison to prior to the pandemic. While the TAR balances and write-offs continue to grow, 

federal funding continues to decrease. We are concerned the Proposed Rule will exacerbate the 

problem and threaten our future ability to provide high-quality housing to low-income households 

within our respective communities. This measure also will cause confusion amongst residents, county 

leaders, and the judiciary system, as the proposed rule will not be applied across all HUD programs or to 

non-Public Housing landlords and does not align with our state’s requirements.  

For the reasons described above, we request that HUD reconsider its position and:  

• Recommend, but not require, that Public Housing and Multifamily housing owners’ issue 30-day 
Notice of Nonpayment of Rent when such requirement would exceed state or local law.  

• Should the 30-day Notice of Termination of Lease for Nonpayment of Rent become a final rule, 
we request HUD eliminate or modify the TARs measure in the Public Housing Assessment 
System to ensure there is not an impact on an agency’s funding eligibility. 
 

We appreciate the opportunity to submit comments and are available to further discuss our concerns.  

Sincerely, 

 

 

Hilary Lopez, Ph.D.    Lewis Jordan 
Executive Director    Executive Director 
Reno Housing Authority    Southern Nevada Regional Housing Authority 
Phone: (775) 329-3630    Phone: (702) 477-3100 
 
  

Page 258 of 301



 

 

 
SUBJECT: Discussion and possible approval of RHA Rebranding including: 

• Presentation on “Opportunity Knocks Here” by April Conway, PAO 
• Follow up on possible changes to RHA’s Mission Statement 
• Follow up on potential change, or doing business as (dba), to the 

Authority’s name.  
(For Possible Action) 

 
 
FROM:        Executive Director                                   RECOMMENDATION: For Possible Action 
 

 
Background: 
 

• Presentation on “Opportunity Knocks Here” by April Conway, PAO 
 
The Board previously received a presentation of RHA’s rebranding efforts and its new 
“Opportunity Knocks Here” motto. However, since that time several commissioners have 
changed. April Conway, RHA’s Public Affairs Officer, will provide a brief overview at the 
meeting of “Opportunity Knocks Here” and the status of rebranding efforts. 
 

• Follow up on possible changes to RHA’s Mission Statement 
 
The Board discussed updating RHA’s mission statement during the December 15, 2023, 
retreat. RHA’s current mission statement indicates: 
 

The mission of the Reno Housing Authority is to provide sustainable quality housing 
in diverse neighborhoods throughout Reno, Sparks and Washoe County, that offer 
a stable foundation for low-income households to pursue economic opportunities, 
become self-sufficient and improve their quality of life. 

 
The newly suggested Board mission statement discussed at the retreat reads as follows: 
 

The mission of the Reno Housing Authority is to provide sustainable quality housing 
in diverse neighborhoods throughout Washoe County. 

 
The Executive Team shared the revised mission statement with RHA’s leadership team at 
its strategic planning session in December. While the leadership team agreed with 
shortening the mission, it also believed that dropping reference to our resident service 
activities eliminated an important part of RHA’s work and seemed misaligned with the 
Board’s stated goals for the Authority; specifically increasing opportunities for clients to 
break the cycle of poverty and promoting health and wellness for our residents.  
 

RENO HOUSING AUTHORITY 
 

 AGENDA ITEM NUMBER: 6                                                                       January 23, 2024 

Page 259 of 301



 

 

No action was taken on this item at the retreat. This item is a follow up to continue 
discussion. Should the Board decide to revise the Authority’s mission statement, the new 
mission statement can be adopted through a Board Resolution at a future meeting. 
 

• Follow up on potential change, or doing business as (dba), to the 
Authority’s name.  
 

Additionally, the Board discussed changing the name of The Housing Authority of the City 
of Reno, potentially through a “doing business as” or dba, to Regional Housing Authority. 
Other suggestions include Truckee Meadows Housing Authority or Northern Nevada 
Regional Housing Authority. Counsel was asked to research the dba process and follow 
up with the Board. Counsel will provide an update on their findings at the meeting. 
 
Staff Recommendation and Motion: 
 
The Board may motion to change the mission statement and/or name of the Authority. 
 
 
 
  

Page 260 of 301



 

 

 
SUBJECT: Discussion of Board Retreat goals and update on leadership retreat and next               

steps. (Discussion) 
 
 
FROM:        Executive Director                                               RECOMMENDATION: Discussion 
 

 

Background: 
 
At the December 15, 2023, retreat, the Board adopted the following overarching goals for 
2024: 
 

1. Increase the amount of affordable housing RHA provides. 
2. Increase opportunities for clients to break the cycle of poverty. 
3. Promote health and wellness for our residents. 
4. Be an integral part of our community. 
5. Make data driven decisions. 

 
These goals were shared with the RHA leadership team at its strategic planning session in 
December. During the planning session staff discussed current and proposed activities 
and tasks that align with the Board’s goals. The Executive Team is working with Tory 
Gunsolley, the retreat facilitator, to refine and finalize interim goals to help meet the above-
identified objectives. Executive staff are also working with department directors to create a 
strategic plan for each department to meet the interim and Board’s overarching goals. 
Once more information is available, it will be provided to the Board. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

RENO HOUSING AUTHORITY 
 

 AGENDA ITEM NUMBER: 7                                                                       January 23, 2024 

Page 261 of 301



 

 

 
SUBJECT: Discussion and possible approval of the Material Change Policy that outlines 

construction and/or overall project changes that require Board of 
Commissioners review after initial approval. (For Possible Action) 

 
FROM:        Executive Director                                  RECOMMENDATION: For Possible Action 
 

 
Background: 
 
As RHA continues to engage in significant affordable housing rehabilitation and new 
construction projects, staff wants to ensure there is strong and consistent communication 
with the Board of Commissioners. It is important for the Board to have a thorough 
understanding of these projects and be aware of the challenges and material changes that 
may arise during predevelopment and construction. At the same time, staff believe it is 
important to fully utilize the expertise of contracted professionals and to streamline 
decision making to ensure that projects move forward on schedule. 
 
With this aim in mind, staff have developed the following communication guidelines 
regarding material changes for rehab and new construction projects for board 
consideration. These guidelines were developed based on RHA’s current procurement 
policy, the Nevada Housing Division’s 2023 Qualified Allocation Plan, the Washoe County 
HOME Consortium’s Operating Policies and Procedures, and discussion with the Board. 

Material Change Policy 

General Communication: 

The Development Department will provide ongoing updates on development projects as 
part of the Executive Director’s report presented at monthly Board meetings. The 
development department shall prepare specific staff reports, as needed, in addition to 
more in-depth quarterly development updates. 

Procurement & Contracting: 

The Development Department shall manage the procurement of all contracts related to 
rehabilitation and new construction projects and ensure that all procurement activities 
follow RHA’s policy and abide by applicable federal, state, and local laws. Per policy, 
contractor selection is determined through a competitive process. Commissioners are 
encouraged to participate in the evaluation process for RHA Requests for Qualifications 
(RFQs) and Requests for Proposals (RFPs).  

 

 

RENO HOUSING AUTHORITY 
 

 AGENDA ITEM NUMBER: 8                                                                       January 23, 2024 

Page 262 of 301



 

 

Project Design: 
 
Preliminary site plans and schematics shall be presented to the Board for input no later 
than 50 percent of architectural design. The final project design shall be presented to the 
Board as part of the Executive Director’s monthly report, staff reports, and/or quarterly 
development updates. The board will be asked for input on the design as indicated above 
but shall not have the final approval of the design. Staff believes it is best for the design to 
be based on the expertise of the contracted design and construction professionals as well 
as the financial capacity of the project. 
 
Project Financing and Budget: 
 
Staff will provide regular updates to the Board regarding project scope and budget from 
concept through predevelopment. During this time staff and/or development partners will 
be actively identifying potential financing gaps. The Board is aware that preliminary pro 
forma represents estimated project costs and that costs will continue to be refined until 
financial closing. Should a financing gap be identified, the Executive Director will notify the 
Board to discuss potential sources of funding that may be available to fill the gap and/or 
project changes needed to bring the budget back into alignment with available resources. 
Given time is of the essence to meet closing deadlines, the Board may need to convene a 
special meeting to discuss items. If the Board cannot get a quorum for a special meeting 
within ten business days after the Executive Director’s request, then the Executive 
Director, or their designee, is authorized to pursue potential sources of funding for Board 
consideration: 
 
Staff will provide regular updates to the board and seek applicable approval for the 
following: 

• Grant agreements, amendments, and other related documents such as deed 
restrictions. 

• Financial agreements that require debt servicing such as mortgage loans and tax-
exempt bonds 

Once the project has completed plan review and has a conformed plan set, staff will seek 
competitive proposals from General Contractors or a Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) 
from the project’s Construction Manager at Risk (CMAR). The final project budget will be 
based on the conformed plan set and construction costs from the accepted competitive 
proposal or GMP. This final budget will also be used to determine if all necessary financing 
has been secured. If a project has a financing gap at this point staff and development 
partners may use value engineering, budget revisions, deferral of development fee, or 
seek additional funding to cover the gap. Once the project budget and secured funding 
match, the project will financially close. 
 
Change Orders: 
 
Once a project has financially closed and is under contract, the Executive Director, or their 
designee, will be able to approve change orders and/or complete budget line adjustments 
as long as they are within the project’s total budget and established hard and soft cost 
contingencies. Staff will provide project progress reports at monthly Board meetings and 

Page 263 of 301



 

 

update Commissioners on the amount of contingency that has been utilized. If the 
Executive Director believes it is necessary, the Executive Director may ask the Board to 
consider replenishing the contingency amount.   
 
If the project experiences a financial gap that exceeds the overall project budget and 
established contingencies, staff will present this information to the Board along with 
potential sources for gap financing. Staff will seek approval from the Board before 
accepting potential gap financing. Given time is of the essence during construction, the 
Board may need to convene a special meeting to discuss items. If the Board cannot get a 
quorum for a special meeting within ten business days after the Executive Director’s 
request, then the Executive Director is authorized to accept potential gap financing.  
 
Other Considerations: 
 
Outside of the guidelines already discussed, staff shall notify the Board and seek 
applicable approval in the following circumstances: 

• RHA and/or project partner(s) loses site control or rights of way. 
• There is a change in project sponsor(s) and/or project partner(s).  
• There is a dissolution, winding up of affairs, sale of assets, merger, or business 

combination of any project sponsor(s) and/or project partner(s). 
• There is a change in any support service provider and/or change in the type of 

support services to be provided. 
• Any other change that requires notification and/or written agreement by project 

funder(s). 
• A change that substantially alters the general appearance or structural integrity of 

exterior walls, elevations, bulk, coverage, or floor area ratio. 
• A variation, modification, addition, reduction, deletion, or change to the work that is 

valued at ten percent (10%) or more of the current contract sum.  

 
Staff Recommendation: 
The Board of Commissioners moves to approve the Material Change Policy as presented. 
 

Page 264 of 301



 

 

 
SUBJECT: Discussion and possible action to approve formation of Pathways to Prosperity 

and Truckee Meadows Affordable Housing, both of which will be non-profit 
entities of RHA which will apply for 501(c)3 status, through filing articles of 
incorporation therefor with the Nevada Secretary of State and to approve the 
Bylaws for both entities of RHA. (For Possible Action) 

 
 
FROM:        Executive Director                                   RECOMMENDATION: For Possible Action 
 

 
Background: 
 
At the July 25, 2023, RHA Board of Commissioners meeting, action was taken to authorize 
RHA staff to proceed with the formation of a resident services-focused 501(c)(3) non-profit 
corporation and a second 501(c)(3) non-profit corporation focused on affordable housing 
development. Since that time, staff have been working with Eide Bailey, LLP, and legal 
counsel to draft By-laws for both non-profit corporations. 
 
Pathways to Prosperity is proposed as the resident services-focused non-profit entity to 
support and further resident services activities. As discussed in July, RHA’s status as a 
quasi-government agency precludes us from applying for many foundation grants and 
prevents private donations being tax-deductible to donors. Creating a non-profit 
corporation will provide the opportunity to expand RHA’s services and better fulfill the 
Board’s goal of increasing opportunities to break the cycle of poverty among our residents.   
 
Additionally, Truckee Meadows Affordable Housing is being proposed as the 
development-focused non-profit entity to support RHA’s continued housing development 
efforts and in furtherance of the Board’s goal of increasing the amount of affordable 
housing RHA provides.   
 
The Board of Directors for each entity will consist of five total members. Board of Director 
representation will include two RHA Board of Commissioners, the RHA Executive Director 
or the Deputy Executive Director of Programs (depending on the entity as discussed later 
in this paragraph), the RHA Director of Finance, and one Director appointed by the RHA 
Board of Commissioners. The only difference between the two entities is the Board 
composition of Truckee Meadows Affordable Housing includes the RHA Executive Director 
as the President and Pathways to Prosperity includes the RHA Deputy Executive Director 
of Programs as the President. Board member terms are proposed in the by-laws at three 
years with a maximum number of consecutive terms being three, except RHA Staff held 
positions which would not be subject to term limits.   
 
Annual meetings of both corporations would be held in December, to mirror RHA’s latest 
by-laws.   

RENO HOUSING AUTHORITY 
 

 AGENDA ITEM NUMBER: 9                                                                       January 23, 2024 

Page 265 of 301



 

 

 
Staff Recommendation and Motion: 
 
Staff recommend the Board approve the proposed By-laws for Pathways to Prosperity and 
Truckee Meadows Affordable Housing as written for filing with the Nevada Secretary of 
State. 
 

Page 266 of 301



 

 1 

BYLAWS OF 
PATHWAYS TO PROSPERITY 
A Nevada Nonprofit Corporation 

 
 

ARTICLE I 
Name, Office, & Purpose 

 
Section 1. Name. The name of the Corporation shall be the Pathways to Prosperity (herein 
“Corporation”). The name of the Corporation may be changed from time to time by the Board of 
Directors. 
 
Section 2. Office(s). The principal office for the transaction of the activities and affairs of 
the Corporation shall be in Washoe County, Nevada, at a specific location or locations to be 
determined by the Board of Directors. The Board may change the location of the principal office 
from time to time. Any change of location of the principal office shall be noted by the Secretary 
on these bylaws opposite this Section, or this Section may be amended to state the new location. 
The Board may at any time and from time to time establish branch or subordinate offices at any 
place or places where the Corporation is qualified to conduct its activities, and upon such terms 
as are appropriate and convenient to the Corporation. 
 
Section 3. Purpose.  
 
 This Corporation is organized and at all times shall be operated exclusively for charitable 
purposes. Subject to the limitations stated in the Articles of Incorporation, the purposes of this 
Corporation shall be to engage in any lawful activities, none of which are for profit, for which 
Corporations may be organized under the Internal Revenue Code, as amended, and as referenced 
in the Articles of Incorporation. 
 
 The purpose of the Corporation is to provide growth and self-sufficiency opportunities 
for low-income Nevadans through participant-focused pathways, resources and training that 
bolster participants’ quality of life and independence.  The Corporation encourages and accepts 
gifts and donations and directs their use for its purposes as well as the tax-exempt services of 
The Housing Authority of the City of Reno, a Nevada public body charged with providing fair, 
sustainable, quality housing in diverse neighborhoods throughout Reno, Sparks and Washoe 
County that offers a stable foundation for low-income families to pursue economic opportunities, 
become self-sufficient and improve their quality of life. 
 

ARTICLE II 
Members 

 
 The Corporation shall have no members. Subject to the requirements of the Articles of 
Incorporation of the Corporation, any action which would otherwise require approval by a 
majority of all members or approval by the members shall only require approval of the Board of 
Directors, and all rights which would otherwise vest in the members shall vest in the Directors. 
 

Page 267 of 301



 

 2 

ARTICLE III 
Board of Directors 

 
Section 1. Annual Meeting. The annual meeting of the Board of Directors shall be held at 
such place as the Board of Directors may from time to time determine in the fourth week of 
December each year, or at such other place, date or time as may be selected by the Board of 
Directors (hereinafter “Board”), for the transaction of such business as may be brought before 
the meeting. 
 
Section 2. Number.  The number of Directors shall consist of five (5) Directors. One (1) 
Director shall be the Executive Director of the Reno Housing Authority, one (1) Director shall be 
the Director of Finance of the Reno Housing Authority, and two (2) Directors shall be members 
of the Board of Commissioners of Reno Housing Authority to be selected by the Reno Housing 
Authority Board of Commissioners.  The fifth Director shall be an individual selected by the 
Reno Housing Authority Board of Commissioners with background and/or experience in 
fundraising, grant writing, work force development or another field related to the Corporation’s 
mission. Any Board member may nominate a qualified individual for consideration as the fifth 
Director or, alternatively, the Board may solicit applications from eligible individuals through 
the President and present them to the Board for consideration and appointment.  The terms of the 
Executive Director of the Reno Housing Authority and the Director of Finance of the Reno 
Housing Authority shall expire at the time those individuals no longer hold the qualifying 
position with the Reno Housing Authority.  The initial terms of the two (2) members of the 
Board of Commissioners of Reno Housing Authority shall be five (5) years and shall 
automatically terminate upon the Director no longer being a member of the Board of 
Commissioners of Reno Housing Authority.  The initial term of the fifth Director appointed by 
the Reno Housing Authority shall be three (3) years.  
 
Section 3. Payment for Services. No Director shall be entitled to payment for services 
rendered to the Corporation. The compensation of the Executive Director and Director of 
Finance of the Housing Authority of the City of Reno shall be deemed included in the salary of 
the Executive Director and Director of Finance as provided by the Authority. 
 
Section 4. Powers. Subject to the provisions of Chapter 82 of the Nevada Revised Statutes 
and any other applicable laws, and subject to any limitations in the Articles of Incorporation of 
the Corporation or other provisions of these Bylaws, the Corporations activities and affairs shall 
be conducted and all corporate powers shall be exercised by or under the direction of the Board. 
 
Section 4. Term. Upon expiration of the initial terms of the Directors as provided for in 
Section 1 above, Directors shall serve terms of three (3) years in length.  The Directors, other 
than the Executive Director of Reno Housing Authority and the Director of Finance of the Reno 
Housing Authority, may be selected by the Reno Housing Authority Board of Commissioners at 
any meeting of that Board.  If a Director is selected to assume the office of a recently vacated 
seat on the Board, then the Director’s term shall be treated as though it began in January 
following the appointment of the Director. 
 

Page 268 of 301



 

 3 

Section 6. Vacancies. A vacancy in the Board may be filled by a majority of the remaining 
Directors, though less than a quorum. A vacancy on the Board shall exist upon: (1) the death or 
resignation of any Director; or (2) the declaration by resolution of the Board of a vacancy in the 
office of a Director who has been declared of unsound mind by an order of court, convicted of a 
felony, or found by a final order of judgment of any court to have breached a duty imposed by 
law upon the Director. No reduction of the authorized number of Directors shall have the effect 
of removing any Director before that Director’s term of office expires. Any Director of the 
Corporation may resign at any time, either by oral tender of resignation at any meeting of the 
Board of Directors or by giving written notice thereof to the Secretary of the Corporation. Such 
resignation shall take effect at the time specified therefore and, unless otherwise specified with 
respect thereto, the acceptance of such resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective. 
Any and all Directors may be removed, with or without cause, at a meeting called for that 
purpose, by a vote of a majority of the Directors with a quorum present.  
 
Section 7. Place of Meeting. Regular meetings of the Board may be held without notice at 
such time and place as the Board may fix from time to time. Special meetings of the Board may 
be called by the Chair of the Board, or two (2) Directors, on twenty-four (24) hours’ notice to 
each Director. Notice of the time and place of special meetings shall be given to each Director by 
one of the following methods: (1) by personal delivery of written notice; (2) by first-class mail, 
postage prepaid; (3) by telephone, either directly to the Director or to a person at the Director’s 
office or home who would be reasonably expected to communicate that notice promptly to the 
Director; (4) by facsimile communication; or (5) by email. The notice shall be given or be sent to 
the Director’s address or telephone number as shown on the records of the Corporation. If notice 
is given by mail, there shall be added three (3) business days to allow for delivery and receipt.  
The notice of a special meeting shall specify the purpose or purposes of the meeting. A special 
meeting of the Board may be held at any time or place without notice, if all Directors are present 
or consent thereto in writing before or after the meeting, or if those Directors who are not present 
consent thereto in writing before or after the meeting. 

Section 8. Quorum. A majority of the authorized number of Directors shall constitute a 
quorum for the transaction of business, except to adjourn. Every action taken or decision made 
by a majority of the Directors present at a duly held meeting at which a quorum is present shall 
be the act of the Board, except in any specific situations where the law requires otherwise. A 
meeting at which a quorum is initially present may continue to transact business, despite the 
withdrawal of any Directors, if any action taken or decision made is approved by at least a 
majority of the required quorum for that meeting. 

Section 9. Adjournments. The majority of the Directors present, whether or not a quorum is 
present, may adjourn any meeting to another time and place. Notice of the time and place of 
holding an adjourned meeting need not be given unless the original meeting is adjourned for 
more than twenty-four (24) hours.  If the original meeting is adjourned for more than twenty-four 
(24) hours, notice of any adjournment to another time or place shall be given, before the time the 
adjourned meeting is restarted, to the Directors who were not present at the time of the 
adjournment. 
 
 

Page 269 of 301



 

 4 

Section 10. Action without a Meeting. Any action that the Board is required or permitted to 
take may be taken without a meeting if a majority of the Directors then in office consent in 
writing to the action; provided, however, that the action of any Director who has a material 
financial interest in a transaction to which the Corporation is a party shall not be required or 
permitted for approval of that transaction. Such action by written consent shall have the same 
force and effect as any other validly approved action of the Board.   As used herein, "written" or 
"writing" shall include electronic forms of communication, so long as a printed copy of the 
electronic writing is made and included in the record of the meeting or action taken by consent. 
 
Section 11. Committees of the Board. The Board, by resolution adopted by a majority of the 
Directors then in office, may create one or more committees, and may elect or appoint such 
members as the Board deems appropriate as further set forth in Article IV. 
 
Section 12. Telephone or Electronic Participation. Directors may participate in a meeting 
through use of conference telephone or similar electronic communication equipment, including 
web-based technology, so long as all Directors participating in such meeting can hear one 
another. Participation in a meeting through the use of such telephone or similar electronic 
communications equipment constitutes presence in person at the meeting. 
 
Section 13. Self-Dealing Transactions. 
 

1. No contract or other transaction between the Corporation and one or more of its 
Directors or officers, or between the Corporation and any corporation, firm, or association in 
which one or more of its Directors or officers are Directors or officers or are financially 
interested, is void or voidable solely for this reason or solely because any such Director or officer 
is present at the meeting of the Board of Directors which authorizes or approves the contract or 
transaction, or because the vote or votes of common or interested Directors are counted for such 
purpose, if the circumstances specified in any of the following paragraphs exist: 
 

(a) The fact of the common directorship, office or financial interest is disclosed or 
known to the Board of Directors and noted in the minutes, and the Board or committee 
authorizes, approves, or ratifies the contract or transaction in good faith by a vote 
sufficient for the purpose and the common or interested Director or Directors, does not 
participate in the discussion or action on the item; or 

 
(b) The fact of the common directorship or financial interest is not disclosed or 

known to the Director or officer at the time the transaction is brought before the Board of 
Directors of the Corporation for action provided that the contract or transaction is fair as 
to the Corporation at the time it is authorized or approved, and the common or interested 
Director or Directors do not participate in the discussion or action on the item. 

 
2. All Directors will be counted in determining the presence of a quorum at a 

meeting of the Board of Directors thereof which authorizes, approves, or ratifies a contract or 
transaction, the common or interested Director or Directors a majority of the disinterested 
Directors may authorize, approve, or ratify a contract or transaction. 
 

Page 270 of 301



 

 5 

Section 14. Confidentiality. All members of the Board of Directors of the Corporation shall 
be required to adhere to the Confidentiality statement issued by the Corporation or the Reno 
Housing Authority.  All Directors will be required to read and sign the Confidentiality 
Agreement and complete the Conflict of Interest Agreement, if any, prior to the beginning of 
their term. 
 

ARTICLE IV 
Subcommittees of the Board 

 
Section 1. Creation. The Board of Directors, by resolution adopted by a majority of the 
Directors in office, may designate and appoint standing or special committees, as it considers 
necessary for the operation or administration of the Corporation. These committees, to the extent 
provided in said resolution shall have and exercise the authority delegated to them by the Board 
of Directors and any actions taken by such committees are subject to approval by the Board of 
Directors at the next meeting of the Board. Each standing committee shall consist of two or more 
Directors, and each special committee shall consist of at least one Director. Members of each 
committee shall be nominated by the Chairman of the Board and be subject to approval by the 
Board of Directors. The Chairman of each committee shall be a Director of the Corporation 
nominated by the Chairman of the Board and approved by the Board of Directors and shall report 
on the activities of that committee at the regular meeting of the Board of Directors.  
 
Section 2. Quorum. A quorum at a committee meeting exercising Board functions shall be a 
majority of all committee members in office immediately before the meeting begins. If a quorum 
is present, action may be taken by an affirmative vote of a majority of the committee members 
present. 
 

ARTICLE V 
Officers and Executive Director 

 
Section 1. Officers. The officers of the corporation shall be a President (who shall, by virtue 
of the office, be the Chairman of the Board of Directors), a Vice-President, a Secretary, and a 
Treasurer.  The Corporation may also have at the discretion of the Board, such other officers as 
may be determined by the Board of Directors.  The President/Chairman of the Board shall be the 
Executive Director of the Reno Housing Authority and the Treasurer shall be the Director of 
Finance of the Reno Housing Authority unless otherwise agreed upon by a majority of the Board.  
All other officers of the Corporation shall be chosen by the Board and shall serve at the pleasure 
of the Board, subject to the rights, if any, of any officer under any contract of employment to 
which the officer is a party. Without prejudice to any rights of an officer under any contract of 
employment, any officer may be removed with or without cause by the Board. 
 
Section 2. Vacancies. A vacancy in any office because of death, resignation, removal, 
disqualification, or any other cause shall be filled by the Board. 
 
Section 3. President. The President shall be the Chair of the Board, and shall preside at all 
meetings of the Board. Unless the Board shall otherwise provide, the President shall sign and 
execute all authorized bonds, contracts, and other obligations in the name of the Corporation. 

Page 271 of 301



 

 6 

Unless otherwise provided in these bylaws, the President shall have general management and 
control of, and shall supervise and direct, the activities of the Corporation. The President shall at 
all times be subject to the instructions of the Board. The President shall perform all other duties 
required by law or by these Bylaws and such duties as the Board may from time to time require. 
 
Section 4. Vice-President. In case of the absence or disability of the President, the Vice-
President in charge of administration shall perform the duties of the office of the President.  
Vice-Presidents shall also perform such other duties and have such authority as may be 
prescribed from time to time by the Board or the President. 
 
Section 5. Secretary. The Secretary shall keep the minutes of the meetings of the Board, 
unless some other person is designated by the recording secretary of the meeting. The Secretary 
shall give, or arrange to give, all notices of the Corporation.  The Secretary shall have charge of 
all records, books, and papers pertaining to the office, the corporate seal of the Corporation, and 
such books and papers of the Corporation as the Board may direct; The Secretary shall perform 
all other duties required by law or these bylaws and such as the Board or the President may from 
time to time require. 
 
Section 6. Treasurer. The Treasurer shall have overall, responsibility for all fiscal record 
keeping and all corporate funds. The Treasurer shall, with the President, sign all certificates, 
contracts or other documents in any way affecting real property or any right of interest therein. 
The Treasurer shall perform all the duties as from time to time may be assigned by the President 
or by the Board of Directors. The Treasurer, or such persons supervised by the Treasurer shall 
receive, receipt for, and safely keep all its funds, and shall dispose of them only in the manner 
authorized by the Board; shall at all times keep a full and complete and accurate record of the 
funds of the Corporation and shall deposit the same to the credit of the Corporation in such bank, 
banks, or depositories as the Board may designate. 
 

ARTICLE VII 
Records; Inspection; Annual Report 

 
Section 1. Maintenance of Records. The Corporation shall keep at its principal office, or if 
its principal office is not in Nevada, at its principal office in Nevada, the original or a copy of the 
Articles of Incorporation and of the Bylaws, as amended to date. The Corporation shall take 
appropriate steps to protect the confidentiality of donors. 
 
Section 2. Inspection. Every Director shall have the right at any reasonable time to inspect 
the Corporation’s books, records, and documents of every kind, physical properties, and the 
records of each of its subsidiaries. The inspection may be made in person or by the Director’s 
agent or attorney. The right of inspection includes the right to copy and make abstracts of 
documents, provided that the confidentiality of the corporate records and documents is protected. 
 
Section 3. Annual Report. The Board shall cause an annual report to be sent to all Directors 
within one hundred twenty (120) days after the close of the Corporation’s fiscal year. The 
Corporation’s fiscal year shall be the calendar year. 
 

Page 272 of 301



 

 7 

ARTICLE VIII 
Execution of Instruments 

 
Checks, drafts, and orders upon the funds or credits of the Corporation, bills, notes, and other 
obligations for the payment of money by the Corporation, and contracts and instruments in 
writing by the Corporation, shall be valid and binding upon the Corporation only when executed 
by such officer or officers as may be authorized by the Board or by these Bylaws. 
 
 

ARTICLE IX 
Indemnification 

 
Section 1. Right of Indemnity. To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Corporation shall 
indemnify its present and former officers, Directors, employees, and agents against all expenses, 
judgments, fines, settlements, and other amounts actually and reasonably incurred by them in 
connection with any threatened, pending, or completed action or proceedings, whether civil, 
criminal, administrative, or investigative, including an action by or in the right of the 
Corporation, by reason of the fact that the person is or was an officer, Director, employee, or 
agent of the Corporation. “Expenses” as used herein includes, without limitation, attorneys’ fees 
and any expenses of establishing a right to indemnification. 
 
Section 2. Approval of Indemnity. On written request to the Board of any person seeking 
indemnification under Section 1 of this Article IX, the Board shall promptly determine whether 
indemnification is permitted and, if so, shall authorize such indemnification. 
 
Section 3. Advancement of Expenses. To the fullest extent permitted by law and as 
otherwise determined by the Board in a specific instance, expenses incurred by a person seeking 
indemnification under Sections 1 or 2 above in defending any proceeding covered by those 
Sections shall be advanced by the Corporation before final disposition of the proceeding, on 
receipt by the Corporation of the undertaking by or on behalf of that person that the advance will 
be repaid unless it is ultimately determined that the person is not entitled to be indemnified by 
the Corporation for those expenses. 
 
Section 4. Insurance. The Corporation may purchase and maintain insurance to the fullest 
extent permitted by law on behalf of its officers, Directors, employees, and agents against any 
liability asserted against or incurred by any of such persons in such capacity or arising out of the 
person’s status as such wherever the Corporation has the power to indemnify the person against 
such liability under the provisions of Section 1 above. 
 

ARTICLE X 
Amendments 

 
 These Bylaws may be altered, amended or repealed by a vote of two thirds (2/3rds) of the 
entire Board of Directors at any regular or special meeting called therefore with notice specifying 
purpose and providing written copies of the proposed amendments. Written notice of such 
proposed action must be given to the Directors at least seven (7) days prior to the date of such 

Page 273 of 301



 

 8 

meeting. Directors not present at the meeting considering a proposed revision or amendment may 
express their approval in writing. No revision or amendment shall be adopted that would be 
inconsistent with the tax-exempt, non-profit status of the Corporation. 
 

ARTICLE XI 
Gift Acceptance 

 
Section 1. Acceptance. The Board of Directors may accept on behalf of the Corporation any 
gift, grant, bequest or devise for the general purposes of the Corporation. The Board of Directors 
may authorize any officer, agent or employee to accept on behalf of the Corporation any gift, 
grant bequest or devise and such authority may be general or confined to specific funds, accounts 
or purposes. The Board of Directors has the right to reject or refuse to accept any gift, grant, 
bequest or devise whenever it is deemed to be in the best interest of the Corporation to reject or 
refuse to accept such gift, grant, devise. 
 
Section 2. Irrevocable. Unless the terms expressly provide otherwise, all gifts, grants, 
bequests and devises shall be deemed irrevocable. 
 
Section 3. Restrictions. Any person and/or organization who shall give, bequeath or devise 
any property to the Corporation may make such gift subject to such conditions and limitations as 
to the use of the principal or income as he/she/they may see fit, and may specify such uses for the 
principal or the income as he/she may desire, provided such conditions, limitations, 
specifications and provisions are consistent with the general purposes of the Corporation and 
provided, further, that the Board of Directors has the right to reject or refuse to accept any such 
gift, grant, devise or bequest in the event it would not be in the best interest of the Corporation to 
accept such gift, grant, devise or bequest. 
 
Section 4. Property. All such property received and accepted by the Corporation shall 
become a part of the Corporation property and, subject to any limitations, conditions or 
requirements, may be commingled with the other assets of the Corporation. However, such 
property shall or may be placed in any number of separate accounts whenever the conditions, 
limitations or instruction of the gift, grant, bequest or devise required a separate fund or account, 
or whenever the Board of Directors, in its judgment, determines that such property should be 
placed in a separate and distinct fund or account. 
 
/// 
 
/// 
 
/// 
 
/// 
 
/// 
 
/// 

Page 274 of 301



 

 9 

CERTIFICATE OF PRESIDENT 
 

 I certify that I am the duly elected and acting President/Chairman of the Board of 
Pathways to Prosperity, a Nevada nonprofit corporation, that the above bylaws, consisting of 
nine (9) pages, including this page, are the bylaws of said Corporation as adopted by the Board 
of Directors of the Corporation at its regular meeting held on     
 , 2023. 
 

EXECUTED on     , 2023 
 
               

 President/Chairman of the Board 
 

 
ATTEST: 
 
      
Secretary of the Board 
 
 
4879-0502-4153, v. 1 

Page 275 of 301



Page 276 of 301



Page 277 of 301



Page 278 of 301



Page 279 of 301



 

 1 

BYLAWS OF 
TRUCKEE MEADOWS AFFORDABLE HOUSING 

A Nevada Nonprofit Corporation 
 
 

ARTICLE I 
Name, Office, & Purpose 

 
Section 1. Name. The name of the Corporation shall be the Truckee Meadows Affordable 
Housing (herein “Corporation”). The name of the Corporation may be changed from time to time 
by the Board of Directors. 
 
Section 2. Office(s). The principal office for the transaction of the activities and affairs of 
the Corporation shall be in Washoe County, Nevada, at a specific location or locations to be 
determined by the Board of Directors. The Board may change the location of the principal office 
from time to time. Any change of location of the principal office shall be noted by the Secretary 
on these bylaws opposite this Section, or this Section may be amended to state the new location. 
The Board may at any time and from time to time establish branch or subordinate offices at any 
place or places where the Corporation is qualified to conduct its activities, and upon such terms 
as are appropriate and convenient to the Corporation. 
 
Section 3. Purpose.  
 
 This Corporation is organized and at all times shall be operated exclusively for charitable 
purposes. Subject to the limitations stated in the Articles of Incorporation, the purposes of this 
Corporation shall be to engage in any lawful activities, none of which are for profit, for which 
Corporations may be organized under the Internal Revenue Code, as amended, and as referenced 
in the Articles of Incorporation. 
 
 The purpose of the Corporation is to provide growth and self-sufficiency opportunities 
for low-income Nevadans through participant-focused pathways, resources and training that 
bolster participants’ quality of life and independence.  The Corporation encourages and accepts 
gifts and donations and directs their use for its purposes as well as the tax-exempt services of 
The Housing Authority of the City of Reno, a Nevada public body charged with providing fair, 
sustainable, quality housing in diverse neighborhoods throughout Reno, Sparks and Washoe 
County that offers a stable foundation for low-income families to pursue economic opportunities, 
become self-sufficient and improve their quality of life. 
 

ARTICLE II 
Members 

 
 The Corporation shall have no members. Subject to the requirements of the Articles of 
Incorporation of the Corporation, any action which would otherwise require approval by a 
majority of all members or approval by the members shall only require approval of the Board of 
Directors, and all rights which would otherwise vest in the members shall vest in the Directors. 
 

Page 280 of 301



 

 2 

ARTICLE III 
Board of Directors 

 
Section 1. Annual Meeting. The annual meeting of the Board of Directors shall be held at 
such place as the Board of Directors may from time to time determine in the fourth week of 
December each year, or at such other place, date or time as may be selected by the Board of 
Directors (hereinafter “Board”), for the transaction of such business as may be brought before 
the meeting. 
 
Section 2. Number.  The number of Directors shall consist of five (5) Directors. One (1) 
Director shall be the Executive Director of the Reno Housing Authority, one (1) Director shall be 
the Director of Finance of the Reno Housing Authority, and two (2) Directors shall be members 
of the Board of Commissioners of Reno Housing Authority to be selected by the Reno Housing 
Authority Board of Commissioners.  The fifth Director shall be an individual selected by the 
Reno Housing Authority Board of Commissioners with background and/or experience in 
fundraising, grant writing, work force development or another field related to the Corporation’s 
mission. Any Board member may nominate a qualified individual for consideration as the fifth 
Director or, alternatively, the Board may solicit applications from eligible individuals through 
the President and present them to the Board for consideration and appointment.  The terms of the 
Executive Director of the Reno Housing Authority and the Director of Finance of the Reno 
Housing Authority shall expire at the time those individuals no longer hold the qualifying 
position with the Reno Housing Authority.  The initial terms of the two (2) members of the 
Board of Commissioners of Reno Housing Authority shall be five (5) years and shall 
automatically terminate upon the Director no longer being a member of the Board of 
Commissioners of Reno Housing Authority.  The initial term of the fifth Director appointed by 
the Reno Housing Authority shall be three (3) years.  
 
Section 3. Payment for Services. No Director shall be entitled to payment for services 
rendered to the Corporation. The compensation of the Executive Director and Director of 
Finance of the Housing Authority of the City of Reno shall be deemed included in the salary of 
the Executive Director and Director of Finance as provided by the Authority. 
 
Section 4. Powers. Subject to the provisions of Chapter 82 of the Nevada Revised Statutes 
and any other applicable laws, and subject to any limitations in the Articles of Incorporation of 
the Corporation or other provisions of these Bylaws, the Corporations activities and affairs shall 
be conducted and all corporate powers shall be exercised by or under the direction of the Board. 
 
Section 4. Term. Upon expiration of the initial terms of the Directors as provided for in 
Section 1 above, Directors shall serve terms of three (3) years in length.  The Directors, other 
than the Executive Director of Reno Housing Authority and the Director of Finance of the Reno 
Housing Authority, may be selected by the Reno Housing Authority Board of Commissioners at 
any meeting of that Board.  If a Director is selected to assume the office of a recently vacated 
seat on the Board, then the Director’s term shall be treated as though it began in January 
following the appointment of the Director. 
 

Page 281 of 301



 

 3 

Section 6. Vacancies. A vacancy in the Board may be filled by a majority of the remaining 
Directors, though less than a quorum. A vacancy on the Board shall exist upon: (1) the death or 
resignation of any Director; or (2) the declaration by resolution of the Board of a vacancy in the 
office of a Director who has been declared of unsound mind by an order of court, convicted of a 
felony, or found by a final order of judgment of any court to have breached a duty imposed by 
law upon the Director. No reduction of the authorized number of Directors shall have the effect 
of removing any Director before that Director’s term of office expires. Any Director of the 
Corporation may resign at any time, either by oral tender of resignation at any meeting of the 
Board of Directors or by giving written notice thereof to the Secretary of the Corporation. Such 
resignation shall take effect at the time specified therefore and, unless otherwise specified with 
respect thereto, the acceptance of such resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective. 
Any and all Directors may be removed, with or without cause, at a meeting called for that 
purpose, by a vote of a majority of the Directors with a quorum present.  
 
Section 7. Place of Meeting. Regular meetings of the Board may be held without notice at 
such time and place as the Board may fix from time to time. Special meetings of the Board may 
be called by the Chair of the Board, or two (2) Directors, on twenty-four (24) hours’ notice to 
each Director. Notice of the time and place of special meetings shall be given to each Director by 
one of the following methods: (1) by personal delivery of written notice; (2) by first-class mail, 
postage prepaid; (3) by telephone, either directly to the Director or to a person at the Director’s 
office or home who would be reasonably expected to communicate that notice promptly to the 
Director; (4) by facsimile communication; or (5) by email. The notice shall be given or be sent to 
the Director’s address or telephone number as shown on the records of the Corporation. If notice 
is given by mail, there shall be added three (3) business days to allow for delivery and receipt.  
The notice of a special meeting shall specify the purpose or purposes of the meeting. A special 
meeting of the Board may be held at any time or place without notice, if all Directors are present 
or consent thereto in writing before or after the meeting, or if those Directors who are not present 
consent thereto in writing before or after the meeting. 

Section 8. Quorum. A majority of the authorized number of Directors shall constitute a 
quorum for the transaction of business, except to adjourn. Every action taken or decision made 
by a majority of the Directors present at a duly held meeting at which a quorum is present shall 
be the act of the Board, except in any specific situations where the law requires otherwise. A 
meeting at which a quorum is initially present may continue to transact business, despite the 
withdrawal of any Directors, if any action taken or decision made is approved by at least a 
majority of the required quorum for that meeting. 

Section 9. Adjournments. The majority of the Directors present, whether or not a quorum is 
present, may adjourn any meeting to another time and place. Notice of the time and place of 
holding an adjourned meeting need not be given unless the original meeting is adjourned for 
more than twenty-four (24) hours.  If the original meeting is adjourned for more than twenty-four 
(24) hours, notice of any adjournment to another time or place shall be given, before the time the 
adjourned meeting is restarted, to the Directors who were not present at the time of the 
adjournment. 
 
 

Page 282 of 301



 

 4 

Section 10. Action without a Meeting. Any action that the Board is required or permitted to 
take may be taken without a meeting if a majority of the Directors then in office consent in 
writing to the action; provided, however, that the action of any Director who has a material 
financial interest in a transaction to which the Corporation is a party shall not be required or 
permitted for approval of that transaction. Such action by written consent shall have the same 
force and effect as any other validly approved action of the Board.   As used herein, "written" or 
"writing" shall include electronic forms of communication, so long as a printed copy of the 
electronic writing is made and included in the record of the meeting or action taken by consent. 
 
Section 11. Committees of the Board. The Board, by resolution adopted by a majority of the 
Directors then in office, may create one or more committees, and may elect or appoint such 
members as the Board deems appropriate as further set forth in Article IV. 
 
Section 12. Telephone or Electronic Participation. Directors may participate in a meeting 
through use of conference telephone or similar electronic communication equipment, including 
web-based technology, so long as all Directors participating in such meeting can hear one 
another. Participation in a meeting through the use of such telephone or similar electronic 
communications equipment constitutes presence in person at the meeting. 
 
Section 13. Self-Dealing Transactions. 
 

1. No contract or other transaction between the Corporation and one or more of its 
Directors or officers, or between the Corporation and any corporation, firm, or association in 
which one or more of its Directors or officers are Directors or officers or are financially 
interested, is void or voidable solely for this reason or solely because any such Director or officer 
is present at the meeting of the Board of Directors which authorizes or approves the contract or 
transaction, or because the vote or votes of common or interested Directors are counted for such 
purpose, if the circumstances specified in any of the following paragraphs exist: 
 

(a) The fact of the common directorship, office or financial interest is disclosed or 
known to the Board of Directors and noted in the minutes, and the Board or committee 
authorizes, approves, or ratifies the contract or transaction in good faith by a vote 
sufficient for the purpose and the common or interested Director or Directors, does not 
participate in the discussion or action on the item; or 

 
(b) The fact of the common directorship or financial interest is not disclosed or 

known to the Director or officer at the time the transaction is brought before the Board of 
Directors of the Corporation for action provided that the contract or transaction is fair as 
to the Corporation at the time it is authorized or approved, and the common or interested 
Director or Directors do not participate in the discussion or action on the item. 

 
2. All Directors will be counted in determining the presence of a quorum at a 

meeting of the Board of Directors thereof which authorizes, approves, or ratifies a contract or 
transaction, the common or interested Director or Directors a majority of the disinterested 
Directors may authorize, approve, or ratify a contract or transaction. 
 

Page 283 of 301



 

 5 

Section 14. Confidentiality. All members of the Board of Directors of the Corporation shall 
be required to adhere to the Confidentiality statement issued by the Corporation or the Reno 
Housing Authority.  All Directors will be required to read and sign the Confidentiality 
Agreement and complete the Conflict of Interest Agreement, if any, prior to the beginning of 
their term. 
 

ARTICLE IV 
Subcommittees of the Board 

 
Section 1. Creation. The Board of Directors, by resolution adopted by a majority of the 
Directors in office, may designate and appoint standing or special committees, as it considers 
necessary for the operation or administration of the Corporation. These committees, to the extent 
provided in said resolution shall have and exercise the authority delegated to them by the Board 
of Directors and any actions taken by such committees are subject to approval by the Board of 
Directors at the next meeting of the Board. Each standing committee shall consist of two or more 
Directors, and each special committee shall consist of at least one Director. Members of each 
committee shall be nominated by the Chairman of the Board and be subject to approval by the 
Board of Directors. The Chairman of each committee shall be a Director of the Corporation 
nominated by the Chairman of the Board and approved by the Board of Directors and shall report 
on the activities of that committee at the regular meeting of the Board of Directors.  
 
Section 2. Quorum. A quorum at a committee meeting exercising Board functions shall be a 
majority of all committee members in office immediately before the meeting begins. If a quorum 
is present, action may be taken by an affirmative vote of a majority of the committee members 
present. 
 

ARTICLE V 
Officers and Executive Director 

 
Section 1. Officers. The officers of the corporation shall be a President (who shall, by virtue 
of the office, be the Chairman of the Board of Directors), a Vice-President, a Secretary, and a 
Treasurer.  The Corporation may also have at the discretion of the Board, such other officers as 
may be determined by the Board of Directors.  The President/Chairman of the Board shall be the 
Executive Director of the Reno Housing Authority and the Treasurer shall be the Director of 
Finance of the Reno Housing Authority unless otherwise agreed upon by a majority of the Board.  
All other officers of the Corporation shall be chosen by the Board and shall serve at the pleasure 
of the Board, subject to the rights, if any, of any officer under any contract of employment to 
which the officer is a party. Without prejudice to any rights of an officer under any contract of 
employment, any officer may be removed with or without cause by the Board. 
 
Section 2. Vacancies. A vacancy in any office because of death, resignation, removal, 
disqualification, or any other cause shall be filled by the Board. 
 
Section 3. President. The President shall be the Chair of the Board, and shall preside at all 
meetings of the Board. Unless the Board shall otherwise provide, the President shall sign and 
execute all authorized bonds, contracts, and other obligations in the name of the Corporation. 

Page 284 of 301



 

 6 

Unless otherwise provided in these bylaws, the President shall have general management and 
control of, and shall supervise and direct, the activities of the Corporation. The President shall at 
all times be subject to the instructions of the Board. The President shall perform all other duties 
required by law or by these Bylaws and such duties as the Board may from time to time require. 
 
Section 4. Vice-President. In case of the absence or disability of the President, the Vice-
President in charge of administration shall perform the duties of the office of the President.  
Vice-Presidents shall also perform such other duties and have such authority as may be 
prescribed from time to time by the Board or the President. 
 
Section 5. Secretary. The Secretary shall keep the minutes of the meetings of the Board, 
unless some other person is designated by the recording secretary of the meeting. The Secretary 
shall give, or arrange to give, all notices of the Corporation.  The Secretary shall have charge of 
all records, books, and papers pertaining to the office, the corporate seal of the Corporation, and 
such books and papers of the Corporation as the Board may direct; The Secretary shall perform 
all other duties required by law or these bylaws and such as the Board or the President may from 
time to time require. 
 
Section 6. Treasurer. The Treasurer shall have overall, responsibility for all fiscal record 
keeping and all corporate funds. The Treasurer shall, with the President, sign all certificates, 
contracts or other documents in any way affecting real property or any right of interest therein. 
The Treasurer shall perform all the duties as from time to time may be assigned by the President 
or by the Board of Directors. The Treasurer, or such persons supervised by the Treasurer shall 
receive, receipt for, and safely keep all its funds, and shall dispose of them only in the manner 
authorized by the Board; shall at all times keep a full and complete and accurate record of the 
funds of the Corporation and shall deposit the same to the credit of the Corporation in such bank, 
banks, or depositories as the Board may designate. 
 

ARTICLE VII 
Records; Inspection; Annual Report 

 
Section 1. Maintenance of Records. The Corporation shall keep at its principal office, or if 
its principal office is not in Nevada, at its principal office in Nevada, the original or a copy of the 
Articles of Incorporation and of the Bylaws, as amended to date. The Corporation shall take 
appropriate steps to protect the confidentiality of donors. 
 
Section 2. Inspection. Every Director shall have the right at any reasonable time to inspect 
the Corporation’s books, records, and documents of every kind, physical properties, and the 
records of each of its subsidiaries. The inspection may be made in person or by the Director’s 
agent or attorney. The right of inspection includes the right to copy and make abstracts of 
documents, provided that the confidentiality of the corporate records and documents is protected. 
 
Section 3. Annual Report. The Board shall cause an annual report to be sent to all Directors 
within one hundred twenty (120) days after the close of the Corporation’s fiscal year. The 
Corporation’s fiscal year shall be the calendar year. 
 

Page 285 of 301



 

 7 

ARTICLE VIII 
Execution of Instruments 

 
Checks, drafts, and orders upon the funds or credits of the Corporation, bills, notes, and other 
obligations for the payment of money by the Corporation, and contracts and instruments in 
writing by the Corporation, shall be valid and binding upon the Corporation only when executed 
by such officer or officers as may be authorized by the Board or by these Bylaws. 
 
 

ARTICLE IX 
Indemnification 

 
Section 1. Right of Indemnity. To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Corporation shall 
indemnify its present and former officers, Directors, employees, and agents against all expenses, 
judgments, fines, settlements, and other amounts actually and reasonably incurred by them in 
connection with any threatened, pending, or completed action or proceedings, whether civil, 
criminal, administrative, or investigative, including an action by or in the right of the 
Corporation, by reason of the fact that the person is or was an officer, Director, employee, or 
agent of the Corporation. “Expenses” as used herein includes, without limitation, attorneys’ fees 
and any expenses of establishing a right to indemnification. 
 
Section 2. Approval of Indemnity. On written request to the Board of any person seeking 
indemnification under Section 1 of this Article IX, the Board shall promptly determine whether 
indemnification is permitted and, if so, shall authorize such indemnification. 
 
Section 3. Advancement of Expenses. To the fullest extent permitted by law and as 
otherwise determined by the Board in a specific instance, expenses incurred by a person seeking 
indemnification under Sections 1 or 2 above in defending any proceeding covered by those 
Sections shall be advanced by the Corporation before final disposition of the proceeding, on 
receipt by the Corporation of the undertaking by or on behalf of that person that the advance will 
be repaid unless it is ultimately determined that the person is not entitled to be indemnified by 
the Corporation for those expenses. 
 
Section 4. Insurance. The Corporation may purchase and maintain insurance to the fullest 
extent permitted by law on behalf of its officers, Directors, employees, and agents against any 
liability asserted against or incurred by any of such persons in such capacity or arising out of the 
person’s status as such wherever the Corporation has the power to indemnify the person against 
such liability under the provisions of Section 1 above. 
 

ARTICLE X 
Amendments 

 
 These Bylaws may be altered, amended or repealed by a vote of two thirds (2/3rds) of the 
entire Board of Directors at any regular or special meeting called therefore with notice specifying 
purpose and providing written copies of the proposed amendments. Written notice of such 
proposed action must be given to the Directors at least seven (7) days prior to the date of such 

Page 286 of 301



 

 8 

meeting. Directors not present at the meeting considering a proposed revision or amendment may 
express their approval in writing. No revision or amendment shall be adopted that would be 
inconsistent with the tax-exempt, non-profit status of the Corporation. 
 

ARTICLE XI 
Gift Acceptance 

 
Section 1. Acceptance. The Board of Directors may accept on behalf of the Corporation any 
gift, grant, bequest or devise for the general purposes of the Corporation. The Board of Directors 
may authorize any officer, agent or employee to accept on behalf of the Corporation any gift, 
grant bequest or devise and such authority may be general or confined to specific funds, accounts 
or purposes. The Board of Directors has the right to reject or refuse to accept any gift, grant, 
bequest or devise whenever it is deemed to be in the best interest of the Corporation to reject or 
refuse to accept such gift, grant, devise. 
 
Section 2. Irrevocable. Unless the terms expressly provide otherwise, all gifts, grants, 
bequests and devises shall be deemed irrevocable. 
 
Section 3. Restrictions. Any person and/or organization who shall give, bequeath or devise 
any property to the Corporation may make such gift subject to such conditions and limitations as 
to the use of the principal or income as he/she/they may see fit, and may specify such uses for the 
principal or the income as he/she may desire, provided such conditions, limitations, 
specifications and provisions are consistent with the general purposes of the Corporation and 
provided, further, that the Board of Directors has the right to reject or refuse to accept any such 
gift, grant, devise or bequest in the event it would not be in the best interest of the Corporation to 
accept such gift, grant, devise or bequest. 
 
Section 4. Property. All such property received and accepted by the Corporation shall 
become a part of the Corporation property and, subject to any limitations, conditions or 
requirements, may be commingled with the other assets of the Corporation. However, such 
property shall or may be placed in any number of separate accounts whenever the conditions, 
limitations or instruction of the gift, grant, bequest or devise required a separate fund or account, 
or whenever the Board of Directors, in its judgment, determines that such property should be 
placed in a separate and distinct fund or account. 
 
/// 
 
/// 
 
/// 
 
/// 
 
/// 
 
/// 

Page 287 of 301



 

 9 

CERTIFICATE OF PRESIDENT 
 

 I certify that I am the duly elected and acting President/Chairman of the Board of Trucke 
Meadows Affordable Housing, a Nevada nonprofit corporation, that the above bylaws, consisting 
of nine (9) pages, including this page, are the bylaws of said Corporation as adopted by the 
Board of Directors of the Corporation at its regular meeting held on     
 , 2023. 
 

EXECUTED on     , 2023 
 
               

 President/Chairman of the Board 
 

 
ATTEST: 
 
      
Secretary of the Board 
 
 
4866-5255-1326, v. 1 

Page 288 of 301



Page 289 of 301



Page 290 of 301



Page 291 of 301



Page 292 of 301



 

 

 
SUBJECT: Update on the use of State of Nevada Home Means Nevada Initiative (HMNI) 

funds, legislative deadlines, and potential availability of additional HMNI 
funding for Silver Sage Apartments and John McGraw public housing. 
(Discussion) 

 
  
FROM:        Executive Director                                                 RECOMMENDATION: Discussion 
 

 

Background: 
 
RHA was awarded $48,938,330 in Home Means Nevada Initiative funding (HMNI) from the 
State of Nevada. This funding is critical to the agency’s development pipeline which 
currently consists of nine (9) projects totaling nearly $175,000,000 in financing. This report 
provides important updates regarding obligation deadlines for these projects as well as 
additional funding needs and potential solutions for the McGraw Court/Silver Sage Court 
Rehab Project. 
 
Obligation Deadline Update 
HMNI funds are State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds provided to the State of Nevada 
through the American Rescue Plan Act. These funds must be obligated by December 31, 
2024, and expended by December 31, 2026. RHA has executed grant agreements and 
obligated HMNI funding for the following projects: 
 
Project HMNI Award 
Dick Scott Manor $1,663,330 
Essex Manor Rehab $1,500,000 
Stead Manor Rehab $18,000,000 
McGraw Court/Silver Sage Court Rehab $3,500,000 
Railyard Flats $775,000 

Total Obligated $25,438,330 
 
All of the projects above received HMNI funding as a grant, which allowed RHA to obligate 
funding well in advance of project start through a grant agreement. However, two of the 
agency’s largest projects are set to receive HMNI funds as a loan and, thus, cannot 
obligate funds until financial closing. Additionally, the remaining HMNI funding reserved for 
land acquisition cannot be obligated until financial close on the purchase of a property. For 
these reasons, the following projects have yet to obligate HMNI funds: 
 
Project HMNI Award 
Hawk View Redevelopment $10,000,000 
Silverada Manor Rehab $12,000,000 

RENO HOUSING AUTHORITY 
 

 AGENDA ITEM NUMBER: 10                                                                       January 23, 2024 

Page 293 of 301



 

 

Land Acquisition (potentially Reno Ave) $1,500,000 
Total Unobligated $23,500,000 

 
Staff are working diligently to financially close on the above projects and are confident that 
all of the funds will be obligated in advance of the December 31, 2024, deadline. However, 
the Nevada Housing Division (NHD) has shared concerns that state leaders may decide to 
recapture unobligated funds as early as the first quarter of 2024 in an effort to redirect 
funds to projects that can quickly and easily obligate. Per NHD’s request, staff provided 
additional information on the status of RHA’s projects with unobligated funds. NHD will 
include this information in a presentation to the State Legislature’s Interim Finance 
Committee on February 8, 2024. While RHA does not believe any of our projects are in 
jeopardy of losing funding, staff will participate in the IFC meeting and remain in close 
contact with NHD over the coming months. If NHD allows, staff believe it would be wise to 
pursue a grant to loan agreement for Hawk View and Silverada Manor to ensure timely 
obligation. 
 
McGraw Court/Silver Sage Court Rehab Update 
The recapture of unobligated funds also means that additional funding could be made 
available for projects with an already executed grant agreement. This is particularly 
relevant to the McGraw Court/ Silver Sage Court Rehab project. This project’s initial 
budget was $5M and, to date, RHA has secured $4.5M in HMNI and HOME funding for 
the project. Staff have been waiting for schematic design estimates to determine if 
additional funds need to be raised and/or project scope needs to be reduced. Schematic 
estimates recently came in with a more accurate cost estimate of $6.7M. Staff determined 
that reducing the scope of work to fit in with the $4.5M currently available would have a 
significantly negative impact the project. It would also be a missed opportunity to fully 
rehabilitate the properties to ensure ongoing affordability and financial sustainability well 
into the future.  
 
RHA staff had the opportunity to discuss the agency’s HMNI projects with NHD and raised 
this financial gap as an issue. NHD said that additional funds could become available after 
the February IFC meeting and asked that RHA staff quickly submit a formal request so 
that the project could be on the list of projects to potentially receive reallocated funds. RHA 
staff prepared and submitted a request for $2M to NHD in the 2nd week of January. If the 
funding is awarded, staff will bring an additional report and recommendation to accept the 
funds to a future board meeting.  
 
If the funds are not awarded, staff believes another option to ensure the full rehabilitation 
of McGraw/Silver Sage is to request a reallocation of the $1.5M in HMNI funds already 
awarded to Essex Manor. The funding currently awarded to Essex Manor represents a 
small scope of work and does not address all the needs that must be addressed if RHA 
were to reposition the property in the future. This means that additional future financing 
would have to be secured even if the $1.5M is used now at Essex Manor. However, if 
transferred to McGraw Court, the $1.5M would allow the property to be fully rehabilitated 
and further set up for future repositioning with minimal investment. For these reasons, if no 
other option is available, staff believes requesting reallocation of Essex Manor’s HMNI 
award should be considered and will bring this item to the Board for potential action.  
 

Page 294 of 301



 

 

 
SUBJECT:   Discussion and potential approval of changes to RHA’s Personnel Policies to 

provide the Executive Director with further discretion when hiring and 
negotiating starting salary. (Discussion) 

 
 
FROM:        Executive Director                                                 RECOMMENDATION: Discussion 
 

 
 
 
Background: 
 
RHA’s current Personnel Policies provide the Executive Director with the following 
authority: 
 
c) Pay practices and salary administration: Hiring rates and step placement of employees within 
range following promotion, transfer, reclassification, equity adjustment and the like, and bonuses; 
and related matters. Any individual pay change that would have a fiscal impact over $25,000 must 
be approved by the Board. Once total cumulative fiscal impact reaches over $100,000 for a given 
fiscal year, further changes must be approved by the Board. 
 
This policy was enacted to allow the Executive Director more control over salary 
adjustments while ensuring fiscal responsibility given Board approved budgets for staff 
salaries. Recently, however, based on market conditions, the Executive Director needed to 
seek further discretion in the hiring salary range for its Director of Finance position since 
the potential competitive starting salary would be more than $25,000 above the Step 0 
salary in the Grade 2 salary range. Members of the Board asked to have further 
discussion as to whether the Executive Director should have discretion to hire at any Step 
within a salary range. The pros to providing this discretion include the ability for the 
Executive Director to quickly make an offer of employment to a qualified candidate as 
Board meetings do not always align with hiring timeframes. The cons of providing this 
discretion include less fiscal oversight for the Board. 
 
One potential way to address this is to remove the language stating, “Any individual pay 
change that would have a fiscal impact over $25,000 must by approved by the Board” but 
retain the provision that “Once total cumulative fiscal impact reaches over $100,000 for a 
given fiscal year, further changes must be approved by the Board.” This provides the 
Executive Director with flexibility but still allows for fiscal oversight by the Board. 
 
 
 
 
 

RENO HOUSING AUTHORITY 
 

 AGENDA ITEM NUMBER: 11                                                                       January 23, 2024 

Page 295 of 301



 

 

 
Staff Recommendation and Motion: 
 
Staff recommends the Board move to amend the Personnel Policies to state:  
 
c) Pay practices and salary administration: Hiring rates and step placement of employees within 
range following promotion, transfer, reclassification, equity adjustment and the like, and bonuses; 
and related matters. Once total cumulative fiscal impact reaches over $100,000 for a given fiscal 
year, further changes must be approved by the Board. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 296 of 301



 

 

 
SUBJECT: Closed Session: The Board may give direction to staff in closed session 

regarding the position or positions to be taken or the strategy to be employed, 
and staff may provide the Board with an update, regarding: 

 
 
FROM:        Executive Director                                               RECOMMENDATION: Discussion 
 

 
 

 
a) A potential letter of intent to Catholic Charities related to the acquisition of the 

Reno Ave Parcels.  
 

b) Possible future property swap of the Sarrazin Apartments for a newly 
constructed 60-unit apartment development by Jacobs Entertainment on a 
parcel immediately adjacent to the Gibson Building, on the east side of the 
building on W. 2nd Street, and related matters thereto.  

 
c) Possible acquisition of 205 S. Sierra Street, an existing 60-unit apartment 

complex in Reno, and related matters thereto. 
 
d) Update on Post Closing Agreement with Paradise Retail I, LLC, for APN 031-

012-40, otherwise known as Parcel 4-B as shown on Parcel Map No. 5306 in 
the Paradise Plaza Shopping Center.  

 
d.) Per NRS 288.220(4), to discuss labor relations with RHA’s management 

representatives, including without limitation, the position or positions to be taken 
or the strategy to be employed leading to the execution of a new Collective 
Bargaining Agreement (CBA), the upcoming expiration of the current CBA 
expiring June 30, 2024, potential items for negotiation in a new CBA and 
associated fiscal impacts. There will be no approval of the collective bargaining 
agreement during the course of the closed session.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

RENO HOUSING AUTHORITY 
 

 AGENDA ITEM NUMBER: 12                                                                       January 23, 2024 

Page 297 of 301



 

 

 
SUBJECT:   Discussion and possible approval of a letter of intent to Catholic Charities for 

the acquisition of property known as the Reno Ave Parcels. (For Possible 
Action) 

 
 
FROM:        Executive Director                                   RECOMMENDATION: For Possible Action 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

RENO HOUSING AUTHORITY 
 

 AGENDA ITEM NUMBER: 13                                                                       January 23, 2024 

Page 298 of 301



 

 

 
SUBJECT: Discussion and possible approval of a letter of intent for a future property swap 

of the Sarrazin Apartments for a newly constructed 60-unit apartment 
development by Jacobs Entertainment on a parcel immediately adjacent to the 
Gibson Building, on the east side of the building on W. 2nd Street, and related 
matters thereto. (For Possible Action) 

 
 
 
FROM:        Executive Director                                    RECOMMENDATION: For Possible Action 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

RENO HOUSING AUTHORITY 
 

 AGENDA ITEM NUMBER: 14                                                                       January 23, 2024 

Page 299 of 301



 

 

 
SUBJECT: Discussion and possible directions to staff regarding 205 S. Sierra Street, 
Reno, and related matters thereto. (For Possible Action) 
 
 
  
FROM:        Executive Director                                    RECOMMENDATION: For Possible Action 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

RENO HOUSING AUTHORITY 
 

 AGENDA ITEM NUMBER: 15                                                                       January 23, 2024 

Page 300 of 301



 

 

 

 
 
SUBJECT: Additional items:  
 

i) General matters of concern to Board Members regarding 
matters not appearing on the agenda. (Discussion) 

ii) Reports on conferences and trainings. (Discussion) 
iii) Old and New Business. (Discussion) 
iv) Request for Future Agenda Topics 
v) Schedule of next meeting. The following dates have been 

scheduled in advance but are subject to change at any time: 
Tuesday, February 27, 2024; Tuesday, March 26, 2024; and 
Tuesday, April 23, 2024. (For Possible Action) 
 

FROM:       Executive Director                                    RECOMMENDATION: For Possible Action 
 

 
The next Board meeting will be held Tuesday, February 27, 2023. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

RENO HOUSING AUTHORITY 
 

 AGENDA ITEM NUMBER: 16                                                                       January 23, 2024 

Page 301 of 301


	Agenda
	Agenda Item 1
	Agenda Item 2
	Agenda Item 3
	Consent Agenda Item A
	Consent Agenda Item B
	Consent Agenda Item C
	Consent Agenda Item D
	Consent Agenda Item E
	Consent Agenda Item F
	Consent Agenda Item G
	Consent Agenda Item H
	Resolution 24-01-01
	Resolution 24-01-02
	Resolution 24-01-03
	Resolution 24-01-04
	Resolution 21-01-05
	Exhibit 21-01-05
	Resolution 24-01-06
	Resolution 24-01-07
	MTW Plan Draft Amendment
	Resolution 24-01-08
	Agenda Item 4
	Agenda Item 5
	Rental Assistance
	Asset Management
	Resident Services
	Public Affairs
	Development
	IT
	MTW
	Financials
	Draft Joint Public Comment Letter
	Agenda Item 6
	Agenda Item 7
	Agenda Item 8
	Agenda Item 9
	Pathways To Prosperity Bylaws
	Pathways To Prosperity Articles of Incorporation
	Truckee Meadows Affordable Housing Bylaws
	Truckee Meadows Affordable Housing Articles of Incorporation
	Agenda Item 10
	Agenda Item 11
	Agenda Item 12
	Agenda Item 13
	Agenda Item 14
	Agenda Item 15
	Agenda Item 16



